Prospectus dated February 13, 2018

INSTONE
REAL
ESTATE

Prospectus
for the admission to trading

on the regulated market (regulierter Markt)
of the Frankfurt Stock Exchange (Frankfurter Wertpapierborse) with simultaneous admission to the
sub-segment thereof with additional post-admission obligations (Prime Standard)

of

7,000,000 newly issued bearer shares from a capital increase against contributions in cash to be resolved by
the Company’s shareholders’ meeting on or about February 13, 2018

and
29,988,336 existing bearer shares
— each such share with a nominal value of €1.00 —
of

Instone Real Estate Group B.V.
(the “Company”, which at the date of this prospectus (the “Prospectus”) is a private limited liability company
(besloten vennootschap met beperkte aansprakelijkheid (B.V.)) named Instone Real Estate Group B.V. and will
be converted into a public company with limited liability (naamloze vennootschap (N.V.)), incorporated under
the laws of the Netherlands, on February 13, 2018, shortly after determination of the placement price and prior
to listing and settlement,

Amsterdam, the Netherlands

International Securities Identification Number (ISIN): NL0012757355
German Securities Code (Wertpapierkennnummer (WKN)): A2JCTW
Ticker Symbol: INS
This Prospectus constitutes a prospectus for the purposes of Article 3 of Directive 2003/71/EC of the European
Parliament and of the Council, and amendments thereto (including those resulting from Directive 2010/73/EU)
(the “Prospectus Directive”) and has been prepared in accordance with Section 5:9 of the Dutch Financial
Markets Supervision Act (Wet op het financieel toezicht) and the rules promulgated thereunder. The Prospectus
has been approved by and filed with the Dutch Authority for the Financial Markets
(Autoriteit Financiéle Markten).

Joint Global Coordinators and Joint Bookrunners
Credit Suisse Deutsche Bank
Joint Bookrunners
BNP PARIBAS Morgan Stanley UniCredit Bank AG



TABLE OF CONTENTS

Page
SUMMARY OF THE PROSPECTUS. ..ottt sttt S-1
A — INtroduction and WaININGS ......cc.eieieiieieeene e et e et e et e e s e e et e testesaesseaneeseeseteseesresneanens S-1
B ISSUBT ...ttt ettt bbb bt oAbt A bt e R e R e he e ehe e beeRbeeRe e ebeenbe e beebeanee s S-1
€ SBOUNILIES. ..ttt ettt ettt bbbttt b et b et e s b bR bbbt b e b et e bttt b e et et n e b b ne et S-17
D RISKS .ttt sttt sttt bRttt AR R Rt R £ e Rt et b e R e eRe R e Rt e Rt et e teteneeerenreaneas S-18
S O 1 (-] ST TSP PP PP U R UPTUPPPPRPRTPIN S-21
. ZUSAMMENFASSUNG DES PROSPEKTS ...ttt ettt S-26
A —Einleitung und WarnhiNWEISE...........cociiiiiiie ittt bbb S-26
2 1 111 1 SO PO OSSPSR S-26
€ — WV PAPIEI . ..ttt bbbt bbb bbbt bbb bbbt b bbb bt S-44
D — RUSTKEIN ... bbbttt e bbb e b £ e Rt et e eb e bt e Rt b e bt e Rt e e e b e b b nre b ene s S-45
B — ANGEDOL ..o b et b et be e S-48
RISK FACTORS ...ttt et sttt et bt be s b et e b e bt e be e bt e bt e be st et e ebe e et e st st ebeebe b enenbns 1
1.1 Market and BUSINESS RISKS .......oiuiitiiiiiiiiiie ittt sttt sn bbb 1
1.2 Regulatory, Legal and TaX RISKS .......ccciiiiiiiiiiii e 14
1.3 Risks related to the Private Placement and the Listing and the Placement Shares...........c...ccc....... 20
GENERAL INFORMATION ...ttt ettt sttt sttt ne st st ne st st ne s te s enesnens 24
2.1 ReSPONSIDIItY StALEMENT........cciiiie ettt re et e e e rnesneenreeeas 24
2.2 PUIPOSE OF thiS PIOSPECIUS. ....c.eiviieiiiteiieieite sttt ettt et st sb e ebennes 24
2.3 Background to the Private PIACEMENT ..o 25
24 INFOrmMation 0N the SNAIES ........coiiiii bbb 30
25 Admission to the Frankfurt Stock Exchange and Commencement of Trading .........c.ccccecvvennennen. 31
2.6 Designated Sponsor, Paying AGENL........cc.viiiiiiiieiie ettt teebe e e e e sreenas 31
2.7 Cost of the Private Placement and LiStING .........ccoviririiiriiiireininese e 31
2.8 Forward-100King STAtEMENLS .........cviiiiiiiiee bbb 32
2.9 N o] 0] = V11 ST 32
2.10 SOUCES OF MAIKET DA ... ecveiveieieiieieie sttt sttt st st teereese e eeeseenteseenreereens 33
211 Documents Available for INSPECHION .........cccvviiiicceec e 35
212 NON-TFRS IMBASUIES ...ttt ettt st e s te e te et e eseesbeesbeebeenbeeneesreesreenneeneas 36
2.13 Currency Presentation and Presentation of Financial Information.............ccccccvve i, 36
DIVIDEND POLICY; RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS PER SHARE; USE OF PROFITS................... 38
3.1 General Provisions Relating to Profit Allocation and Dividend Payments...........ccccoevviverninnenn. 38
3.2 General Provisions Relating to Profit Allocation and Dividend Payments upon
Effectiveness 0f the AG CONVEISION .......c..oiiiiiiiiiiei ettt bbb e b 38
3.3 Dividend Policy and Earnings Per SNAre ..ottt 39
CAPITALIZATION AND INDEBTEDNESS; STATEMENT ON WORKING CAPITAL ................ 40
4.1 (08 To 11 112 LU0  H USRS 40
4.2 LT [=T 0] 1=To LTSS 41
4.3 Statement on Working Capital ..........cc.ooiiiiiiiiii e e 42
SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION ..ot 43
5.1 Consolidated Statement Of Profit and LOSS .......ccoveiriiriiiniieeieee e 44
5.2 Consolidated Statement of Financial POSITION............cocooiiiiiieiiec e 45
53 Selected Information from the Consolidated Statement of Cash FIOWS ..........ccocooviviniiiinninnn, 46
5.4 Alternative Performance MEASUIES ........cc.ooiiiiiiiiiiiee ettt ettt se b s sbe s 46



6.

10.
11.

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS, FINANCIAL

CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS ......oiiiiiiiteirieesreeese e 50
6.1 Overview Of INStONE’S BUSINESS ...vcuviiiiiiiiiiieiiieitie st et sre e e e sae e sae et e s a e et e e sraeessaeesraeennneeas 50
6.2 Overview of InStone’s POTTIOLI0 ...cuviiiiiiiiei ittt sae e 51
6.3 Foundation of the Company and Acquisition of Instone Development and Instone Leipzig.......... 52
6.4 Form of Customer Contract, Application of Accounting Method and Operating

PEITOMMANCE ...ttt b et sttt be et e b e besbeebeebeene e e et e nbesbesbenre e 52
6.5 Factors Affecting Comparability........cccoieiiiiiiiiiie e e 54
6.6 Key Factors Influencing the Company’s Results of Operations ...........ccouereiereneienieneicseneennens 56
6.7 RESUILS OF OPEIALIONS ...ttt b et b et b et b e een e 59
6.8 AASSEES ..o 70
6.9 LEADTITTIES ..ottt bbbttt s et e e sb et e b bt e s e enteneene e benbeeneenes 75
6.10 B UITY ettt R b bR bRt r e 79
6.11 Liquidity and Capital RESOUICES .......cceriiiiirieiiieriee sttt 80
6.12 INVESTMENES ...t bbb s re s 84
6.13 Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosure about Financial RiSKS ..........cccccevevieviiiiien i 84
6.14 Significant ACCOUNEING POLICIES .......oviiiiiriiiciree e 87
MARKETS AND COMPETITION ..ottt bbb 90
7.1 =T =] TSP 90
7.2 (@70] 1010 T=] 111 o] o 1SS 108
BUSIINESS. ...ttt ettt ettt a e bt e e bt ekt e s bt e st e e s e e s be e sbe e nbeebeembeaneeebeenbeebeenbearee s 109
8.1 L@ QY-S PTSPR 109
8.2 BUSINESS SEIENGLNS .....eevieiicice e et e e sbe et e e s e ensesnaente e beeseenneeas 111
8.3 YL 1T YT T SO ST PP P TP PRPRTPRO 115
8.4 BUSINESS OPEIALIONS ....cvievieiieiie ettt et e te e e st e s teesteesbeenbeesseassesnaesteebeeseenneens 117
8.5 PrOJECE POIFOTIO ...t bbbt 129
8.6 EMPIOYEES ... bbbt b et bbb 137
8.7 MALEITAl AGIEEIMENTS ... .eiieeie et ettt et e e e et e e e st e sae e st e e baete e aeaseesseesteesreeteenseaneenseenes 137
8.8 MELEFTAT LITIGALION ...ttt bbb bbb 142
8.9 L1 To U U o o] o 1T o YOS 144
8.10 INSUIICE ...ttt ettt h e s b bt s kbt e s h bt e e b bt e eh bt e sk bt e ea b e e eb bt e sab e e sbb e e nnbeennbeennbeennes 144
REGULATORY AND LEGAL ENVIRONMENT ....cooiiiiiiiiriet et 146
9.1 Land USE REGUIALIONS ........eiiiiieceie ettt et et esre e steeaeenteeneennee e 146
9.2 Urban Development Contracts/COMMITMENTS .......coerieiiirieieiereerie e 148
9.3 BUIAING REGUIALIONS ..ottt ste e e s e sra e be e beeseeenaens 149
9.4 Standardized Agreements and Applicable GErman LaW.........ccoevvireiiiieiine s 149
9.5 Construction and Property Development CONEFACES .........cocuiireiieierieie e 150
9.6 Protection Of Listed BUITAINGS. ......cviiiiiiirieiie et 151
9.7 German Income Tax Incentives with respect to Listed BUuildings..........cccooevvineininiininnnncnns 152
9.8 PUBTIC BASEMENTS ...ttt ettt b bbbttt se et b sbeens 152
9.9 Public Improvement and Development Charges..........ccovereenereiineneesenee e 152
9.10 Regulation Relating to Environmental Damage and Contamination............c.ccoceeveeeiencieneninnnes 152
9.11 Heritable BUIlAING RIGNES. .....c.oiiiiiiiii et 154
9.12 Energy Saving REQUIALION...........coiiiie e 155
9.13 Real Estate Transfer Tax, Notary Costs and Land Registry Office FEes .......ccocvvvviiineienennnne. 155
9.14 Restitution Rights and Transfer APProval............cccieieiiiieiieiee e 156
INFORMATION ON THE EXISTING SHAREHOLDERS .......ccccoeiiiiiiieseesiseese e 157
GENERAL INFORMATION ON THE COMPANY AND INSTONE ......ccooviiiiriireeeneeennennns 158



12.

13.

11.1 Formation, Incorporation, Commercial Name and Registered Office.........ccccvvvvivvrerinvicvinennnn,
11.2 Financial year and DUFALION ..........couiirieiiiriee e
11.3 L LTS (o o T (0SSP
11.4 COIPOTALE PUIPOSE ..ttt ettt ettt ettt ettt ettt et e et e b e et e et e e e be e e be e e beesnbeesnbeennbeas
115 Corporate Purpose upon Effectiveness of the AG CONVEISION ..........ccooireiiiineiisineiesesieeeienes
11.6 GIOUP SETUCTUIE ...ttt b et e et ettt e b e et e e e be e et eebeesnbeeanbeennbeas
11.7 SIGNITICANT SUDSTAIAITES ... vttt en e
T V1 o 1) (o) SO
11.9  Auditor upon Effectiveness of the AG CONVEISION...........coeiiiiiiniieineeere e
11,00 ANNOUNCEIMENTS. ...ttt ittt et et ettt ettt ste e bt e sbe e e e e e e ebeesbeesbe e bt asbeeseesbeesbeesbeebeenbeaasesbeesbeebeanbessnens
DESCRIPTION OF THE COMPANY’S SHARE CAPITAL AND APPLICABLE
REGULATIONS ..ottt b bbbkt b bbbt b bbb et bt nb et s e b s
12.1 SHAE CAPITAL ....c.ecviieeeeice bbb bbb
12.2 AULhOFIZEd CaPItal .....ccveeieeee e
12.3 GENEIAL IMIBETING ...t ettt bbb ettt b et eb e bbb et bt et b e b e
12.4  General Meeting upon Effectiveness of the AG CONVEISION ........ccoceveireriiniinieineecseecneens
125 Amendment of the Articles 0f ASSOCIALION ........coiiiiiiiiiciee e
12.6 Amendment of the AG Articles 0f ASSOCIAtION ........coveviiiiiiiiiceee e
12.7 ANNUAT ACCOUNES ...ttt bbbt e b bbbtk e b et sbesb e e bt e bt e e et e besbenbenbeeneas
12.8  Annual Accounts upon Effectiveness of the AG CONVEISION .........cooeireriiniiniineeseecens
12.9 General Provisions Governing a Liquidation of the Company ...........cccccevveviievieiie s
12.10  General Provisions Governing a Liquidation of the Company upon Effectiveness of the AG

CONVEISION 1.ttt bbb bbb bbbt bt b e ekt e s b e b ekt eb e e bt bt e bt e s e e b e benbenbenbeebeenes
12.11  Obligations of Shareholders to Make a Public Offer and Squeeze-out Proceedings.....................
12.12  Squeeze-out Proceedings upon Effectiveness of the AG CONVErSION .........ccccveevveveiieveeieeieanens
12.13  Obligations of Shareholders, Members of the Management Board and the Supervisory

B0ard t0 DiSCIOSE HOIAINGS. .......coveitiiiiiieie e
12.14  Shareholder Notification Requirements; Mandatory Takeover Bids; Directors’ Dealings

upon Effectiveness 0f the AG CONVEISION .......c.ciiiiiiiiiieiie ettt
DESCRIPTION OF THE GOVERNING BODIES OF THE COMPANY ....ccocviiiiiiieneseeeeens
13.1 MaANAGEMENT STFUCLUIE ...ttt r et nrenrenreeneas
13.2 Management Structure upon Effectiveness of the AG Conversion..........cccoccevvveveeveececcreeieennnn,
13.3 MaNagEMENT BOAI .......cccveiiiiiicie ettt sae et e s be et e e ae s e e s reesteesteeaeenteeneennee e
134 Management Board upon Effectiveness of the AG CONVEISION..........ccoccevvririveierienene e
135 Composition of Management BOAI ...........cccveiuveiuiiieiie ettt sre s
13.6 SUPEIVISOTY BOAIT. ... vttt ettt sttt se ettt et nn e et e
13.7 Supervisory Board upon Effectiveness of the AG CONVEISION ..........ccocovviiieninieeiene e
13.8 SUPEIVISOTY DIFECLOIS. ...evivetiiteiieieite ettt ettt stttk bbb bt b e et sb e ebesreneebe e
13.9 Maximum Number of Supervisory Positions of Managing Directors and Supervisory

L1 =T od (o] £
13.10 Maximum Number of Supervisory Positions of Managing Directors and Supervisory

Directors Upon Effectiveness of the AG CONVEISION .........coceiiiiiiiiiiinine e
13.11  Management Board REMUNEIALION.........civiviieeeieiesese et e e te et e e e e see e sresreens
13.12  Supervisory Board REMUNEIALION ........cccoiiiiiiieirieeinteee et
13.13  Shareholding INFOrMALION ........ccooiiiiiii e e
13.14  Employment, Service and SEVErance AGQreeMENTS ........ccoureireirirereeerenieesieseeesieseeseseeseesessenes
13.15  Supervisory Board COMMITEEES. ........oiuiiiiirieiieieeie ettt sttt be e bbb ens
13.16  Board Conflicts OF INTErEST........oviiiiiciiecree e
13.17  Board Conflicts of Interest upon Effectiveness of the AG CONVEISION.........cccecveeeiiieieneneaiene



14.

15.

16.
17.
18.
19.

13.18  Certain Information Regarding the Members of the Management Board, Senior

Management and the SUPErViSOry BOArd ..........ccccecveieieieiisisieceeieesesese s se e see e eneas 195
13.19  Potential Conflicts of Interest and Other INformation ...........ccccooeveiiiiiiic e 196
13.20 Liability of Members of the Management Board and the Supervisory Board...........c.ccccovrrinnne. 196
13.21  Liability of Members of the Management Board and the Supervisory Board Upon

Effectiveness 0f the AG CONVEISION .........coveiiiiieiie ettt nn e 196
13.22  INSUFAINICE ..ttt ettt ettt he e bt bttt e bt ht e eh e eh e e b e e skt es b e e h e e s b e e e he e nb e e beenbeeabeebeenbeebeenbeanneas 196
13.23  INAEMINITICALION ...ttt b bttt bbb et nes 197
13.24  No Indemnification upon Effectiveness of the AG CONVErSION ........cccccuveriinineiinenciseeeiens 197
13.25  DIVEISITY POIICY....uiiiiiitiiiiitcet bbbt bbbt 197
13.26  Diversity Policy upon Effectiveness of the AG CONVEISION .......c.cocevveveieivieeieiese e sese e 197
13.27  Dutch Corporate GOVEINANCE COUE ..........eviuiriiieiirieieist ettt 198
13.28  German Corporate GOVEINANCE COUE .......ccieeiiieieeieiie st steesteese e ee s e e ste e et esaa e beesreaneeas 198
CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS......ccccccov e 200
14.1 Relationships and Transactions with Related Parties............cccvoevieiieeieiie e 200
14.2 Relationships with Members of the Management Board and Supervisory Board.............c.cccv.... 200
LI AN AN I 1 ]\ RSP 201
15.1 The NEThErTANAS ..o bbb e sb e 201
15.2 Federal RepUDIIC OF GEIMANY .......ciiiiiiiiic e 205
FINANCIAL INFORMATION.......citiiiitisieiee sttt s ettt ne st stene s s F-1
VALUATION REPORT ...ttt st e st e et e e s e e s nbe e ssbeesnbeesnbeesnaeesnaeesneeens V-1
GLOSSARY .ottt ettt ettt ettt a1 et bR b et R e b e bR e Re et R e Re b st R e b e st e Re st e e ebe e b e s e eRenbe e eteareeas G-1
RECENT DEVELOPMENTS AND OUTLOOK .......coiiiiiitieese ettt 0-1



l. SUMMARY OF THE PROSPECTUS

Summaries are made up of disclosure requirements known as elements (“Elements”). These Elements
are numbered in Sections A — E (A.1 — E.7). This summary contains all the Elements required to be included in
a summary for this type of security and issuer. Because some Elements are not required to be addressed, there
may be gaps in the numbering sequence of the Elements. Even though an Element may be required to be
inserted in the summary because of the type of security and issuer, it is possible that no relevant information can
be given regarding the Element. In such cases, the summary includes a short description of the Element with the

words “not applicable”.

A — Introduction and Warnings

A.1 Warnings.

A.2 Information
regarding the
subsequent use of
the prospectus.

B — Issuer

B.1 Legal and
commercial name
of the issuer.

This summary should be read as an introduction to this prospectus (the
“Prospectus”).

An investor should base any decision to invest in the securities described herein on
the review of the Prospectus as a whole.

If any claims are asserted before a court of law based on the information contained
in this Prospectus, the investor appearing as plaintiff may have to bear the costs of
translating this Prospectus prior to the commencement of the court proceedings
pursuant to the national legislation of the member states of the European Economic
Area.

Civil liability attaches only to those persons who have tabled the summary including
any translation thereof, but only if the summary is misleading, inaccurate or
inconsistent when read together with the other parts of this Prospectus, or it does not
provide, when read together with the other parts of this Prospectus, key information
in order to aid investors when considering whether to invest in the ordinary bearer
shares with a nominal value of €1.00 per share of Instone Real Estate Group N.V.
(which, as of the date of this Prospectus, is still a private limited liability company
(besloten vennootschap met beperkte aansprakelijkheid (B.V.)) incorporated under
the laws of the Netherlands and with the legal name “Instone Real Estate Group
B.V.”) (the “Company” and, together with its consolidated subsidiaries, “Instone”).

The Company assumes responsibility for the content of this summary.

Not applicable. Consent by the Company regarding the use of this Prospectus for a
subsequent resale or placement of shares has not been granted.

At the date of this Prospectus, the Company is still a private limited liability
company (besloten vennootschap met beperkte aansprakelijkheid (B.V.))
incorporated under the laws of the Netherlands. Its legal name is “Instone Real
Estate Group B.V.” and its commercial name is “Instone Real Estate”.

The Company’s legal form will be converted into a public company with limited
liability (naamloze vennootschap (N.V.)) incorporated under the laws of the
Netherlands, shortly after the determination of the placement price of the Placement
Shares (as defined in B.7) and before payment for, and delivery of, the Placement
Shares (as defined in B.7), effected by a notarial deed of conversion and amendment
of its articles of association (the “Articles of Association”) and in accordance with a
resolution of the Company’s general shareholders’ meeting (the “General
Meeting”) to be adopted at or prior to such time (the “N.V. Conversion”, and upon
its effectiveness, the “Effectiveness of the N.V. Conversion”). Upon Effectiveness
of the N.V. Conversion, the legal name of the Company will become “Instone Real
Estate Group N.V.” and its commercial name will remain unchanged.

The Company plans to propose to its General Meeting to resolve upon the
conversion of the Company into a German stock corporation (Aktiengesellschaft),
governed by the laws of the Federal Republic of Germany and having its registered
seat in Essen, Germany (the “AG Conversion™). The resolution to convert the
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B.2

B.3

Domicile, legal
form and
legislation under
which the issuer
operates and its
country of
incorporation.

Operations and
principal business
activities of the
issuer and
principal markets
in which the
issuer competes.

Company into a German stock corporation is expected to be proposed as joint
proposal of the Company’s management board and the Company’s supervisory
board and will as such require a simple majority (50%) of the votes cast. The
Existing Shareholders (as defined in B.6) have committed (i) to vote in favor of such
conversion and (ii) not to dispose of their shareholdings until the end of the lock-up
period (August 15,2018). The Existing Shareholders (as defined in B.6) will
continue to hold at least 36.7% of the Company’s share capital (assuming a
placement of all Placement Shares (as defined in B.7) and full exercise of the
Greenshoe Option (as defined in B.7)) following the settlement of the Private
Placement (as defined in B.6). The Company will only initiate the consummation of
the AG Conversion after assuring that the AG Conversion will not trigger any
materially adverse taxes in any jurisdiction. In particular, the AG Conversion will
only be consummated following receipt of favorable binding tax rulings by the
competent German tax authorities confirming that the AG Conversion can be
consummated without triggering substantial German corporate income, German
trade tax, German withholding tax or German real estate transfer tax on the level of
the Company or its consolidated subsidiaries and would not be treated as an actual
or deemed liquidation from a German tax perspective (the “Favorable Binding Tax
Rulings™), provided the assumptions contained therein regarding Dutch legal and
tax matters are sufficiently confirmed by Dutch legal advisors or Dutch binding tax
rulings. Following receipt of the Favorable Binding Tax Rulings and subsequent
registration of the AG Conversion in the commercial register of the local court
(Amtsgericht) of Essen, Germany (the “Effectiveness of the AG Conversion”), the
legal name of the Company will become “Instone Real Estate Group AG” and its
commercial name will remain unchanged. The Company expects the AG
Conversion to be effected in the course of 2018, provided that the aforementioned
requirements are satisfied.

The Company is a private limited liability company (besloten vennootschap met
beperkte aansprakelijkheid), incorporated under the laws of the Netherlands. The
Company has its corporate seat (statutaire zetel) in Amsterdam, the Netherlands, its
place of effective management and registered business address at Baumstralie 25,
45128 Essen, Germany, and it is registered with the commercial register of the
Dutch Chamber of Commerce (Handelsregister van de Kamer van Koophandel)
under number 60490861.

Upon the Effectiveness of the N.V. Conversion, the Company’s legal form will be
converted into a public company with limited liability (naamloze vennootschap
(N.V.)), incorporated under the laws of the Netherlands, while its registration
number of the commercial register of the Dutch Chamber of Commerce
(Handelsregister van de Kamer van Koophandel), its corporate seat (statutaire
zetel), its place of effective management and its registered business address will not
be affected by this conversion.

Upon Effectiveness of the AG Conversion, the Company will be a German stock
corporation (Aktiengesellschaft), governed by the laws of Germany, having its
registered seat and business address at Baumstrale 25, 45128 Essen, Germany.

Instone is a leading nationwide residential real estate developer in Germany as
measured in terms of square meters (“sqm”) of secured development projects not
yet under construction (Source: bulwiengesa). Instone develops modern, urban,
multifamily residential properties and redevelops listed buildings for residential use.
As of September 30, 2017, Instone’s project portfolio comprised 48 development
projects with an aggregate expected sales volume for fully developed projects of
approximately €3.4 billion. As of that date, approximately 93% of Instone’s
portfolio (by expected sales volume for fully developed projects) was located in
Germany’s key metropolitan regions (Berlin, Bonn, Cologne, Dusseldorf, Frankfurt
am Main, Hamburg, Leipzig, Munich and Stuttgart (including Herrenberg)) and 7%
in other prospering medium-sized cities. Instone’s key purchaser groups are owner-
occupiers, retail buy-to-let investors and institutional investors. As of September 30,
2017, Instone had entered into purchase contracts with regard to 24% of the
residential units projected to be constructed in total and with regard to 75% of the
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residential units that are in the pre-construction or construction development phase
(in each case measured by expected sales volume). As of the same date, Instone had
agreed on the sale of two-thirds of its residential units planned to be completed by
2020 (measured by expected sales volume).

Instone believes that the German residential real estate market is highly attractive.
Germany is Europe’s largest and most stable economy. In 2016, Germany had the
highest gross domestic product (GDP) in Europe (€3.1 trillion) as well as one of the
highest GDP per capita (€38.1 thousand) (Source: Destatis, German Federal
Statistical Office). Sound structural growth in the German residential property
market is expected to continue due to a combination of several factors, including
modest population growth (Source: Institut der deutschen Wirtschaft Kéln (IW)), an
increasing number of households (Source: Destatis, German Federal Statistical
Office) and the current structural undersupply of residential properties (Source:
bulwiengesa). From 2012 until 2030, the population is expected to grow by 10.3%
in Berlin, by 14.2% in Frankfurt am Main and by 4% in Munich (Source:
bulwiengesa, Potential Analysis). In addition, Instone’s business benefits from
favorable German regulatory framework for project developments. The German
Real Estate and Commercial Contractor Regulation (Makler- und
Bautrégerverordnung (“MaBV”)) enables Instone to contractually agree on
significant fixed down payments based on construction milestones for residential
units sold to owner-occupiers and retail buy-to-let investors which substantially
reduces its development risk.

Instone is one of only a few pure play residential real estate developers in Germany
with operations spanning the entire development value chain other than actual
construction. Instone operates through a fully integrated nationwide platform
covering the acquisition of land, land development, concept design, construction
management, as well as marketing and sales. Headquartered in Essen, Instone also
operates through seven branches in Berlin, Cologne, Frankfurt am Main, Hamburg,
Leipzig, Munich and Stuttgart. Each branch has its own local teams for acquisition,
planning, construction management and marketing and sales activities, while
strategic decisions are coordinated and managed together with Instone’s
headquarters. Instone has strong risk-management processes in place and applies
sophisticated reporting and planning tools to mitigate development risks. Due to
these measures, for projects completed in the period between January 2015 and
September 30, 2017, Instone Development (as defined below) successfully delivered
100% of a total of 25 projects on time and realized on average 1% more floor space
than initially projected. During the same period, Instone Development’s (as defined
below) actual project construction costs were on average 0.5% lower than initially
anticipated.

Instone has a successful acquisition track record. Since 2015, Instone has acquired
land plots and properties for residential development with an aggregate expected
sales volume for fully developed projects of €2,847 million at the time of
acquisition. Instone also has a successful development track record. Since 1991,
Instone (including its predecessors) has developed residential units comprising more
than one million sqm of residential space. In 2015, Instone successfully delivered
1,112 residential units, in 2016 1,204 units, in the first nine months of 2017 270
units and in the last quarter of 2017 190 units, respectively. For 2018, Instone
expects to deliver approximately 700 residential units, in 2019 approximately 1,450,
and in 2020 approximately 1,300, respectively. Instone achieved a weighted average
Historical Gross Project Margin (as defined in B.7 below) of 23.6% over all projects
completed between January 1, 2015 and September 30, 2017. Instone believes that
its success is attributable to its regional focus, its nationwide regional presence, and
the know-how and strong network of its experts located across Germany.

Instone’s core business originates from HOCHTIEF Solutions AG’s real estate
development division. In 2013, HOCHTIEF Solutions AG contributed its
development division into a separate entity, formart GmbH & Co. KG. In 2014,
formart GmbH & Co. KG, which has since been renamed and converted into Instone
Real Estate Development GmbH (“Instone Development”), was acquired by the
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Company. Instone Development has been fully consolidated in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements since October 1, 2014. In 2015, the Company
acquired the former GRK-Holding GmbH, which has since been renamed Instone
Real Estate Leipzig GmbH (“Instone Leipzig”), a real estate developer specialized
in the redevelopment of listed buildings for residential use. Instone Leipzig has been
fully consolidated in the Company’s consolidated financial statements since
December 2015. In June 2017, the Company’s legal name was changed to Instone
Real Estate Group B.V. and Instone Real Estate became Instone’s commercial
name. As a result of the acquisition of Instone Development and Instone Leipzig, the
Company’s financial statements include substantial effects from the resulting PPA
Effects (as defined in B.7).

As of September 30, 2017, Instone owned a portfolio of 48 projects comprising
8,042 residential units with an aggregate expected sales volume for fully developed
projects of approximately €3.4 billion. Instone divides its project portfolio into three
categories based on the development phase. Projects in the “pre-sale” category
comprise projects for which land plots or properties have been acquired or secured
by Instone but for which it has not yet commenced its marketing and sales activities.
In the “pre-sale” category, Instone performs its land development and concept
design activities to enable it to initiate its sales activities. Once Instone starts its
marketing and sales activities, projects are assigned to the “pre-construction” phase.
Projects in respect of which building measures are being carried out are categorized
as being “under construction”. As of September 30, 2017, 68% of its project
portfolio was in the “pre-sale” category, 7% was in the “pre-construction” category
and 25% was “under construction” based on expected sales volume. Out of the
expected 8,042 residential units to be built, 1,994 units have already been sold.

The strong backlog of current projects reflects the high level of investment activity
in 2015 and 2016, in which land plots and properties were acquired with an
aggregate expected sales volume for fully developed projects of €1,476 million
(including €550 million attributable to the acquisition of Instone Leipzig) and €995
million, respectively. This high level of investment activity followed a less active
acquisition phase in 2013 and 2014, while Instone Development was still under the
control of HOCHTIEF Solutions AG, in which land plots or properties were
acquired with an aggregate expected sales volume for fully developed projects of
€229 million. As of December 31, 2017, Instone had identified 71 additional
acquisition opportunities with an aggregate potential sales volume for fully
developed projects of more than €13.0 billion.

As a project developer, Instone’s results are significantly affected by the method
used to account for its customer contracts. Historically, Instone Development’s
standard customer contracts provided for a right of its customers to request that
fundamental changes be made to the project during the course of construction in
accordance with a policy of HOCHTIEF Solutions AG. In the new form of contract,
which Instone Development introduced on August 1, 2015, this right was
eliminated. For projects marketed by Instone Development under the prior form of
contact, revenue and costs were recognized throughout the construction phase based
on status of completion and sales progress using the percentage of completion
method. For projects marketed under the new form of contract, production costs are
capitalized in inventories and revenues and profits are not recognized until
residential units that have been sold are actually delivered following completion.
Because revenues and profits under this method are not recognized until the delivery
of completed units, earnings generally remain negative until the end of the project
development process. Certain types of Instone Development’s project developments
(e.g., micro apartments, completed apartments that had not been sold) were sold
using contracts that already required application of the completed contract method
prior to this contract modification. This was also true for the sale of land plots,
which is accounted for under the completed contract method. Instone Leipzig’s
customer contracts have always required application of the completed contract
method.

Consequently, the Company’s results in the periods under review include projects
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accounted for under the percentage of completion method and projects accounted for
under the completed contract method. While revenue and earnings from contracts
accounted for using the percentage of completion declined over time until the final
unit subject to the old form of contract was delivered in the second quarter of 2017,
projects marketed using the new form of contract and accounted for under the
completed contract method did not begin to contribute to revenues and earnings
until 2017 as the first units from such projects began to be delivered following
completion.

In 2015, 2016 and the first nine months of 2017 Instone’s revenue was €358.7
million, €203.6 million and €123.8 million and its EBIT was negative €7.6 million,
€0.8 million and €3.9 million, respectively. Instone’s EBIT was impacted by PPA
Effects and One-Off Items (as defined in B.7). Adjusted for PPA Effects and One-
Off Items, Instone’s Adjusted EBIT (as defined in B.7) was €17.7 million in 2015,
€48.4 million in 2016 and €15.8 million in the first nine months of 2017. Earnings in
the strong 2016 financial year were held back by the impact of the change in
customer contract on revenue recognition, while weaker performance in the first
nine months of 2017 reflects the delayed effect of the lower level of acquisitions in
2013 and 2014, the use of the new contract form for almost all projects under
development in the period and a higher number of units delivered at the end of the
year. These effects will positively impact revenue and Adjusted EBIT in the fourth
quarter of 2017. Because revenues and earnings in respect of the large volume of
ongoing projects in its strong project portfolio are only recognized upon delivery of
units following project completion, Instone expects significant revenue and
Adjusted EBIT contribution from projects currently under development in the years
to come.

Business Strengths

The Company believes that the following competitive strengths have been the
primary drivers of Instone’s success in the past and will continue to set it apart from
its competitors in the future:

e Exposure to Europe’s largest and most stable economy with attractive
housing sector fundamentals.

e  Market-leading nationwide platform focused on key metropolitan regions
and prospering medium-sized cities in Germany with scalability potential.

e Attractive project portfolio geared towards most attractive German growth
cities setting foundation for strong and predictable, structural growth.

e Favorable regulatory regime and strong risk management and sophisticated
reporting tools mitigate development risk.

o Capital efficient business model with attractive project margins.

e Industry-wide highly experienced management team with a proven track
record of value generation.

Strategy

Instone’s strategy is to create additional value for its project portfolio and to keep
and further strengthen the Company’s competitive position in the German
residential real estate development market. To achieve this, the Company will
leverage its strong platform and deep market knowledge and expand its competitive
position in the German residential development sector. Also, Instone aims to fuel
further growth through the realization of growth opportunities, among others in
Germany’s key metropolitan regions, for which Instone expects further growth
potential. Instone intends to achieve this as follows:

e Maintain and expand its competitive position in the German residential
development sector with a continued focus on Germany’s key metropolitan
regions.

e Focus on land plots or properties without zoning or planning permission for
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B.4a Most significant
recent trends
affecting the
issuer and the
industries in
which it operates.

B.5 The group and the
issuer’s position
within the group.

residential development purposes at the time of acquisition.

e Increase aggregate expected sales volume by (re)investing excess funds as
well as net proceeds from the private placement to further fuel growth.

Instone’s business activities are influenced by numerous demographic, economic
and political factors. Instone is most significantly affected by developments in, and
related to, the residential real estate sector in Germany, particularly in the key
metropolitan regions (Berlin, Bonn, Cologne, Dusseldorf, Frankfurt am Main,
Hamburg, Leipzig, Munich and Stuttgart (including Herrenberg)), where
approximately 93% of Instone’s portfolio (by expected sales volume for fully
developed projects) was located as of September 30, 2017. Instone’s key purchaser
groups are owner-occupiers, retail buy-to-let investors and institutional investors.
Given Instone’s focus on residential real estate developments, it is affected, in
general, by developments in macro-economic indicators, such as economic growth,
employment, population growth, purchasing power and interest rates. More
specifically, Instone is closely affected by trends land value, property value, demand
for residential units and property development costs in the geographical regions
where Instone operates.

House and apartment prices in Germany have risen since the beginning of 2009,
which means that 2018 is the tenth year in the current real-estate cycle. Even though
the cycle has already reached an impressive length, it is still characterized by
housing shortages and relatively inelastic supply. Markets in metropolitan areas are
particularly tight; there, prices have risen approximately 80% between 2009 and
2017. The number of newly completed residential units is rising as well and is
expected to reach 305,000 for the first time ever in 2017, up from almost 280,000 in
2016. Experts further expect it to increase to 335,000 in 2018. However, assuming
that at least 350,000 new residential units would be necessary (government
estimate), the gap between supply and demand should continue to widen.

The tight market situation has pushed house prices up even more strongly in 2017
than in the preceding years. According to bulwiengesa (which covers 126 cities),
house prices rose around 6.5% and apartment prices more than 10% on average. As
in the preceding years, the strongest price increases were registered in metropolitan
areas and large cities. However, many smaller cities also experienced significant
prices rises, and in none of the 126 cities did prices decline. Experts expect price and
rent growth to remain strong in 2018. The supply shortage on the housing market
and the excellent labor market will likely remain the dominant price drivers.

Besides the economic developments described above, Instone experiences a general
trend toward a reduction in household sizes which is underlined by the general
growth in the number of one-person households. Furthermore, Instone experiences a
trend toward flexible housing and floor plan design that work for a person’s current
family situation, but that can also be easily adapted to accommodate different family
dynamics in the future. Less and less apartments are inhabited by traditional
families; changing living structures reflect the diversity of today’s lifestyles.
Whether a shared flat, single, small family or single parent, whether home work or
residential office — adaptable concepts require a high degree of neutrality of
individual rooms. Flexible housing and floor plan design starts with a basic layout
that allows for functional expansion in the future. For example, flexible floor plans
may offer rooms that can be alternatively used as a guest or study room or as a
living area for an older child or grandparent.

The Company is the holding company of Instone. Instone’s business is conducted by
Instone and its various subsidiaries. The Company’s consolidated financial
statements include all companies whose financial and business policy can be
controlled by the Company, either directly or indirectly, and whose financial and
business policy can be influenced by the Company to a significant extent. As of the
date of this Prospectus, Instone comprises 32 companies (including minority
shareholdings). In the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the financial
year ended December 31, 2016, 21 companies were consolidated.
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B.6 Name of persons
who, directly or
indirectly, have a
notifiable interest
in the issuer’s
capital or voting
rights.

Codperatieve Activum 11
Codperatieve Formart......
Codperatieve Activum V.
Public float ............c.......

Different voting
rights of major
shareholders of
the issuer.

Direct or indirect
control.

The following chart provides an overview of the Company and its material
subsidiaries:

Instone Real Estate

GroupB.V
100% 94%
Instone Real Estate Instone Real Estate
Development Leipzig
GmbH GmbH

The following table sets forth the shareholding of the existing shareholders,
(i) Cooperatieve Formart Investments U.A., a cooperative with excluded liability
(codperatie met uitgesloten aansprakelijkheid) (“Co0peratieve Formart”),
Cooperatieve Activum SG Fund Il Investments U.A., a cooperative with excluded
liability (codperatie met uitgesloten aansprakelijkheid) (“Codperatieve Activum
111”) and Cooperatieve Activum SG Fund V Investments U.A., a cooperative with
excluded liability (coOperatie met uitgesloten aansprakelijkheid) (“Co0peratieve
Activum V”, and, together with CoGperatieve Formart and Co0peratieve Activum
III, the “Existing Shareholders”) immediately prior to and their expected
shareholding, together with the expected shareholding of the public float, upon
completion of the private placement of up to 23,400,000 bearer shares of the
Company, each such share having a nominal value of €1.00 and with full dividend
rights from January 1, 2017 (the “Private Placement”):

Actual (direct) Ownership

Upon completion of Upon completion of
the Private Placement the Private Placement

(assuming a (assuming a
placement of all placement of all

Placement Shares and  Placement Shares and

Immediately prior to no exercise of the full exercise of the

the Private Placement ~ Greenshoe Option) Greenshoe Option)

(in %)

...................................... 59.6 26.8 21.9
...................................... 33.3 15.0 12.2
...................................... 7.1 3.2 2.6
...................................... - 55.0 63.3

Each share in the Company carries one vote at the Company’s General Meeting. All
of the Company’s shares confer the same voting rights. There are no restrictions on
voting rights except pursuant to a limited number of statutory provisions.

The Company is a controlled undertaking of Codperatieve Formart, Codperatieve
Activum 1l1, and Codperatieve Activum V, due to their joint ownership of 100% of
the voting rights in the Company, the parallel control structure, and as a result of
their power to jointly govern the financial and operating policies of the Company
through their power to appoint the Company’s directors. The Existing Shareholders,
in turn, are ultimately indirectly controlled by Saul Abram Goldstein. Saul Abram
Goldstein is the sole shareholder of Activum SG Capital Management Limited.
Activum SG Capital Management Limited is the sole shareholder of Activum SG Il
GP Limited, and Activum SG V GP Limited. Activum SG 111 GP Limited is the sole
shareholder of Activum SG formart GP L.P. Limited. Activum SG formart GP L.P.
Limited is the general partner of Activum SG Fund Il LP, the sole member of
Cooperatieve Activum 11, In addition, Activum SG Il GP Limited is the general
partner of Activum SG formart Co-Invest LP, the sole member of Codperatieve
Formart. Activum SG Capital Management Limited is also the sole shareholder of
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B.7 Selected historical
key financial
information.

Activum SG V GP Limited. Activum SG V GP Limited is in turn the general partner
of Activum SG Fund V L.P. and of Activum SG Feeder Fund V L.P. Activum SG
Fund V L.P. is the sole member of Cooperatieve Activum V and Activum SG
Feeder Fund V L.P. is a feeder fund pooling beneficial interests of non-controlling
beneficial owners in Cobperatieve Activum V.

The financial information contained in the following tables is taken or derived from
the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the
financial years ended December 31, 2016, December 31, 2015 and December 31,
2014 and the unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements of the
Company as of and for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2017. The
Company’s financial year 2014 began with its formation on April 16, 2014 and
ended December 31, 2014. Additional financial information is taken or derived from
Instone’s accounting records or internal reporting system. The audited consolidated
financial statements were prepared in accordance with IFRS. The unaudited
condensed consolidated interim financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRS on interim financial reporting (IAS 34).

Deloitte Accountants B.V. (“Deloitte”) has audited and issued an unqualified
independent auditor’s report with respect to the Company’s consolidated financial
statements as of and for the financial Years ended December 31, 2016,
December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014. The aforementioned audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and the respective independent
auditor’s report thereon, and the Company’s unaudited condensed consolidated
interim financial statements as of and for the nine-month period ended
September 30, 2017 are included in this Prospectus.

Where financial information in the following tables are labelled “audited”, this
means that they have been taken from the audited financial statements mentioned
above and does not indicate that the individual amount is audited. The label
“unaudited” is used in the following tables to indicate financial information that has
not been taken from the audited financial statements mentioned above, but has been
taken either from the Company’s unaudited condensed interim consolidated
financial statements mentioned above or the Company’s internal reporting system,
or has been calculated based on figures from the aforementioned sources.

All of the financial information presented in the tables below are shown in millions
of Euro (in € million), except as otherwise stated. Certain financial information
(including percentages) in the following tables have been rounded according to
established commercial standards. As a result, the aggregate amounts (sum totals or
sub totals or differences or if numbers are put in relation) in the following tables
may not correspond in all cases to the aggregated amounts of the underlying
(unrounded) figures appearing elsewhere in this Prospectus. Furthermore, in those
tables, these rounded figures may not add up exactly to the totals contained in those
tables. Financial information presented in parentheses denotes the negative of such
number presented. In respect of financial information set out in this Prospectus, a
dash (“—) signifies that the relevant figure is not available, while a zero (“0.0”)
signifies that the relevant figure is available but has been rounded to zero.

Selected Consolidated Financial Information

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

Revenue
Change in inventories
Other operating income
Cost of materials
Staff costs

For the nine-month period For the financial year
ended September 30, ended December 31,
2017 2016 2016 2015 2014
(unaudited) (audited)
(in € million) (in € million)
............................. 123.8 164.9 203.6 358.7 64.4
............................. 30.4 86.0 158.9 (23.1) (7.8)
............................. 4.2 1.8 8.3 8.6 315
............................. (109.5) (207.9) (293.7) (284.3) (51.0)
............................. (19.2) (24.1) (35.2) (26.9) (6.4)
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Other operating eXPensesS.........ccvvevveervenanes
Income from associated affiliates .................
Other net income from investments®............

Earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortization

(EBITDA) ..ottt
Depreciation and amortization......................
Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) ..
Finance iNCOME ......coovevvereenereee e
FINANCe COSES......ovveieerie et
Write-down of long-term securities..............
Finance result® ..........ccccooovvvoveenvcneesesns
Earnings before tax (EBT) .....c.ccooevvvrennn
INCOME TAXES ...ooiveeeiii e
Earnings after tax (EAT) ..o

Attributable to:

Shareholders of the Group...........cccveueeee
Non-controlling interests..........cccccecuv.ne.

(1) In the financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015, referred to as “Other income from investments”.
(2) In the financial statements as of and for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, referred to as “Financial result”.

For the nine-month period

For the financial year

ended September 30, ended December 31,
2017 2016 2016 2015 2014
(unaudited) (audited)

(in € million) (in € million)
(26.5) (31.4) (42.4) (38.5) (19.0)
0.5 1.4 1.3 (1.4) 1.6
0.6 0.3 0.3 (0.1) -
4.2 (9.0) 1.3 (7.1) 13.4
(0.3) (0.3) (0.4) (0.5) (0.1)
3.9 (9.3) 0.8 (7.6) 13.3
0.8 - 0.1 0.9 0.2
(15.7) (18.8) (25.0) (21.8) (5.4)
- - 0.1 (0.1) -
(14.9) (18.8) (24.8) (21.0) (5.2)
(11.0) (28.1) (24.0) (28.6) 8.1
(2.0) 2.5 1.8 6.2 2.7
(13.0) (25.7) (22.2) (22.4) 10.8
(13.2) (24.8) (22.4) (22.4) 10.8
0.1 (0.8) 0.2 - 0.0
(13.0) (25.7) (22.2) (22.4) 10.8
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

ASSETS
Non-current assets

Intangible assetS........occovevvinenc e
Property, plant and equipment ...........ccccoevvinnne.
Equity-method investments ...........ccccceveereninnne.
Other financial assets.........ccocvvvreneriiienenisennen,
Financial receivables.............ccocoviiiinniniciinnnne.
Total NoN-current assets.........oocveveirenieerennnn,

Current assets

INVENTOTIES ..o
Financial receivables...........ccccovviiiienie e,
Trade receivables........ccocovviiveeciic e,
Other receivables and other assets ...........cccevee..
Current inCoOmMe tax aSSetS ......cevvveivveeiireriireeeirenns
Cash and cash equivalents ...........c.ccccevvvevviinninns

Total CUrrent aSSetS.......cecvvvieeieiiii i
Total ASSELS ....vvveeeeeiii e

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity

Share capital.........coooiviiiii e
Capital rESEIVE ...cecvvevieiee e
Retained earnings / loss carryforwards................
Accumulated other comprehensive income..........
Equity attributable to shareholders .................

Non-controlling iNterests ..........ccccoevvieicrcienennns
Total EQUILY......coviiiie e

Non-current liabilities

Provisions for pensions and similar obligations....
Other Provisions.........ccccveivevieiieie e
Financial liabilities...........ccccoevvviiiiii e
Other liabilities .........cccoovveviecicee e,
Deferred tax liabilities .........cccccevvveviveiiciiiieinns
Total non-current liabilities...........ccccccovvernennen.

Current liabilities

Other ProviSions...........coevereieiinienieie e
Financial liabilities............ccovvirviiiniiieies
Trade payables ...
Other liabilities .......cccoverviiiceeeee e

Income tax liabilities.........cc.cooveeveiiicieiie e,
Total current liabilities...........coceviiicieeciiiieee
Total equity and liabilities..........ccccccoenininnnnns

As of As of
September 30, December 31,
2017 2016 2015 2014
(unaudited) (audited)
(in € million) (in € million)
0.0 0.0 0.0 —
1.6 15 1.6 1.3
0.4 14 0.1 9.5
0.6 0.7 0.9 04
0.7 0.7 - —
3.2 4.3 2.6 11.2
572.6 542.7 4155 233.0
24 0.2 0.2 21
114 19.6 110.2 1154
8.3 5.6 16.6 5.2
0.2 0.3 0.3 11
110.7 112.5 35.9 25.1
705.6 680.9 578.7 382.0
708.9 685.2 581.3 393.2
0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
374 37.4 374 21.0
(48.7) (35.5) (13.2) 111
(1.3) (1.3) (0.1) (0.2)
(12.5) 0.7 24.2 31.9
1.5 2.0 115 0.0
(11.0) 2.7) 35.7 32.0
4.5 4.1 24 21
12.8 12.4 4.5 3.0
338.8 300.9 299.0 214.2
- - 0.3 -
16.5 234 36.3 11.2
3726 340.9 3425 230.6
33.3 25.6 20.2 16.8
58.0 81.6 65.6 32.2
248.5 215.2 99.0 79.2
6.2 131 16.2 24
14 6.2 2.0 —
347.3 341.7 203.0 130.6
708.9 685.2 581.3 393.2
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Selected Information from the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the nine-month period For the financial year
ended September 30, ended December 31,
2017 2016 2016 2015 2014
(unaudited) (audited)
(in € million) (in € million)
Net cash flow from operating activities........ (5.1) 39.3 87.7 (15.9) (11.4)
Cash flow from investing activities.............. (21.9) (18.2) (21.8) (51.2) (120.7)
Cash flow from financing activities............. 25.0 16.4 8.5 78.4 157.2
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash
EQUIVAIENES ..o (1.9 37.6 74.3 11.2 25.1
Net foreign exchange differences and
changes in group StrucCture ........c.coevevvervennene - - 2.3 (0.4) -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of
PEFIOU. .. e 110.7 73.5 1125 35.9 25.1

Alternative Performance Measures

The Company believes that the key performance indicators described in this section constitute significant
indicators for measuring the operating and financial performance of Instone’s business and are useful to
potential investors when comparing the Company’s performance with that of its competitors in the real estate
development sector (all alternative performance measures referred to hereinafter as “Alternative Performance
Measures”):

Operating performance (hereinafter “Operating Performance”) is defined as the sum of revenue and
change in inventories as stated in the consolidated statement of profit or loss. Change in inventories is
measured by the value of the entries into inventories as a result of (i) acquisitions, (ii) capitalized
development costs and (iii) project-related interest expenses (excluding commission fees) less the value
of withdrawals during the accounting period as a result of disposals. Operating Performance is a
common measure in the real estate development industry as it measures not only revenues realized
from development activities but also measures acquisition costs for land plots acquired for future
developments and capitalized development activities. Accordingly, Operating Performance, as the sum
of revenues and change in inventories is less affected by the method of accounting applied and provides
a more consistent measure of Instone’s development activities over time. Under each method of
accounting, Operating Performance includes the price paid for the acquisition of land plots, which is
recorded in change of inventories. Under the percentage of completion method, Operating Performance
reflects the contract revenue for units sold, including the Anticipated Gross Project Margin (as defined
below), that can be attributed in any given period to the proportion of work completed in such period
and also includes, within changes in inventories, costs capitalized in the periods under review
associated with ongoing construction that, based on units sold and construction progress cannot yet be
recognized in revenue. Under the completed contract method, revenues and margins are not recognized
during the construction phase, but construction costs, finance cost and staff cost are capitalized and
included in change in inventories as work progresses, while revenues, including profits, are recognized
only upon delivery of the residential units. Accordingly, as the sum of revenue and change in
inventories, Operating Performance provides a broadly consistent measure of the Company’s
performance over time, notwithstanding the fact that they include projects accounted for under both the
percentage of completion method and the completed contract method. Differences remain, however, as
Operating Performance for projects accounted for under the completed contract method does not
include any portion of the Anticipated Gross Project Margin for units sold and also does not reflect
operating expenses that cannot be capitalized, such as certain sales costs, which are, however, reflected
in revenue under the percentage of completion method for units sold. Anticipated Gross Project Margin
(“Anticipated Gross Project Margin”) is defined as the quotient of (i) total estimated project income
minus total estimated project costs for fully developed projects and (ii) total estimated project income
on the basis of the current estimated market price for such project. Total estimated project costs include
a 1.5% construction cost inflation assumption and sales commission but do not include financing,
personnel, corporate expense or PPA Effects (as defined below). Instone uses the Anticipated Gross
Project Margin to determine whether to pursue with acquisitions of land plots for new project
developments. As described above, the Anticipated Gross Project Margin was used to determine the
relevant proportion of work completed to be allocated to contract revenue for units sold under the
percentage of completion method.
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e Adjusted Operating Performance (hereinafter “Adjusted Operating Performance”) is defined as
Operating Performance adjusted for inventories-related PPA Effects (as defined below). PPA Effects
are defined as the effects on the consolidated financial statements resulting from the acquisition of
Instone Development in 2014 and Instone Leipzig in 2015, that required the Company to allocate the
purchase prices to the assets and liabilities that were acquired based on estimated fair values and
resulted in a step up in the value of the acquired assets, an increase in liabilities and income tax
liabilities and thereby impacted change in inventories, Operating Performance, other income and EBIT
in the periods of the acquisition and in subsequent periods (“PPA Effects”). At the time of delivery of
such assets (when fully developed) to Instone’s customers, such additional values result in the
recognition of correspondingly higher costs in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and reduce
Operating Performance in such periods. The adjustments applied on Operating Performance therefore
reverse such higher costs resulting from the amortization of the value step ups. As PPA Effects relating
to “other income” do not affect revenues or change in inventories, Operating Performance is only
adjusted for inventories-related PPA Effects. Instone believes the resulting Adjusted Operating
Performance to be a valuable performance indicator as it shows Operating Performance as it would
have been without PPA Effects that are not indicative of Instone’s underlying ordinary course of
business Operating Performance.

e Adjusted EBIT is defined as EBIT adjusted by all of the PPA Effects and One-Off Items (hereinafter
“Adjusted EBIT”). EBIT is a line item in the Company’s consolidated statement of profit or loss and
comprises earnings before interest and tax (“EBIT”). One-off items are defined as items which, in
management’s view, are unusual or incurred on a non-recurring basis in particular due to acquisition
events, disposals or structural changes within Instone (“One-Off Items”).

e EBITDA is a line item in the Company’s consolidated statement of profit or loss and defined as
earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”). EBITDA is used to
measure EBIT excluding non-operating expenses and certain non-cash expenses.

e Net working capital (hereinafter “Net Working Capital”) is defined as inventories plus trade
receivables minus trade payables. Net Working Capital takes into account inventories, trade receivables
and other receivables as well as liabilities and does not take into account cash and other available liquid
resources. It serves to measure the short-term liquidity of Instone’s business and its ability to utilize
assets in an efficient manner.

e Total financial liabilities (“Total Financial Liabilities”) consist of total non-current financial liabilities
and total current financial liabilities. The Company uses Total Financial Liabilities to measure its
aggregate financial liabilities.

e Historical Gross Project Margin (“Historical Gross Project Margin”) is defined as quotient of (i) total
historical project income minus total historical project costs and (ii) total historical project income.
Total historical project costs include sales commission but do not include financing, personnel,
corporate expense or PPA Effects. Instone uses Historical Gross Project Margin to measure the
profitability of its completed projects to monitor and report on actual historical project margins.

The Alternative Performance Measures are not recognized as measures under IFRS and should not be
considered as substitutes for figures on earnings before tax, net earnings, cash flow from operating activities or
other consolidated statement of financial position or cash flow data, as determined in accordance with IFRS, or
as measures of profitability or liquidity. The Alternative Performance Measures do not necessarily indicate
whether cash flow will be sufficient or available for Instone’s cash requirements, nor whether any such measure
is indicative of its historical operating results. The Alternative Performance Measures are not meant to be
indicative of future results. Because not all companies calculate these measures and figures in the same way,
Instone’s presentation of the Alternative Performance Measures is not necessarily comparable with similarly
titled measures used by other companies. Although certain of this data has been extracted or derived from the
Company’s consolidated financial statements contained in this Prospectus, this data has not been audited or
reviewed by Deloitte, except as otherwise indicated.
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For the nine-month period For the financial year
ended September 30, ended December 31,
2017 2016 2016 2015 2014
(unaudited) (unaudited, unless otherwise indicated)
(in € million) (in € million)
REVENUE ....ccvviviieeceee e 123.8 164.9 203.6 358.7 64.4
Change in inVentories ..........ccocccvvvereencrennns 30.4 86.0 158.9 (23.1) (7.8)
Operating Performance 154.2 250.9 362.5 335.6 56.7
Reversal of inventories-related PPA
EFfECts™ oo 16.8 22.2 50.0 13.7 3.3
PPA Effects re Instone Development .. 3.9 8.3 11.9 13.7 3.3
PPA Effects re Instone Leipzig............ 12.9 13.9 38.1 - -
Adjusted Operating Performance 171.0 273.1 412.5 349.3 60.0
=] 1 OO 3.9 (9.3) 0.8 (7.6)® 13.3@
Reversal of PPA Effects™ ..................... 16.8 22.2 49.1 10.6 (20.5)
PPA Effects re Instone Development .. 3.9 8.3 11.1 10.8 (20.5)
PPA Effects re Instone Leipzig............ 12.9 13.9 38.1 0.2) -
One-Off HEMS ..o (4.9) 4.8 (1.5) 14.7 13.2
Expenses with respect to the - 0.0 0.3 4.2 4.4
acquisition of companies®..................
Expenses with respect to the - - - 6.8 3.3
restructuring of Instone®...................
Liabilities under purchase - - - 3.9 2.1
agreements® ...
Long term incentive” .......c...c...coo...... - 6.5 8.9 2.3 0.0
Gain from carve-out disposals®......... (4.9) - (6.5) (4.1) -
Gain from reimbursements® .............. - (0.7) (3.2) - -
Gains from provisions under - (2.1) (2.1) - -
acquisition agreements™® .................
Litigation losses™...........cc.ccoervrerenc. - - - 1.0 -
Other®™ o 0.0 1.1 1.1 0.6 3.3
Adjusted EBIT ....ccoovvviiiieeece e 15.8 17.7 48.4 17.7 6.0

@
@
®3)
Q)
®)
(6)

Q]
®)

O]

(10)

(11

(12)

Reversal of inventories-related PPA Effects relates to a reversal of such PPA Effects only that resulted in a change in inventories due
to the recorded step up in the value of the assets acquired as part of the acquisitions of Instone Development and Instone Leipzig.
Audited.

Reversal of PPA Effects relates to the reversal of all PPA Effects.

Expenses with respect to the acquisition of companies refers to expenses incurred relating to external advisors commissioned by
Instone in connection with Instone Development and Instone Leipzig.

Expenses with respect to the restructuring of Instone refers to expenses incurred in connection with the internal restructuring of Instone
Development with a particular focus on its core business, the closure of certain branches as well as the reduction of business activities
in foreign countries.

Liabilities under purchase agreements refers to expenses incurred for the recognition of certain provisions for claims to be made for
certain projects agreed upon under the sale and purchase agreement entered into by the Company and HOCHTIEF Solutions AG
relating to the acquisition of Instone Development.

Long-term incentive refers to expenses incurred for the recognition of provisions for the long-term incentive plans for the benefit of
certain employees reflecting a participation in the added value created for the Existing Shareholders.

Gain from carve-out disposals refers to gain from the disposal of non-core assets of Instone Leipzig the proceeds of which are,
however, attributable to the seller pursuant to the earn-out rules under the sale and purchase agreement relating to Instone Leipzig and
included as gain in the reversal of PPA Effects.

Gain from reimbursements refers to gain relating to a reimbursement paid by the City of Wiesbaden to Instone’s subsidiary “Projekt
Wiesbaden Wilhelmstrale GmbH & Co. KG” relating to planning costs for a public building as well as a reimbursement with respect
to the settlement of legal disputes in Luxembourg paid by HOCHTIEF Solutions AG.

Gains from provisions under acquisition agreements refers to settlement payments by HOCHTIEF Solutions AG to the Company in
connection with the disposal of Office Park Hamm in Luxembourg.

Litigation losses refers to losses incurred in connection with the settlement of the proceeding relating to Cour de Justice, Luxemburg
between HOCHTIEF Solutions AG and the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg for which HOCHTIEF Solutions AG remained liable under
the sale and purchase agreement relating to the acquisition of Instone Development.

Other includes management compensation to related parties incurred in connection with the acquisition of Instone Development and
Instone Leipzig as non-recurring items.

S-13




The following table shows the elements of Net Working Capital as of the dates indicated:

As of As of
September 30, December 31,
2017 2016 2015 2014
(unaudited) (audited, unless otherwise indicated)
(in € million) (in € million)
INVENTOTIES .o 572.6 542.7 415.5 233.0
thereof:
Capitalization of land plotS..........cc..ccc.eeverrrenenn. 258.0 220.8Y 60.2V 69.6Y
Work in progress inventories ..............c..coc..o.... 309.2 316.8%Y 345.4% 163.4Y
Finished goods........c.cccevvevevineiie e 5.4 5.1 9.9 -
Trade receivables........cccccoeveviieviiie e 114 19.6 110.2 115.4
Thereof
Amounts due from customers for contract work
(POC) ittt s 0.0 13.6 242.5 216.0
Progress payments received®.............c..ccco..o..... - (10.3) (151.1) (122.9)
Other trade receivables...........cocoveviiiiiiinennn, 11.4 15.7 18.2 20.8
Trade receivables from non-consolidated
SUBSIAIANIES ..c.veevece e - 05 0.6 1.6
Trade payables ... (248.5) (215.2) (99.0) (79.2)
Thereof
Amounts due from customers for contract work
(POC) it - - 10.8 58.7
Progress payments received®.............cccccooueeunne. - - (11.3) (64.6)
Trade payables..........cccovvivv i, (41.4) (53.6) (55.5) (62.6)
Progress payments received®.............ccccccouevnnne. (207.1) (161.5) (43.0) (10.7)
Payables from non-consolidated subsidiaries...... - (0.0) (0.0) (0.2)
Net Working Capital ...........ccocoovveerreerrnrrrenrenne, 335.5 347.17 426.77 269.2"7
(1) Unaudited.
(2) Relates to customer contracts accounted for under the percentage of completion method.
(3) Relates to customer contracts accounted for under the completed contract method.

Significant
changes to the
issuer’s financial
condition and
operating results
during or
subsequent to the
period covered by
the historical key
financial
information.

The following material changes in Instone’s financial condition and operating results
occurred in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2017, and in the financial
years ended December 31, 2014, 2015 and 2016.

Nine-Month Period Ended September 30, 2016 and September 30, 2017

Operating Performance decreased by €96.7 million, or 38.5%, from €250.9 million in
the nine-month period ended September 30, 2016 to €154.2 million in the nine-month
period ended September 30, 2017. Adjusted for PPA Effects, Adjusted Operating
Performance decreased by €102.1 million, or 37.4%, from €273.1 million to €171.0
million. This decline was primarily due to the delayed effect on projects under
development of the less active acquisition phase in the financial years 2013 and 2014
while Instone Development was still under the control of HOCHTIEF Solutions AG.
It also reflects substantially lower revenues from projects accounted for using the
percentage of completion method as the new form of contract was used for almost all
projects under development in the period. Change in inventories also had a negative
impact on Operating Performance due to a lower level of land acquisitions in the first
nine months of 2017.

EBIT increased by €13.2 million, or 141.9%, from negative €9.3 million in the nine-
month period ended September 30, 2016 to €3.9 million in the nine-month period
ended September 30, 2017. Adjusted for PPA Effects and One-Off Items, Adjusted
EBIT decreased by €1.9 million, or 10.7%, from €17.7 million in the nine-month
period ended September 30, 2016 to €15.8 million in the nine-month period ended
September 30, 2017. This decrease was primarily due to the delayed effect on
projects under development of the less active acquisition phase in the financial years
2013 and 2014 while Instone Development was still under the control of HOCHTIEF
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Solutions AG. It also reflects substantially lower profit from projects accounted for
using the percentage of completion method, as the new form of contract was used for
almost all projects under development in the period, and a higher number of units
delivered to customers in the last quarter of 2017. The higher number of deliveries in
the last quarter of 2017 was primarily due to the higher investment activity following
Instone’s acquisition of Instone Development. These effects will positively impact
revenue and Adjusted EBIT in the fourth quarter of 2017.

Financial Years Ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2016

Operating Performance increased by €26.9 million, or 8.0%, from €335.6 million in
the financial year ended December 31, 2015 to €362.5 million in the financial year
ended December 31, 2016. Adjusted for PPA Effects, Adjusted Operating
Performance increased by €63.2 million, or 18.1%, from €349.3 million in the
financial year ended December 31, 2015 to €412.5 million in the financial year ended
December 31, 2016. This was primarily due to the significant increase in change in
inventories in the financial year 2016 in connection with the capitalization of land
acquisition cost which was partially offset by the decline in revenues from contracts
accounted for using the percentage of completion method as they were completed
over time. A further positive impact on Adjusted Operating Performance in 2016
resulted from the consolidation of Instone Leipzig for the full financial year.

EBIT improved by €8.4 million from negative €7.6 million in the financial year
ended December 31, 2015 to €0.8 million in the financial year ended December 31,
2016. Adjusted for PPA Effects and One-Off Items, Adjusted EBIT increased by
€30.7 million, or 173.4%, from €17.7 million in the financial year ended
December 31, 2015 to €48.4 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2016.
This increase was primarily due to the higher level of development activities in the
financial year ended December 31, 2016, notwithstanding the delayed recognition of
revenue and earnings due to the increasing number ongoing development projects
accounted for under the completed the contract method. A further positive impact on
EBIT in 2016 resulted from the consolidation of Instone Leipzig for the full financial
year.

Financial Years Ended December 31, 2014 and December 31, 2015

Operating Performance increased by €278.9 million, or 491.9%, from €56.7 million
in the financial year ended December 31, 2014 to €335.6 million in the financial year
ended December 31, 2015. Adjusted for PPA Effects, Adjusted Operating
Performance increased by €289.3 million from €60.0 million in the financial year
ended December 31, 2014 compared to €349.3 million in the financial year ended
December 31, 2015 accordingly. This was primarily due to the short financial year in
2014 and the consolidation of Instone Development only for the last quarter of 2014,
while in the financial year ended December 31, 2015, Instone Development was
consolidated for the full financial year. As a result of the short financial year and the
difference in the scope of consolidation, the financial year 2014 is only partially
comparable to the financial year 2015.

EBIT decreased by €20.9 million, or 157.1%, from €13.3 million in the financial year
ended December 31, 2014 to negative €7.6 million in the financial year ended
December 31, 2015. Adjusted for PPA Effects and One-Off Items, Adjusted EBIT
increased by €11.7 million, or 195.0%, from €6.0 million in the financial year ended
December 31, 2014 to €17.7 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2015.
This increase was primarily due to the short financial year in 2014 and the
consolidation of Instone Development only for the last quarter of 2014, while in the
financial year ended December 31, 2015, Instone Development was consolidated for
the full financial year.

S-15




Recent Developments

On December 28, 2017, shareholder loans extended to the Company were partially
converted in an amount of €48.0 million and contributed into the Company’s share
premium. On February 13, 2018, shortly after determination of the placement price
for the Placement Shares (as defined in B.7) and prior to listing and settlement, the
Existing Shareholders will resolve to convert €41,930.00 of the Company’s share
premium into share capital of the Company (the “Pre—Conversion Share Capital
Increase”). Following this Pre—Conversion Share Capital Increase, the Company’s
share capital will amount to €50,316.00. On the same day, upon Effectiveness of the
N.V. Conversion, the General Meeting will resolve to convert €29,938,020.00 of the
Company’s share premium into share capital of the Company (the “Post—Conversion
Share Capital Increase”). Following the Post—Conversion Share Capital Increase
and prior to the placement capital increase, the Company’s share capital will amount
to €29,988,336.00.

On December 29, 2017, Cooperatieve Activum V sold and transferred 295 shares in
the Company to Codperatieve Formart increasing Codperatieve Formart’s
shareholding in the Company to 33.3%. As of the date of this Prospectus,
Codperatieve Activum V holds 7.1% of the shares in the Company.

In the last quarter of 2017, Instone delivered 190 residential units with an aggregate
sales volume for fully developed projects of €75.6 million. As of September 30, 2017,
Instone’s project portfolio comprised 48 development projects with an aggregate
expected sales volume for fully developed projects of approximately €3.4 billion.
Since that date and until the date of this Prospectus, Instone’s Management Board has
approved 3 additional projects with an aggregate expected sales volume for fully
developed projects of approximately €128.0 million including the following:

e “Project Teemanufaktur” in Halle (for which Instone already completed the
acquisition of land plots) with an aggregate expected sales volume when fully
developed of approximately €25.0 million;

e  “Project Kosmos” (Siemens Areal) in Frankfurt with an aggregate expected sales
volume when fully developed of approximately €33.0 million; and

e  “Project Schorndorf” with an aggregate expected sales volume when fully
developed of approximately €69.8 million.

As of December 31, 2017, Instone had identified 71 acquisition opportunities with an
aggregate potential sales volume for fully developed projects of more than €13.0
billion. In the medium term, Instone aims to annually acquire land plots or properties
with an aggregate expected sales volume for fully developed projects of €900 million
to €1.0 billion.

On February 2, 2018, in anticipation of the expected admission to trading of the
Company’s shares on the regulated market segment of the Frankfurt Stock Exchange
(Frankfurter Wertpapierbérse) and, simultaneously, to the sub-segment thereof with
additional post-admission obligations (Prime Standard), the Company and the
Existing Shareholders, together with Credit Suisse Securities (Europe) Limited,
London, United Kingdom (“Credit Suisse”), Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschatft,
Frankfurt am Main, Germany (“Deutsche Bank”, together with Credit Suisse, the
“Joint Global Coordinators”), BNP Paribas (“BNP Paribas”), Morgan Stanley &
Co. International plc (“Morgan Stanley”) or UniCredit Bank AG (“UniCredit”,
together with BNP Paribas, Morgan Stanley and the Joint Global Coordinators, the
“Joint Bookrunners” or the “Underwriters”), initiated a Private Placement for
7,000,000 newly issued bearer shares of the Company from a capital increase against
contributions in cash to be resolved by the Company’s General Meeting on or about
February 13, 2018 (the “New Shares™) and up to 13,350,000 existing bearer shares of
the Company from the holdings of the Existing Shareholders (the “Existing Shares”
and, together with the New Shares, the “Base Shares”).

Investors may, in addition to the Base Shares, be allocated up to 3,050,000 existing
bearer shares of the Company (“Over-Allotment Shares” and, together with the Base
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B.8 Selected key pro
forma financial
information.

B.9 Profit forecast or
estimate.

B.10 Qualifications in
the audit report
on the historical
financial
information.

B.11 Insufficiency of
the issuer’s
working capital.

C — Securities

C.1 Type and class of
the securities
being offered and
admitted to
trading.

Shares, the “Placement Shares”) as part of the allocation of the Base Shares
(“Over-Allotment”). For the purpose of a potential Over-Allotment, Credit Suisse, or
its affiliates, acting as the stabilization manager (the “Stabilization Manager”), for
the account of the Underwriters, will be provided with up to 3,050,000 existing bearer
shares of the Company from the holdings of the Existing Shareholders in the form of
a securities loan. The total number of Over-Allotment Shares will not exceed 15% of
all Base Shares. In addition, the Existing Shareholders have granted the Underwriters
an option to acquire the Over-Allotment Shares at the placement price, less agreed
commissions (the “Greenshoe Option”). The Greenshoe Option may only be
exercised during the stabilization period (the period that begins with the date the
Company’s shares commence trading and ends no later than 30 calendar days
thereafter) and will terminate 30 calendar days after the commencement of trading of
the Company’s shares, which is expected to take place on February 15, 2018.

On February 1, 2018, the Company and the Existing Shareholders, together with the
Joint Bookrunners, set the price range at €21.50 to €25.50 per share (the “Price
Range”).

The placement price and the final number of shares to be placed in the Private
Placement are expected to be determined based on the order book prepared during the
bookbuilding process (expected to take place in the period from February 2, 2018 and
February 13, 2018) on or about February 13, 2018.

The Company intends to list its shares to gain access to the capital markets providing
for the ability to obtain equity and debt capital markets financing. The Company
currently intends to use a portion of the net proceeds from the Private Placement
attributable to the Company of about €55.5 million to repay all amounts outstanding
under all shareholder loans as of February 19, 2018, and the remaining net proceeds
of about €100.3 million (assuming that the New Shares are finally placed at the mid-
point of the Price Range) to fund its acquisition and development activities to create
additional value and stable returns from its development business.

Except for the developments mentioned above, between September 30, 2017 and the
date of this Prospectus, there have been no significant changes in Instone’s financial
or trading position.

Not applicable. The Company has not prepared pro forma financial information.

Not applicable. The Company has not prepared a profit forecast or profit estimate.

Not applicable. The independent auditor’s reports on the audited historical financial
statements included in this Prospectus have been issued without qualification.

Not applicable. The Company is of the opinion that its working capital is sufficient
for its present requirements, that is for at least 12 months from the date of publication
of this Prospectus.

Ordinary bearer shares, each such share having a nominal value of €1.00 and with full
dividend rights from January 1, 2017.
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Security
identification
number.

C.2 Currency of the
securities issue.

C.3 Number of shares
issued and fully
paid and par
value per share.

C.4 Rights attached to
the securities.

C.5 Restrictions on
the free
transferability of
the securities.

C.6 Application for
admission to
trading on a
regulated market
and identity of all
the regulated
markets where the
securities are to
be traded.

C.7 Dividend policy.

D — Risks

International Securities Identification Number (ISIN): NL0012757355
German Securities Code (Wertpapierkennnummer, WKN): A2JCTW
Ticker Symbol: INS

Euro.

As of the date of this Prospectus, the share capital of the Company amounts to
€8,386.00 and is divided into 8,386 shares, each such share having a nominal value of
€1.00. The Company’s shares are in registered form (op naam). Upon Effectiveness
of the N.V. Conversion, the Company’s shares will be converted into bearer form
(aandelen aan toonder). The share capital has been fully paid up.

Each share in the Company carries one vote at the Company’s General Meeting. All
of the Company’s shares confer the same voting rights. There are no restrictions on
voting rights except pursuant to a limited number of statutory provisions.

As of the date of the Prospectus, the Company’s shares are in registered form (op
naam). Upon Effectiveness of the N.V. Conversion, the Company’s shares will be
converted into bearer form (aandelen aan toonder). Except for the restrictions set
forth herein and in E.5, there are no prohibitions on disposals or restrictions with
respect to the transferability of the Company’s shares upon Effectiveness of the N.V.
Conversion.

However, the Private Placement to persons located or resident in, or who are citizens
of, or who have a registered address in countries other than the Netherlands, and the
transfer of Placement Shares into jurisdictions other than the Netherlands may be
subject to specific regulations or restrictions.

The Company applied for the admission of its shares to trading on the regulated
market (regulierter Markt) of the Frankfurt Stock Exchange (Frankfurter
Wertpapierborse) and, simultaneously, to the sub-segment thereof with additional
post-admission obligations (Prime Standard) on February 9, 2018. The listing
approval (admission decision) for the Company’s shares is expected to be granted on
February 14, 2018. Trading in the Company’s shares on the Frankfurt Stock
Exchange (Frankfurter Wertpapierbdrse) is expected to commence on February 15,
2018.

The Company currently intends, subject to the full repayment of the shareholder loans
from a portion of the net proceeds from the Private Placement, to retain all available
funds and any future earnings to support operations and to finance the growth and
development of its business and currently does not intend to pay any dividends for the
financial years 2017 through 2019. In the medium term, at the earliest in 2021 for the
financial year 2020, the Company plans to distribute dividends amounting to 20% to
30% of its net income, unless it then decides to rather continue investing such
distributable funds into further growth.

Any future determination to pay dividends will be made in accordance with
applicable laws, and will depend upon, among other factors, its results of operations,
financial condition, contractual restrictions and capital requirements. The Company’s
future ability to pay dividends may be limited by the terms of any existing and future
debt or preferred securities.
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An investment in the Company’s shares is subject to a number of risks. Prospective
investors should carefully consider the following risks together with all the other
information contained in this prospectus prior to making any investment decision
regarding the Company’s shares. The following risks, alone or together with
additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to the Company, or that the
Company might currently deem immaterial, could have a material adverse effect on
the business, assets, financial condition, cash flows and results of operations of
Instone. The market price of the Company’s shares could decline if any of these risks
were to materialize, in which case investors could lose some or all of their
investment.

The order in which the risks are presented is not an indication of the likelihood of the
risks actually materializing, or the significance or degree of the risks or the scope of
any potential harm to the business, assets, financial condition, cash flows or results of
operations of Instone. The risks mentioned herein may materialize individually or
cumulatively.

D.1 Key risks that are Market and Business Key Risks

specific to the
issuer or its
industry.

e Instone is dependent on the German residential property market, the
conditions of which may deteriorate due to macroeconomic or other factors.

e Instone may achieve lower sales volumes and revenues for its projects than
estimated, in particular if the general housing price level deteriorates.

e Instone’s project portfolio is concentrated in terms of geography and project
type, which may increase the risk of loss.

e Instone is exposed to significant competition. which may intensify in the
future.

e Instone may not be able to realize development projects on profitable terms
or as scheduled.

o Instone’s growth and profitability depends on its ability to identify attractive
land plots or listed redevelopment properties and acquire them on attractive
terms.

e Instone’s business may be adversely affected if it fails to obtain, or if there
are any material delays in obtaining, required zoning or land-use plans and
building permits and approvals for its residential development or
redevelopment projects or if these are subsequently withdrawn or
challenged.

e Instone may not be able to maintain or obtain sufficient financing on
acceptable terms, or at all.

e Instone Development may cease to be able to obtain surety facility
agreements at all or on economically viable terms.

e The Private Placement and listing may result in a change of control in the
Company which may trigger termination and acceleration rights under
certain financing agreements.

e Instone is dependent on third-party suppliers and contractors to develop and
construct its properties.

e Instone is exposed to the risk of construction defects and of defective
construction materials.

e The construction of new residential properties involves health, safety and
environmental risks.

e Demand for Instone’s properties depends on purchaser preferences for types
of accommodations or locations of property and perceptions as to the
attractiveness or quality of its project developments.
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Damage to Instone’s reputation, the reputation of the residential real estate
development sector as a whole or inadequate purchaser satisfaction may
result in decreased demand for Instone’s development properties.

Constraints on the availability and higher costs of mortgage funding may
adversely affect Instone’s sales.

Non-compliance with certain building requirements with respect to Instone’s
redevelopment of listed buildings may adversely affect its business.

Changes in German tax legislation allowing for special depreciation of
redevelopment investments in listed buildings may adversely affect Instone’s
business.

Instone may incur a variety of costs to engage in future growth or expansion,
and the anticipated benefits may never be realized.

Instone may lose key personnel or may be unable to recruit qualified
personnel for key positions.

Instone is dependent on the undisrupted operation and security of its
infrastructure and information technology (1T) that is a key component of its
risk management system.

The integration of Instone Leipzig into Instone may not be successful or not
proceed as planned and may result in higher costs than expected.

Instone could incur substantial losses from damage not covered by, or
exceeding the coverage limits of, its insurance policies.

Land plots and real estate properties can be illiquid assets and could
significantly impede Instone’s ability to respond to adverse changes in the
real estate or financial markets.

The valuation report and financial information contained in this Prospectus
may incorrectly assess the value of Instone’s properties.

Regulatory, Legal and Tax Key Risks

Changes to applicable law and/or regulations in the residential real estate
sector may adversely affect the sustainable success of Instone’s business
model.

Non-compliance with MaBV or the German Trade Regulation
(Gewerbeordnung (GewQ)) could result in administrative fines (BuRgelder)
or a revocation of Instone’s license entitling it to receive staggered down-
payments from private purchasers upon the achievement of certain
development milestones.

Standard terms and conditions used in Instone’s agreements with purchasers,
architects, and construction companies may be invalid.

Instone’s compliance systems may not have been, or may not be, sufficient
to adequately prevent or detect legal, financial and operational risks.

If the Company fails to maintain an effective system of internal controls, it
may not be able to accurately determine its financial results and may be
required to restate its financial statements, as a result of which the
Company’s shareholders could lose confidence in the Company’s financial
results.

Instone may be adversely affected by changes to the general tax environment
in Germany and the Netherlands as such changes might result in an increase
of Instone’s tax burden.

Instone might become taxable in a jurisdiction other than Germany because
of its current dual tax resident status.
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D.3 Key risks specific

to the securities.

E — Offer
E.1 Total net
proceeds.

Estimate of the
total expenses of
the issue/offer.

e Instone might have to withhold German and Dutch withholding tax on
dividends.

e Instone has undergone, and is expected to undergo, significant
reorganizations, including the planned conversion of the Company into a
German stock corporation (Aktiengesellschaft), which may result in an
additional tax burden.

Key Risks related to the Private Placement and Listing and the Placement
Shares

e There is no existing market for the Company’s shares and the development
of an active trading market may be limited.

e The market price and trading volume of the Company’s shares could
fluctuate considerably, which could result in substantial losses.

e Following the Private Placement and listing, the Existing Shareholders will
retain a significant interest in the Company, and their interests may conflict
with those of the other shareholders.

e Future capital measures could lead to a substantial dilution of shareholders’
interests in the Company and their voting rights and may adversely affect the
market price of the shares.

e Future sales by the Existing Shareholders could depress the price of the
Company’s shares.

e The Company’s ability to pay dividends depends on a variety of factors.
Dividends paid in the past are not necessarily indicative of future payments
and the Company’s dividend policy may change.

e The Company is a Dutch private limited liability company (B.V.) and will be
converted into a Dutch public limited liability company (N.V.), the
shareholder rights of which may differ from rights of shareholders in a
corporation organized in another jurisdiction.

e The Company plans to propose to its General Meeting to convert the
Company into a German stock corporation (Aktiengesellschaft) the
shareholder rights of which may differ from rights of shareholders in a
corporation organized in another jurisdiction.

Not applicable. There will be no public offering. The Company will, however, receive
the proceeds from the Private Placement resulting from the sale of the New Shares.
The Company will not receive any proceeds from the sale of the Existing Shares or of
the Over-Allotment Shares from the holdings of the Existing Shareholders.

Assuming that the New Shares are placed at the low end, mid-point and high end of
the Price Range, the Company estimates that gross proceeds to the Company would
amount to approximately €150.5 million, €164.5 million, and €178.5 million,
respectively, and net proceeds of approximately €142.2 million, €155.8 million, and
€169.4 million, respectively.

Assuming placement of all Existing Shares and of all Over-Allotment Shares and
assuming full exercise of the Greenshoe Option totaling 16,400,000 shares, the
Company estimates that at the low end, mid-point and high end of the Price Range,
gross proceeds to the Existing Shareholders would amount to approximately
€352.6 million, €385.4 million and €418.2 million, respectively, and net proceeds
would amount to approximately €334.8 million, €366.7 million and €398.5 million,
respectively.

Not applicable. The costs of the Company related to the Private Placement and the
listing of the Placement Shares are expected to total approximately €10.9 million
(excluding underwriting and placement commissions payable to the Underwriters), of
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which 65.6% will be borne by the Existing Shareholders, which means that the
Company will ultimately bear 34.4% thereof.

Not applicable. Investors will not be charged expenses by the Company, the Existing
Shareholders or the Underwriters. Investors will have to bear customary transaction
and handling fees charged by their brokers or other financial institutions through
which they hold their securities.

Not applicable. There will be no public offering. The Company intends to list its
shares on the regulated market (regulierter Markt) of the Frankfurt Stock Exchange
(Frankfurter Wertpapierbdrse) and, simultaneously, on the sub-segment with
additional post-admission obligations (Prime Standard) of the Frankfurt Stock
Exchange (Frankfurter Wertpapierbdrse) to gain access to the capital markets.

The Existing Shareholders intend to pursue the Private Placement to receive the net
proceeds from the Private Placement attributable to the Existing Shareholders.

The Company currently intends to use a portion of the net proceeds from the Private
Placement attributable to the Company of about €55.5 million to fully repay the
outstanding amounts under all shareholder loans and the remaining net proceeds of
about €100.3 million (assuming that the New Shares are finally placed at the mid-
point of the Price Range) to fund its acquisition and development activities to create
additional value and stable returns from its development business.

Not applicable. There will be no public offering. Please refer to B.7 for information
on the terms and conditions of the Private Placement.

In connection with the admission to trading of the Company’s shares and the Private
Placement, the Underwriters have formed a contractual relationship with the
Company and the Existing Shareholders.

The Underwriters are acting for the Company and the Existing Shareholders in
connection with the structuring and execution of the Private Placement. In addition,
Deutsche Bank has been mandated to act as designated sponsor for the Company’s
shares and as paying agent. The listing is a condition precedent to the consummation
of the Private Placement. Therefore, the Underwriters have a financial interest in the
listing as they will only receive the commission agreed upon in the Underwriting
Agreement following the successful completion of the Private Placement and thus the
completion of the listing.

Some of the Underwriters or their affiliates have, and may from time to time in the
future continue to have, business relations with Instone and the Existing
Shareholders, including lending activities, or may perform services for Instone or the
Existing Shareholders in the ordinary course of business.

The Existing Shareholders have an interest in the listing as this is a condition
precedent to the Private Placement and will receive the proceeds from the sale of up
to 13,350,000 Existing Shares and of up to 3,050,000 Over-Allotment Shares (if any)
sold in the Private Placement (after deduction of fees and commissions).

Other than the interests described above, there are no material interests, in particular
no material conflicts of interest, with respect to the Private Placement or the listing of
the Company’s shares.
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Not applicable. There will be no public offering. The Placement Shares are being
offered for sale in Private Placements by the Joint Bookrunners.

In the underwriting agreement relating to the Private Placement as entered into
between the Company, the Existing Shareholders and the Underwriters on
February 2, 2018 (the “Underwriting Agreement”), the Company agreed with each
Underwriter that, during the period commencing on February 2, 2018 and ending six
months after the first day of trading of the Company’s shares on the Frankfurt Stock
Exchange (Frankfurter Wertpapierborse) (currently expected to take place on
February 15, 2018), to the extent legally permissible, without the prior written
consent of the Underwriters, which may not be unreasonably withheld, the Company
will not:

(a) announce or effect an increase of the Company’s share capital out of authorized
capital or contingent capital, if any;

(b) propose to the General Meeting an increase of the issued share capital;

(c) announce, effect or propose the issuance of securities with conversion or option
rights on shares of the Company;

(d) offer, pledge, allot, issue (unless required by applicable law), sell, contract to
sell, sell any option or contract to purchase, purchase any option to sell, grant any
option, right or warrant to purchase, or otherwise transfer or dispose of, directly
or indirectly, any shares in its capital or any securities convertible into or
exercisable or exchangeable for shares in its capital or enter into any swap or
other arrangement that transfers to another, in whole or in part, the economic risk
of ownership of shares in its capital; or

(e) enter into a transaction or perform any action economically similar to those
described in (a) through (d) above.

The foregoing will not apply to (i) conversion of up to €30 million of the Company’s
share premium into the Company’s share capital prior to the listing of the Company’s
shares on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange (Frankfurter Wertpapierbdérse), (ii) increase
of the Company’s share capital in connection with the Private Placement,
(iii) proposals to the General Meeting to create authorized capital, contingent capital,
an authorization to issue securities convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for
shares in the Company’s share capital (such authorizations not to be exercised
throughout the lock-up period), (iv) issuance or sale of any shares or other securities
to employees and members of executive bodies of the Company or its subsidiaries
under customary management or employee stock option plans or (v) any corporate
actions undertaken by the Company for the purpose of converting the Company into a
German stock corporation (Aktiengesellschaft).

In addition, for the period commencing on February 2, 2018 and ending six months
after the first day of trading of the Company’s shares on the Frankfurt Stock
Exchange (Frankfurter Wertpapierborse) (currently expected to take place on
February 15, 2018), the Existing Shareholders have agreed that they will not, without
the prior written consent of the Underwriters, which may not be unreasonably
withheld:

o offer, pledge, allot, sell, contract to sell, sell any option or contract to
purchase, purchase any option to sell, grant any option, right or warrant to
purchase, or otherwise transfer or dispose of, directly or indirectly, any
shares or any other securities of the Company convertible into or exercisable
or exchangeable for shares of the Company;
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e make any demand for, or exercise any right with respect to, the registration
under U.S. securities laws of any shares of the Company or any security
convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for shares of the Company;

e propose any increase in the share capital of the Company, vote in favor of
such a proposed increase or otherwise support any proposal for the issuance
of any securities convertible into shares of the Company, or with option
rights for shares of the Company; or

e enter into a transaction or perform any action economically similar to those
described in each of the cases above, in particular enter into any swap or
other arrangement that transfers to another, in whole or in part, the economic
risk of ownership of shares of the Company, whether any such transaction is
to be settled by delivery of shares of the Company or such other securities, in
cash or otherwise.

The foregoing shall not apply to (i) the creation of an authorized capital, contingent
capital, or the authorization to issue securities convertible into or exercisable or
exchangeable for shares in the Company’s share capital (such authorizations not to be
exercised throughout the lock-up period), (ii) any measure required to increase the
Company’s share capital prior to the listing of the Company’s shares on the Frankfurt
Stock Exchange (Frankfurter Wertpapierborse) and to adopt and implement the N.V.
Conversion, (iii) any measure required to adopt and implement the AG Conversion
(without effecting an increase in the share capital of the Company), (iv) transfer of
shares under the securities loan granted by the EXxisting Shareholders to the
Stabilization Manager in connection with the Over-Allotment, (v) sale and transfer of
shares to members of the Company’s management board or to managing directors of
Instone group entities in connection with the restructuring of the management
compensation programs, and (vi) transfers to affiliates of the respective EXxisting
Shareholder, provided, however, that in case of (v) and (vi) such transferee(s)
agree(s) towards the Joint Global Coordinators to be bound by the same or longer
lock-up undertakings.

Not applicable. There will be no public offering.

Instone’s total equity (i.e., the net book value (total assets less total non-current
liabilities and total current liabilities)) amounted to negative €11.0 million as of
September 30, 2017, and would amount to €1.23 per share of the Company based on
29,988,336 outstanding shares of the Company immediately prior to the Placement
Capital Increase and after adjusting for the shareholder loans extended to the
Company that were partially converted in an amount of €48.0 million and contributed
into the Company’s share premium.

The dilutive effect of the Private Placement is illustrated in the table below,
demonstrating the amount by which the placement price exceeds the equity
attributable to shareholders per share after completion of the Private Placement and
assuming the Private Placement had been completed on September 30, 2017. In this
respect, the net book value attributable to shareholders as of September 30, 2017 is
adjusted for the effects of the Private Placement, assuming (i) the execution of the
Placement Capital Increase and (ii) an increase in the net book value attributable to
shareholders by €3.98 million (assuming successful placement of the New Shares at
the mid-point of the Price Range and completion of the Private Placement and not
taking into account any tax effects). The adjusted net book value attributable to
shareholders is expressed as a per share figure, assuming 36,988,336 shares of the
Company outstanding upon completion of the Private Placement (this per share figure
being referred to as the “Post-Placement per Share Net Book Value”).

As of September 30,
2017
(unaudited)

(in €, unless
otherwise specified)

......................................................................................................... 23.50
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As of September 30,

2017
Per share net book value (based on 29,988,336 outstanding shares of the Company before
the Placement Capital INCIEASE)™.............viveeeeeeeeeceeeeees oo s 1.23
Post-Placement per Share Net Book Value® (net book Value) ............ccc.cocvevveceeecrereeecrencnene, 5.21
Amount by which the price per share exceeds the Post-Placement per Share Net Book
Value (immediate dilution Per SNAre) ... 18.29
77.8%

Immediate dilUtion (IN 90).......coeiiiiiie s

(1) Based on 29,988,336 outstanding shares of the Company immediately prior to the Private Placement and total equity of
Instone in the amount of negative €11.0 million as of September 30, 2017 and after adjusting for the shareholder loans
extended to the Company that were partially converted in an amount of €48.0 million and contributed into the

Company’s share premium.
(2) Assuming successful placement of the New Shares at the mid-point of the Price Range.

E.7 Estimated Not applicable. Investors will not be charged expenses by the Company, the Existing
expenses charged  Shareholders or the Joint Bookrunners. Investors will have to bear customary
to the investor by transaction and handling fees charged by their brokers or other financial institutions
the issuer or through which they hold their securities.
offeror.
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A translation of the summary in the German language follows this summary. The German
translation of this summary has not been approved by the AFM. In the event of inconsistency between the
German language version and the English language version of this summary, the English version will
prevail.

1. ZUSAMMENFASSUNG DES PROSPEKTS

Zusammenfassungen bestehen aus Pflichtangaben, die als Punkte (,Punkte”) bezeichnet werden.
Diese Punkte sind in den Abschnitten A-E (A.1 - E.7) fortlaufend nummeriert. Diese Zusammenfassung enthélt
alle Punkte, die fir die vorliegende Art von Wertpapier und Emittent in eine Zusammenfassung aufzunehmen
sind. Da einige Punkte nicht behandelt werden miissen, kdnnen in der Nummerierungsreihenfolge Liicken
auftreten. Selbst wenn ein Punkt wegen der Art des Wertpapiers und des Emittenten in die Zusammenfassung
aufgenommen werden muss, ist es mdglich, dass in Bezug auf diesen Punkt keine relevanten Informationen
gegeben werden kdnnen. In diesen Fallen enthélt die Zusammenfassung eine kurze Beschreibung des Punkts mit
dem Hinweis ,, Entfillt”.

A — Einleitung und Warnhinweise

A.1 Warnhinweise. Diese Zusammenfassung sollte als Einleitung zu diesem Prospekt (der ,,Prospekt”)
verstanden werden.

Der Anleger sollte jede Entscheidung zur Anlage in die hierin beschriebenen
Wertpapiere auf die Priifung des gesamten Prospekts stlitzen.

Fir den Fall, dass vor einem Gericht Anspriiche aufgrund der in diesem Prospekt
enthaltenen Informationen geltend gemacht werden, konnte der als Klager
auftretende Anleger in Anwendung der einzelstaatlichen Rechtsvorschriften der
Staaten des Europaischen Wirtschaftsraums die Kosten fiir die Ubersetzung des
Prospekts vor Prozessbeginn zu tragen haben.

Eine zivilrechtliche Haftung trifft nur die Personen, die die Zusammenfassung nebst
Ubersetzung erstellt haben und nur dann, wenn die Zusammenfassung, sofern sie
zusammen mit den anderen Teilen des Prospekt gelesen wird, irreflihrend, unrichtig
oder widersprichlich sein sollte oder wenn sie, zusammen mit den anderen Teilen
des Prospekts gelesen, nicht alle erforderlichen Schliisselinformationen vermittelt,
die den Anlegern dabei helfen, zu entscheiden, ob sie in die Inhaberaktien mit einem
Nennwert von jeweils €1,00 der Instone Real Estate Group N.V. (welche im
Zeitpunkt dieses Prospekts noch eine Gesellschaft mit beschrénkter Haftung
niederldndischen Rechts (besloten vennootschap met beperkte aansprakelijkheid
(B.V.)) ist deren Firma “Instone Real Estate Group B.V.” lautet) (die
»Gesellschaft”, und gemeinsam mit ihren Konzerngesellschaften, ,,Instone”)
investieren sollen.

Die Gesellschaft ist verantwortlich fiir den Inhalt dieser Zusammenfassung.

A.2 Angaben zu einer Entféllt. Eine Zustimmung der Gesellschaft zur Verwendung dieses Prospektes fur

spateren eine spatere WeiterverduRerung oder Platzierung der Aktien wurde nicht erteilt.
Verwendung des
Prospekts.

B — Emittent

B.1 Firmaund Im Zeitpunkt dieses Prospekts ist die Gesellschaft noch eine Gesellschaft mit
Handelsname des  beschrankter Haftung niederlandischen Rechts (besloten vennootschap met beperkte
Emittenten. aansprakelijkheid (B.V.)). Die Firma der Gesellschaft lautet “Instone Real Estate

Group B.V.” und der Handelsname “Instone Real Estate”.

Die Gesellschaft wird in eine Aktiengesellschaft nach niederlandischem Recht
(naamloze vennootschap (N.V.)) umgewandelt, und zwar kurz nach der Festlegung
des Platzierungspreises fir die Platzierungsaktien (wie in B.7 definiert) und vor der
Bezahlung und Lieferung der Platzierungsaktien (wie in B.7 definiert), durch eine
notarielle Urkunde und Anderung der Satzung (die ,Satzung”) gemiB
Beschlussfassung der  Gesellschafterversammlung  der  Gesellschaft  (die
,Gesellschafterversammlung”) zu jenem Zeitpunkt oder zuvor (die ,,N.V.
Umwandlung”, und mit Wirksamkeit der N.V. Umwandlung, die ,,Wirksamkeit

S-26




B.2

B.3

Sitz, Rechtsform
und Jurisdiktion,
unter der der
Emittent tétig ist;
Grindungsland
des Emittenten.

Betriebliche
Tatigkeit und
Hauptgeschéftsak
tivitaten des
Emittenten;

der N.V. Umwandlung”). Nach Wirksamkeit der N.V. Umwandlung wird die
Firma der Gesellschaft sodann ,Instone Real Estate Group N.V.” lauten und der
Handelsname unverdndert bleiben.

Die Gesellschaft beabsichtigt der Hauptversammlung vorzuschlagen, einen
Beschluss tber die Umwandlung der Gesellschaft in eine Aktiengesellschaft, die
deutschem Recht unterliegt und ihren Satzungssitz in Essen, Deutschland hat, zu
fassen (die ,,AG Umwandlung”). Es ist angedacht, den Beschluss {iber die
Umwandlung der Gesellschaft in eine deutsche Aktiengesellschaft durch
gemeinsamen Vorschlag von Vorstand und Aufsichtsrat vorzuschlagen, welcher
eine einfache Mehrheit (50%) der abgegebenen Stimmen erfordert. Die Bestehenden
Aktiondre (wie in B.6 definiert) haben sich verpflichtet, (i) fir eine solche
Umwandlung zu stimmen und (ii) ihre Beteiligungen nicht bis zum Ende der
Sperrfrist (August 15, 2018) zu veraulern. Die Bestehenden Aktionére (wie in B.6
definiert) werden weiterhin mindestens 36,7% der Aktien der Gesellschaft (unter der
Annahme der vollstédndigen Platzierung der Platzierungsaktien und der vollstandigen
Ausiibung der Greenshoe-Option (wie jeweils in B.7 definiert) im Anschluss an die
Privatplatzierung (wie in B.6 definiert) halten. Die Gesellschaft wird mit der
Durchfiihrung der AG Umwandlung erst beginnen nachdem sichergestellt wurde,
dass die AG-Umwandlung in keiner Rechtsordnung wesentlich nachteilige Steuern
auslosen wird. Insbesondere wird die AG Umwandlung nur nach Erhalt von
verbindlichen steuerlichen Auskiinften der zustdndigen deutschen Steuerbehérden
durchgefuhrt, welche bestéatigen, dass die AG Umwandlung ohne wesentliche
negative deutsche steuerliche Auswirkungen auf Ebene der Gesellschaft und ihrer
konsolidierten Tochtergesellschaften fiir Zwecke der deutschen Korperschafts-,
Gewerbe- und Quellensteuer sowie Grunderwerbssteuer vollzogen werden kann und
auch keine tatsachliche oder angenommene Auflésung aus einer deutschen
Steuersicht vorliegt (die ,,Positiven Verbindlichen Steuerlichen Auskinfte”),
sofern die darin enthaltenen Annahmen betreffend niederlandische rechtliche und
steuerliche Sachverhalte hinreichend von niederl&ndischen Rechtsgutachten oder
niederl&dndischen verbindlichen steuerlichen Auskiinften gestiitzt werden. Nach
Erhalt der Positiven Verbindlichen Steuerlichen Auskinfte und anschlieRender
Eintragung der AG Umwandlung in das Register des Amtsgerichts Essen,
Deutschland (die ,,Wirksamkeit der AG Umwandlung”), wird die Firma der
Gesellschaft ,Instone Real Estate Group AG” lauten und der Handelsname
unverandert bleiben. Die Gesellschaft geht davon aus, dass die AG Umwandlung in
2018 durchgefuhrt wird, vorausgesetzt, dass die oben genannten Anforderungen
erftllt sind.

Die Gesellschaft ist eine nach dem Recht der Niederlande gegriindete Gesellschaft
mit beschrénkter Haftung (besloten vennootschap met beperkte aansprakelijkheid).
Die Gesellschaft hat ihren Sitz (statutaire zetel) in Amsterdam, Niederlande, den Ort
der tatsachlichen Geschéftsfiihrung und ihre eingetragene Geschéftsadresse in der
Baumstralle 25, 45128 Essen, Deutschland, und ist im Handelsregister der
Niederlandischen Handelskammer (Handelsregister van de Kamer van Koophandel)
unter der Nummer 60490861 eingetragen.

Mit Wirksamkeit der N.V. Umwandlung wird die Rechtsform der Gesellschaft in
eine Aktiengesellschaft niederlandischen Rechts (naamloze vennootschap (N.V.))
umgewandelt, wahrend die Umwandlung keine Auswirkungen auf ihre im
Handelsregister der Niederldndischen Handelskammer (Handelsregister van de
Kamer van Koophandel) eingetragene Nummer, ihren Sitz (statutaire zetel), den Ort
ihrer tatsdchlichen Geschaftsfihrung und ihre eingetragene Geschaftsadresse hat.

Mit Wirksamkeit der AG Umwandlung wird die Gesellschaft zu einer deutschen
Aktiengesellschaft, mit Sitz und Geschéftsadresse in der BaumstraBe 25, 45128
Essen, Deutschland, die deutschem Recht unterliegt.

Instone ist, gemessen an der Anzahl der Quadratmeter der gesicherten aber noch
nicht im Bau befindlichen Immobilienprojekte, ein fuhrender landesweit tatiger
Wohnimmobilienentwickler in Deutschland (Quelle: bulwiengesa). Instone
entwickelt moderne Mehrfamilienwohnanlagen in  Stddten und saniert
denkmalgeschitzte Immobilien zu Wohnzwecken. Zum 30. September 2017 bestand
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Hauptmarkte, auf das Projektportfolio von Instone aus 48 Entwicklungsprojekten mit einem

denen der
Emittent aktiv ist.

erwarteten Gesamtumsatzvolumen fiir voll entwickelte Projekte von rund €3,4
Milliarden. Zu diesem Datum befanden sich ca. 93% des Portfolios von Instone
(ausgehend vom erwarteten Umsatzvolumen fir vollstdndig entwickelte Projekte) in
den wichtigsten Metropolregionen Deutschlands (Berlin, Bonn, Kdln, Disseldorf,
Frankfurt am Main, Hamburg, Leipzig, Miinchen und Stuttgart (einschlief3lich
Herrenberg)) und 7% in anderen prosperierenden mittelgroen St&dten. Die
mafgeblichen Erwerbergruppen von Instone sind Eigennutzer, Privatanleger mit
Vermietungsabsicht und institutionelle Investoren. Zum 30. September 2017 hatte
Instone Kaufvertrage hinsichtlich 24% der insgesamt planméaBig zu bauenden
Wohneinheiten sowie 75% der Wohneinheiten, welche sich in der Vorerrichtungs-
oder Bauentwicklungsphase befinden (jeweils gemessen am erwarteten
Gesamtumsatzvolumen). Zu demselben Datum hatte Instone den Verkauf von zwei
Dritteln der Wohneinheiten, die planméaRig bis 2020 fertigzustellen sind, vereinbart
(gemessen am erwarteten Gesamtumsatzvolumen).

Nach Einschéatzung von Instone ist der deutsche Markt fir Wohnimmobilien &uBerst
attraktiv. Deutschland ist Europas grofite und stabilste Volkswirtschaft. Im Jahr
2016 wies Deutschland das hochste Bruttoinlandsprodukt (BIP) in Europa (€3,1
Billionen) sowie eines der hochsten BIPs pro Kopf (€38,1 Tausend) auf (Quelle:
Destatis, Deutsches Statistisches Bundesamt). Es wird damit gerechnet, dass im
deutschen Wohnimmobilienmarkt auch weiterhin aus einer Reihe von Grinden,
einschlieBlich eines moderaten Bevolkerungswachstums (Quelle: Institut der
deutschen Wirtschaft Kéln (IW)), einem Anstieg der Anzahl der Haushalte (Quelle:
Destatis, Deutsches Statistisches Bundesamt) sowie der derzeitigen strukturellen
Unterversorgung mit Wohnimmobilien (Quelle: bulwiengesa), ein gesundes
strukturelles Wachstum vorherrschen wird. Es wird erwartet, dass die
Einwohnerzahlen von 2012 bis 2030 in Berlin um 10,3%, in Frankfurt am Main um
14,0% und in Minchen um 4,0% ansteigen werden (Quelle: bulwiengesa,
Potentialanalyse). Weiterhin profitiert Instone von dem gunstigen regulatorischen
Umfeld flr Projektentwicklung in Deutschland. Die deutsche Makler- und
Bautrégerverordnung (,,MaBV”) erméoglicht es Instone, bei Wohneinheiten, die an
Eigennutzer oder Privatanleger mit Vermietungsabsicht verkauft werden,
Teilzahlungen in betrachtlicher Hohe je nach Baufortschritt vertraglich zu
vereinbaren, was das Entwicklungsrisiko von Instone erheblich verringert.

Instone ist einer der wenigen reinen Wohnimmobilienentwickler in Deutschland,
dessen  Geschaftstatigkeit die gesamte  Entwicklungs-Wertschopfungskette,
abgesehen von der tatsachlichen Errichtung, abdeckt. Instone betreibt sein Geschaft
durch eine vollintegrierte landesweite Plattform, vom Grundstlckserwerb und der
Grundstiicksentwicklung Uber die Konzeptplanung, der Bauleitung bis hin zu
Marketing und Verkauf. Instone hat seinen Hauptsitz in Essen und betreibt sein
Geschaft aulerdem durch sieben Niederlassungen in Berlin, Kdln, Frankfurt am
Main, Hamburg, Leipzig, Minchen und Stuttgart. Jede Niederlassung verfugt tber
lokale Teams fur Akquise, Planung, Bauleitung sowie Marketing und Vertrieb,
wahrend strategische Entscheidungen zusammen mit Instones Hauptsitz abgestimmt
und gesteuert werden. Instone verfiigt ber ein starkes Risikomanagement und nutzt
ausgeklugelte Berichts- und Planungsinstrumente um die Entwicklungsrisiken zu
minimieren. Aufgrund dieser MalRnahmen hat Instone Development (wie unten
definiert) hinsichtlich von Projekten, die zwischen Januar 2015 und dem 30.
September 2017  abgeschlossen  wurden, 100% von insgesamt 25
Neubauentwicklungsprojekten  erfolgreich  fristgerecht ~ geliefert ~ sowie
durchschnittlich 1,0% mehr Grundflache realisiert als urspringlich geplant. In der
selben Periode waren die tatsachlichen Herstellungskosten der Projekte der Instone
Development (wie unten definiert) durchschnittlich um 0,5% niedriger als
urspriinglich geplant.

Instone hat eine gute Erfolgsbilanz in der Akquise. Seit 2015 hat Instone
Grundstiicke und Objekte fir Wohnraumentwicklung mit einem im Zeitpunkt der
Akquisition erwarteten Gesamtumsatzvolumen fiir voll entwickelte Projekte in Hohe
von €2.847 Millionen erworben. Instone hat ebenfalls eine gute Erfolgsbilanz in der
Projektentwicklung. ~ Seit 1991  hat Instone  (einschlieBlich  seiner
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Vorgéangerunternehmen) Wohneinheiten mit mehr als einer Million Quadratmeter
Wohnflache entwickelt. Im Jahr 2015 hat Instone erfolgreich 1.112 Einheiten, 2016
1.204 Einheiten, in den ersten neun Monaten von 2017 270 Einheiten und im letzten
Quartal 2017 190 Einheiten geliefert. Fur 2018 rechnet Instone damit, rund 700
Wohneinheiten zu liefern, fir 2019 rund 1.450 und flir 2020 rund 1.300. Instone hat
fur alle Projekte, die zwischen dem 1. Januar 2015 und dem 30. September 2017
fertiggestellt wurden, eine gewichtete durchschnittliche Historische Brutto-
Projektmarge (wie in B.7 definiert) von ca. 23,6% erreicht. Instone ist der
Auffassung, dass der Erfolg des Unternehmens auf den regionalen Fokus, die
landesweite regionale Présenz sowie die Expertise und das starke Netzwerk seiner
Uber ganz Deutschland verteilten Experten zurlickzufiihren ist.

Instones Kerngeschaft geht auf den Geschéftsbereich fur Immobilienentwicklung
der HOCHTIEF Solutions AG zurlick. Im Jahr 2013 brachte die HOCHTIEF
Solutions AG ihren Geschéftsbereich Entwicklung in eine eigene Gesellschaft, die
formart GmbH & Co. KG, ein. Im Jahr 2014 wurde die formart GmbH & Co. KG,
welche seitdem umgewandelt und jetzt als Instone Real Estate Development GmbH
(,Instone Development”) firmiert, von der Gesellschaft erworben. Instone
Development wird seit dem 1. Oktober 2014 im Konzernabschluss der Gesellschaft
voll konsolidiert. Im Jahr 2015 erwarb die Gesellschaft die ehemalige GRK-Holding
GmbH, ein Immobilienentwicklungsunternehmen mit Spezialisierung auf die
Sanierung von denkmalgeschiitzten Bauwerken zur Nutzung als Wohnraum, die in
Instone Real Estate Leipzig GmbH (,,Instone Leipzig”) umbenannt wurde. Instone
Leipzig wird seit Dezember 2015 im Konzernabschluss der Gesellschaft voll
konsolidiert. Im Juni 2017 wurde die Firma der Gesellschaft in Instone Real Estate
Group B.V. und der Handelsname in “Instone Real Estate” gedndert. Infolge der
Ubernahme der Instone Development und Instone Leipzig enthalten die
Konzernabschllsse der Gesellschaft wesentliche Effekte aus den daraus
resultierenden Kaufpreisallokationseffekten (wie in B.7 definiert).

Zum 30. September 2017 enthielt das Projektportfolio von Instone 48 Projekte
bestehend aus 8.042 Wohneinheiten mit einem erwarteten Gesamtumsatzvolumen
fir voll entwickelte Projekte von rund €3,4 Milliarden. Instone teilt sein
Projektportfolio in drei Kategorien je nach Entwicklungsphase auf. Projekte in der
Kategorie ,,vor Beginn der Vermarktung” sind Projekte, fiir die Grundstiicke oder
Objekte durch Instone bereits akquiriert oder gesichert worden sind, fur die jedoch
noch keine Marketing- und Verkaufsaktivititen begonnen haben. In der Phase ,,vor
Beginn der Vermarktung” betreibt Instone die Entwicklung des Grundstiicks und
fihrt die Konzeptplanung durch, um sodann mit den Verkaufsaktivitdten beginnen
zu kdnnen. Sobald Instone die Marketing- und Verkaufsaktivitaten eingeleitet hat,
werden Projekte in die ,,Vorerrichtungsphase” tiberfiihrt. Projekte, bei denen aktuell
Bauaktivititen durchgefiihrt werden, werden als in der ,,Bauerrichtungsphase”
bezeichnet. Zum 30. September 2017 befanden sich, basierend auf erwartetem
Gesamtumsatzvolumen nach Fertigstellung der Projektentwicklungen, 68% des
Projektportfolios in der Phase ,vor Beginn der Vermarktung”, 7% in der
,Vorerrichtungsphase” und 25% waren in der ,Bauerrichtungsphase”. Von den
planméBig zu bauenden 8.042 Wohneinheiten, wurden bereits 1.994 Einheiten
vorverkauft.

Der hohe Auftragsbestand an laufenden Projekten spiegelt das hohe MalR an
Investitionen in den Jahren 2015 und 2016 wieder, in denen Grundstiicke oder
Objekte mit einem erwarteten Gesamtumsatzvolumen fiir voll entwickelte Projekte
in Hohe von €1.476 Millionen (von denen €550 Millionen durch die Akquisition
von Instone Leipzig akquiriert wurden) bzw. €995 Millionen akquiriert wurden.
Dieses hohe Level an Investitionen folgte auf eine Phase mit weniger Akquisitionen
in den Jahren 2013 und 2014, in der Instone Development noch von der HOCHTIEF
Solutions AG kontrolliert wurde und Grundstiicke oder Objekte mit einem
erwarteten Gesamtumsatzvolumen fiir voll entwickelte Projekte in Hohe von €229
Millionen akquiriert wurden. Zum 31. Dezember 2017 hatte Instone 71 weitere
Akquisitionsmdglichkeiten mit einem erwarteten Gesamtumsatzvolumen fir voll
entwickelte Projekte von mehr als €13,0 Milliarden identifiziert.
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Als Wohnimmobilienentwickler werden Instones Ergebnisse maRgeblich durch die
fur die jeweiligen Kundenvertrdge anzuwendende Bilanzierungsmethode
beeinflusst. In der Vergangenheit gewahrte die Standard-Vertragsform der Instone
Development den Kunden das Recht im Zuge der Bauausfihrung grundlegende
Anderungen an dem jeweiligen Projekt zu verlangen. Dies war im Einklang mit
internen Vorgaben der HOCHTIEF Solutions AG. In der neuen Standard-
Vertragsform, die Instone Development am 1. August 2015 eingefuhrt hat, wurde
dieses Recht beseitigt. Fir Projekte, die von Instone Development auf Basis der
urspriinglichen Standard-Vertragsform abgewickelt wurden, wurden Umsatzerldse
und Aufwendungen (ber die gesamte Bauphase auf der Grundlage des
Baufortschritts und der verkauften Einheiten unter Verwendung der ,,Percentage-of-
Completion-Methode” erfasst. Bei Projekten, die unter Anwendung der neuen
Standard-Vertragsform vermarktet werden, werden die Herstellungskosten in den
Vorraten aktiviert und Umsatzerlése und Ertrage werden erst dann erfasst, wenn die
verkauften Wohneinheiten nach Fertigstellung tatsachlich geliefert werden. Da
Umsatzerlose und Ertrdge nach dieser Completed-Contract-Methode erst nach
Ubergabe fertiggestellter Einheiten erfasst werden, bleiben die Ertrage in der Regel
bis zum Ende des Projektentwicklungsprozesses negativ. Bestimmte Arten von
Projektentwicklungen der Instone Development (z. B. Mikrowohnungen,
unverkaufte fertiggestellte Wohnungen) wurden unter Verwendung einer
Vertragsform verkauft, die bereits vor der Umstellung auf die neue Standard-
Vertragsform die Anwendung der Completed-Contract-Methode erforderte. Dies gilt
auch fir den Verkauf von Grundstiicken, die nach der Completed-Contract-Methode
bilanziert werden. Die Kundenvertrédge der Instone Leipzig erfordern seit jeher die
Anwendung der Completed-Contract-Methode.

Die Ergebnisse der Gesellschaft umfassen daher im Berichtszeitraum sowohl
Projekte, die nach der ,,Percentage-of-Completion-Methode™ erfasst wurden als auch
Projekte fiir die die ,,Completed-Contract-Methode” zur Anwendung kommt.
Wahrend Umsatzerldse und Ertrdge aus Vertrdgen, die unter Anwendung der alten
Standard-Vertragsform von der ,Percentage-of-Completion-Methode” erfasst
wurden, im Laufe der Zeit gesunken sind und die letzten vertragsgegenstandlichen
Einheiten im zweiten Quartal 2017 Ubergeben wurden, haben Projekte, die unter
Anwendung der neuen Standard-Vertragsform vermarktet und somit von der
,,Completed-Contract-Methode” erfasst werden, durch Fertigstellung und Ubergabe
der ersten Projekte erst im Jahr 2017 begonnen zu Umsatzerlosen und Ertrdgen
beizutragen.

In den Jahren 2015, 2016 und den ersten neun Monaten von 2017 betrugen Instones
Umsitze €358,7 Mio., €203,6 Mio. bzw. €123,8 Mio. In den Jahren 2015, 2016 und
den ersten neun Monaten von 2017 betrug Instones EBIT minus €7,6 Mio., €0,8
Mio. bzw. €3,9 Mio. Instones EBIT wurde von den Kaufpreisallokationseffekten
sowie Einmaleffekten (wie in B.7 definiert) beeinflusst. Bereinigt um diese
Kaufpreisallokationseffekte und Einmaleffekte betrug das Bereinigte EBIT (wie in
B.7 definiert) von Instone in 2015 €17,7 Mio., in 2016 €48,4 Mio. und in den ersten
neun Monaten von 2017 €15,8 Mio. Das Ergebnis des starken Geschéftsjahres 2016
wurde durch die Auswirkungen der gednderten Standard-Vertragsform auf die
Umsatzrealisierung beeintrachtigt, wahrend die schwéachere Entwicklung in den
ersten neun Monaten 2017 auf den verzdgerten Effekt des geringeren
Akquisitionsvolumens in den Geschéftsjahren 2013 und 2014, die neue
Vertragsform fiir nahezu alle in der Entwicklung befindlichen Projekte sowie auf
eine hohere Anzahl von im vierten Quartal (bergebenen Einheiten zuriickzufihren
ist. Diese Effekte werden sich im vierten Quartal 2017 positiv auf Umsatzerlése und
Bereinigtes EBIT auswirken. Instone erwartet in den kommenden Jahren
signifikante Beitrdge zu Umsatzerldsen und Bereinigtem EBIT von Projekten, die
gerade in der Entwicklung sind, da Umsatzerldse und Ertrdge aus umfangreichen,
laufenden Projektentwicklungen in Instones starkem Projektportfolio erst nach
Ubergabe der Wohneinheiten nach erfolgter Projektfertigstellung realisiert werden.

Geschéaftliche Starken

Die Gesellschaft ist der Auffassung, dass die nachfolgend beschriebenen
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B.4a Wichtigste
aktuelle Trends
mit
Auswirkungen auf
den Emittenten
und die Branchen,
in denen er tatig
ist.

Wetthewerbsstarken die wichtigsten Faktoren fiir den Erfolg von Instone in der
Vergangenheit waren und Instone auch in Zukunft von seinen Wetthewerbern
abheben werden:

e Présenz in der grofiten und stabilsten Volkswirtschaft in Europa mit
attraktiven Rahmenbedingungen im Bereich Wohnimmobilien.

o  Marktfuhrende landesweite Plattform mit Fokus auf den wichtigsten
Metropolregionen und  prosperierenden  mittelgroBen  Stadten in
Deutschland mit Skalierungspotenzial.

e Attraktives  Projektportfolio, ausgerichtet auf die attraktivsten
Wachstumsstadte in  Deutschland, als Grundlage fir starkes und
vorhersehbares strukturelles Wachstum.

e Ein giinstiges regulatorisches Umfeld und solides Risikomanagement sowie
ausgekliigelte Berichtsinstrumente verringern das Entwicklungsrisiko.

o Kapitaleffizientes Geschaftsmodell mit attraktiven Projektmargen.

e In der gesamten Branche hoch erfahrenes Management-Team mit einer
belegten Wertschopfungserfolgsbilanz.

Strategie

Die Strategie von Instone besteht darin, Mehrwert flr sein Projektportfolio zu
generieren und die wettbewerbsfahige Stellung der Gesellschaft im deutschen Markt
fur die Entwicklung von Wohnimmobilien zu erhalten und weiter auszubauen. Um
dies zu erreichen, wird die Gesellschaft ihre starke Plattform und ihre profunden
Marktkenntnisse  nutzen und ihre  Wettbewerbsposition im  deutschen
Wohnraumentwicklungssektor weiter ausbauen. Weiterhin beabsichtigt Instone,
durch die Wahrnehmung von Wachstumschancen zusatzliches Wachstum zu
stimulieren, unter anderem in den wichtigsten Metropolregionen in Deutschland, fir
die Instone weiteres Wachstumspotenzial erwartet. Instone will dies wie folgt
erreichen:

e Beibehaltung und Ausweitung seiner Wettbewerbsposition im deutschen
Wohnraumentwicklungssektor mit fortlaufendem Fokus auf den
wichtigsten Metropolregionen in Deutschland.

e Fokus auf Grundsticke und Objekte ohne Flachennutzungsplan oder
Planungsgenehmigung fir Wohnraumentwicklung im Zeitpunkt der
Akquisition.

e Steigerung des erwarteten Gesamtumsatzvolumens durch (Re)lnvestition
Uberschussiger Mittel sowie der Reinerlose aus der Privatplatzierung um
Wachstum zu fordern.

Die Geschéftstatigkeit von Instone wird von zahlreichen demografischen,
wirtschaftlichen und politischen Faktoren beeinflusst. Instone ist am stérksten von
Entwicklungen im deutschen Wohnimmobilienmarkt, insbesondere in den
Metropolregionen (Berlin, Bonn, Kdln, Disseldorf, Frankfurt am Main, Hamburg,
Leipzig, Minchen und Stuttgart (einschlieBlich Herrenberg)), betroffen, wo sich
zum 30. September 2017 rund 93% des Portfolios von Instone (ausgehend vom
erwarteten Umsatzvolumen fir vollstdndig entwickelte Projekte) befanden. Die
mafgeblichen Erwerbergruppen von Instone sind Eigennutzer, Privatanleger mit
Vermietungsabsicht und institutionelle Investoren. In Anbetracht dieses Fokus ist
Instone allgemein von Entwicklungen bei makrodkonomischen Indikatoren wie
Wirtschaftswachstum, Beschéaftigung, Bevdlkerungswachstum, Kaufkraft und
Zinsniveau betroffen. Insbesondere ist Instone wvon Entwicklungen der
Grundstiickswerte, Immobilienwerte und der Nachfrage fir Wohnimmobilien sowie
Projektentwicklungskosten in den Regionen, in denen Instone tatig ist, betroffen.

Die Haus- und Wohnungspreise in Deutschland sind seit Anfang 2009 gestiegen, so
dass 2018 das zehnte Jahr im aktuellen Immobilienzyklus ist. Obwohl der Zyklus
bereits  beeindruckend lange andauert, ist dieser immer noch von
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B.5 Der Konzern und
die Stellung des
Emittenten
innerhalb des
Konzerns.

Wohnungsknappheit und einem relativ unelastischem Angebot gepréagt. Die Markte
in den Metropolregionen sind besonders angespannt; dort sind die Preise zwischen
2009 und 2017 um rund 80% gestiegen. Die Zahl der neu fertig gestellten
Wohneinheiten steigt allerdings und wird 2017 voraussichtlich erstmals rund
305.000 Wohneinheiten erreichen, eine Steigerung gegeniber 2016 mit rund
280.000 Wohneinheiten. Experten erwarten eine weitere Steigerung auf rund
335.000 in 2018. Unter der Annahme, dass mindestens jahrlich mindestens 350.000
neue Wohneinheiten notwendig wéren (Schatzung der Regierung), wird sich die
Kluft zwischen Angebot und Nachfrage allerdings weiter vergrofern.

Die angespannte Marktlage hat die Hauserpreise 2017 noch starker als in den
Vorjahren ansteigen lassen. Laut einer bulwiengesa Studie (welche 126 Stadte
umfasst) stiegen die Eigenheimpreise um 6,5% und die Wohnungspreise um
durchschnittlich mehr als 10%. Wie in den Vorjahren wurden die starksten
Preissteigerungen in Metropolregionen und Grof3stadten verzeichnet. Viele kleinere
Stadte erlebten jedoch auch deutliche Preissteigerungen, und in keiner der 126
Stadte gingen die Preise zuriick. Experten gehen daher davon aus, dass das Preis-
und Mietwachstum auch im Jahr 2018 stark bleiben wird. Die
Angebotsverknappung auf dem Wohnungsmarkt und der ausgezeichnete
Arbeitsmarkt dirften die entscheidenden Preistreiber bleiben.

Neben den beschriebenen wirtschaftlichen Entwicklungen verzeichnet Instone einen
generellen Trend zu einer Reduktion der HaushaltsgroRen, was durch das allgemeine
Wachstum der Einpersonenhaushalte unterstiitzt wird. Darlber hinaus erlebt Instone
einen Trend hin zu einem flexiblen Wohnraum- bzw. Grundrissgestaltung, welche
sich verénderten Haushaltsformen, aber auch auf sich &ndernde Situationen
innerhalb einer Familie anpassen. Immer weniger Wohnungen werden von der
klassischen Kleinfamilie bewohnt; in den sich wandelnden Wohnstrukturen spiegelt
sich die Unterschiedlichkeit heutiger Lebensmodelle. Ob Wohngemeinschaft,
Single, Kleinfamilie oder Alleinerziehende, ob Heimarbeit oder Wohnbiro —
erforderlich sind anpassungsfahige Konzepte mit weitgehender Neutralitdt der
einzelnen Zimmer. Flexible Wohnraum- bzw. Grundrissgestaltung beginnt mit
einem Grundriss, der in Zukunft funktionale Erweiterungen ermdglicht. Sinnvoll
kénnen beispielsweise Grundrisse sein, bei denen am Eingang ein neutraler Raum
liegt, der alternativ als Gaste- oder Arbeitszimmer oder als Wohnbereich fiir ein
&lteres Kind oder GroRelternteil verwendet werden kann.

Die Gesellschaft ist die Holdinggesellschaft der Instone. Die Geschaftstétigkeit von
Instone wird durch Instone und ihre verschiedenen Tochtergesellschaften
wahrgenommen. Der Konzernabschluss der Gesellschaft umfasst alle
Gesellschaften, deren finanzielle und geschéftliche Ausrichtung von der
Gesellschaft unmittelbar oder mittelbar gesteuert werden kann, sowie jene, deren
finanzielle und geschéftliche Ausrichtung malgeblich durch die Gesellschaft
beeinflusst werden kann. Im Zeitpunkt dieses Prospekts umfasst Instone 32
Gesellschaften  (inklusive Minderheitsbeteiligungen). In dem konsolidierten
Jahresabschluss der Gesellschaft zum 31. Dezember 2016 wurden 21 Gesellschaften
konsolidiert.

Das nachfolgende Schaubild gibt einen Uberblick tiber die Gesellschaft und ihre
wesentlichen Tochtergesellschaften:

Instone Real Estate

Group BV
100% 94%
Instone Real Estate Instone Real Estate
Development Leipzig
GmbH GmbH
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B.6 Namen der Die nachfolgende Tabelle stellt die Beteiligungen der bestehenden Aktionére,

Personen, die (i) Cobperatieve  Formart Investments U.A., eine Genossenschaft —mit
mittelbar oder Haftungsausschluss (codperatie met uitgesloten aansprakelijkheid) (,,Co0peratieve
unmittelbar eine  Formart”), Codperatieve Activum SG Fund Il Investments U.A., eine
meldepflichtige Genossenschaft ~ mit  Haftungsausschluss ~ (codperatie  met  uitgesloten
Beteiligung am aansprakelijkheid) (,,Codperatieve Activum I11”) und Codperatieve Activum SG

Kapital oder an Fund V Investments U.A., eine Genossenschaft mit Haftungsausschluss (codperatie

den Stimmrechten met uitgesloten aansprakelijkheid) (,,Codperatieve Activum V”, und zusammen mit

des Emittenten Cooperatieve Formart und Coobperatieve Activum III die ,,Bestehenden

halten. Aktionére”), unmittelbar vor der Privatplatzierung sowie ihre voraussichtliche
Beteiligung gemeinsam mit dem erwarteten Streubesitzanteil nach Abschluss der
Privatplatzierung von bis zu 23.400.000 Inhaberaktien der Gesellschaft mit einem
Nennwert von jeweils €1,00 und voller Dividendenberechtigung ab dem 1. Januar
2017 (die ,,Privatplatzierung”), dar:

Tatséchliche (direkte) Eigentimer
Nach Abschluss der
Nach Abschluss der Privatplatzierung
Privatplatzierung (unter der Annahme,
(unter der Annahme, dass samtliche
dass samtliche Platzierungsaktien
Platzierungsaktien platziert werden und
platziert werden und  die Greenshoe-Option
Unmittelbar vor der  die Greenshoe-Option  vollstandig ausgetibt

Privatplatzierung nicht ausgeuibt wird) wird)
(in %)
Codperatieve Activum Hl........coooiieiiiiiieen, 59,6 26,8 21,9
Coodperatieve FOrmart..........cocoovereienenisieseneenn, 33,3 15,0 12,2
Codperatieve ACtIVUM V.....oooiiiiniininieneeen, 7,1 3,2 2,6
SHEUDESITZ ... - 55,0 63,3

Unterschiedliche  Jede Aktie der Gesellschaft gewéhrt in der Hauptversammlung der Gesellschaft eine
Stimmrechte der ~ Stimme. Alle Aktien der Gesellschaft sind mit denselben Stimmrechten ausgestattet.

wichtigsten Es bestehen keine Stimmrechtsbeschrénkungen, mit Ausnahme aufgrund von
Aktionéare des einigen wenigen gesetzlichen Vorschriften.

Emittenten.

Mittelbare oder Die Gesellschaft ist ein von der CoOperatieve Formart, der Co0peratieve Activum
unmittelbare 1l und der Cooperatieve Activum V beherrschtes Unternehmen, da diese in
Beherrschungsver Miteigentum 100% der Stimmrechte an der Gesellschaft halten, wegen dem parallel
héaltnisse existierenden Beherrschungsverhéltnis, und weil sie durch ihre Mdglichkeit, die

Mitglieder der Geschaftsfiihrung der Gesellschaft einzusetzen, in der Lage sind,
gemeinsam die finanzielle und betriebliche Ausrichtung der Gesellschaft zu
bestimmen. Die Bestehenden Aktiondre stehen wiederum unter der mittelbaren
Beherrschung von Saul Abram Goldstein. Saul Abram Goldstein ist der alleinige
Gesellschafter der Activum SG Capital Management Limited, die wiederum
alleiniger Gesellschafter der Activum SG 111 GP Limited ist. Die Activum SG 111 GP
Limited ist alleiniger Gesellschafter der Activum SG formart GP L.P. Limited. Die
Activum SG formart GP L.P. Limited ist general partner (persénlich haftender
Gesellschafter) der Activum SG Fund Il LP, der alleinigen Gesellschafterin der
Cooperatieve Activum I11. Zusétzlich ist die Activum SG Il GP Limited ebenfalls
general partner (personlich haftender Gesellschafter) der Activum SG formart Co-
Invest LP, des alleinigen Gesellschafters der Cooperatieve Formart. Activum SG
Capital Management Limited ist auch alleiniger Gesellschafter von Activum SG V
GP Limited. Activum SG V GP Limited ist wiederum general partner (personlich
haftender Gesellschafter) von Activum SG Fund V LP und von Activum SG Feeder
Fund V. LP Activum SG Fonds V LP ist der einzige Gesellschafter von
Cooperatieve Activum V und Activum SG Feeder Fund V LP ist ein Feederfonds, in
dem die wirtschaftlichen Beteiligungen nicht beherrschender indirekter
Anteilseigner von Codperatieve Activum V gebiindelt sind.
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B.7 Ausgewahlte
wichtige
historische
Finanzinformatio
nen.

Die in den nachstehenden Tabellen enthaltenen Finanzinformationen sind den
gepriiften Konzernabschliissen der Gesellschaft fur die am 31. Dezember 2016, 31.
Dezember 2015 und 31. Dezember 2014 endenden Geschaftsjahre sowie dem
ungepruften verkirzten Konzernzwischenabschluss fir den am 30. September 2017
endenden Neunmonatszeitraum entnommen oder aus ihnen abgeleitet. Das
Geschaftsjahr 2014 der Gesellschaft begann mit ihrer Grindung am 16. April 2014
und endete am 31. Dezember 2014. Zusétzliche Finanzinformationen sind
Buchfuhrungsunterlagen oder internen Berichtssystem der Gesellschaft entnommen
oder aus ihnen abgeleitet. Die gepruften Konzernabschlisse wurden nach IFRS
erstellt. Der ungepriifte verkiirzte Konzernzwischenabschluss wurde nach den IFRS-
Standards flr Zwischenberichterstattung (1AS 34) erstellt.

Deloitte Accountants B.V. (,,Deloitte”) hat die Konzernabschliisse der Gesellschaft
fur die am 31. Dezember 2016, 31. Dezember 2015 und 31. Dezember 2014
endenden Geschéftsjahre gepruft und jeweils mit einem uneingeschrankten
Bestatigungsvermerk versehen. Die vorgenannten gepriiften Konzernabschliisse der
Gesellschaft nebst den betreffenden Bestatigungsvermerken des Abschlusspriifers
und der ungeprifte verkirzte Konzernzwischenabschluss der Gesellschaft flir den
am 30. September 2017 endenden Neunmonatszeitraum sind in diesem Prospekt
enthalten.

In den nachstehenden Tabellen als ,,gepriift” gekennzeichnete Finanzinformationen
wurden den vorstehend genannten gepriften Abschlissen entnommen. Dies
bedeutet nicht, dass die einzelnen Posten geprift wurden. Die Kennzeichnung
,sungepriift” wird in den nachstehenden Tabellen fiir Finanzinformationen
verwendet, die nicht aus den vorstehend genannten gepriiften Abschliissen stammen,
sondern entweder dem vorstehend genannten ungepriften  verkiirzten
Konzernzwischenabschluss der Gesellschaft oder Buchfiihrungsunterlagen oder dem
internen Berichtssystem der Gesellschaft entnommen oder auf der Grundlage von
Zahlen aus vorgenannten Quellen errechnet wurden.

Sofern nicht anders angegeben, werden alle Finanzinformationen in den
nachstehenden Tabellen in Millionen Euro (in € Millionen) ausgewiesen. Bestimmte
Finanzinformationen (einschlieflich Prozentangaben) in den nachfolgenden
Tabellen wurden nach kaufménnischen Standards gerundet. Demzufolge
entsprechen die Betrdge in den nachstehenden Tabellen (Gesamtsummen oder
Zwischensummen oder Differenzen oder Zahlen, die in Relation zueinander
dargestellt werden) mdoglicherweise nicht in allen Féllen den Summen der
zugrundeliegenden (ungerundeten) Zahlen, die an anderer Stelle in diesem Prospekt
ausgewiesen werden. Daruber hinaus addieren sich diese gerundeten Zahlen in
diesen Tabellen unter Umsténden nicht exakt zu den in diesen Tabellen enthaltenen
Gesamtbetrdgen. Negative Zahlen werden in Klammern angegeben. Erscheint in
diesem Prospekt bei Finanzinformationen ein Querstrich (,,—), steht die betreffende
Zahl nicht zur Verfiigung, wihrend eine Null (,,0,0”) anzeigt, dass die betreffende
Zahl verfugbar ist, aber auf null gerundet wurde.

Ausgewéhlte konsolidierte Finanzinformationen

Gewinn- und Verlustrechnung

Fur den am 30. September
endenden Fir das am 31. Dezember
Neunmonatszeitraum endende Geschéftsjahr
2017 2016 2016 2015 2014
(ungeprift) (gepruft)
(in € Millionen) (in € Millionen)

UmSAtzerlOse. .......ccocvvevveviecieiie e 123,8 164,9 203,6 358,7 64,4
Bestandsveranderungen .........c.ccooeeeeenennn 30,4 86,0 158,9 (23,1) (7,8)
Sonstige betriebliche Ertrage ...........ccoeeeenee. 4,2 1,8 8,3 8,6 31,5
Materialaufwand..........c.cocoovvinvininniien (109,5) (207,9) (293,7) (284,3) (51,0)
Personalaufwand............cccocvevvivivciininnennnns (19,2) (24,1) (35,2) (26,9) (6,4)
Sonstige betriebliche Aufwendungen ........... (26,5) (31,4) (42,4) (38,5) (19,0
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Beteiligungsergebnis...................

Sonstige Nettoertrage aus Beteiligungen.......
Konzernergebnis der betrieblichen

Tatigkeit (EBITDA)........ccceeuvee
Abschreibungen ...

Konzernergebnis vor Zinsen und

Steuern (EBIT) ..coccovviiiiiiciens
Finanzertrag .........cccooevveinennennn
Finanzaufwand..........c.cc.cooeevninen.

Abschreibung auf Wertpapiere des

Finanzanlagevermdgens..............
Finanzergebnis........c...cccceeuni.e.

Konzernergebnis vor Steuern (EBT).........

Ertragsteuern........cccceeviveiiveennnn,

Konzernergebnis nach Steuern (EAT)......

Davon entfallen auf:

Anteile des Konzerns............

Nicht beherrschende Anteile

Fiir den am 30. September
endenden Fir das am 31. Dezember
Neunmonatszeitraum endende Geschaftsjahr
2017 2016 2016 2015 2014
(ungeprift) (gepruft)
(in € Millionen) (in € Millionen)
0,5 1,4 1,3 (1,4) 1,6
0,6 0,3 0,3 (0,1) -
4,2 (9,0) 1,3 (7.1) 13,4
(0.3) (0.3) (0.4) (0.5) (0.1)
3,9 (9,3) 0,8 (7,6) 13,3
0,8 - 0,1 0,9 0,2
(15,7) (18,8) (25,0) (21,8) (5,4)
- - 0,1 (0,1) -
(14,9) (18,8) (24,8) (21,0) (5,2)
(11,0) (28,1) (24,0) (28,6) 8,1
(2,0 2,5 1,8 6,2 2,7
(13,0) (25,7) (22,2) (22,4) 10,8
(13,2) (24,8) (22,4) (22,4) 10,8
0,1 (0,8) 0,2 - 0,0
(13,0) (25,7) (22,2) (22,4) 10,8
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Darstellung der konsolidierten Vermégenslage

AKTIVA

Langfristige Vermdgenswerte

Immaterielle Vermogenswerte..........c.cccooeeveennen.
Sachanlagen ...
At Equity bewertete Finanzanlagen....................
Ubrige Finanzanlagen ...........ccveevevvvivceevevensnnnnns
Finanzforderungen ..........c.ccocoeveiiiieincneinenns
Summe langfristige Vermogenswerte...............
Umlaufvermdgen

VOITALE ...t
Finanzforderungen.........ccccooviviii v
Forderungen aus Lieferungen und Leistungen.....
Sonstige Forderungen und sonstige
VErmOgeNSWEITE ........ccvvverieiieiece e
Kurzfristige Ertragsteueranspriche......................
Flissige Mittel ..o
Summe kurzfristige Vermdgenswerte..............
SUMMeE AKLIVA ..o

PASSIVA

Eigenkapital

Gezeichnetes Kapital ..........cccooevininininiene,
Kapitalricklage ..o
Gewinn-/Verlustvortrag..........cccvereirenencrennnn.
Kummuliertes sonstiges Gesamtergebnis ............
Anteile anderer Gesellschafter............c.cccee..en.

Nicht beherrschende Anteile.........c..ccceevvveenennne,
Summe Eigenkapital...........cccccoviniiiinininnn,

Langfristige Schulden

Riickstellungen fur Pensionen und dhnliche
Verpflichtungen ..o,
Sonstige Rickstellungen...........cccoccvvieveeieeinennn.
Finanzverbindlichkeiten............cccooevinininnnne.
Sonstige Verbindlichkeiten...........ccoccooveniiieen.
Latente StEUBIN ...vevveieeieeeee e
Summe langfristige Schulden..................c..cc....
Kurzfristige Schulden

Sonstige Ruckstellungen..........ccccoeveineneninennnn.
Finanzverbindlichkeiten...........ccccooevevvnivinninnne.
Verbindlichkeiten aus Lieferungen und
LeIStUNGEN. ...cviieiiiieieeie e
Sonstige Verbindlichkeiten...........ccccoovvenininennn.
Ertragsteuerverbindlichkeiten..........cccoccoeenees
Summe kurzfristige Schulden............cc.ccceue..en.

SUMME PaSSIVA.......ccoiicieiieiiiiie e siee e

Zum Zum
30. September 31. Dezember
2017 2016 2015 2014
(ungeprdft) (gepriift)
(in € Millionen) (in € Millionen)
0,0 0,0 0,0 -
1,6 1,5 1,6 1,3
0,4 1,4 0,1 9,5
0,6 0,7 0,9 0,4
0,7 0,7 — —
3,2 4,3 2,6 11,2
572,6 542,7 415,5 233,0
2,4 0,2 0,2 2,1
114 19,6 110,2 115,4
8,3 5,6 16,6 5,2
0,2 0,3 0,3 1,1
110,7 112,5 35,9 25,1
705,6 680,9 578,7 382,0
708,9 685,2 581,3 393,2
0,0 0,0 0,0 0,0
37,4 37,4 37,4 21,0
(48,7) (35,5) (13,1) 111
13 13 (0.1) (0.2)
(12,5) 0,7 24,2 31,9
1,5 2,0 11,5 0,0
(11,0) 2.7) 35,7 32,0
4,5 4,1 2,4 2,1
12,8 12,4 4,5 3,0
338,8 300,9 299,0 2142
_ _ 0,3 _
16,5 23,4 36,3 11,2
372,6 340,9 3425 230,6
33,3 25,6 20,2 16,8
58,0 81,6 65,6 32,2
2485 215,2 99,0 79,2
6,2 13,1 16,2 24
1,4 6,2 2,0 -
3473 3417 203,0 130,6
708,9 685,2 581,3 393,2
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Ausgewahlte Finanzinformationen der Konzern-Kapitalflussrechnung

Fir den am 30. September
endenden Fur das am 31. Dezember
Neunmonatszeitraum endende Geschaftsjahr
2017 2016 2016 2015 2014
(ungepriift) (geprift)
(in € Millionen) (in € Millionen)

Cash-Flow aus laufender
GesChaftstatigkeit .......coovvvveveiineiciicieae (5,1) 39,3 87,7 (15,9) (11,4)
Cash-Flow aus der Investitionstatigkeit....... (21,9) (18,2) (21,8) (51,2) (120,7)
Cash-Flow aus der Finanzierungstatigkeit... 25,0 16,4 8,5 78,4 157,2
Zunahme (Abnahme) des
Finanzmittelfonds ..........cccooveniineniiie (1,9 37,6 74,3 11,2 251
Nettokursdifferenzen und Anderungen des
Konsolidierungskreises..........ccoovvevevveiveriennn, - - 2,3 (0,4) -
Finanzmittelfonds am Ende der Periode...... 110,7 73,5 1125 35,9 251

Alternative Leistungskennzahlen

Nach Auffassung der Gesellschaft stellen die in diesem Abschnitt beschriebenen alternativen Kennzahlen
wichtige Kennzahlen zur Messung der betrieblichen und finanziellen Leistungsfahigkeit der Geschéaftstatigkeit
von Instone dar und sind diese fiir potenzielle Investoren zum Vergleich der Leistung der Gesellschaft mit der
Leistung ihrer Wettbewerber im Immobilienentwicklungssektor relevant (nachstehende alternative
Leistungskennzahlen, die ,,Alternativen Leistungskennzahlen”):

e Konzerngesamtleistung (im Folgenden die ,,Konzerngesamtleistung”) ist definiert als die Summe aus
Umsatzerlosen und Bestandsverdnderungen wie in der Konzern-Gewinn- und Verlustrechnung
angegeben. Die Bestandsveranderungen erfassen den Wert der Vorratszugidnge bedingt durch
(i) Akquisitionen, (ii) kapitalisierte Entwicklungskosten und (iii) projektbezogene Aufwendungen
(ohne Vermittlungsprovisionen) abziiglich der Werte der Abgédnge aufgrund von VerdulRerungen
wéhrend des Berichtszeitraums. Die Konzerngesamtleistung ist eine gangige Kennzahl in der
Immobilienentwicklerbranche, da sie nicht nur Umsatzerlose aus Entwicklungsaktivitaten misst,
sondern auch Anschaffungskosten fiir Grundstiicke erfasst, die fur zuklnftige Entwicklungen erworben
wurden, sowie auch aktivierte Leistungen aus Projektentwicklung. Die Konzerngesamtleistung, als die
Summe aus Umsatzerlosen und Bestandsverdnderungen, wird daher weniger durch die angewandte
Methode der Umsatzrealisierung beeinflusst und bietet eine konsistentere Messung der
Entwicklungsaktivititen von Instone im Laufe der Zeit. Unter beiden Methoden der Umsatzrealisierung
umfasst die Konzerngesamtleistung den fir den Erwerb von Grundstiicken gezahlten Preis, welcher in
den Bestandsveranderungen erfasst wird. Bei Anwendung der Percentage-of-Completion-Methode
erfasst die Konzerngesamtleistung die erwarteten Vertragsumsétze in Bezug auf die verkauften
Einheiten, einschlieBlich der Antizipierten Brutto-Projektmarge (wie nachstehend definiert), die in
einem bestimmten Zeitraum auf den Anteil der in diesem Zeitraum abgeschlossenen Arbeiten gewahrt
werden kann. Darlber hinaus sind in den Bestandsveranderungen aktivierte Kosten fur die laufende
Bautétigkeit enthalten, die auf Basis der verkauften Einheiten und des Baufortschritts noch nicht
erloswirksam sind. Nach der Completed-Contract-Methode werden Umsétze und Margen wéhrend der
laufenden Bautatigkeit nicht erfasst, wohingegen Baukosten, Finanzierungskosten und Personalkosten
aktiviert und in Bestandsverdnderungen als Baufortschritt beriicksichtigt werden, wahrend Umsétze,
einschlieBlich des Gewinnanteils, nur bei der Lieferung der Wohneinheiten erfasst wird.
Dementsprechend stellt die Konzerngesamtleistung als Summe der Umsatzerlése und der
Bestandsveranderungen ein weitgehend konsistentes Mall fur die Leistung der Gesellschaft im
Zeitablauf dar, obwohl sie Projekte umfasst, die sowohl nach der Percentage-of-Completion-Methode
als auch nach der Completed-Contract-Methode bilanziert werden. Der Unterschied in der
Konzerngesamtleistung hinsichtlich der Erfassung von Kundenvertrdgen nach der Percentage-of-
Completion-Methode im Vergleich zur Erfassung von Kundenvertrdgen nach der Completed-Contract-
Methode besteht darin, dass die Konzerngesamtleistung nach der Completed-Contract-Methode keine
anteilige Antizipierte Brutto-Projektmarge (wie nachstehend definiert) fur verkaufte Einheiten
berticksichtigt und auch nicht aktivierungsfahige betriebliche Aufwendungen, wie gewisse
Verkaufskosten, nicht widerspiegelt, die sich nach der Percentage-of-Completion-Methode fir die
verkauften Einheiten im Umsatz niederschlagen. Die antizipierte Brutto-Projektmarge (im Folgenden
die ,Antizipierte Brutto-Projektmarge™) ist definiert als der Quotient aus (i) antizipierten
Gesamtprojekteinnahmen abzliglich der antizipierten Gesamtprojektkosten fiir voll entwickelte
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Projekte und (ii) antizipierte Gesamtprojekteinnahmen auf der Grundlage des aktuell geschatzten
Marktpreises fiir ein solches Projekt. Die antizipierten Gesamtprojektkosten beinhalten eine Annahme
von 1,5% Baukostenerhéhung sowie Verkaufsprovisionen, jedoch keine Finanzierungs-, Personal-,
Unternehmensausgaben oder Kaufpreisallokationseffekte (wie unten definiert). Instone nutzt die
Antizipierte Brutto-Projektmarge zur Bestimmung, ob Akquisitionen von Grundsticken fir neue
Projektentwicklungen durchgeftihrt werden soll. Wie zuvor beschrieben, benutzte Instone die erfasst
die Antizipierte Brutto-Projektmarge zudem zur Bestimmung der erwarteten Vertragsumsétze in Bezug
auf verkaufte Einheiten im Rahmen der Percentage-of-Completion-Methode.

Die bereinigte Konzerngesamtleistung (im Folgenden die ,,Bereinigte Konzerngesamtleistung”) ist
definiert als Konzerngesamtleistung bereinigt um Kaufpreisallokationseffekte (wie nachstehend
definiert) in Bezug auf Vorrate. Kaufpreisallokationseffekte sind definiert als Effekte auf die
Konzernabschliisse durch den Erwerb der Instone Development im Jahr 2014 und Instone Leipzig im
Jahr 2015, wodurch die Gesellschaft folglich verpflichtet war, die jeweiligen Kaufpreise anteilig den
erworbenen Vermogenswerten und Verbindlichkeiten, basierend auf deren geschatzten Verkehrswert,
zuzuordnen. Dies fihrte zu einer Erhohung des Wertes der erworbenen Vermdgenswerte, einem
Anstieg der  Verbindlichkeiten  sowie  Ertragsteuerverbindlichkeiten ~was  folglich  die
Bestandsveranderungen, die Konzerngesamtleistung, die sonstigen Ertrdge sowie das EBIT in den
Perioden des jeweiligen Erwerbs wund in nachfolgenden Perioden beeinflusste (die
,Kaufpreisallokationseffekte”). Zum Zeitpunkt der Ubergabe solcher Vermdgenswerte (wenn
vollstandig entwickelt) an Instones Kunden flhren diese zusétzlichen Werte dazu, dass entsprechend
hohere Kosten in der konsolidierten Gewinn- und Verlustrechnung erfasst werden und sich die
Konzerngesamtleistung in solchen Zeitrdumen entsprechend reduziert. Die Bereinigung der
Konzerngesamtleistung fuhrt daher zur Rilckbuchung der hoheren Kosten, die sich aus der
Amortisierung der Wertsteigerungen ergeben. Da Kaufpreisallokationseffekte im Zusammenhang mit
Sonstigen Ertragen keine Auswirkungen auf die Umsatzerlose oder Bestandsverdanderungen haben,
wird die Konzerngesamtleistung nur um die Kaufpreisallokationseffekte in Bezug auf Vorréte
bereinigt. Instone ist der Ansicht, dass die Bereinigte Konzerngesamtleistung ein wertvoller Indikator
fur die zukunftige Leistung der Gesellschaft ist, da sie die Konzerngesamtleistung der Gesellschaft
ohne Berlcksichtigung der Kaufpreisallokationseffekte darstellt, die keine Indikation fir die
zugrundeliegende Konzerngesamtleistung aus dem gewohnlichen Geschéftsbetrieb geben.

Das bereinigte EBIT ist definiert als EBIT bereinigt um samtliche Kaufpreisallokationseffekte sowie
Einmaleffekte (im Folgenden das ,,Bereinigte EBIT”). EBIT ist ein Posten in der Konzern-Gewinn-
und Verlustrechnung und umfasst das Ergebnis vor Zinsen und Steuern (,,EBIT*). Einmaleffekte sind
definiert als Posten, die nach Einschatzung der Geschéftsfiihrung insbesondere aufgrund von
Akquisitionsereignissen, VerdauBerungen oder strukturellen Veranderungen innerhalb von Instone
ungewohnlich sind oder sich nicht wiederholen (im Folgenden die ,,Einmaleffekte”).

EBITDA st ein Posten in der Konzern-Gewinn- und Verlustrechnung und definiert als Ergebnis vor
Zinsen, Steuern und Abschreibungen (,,EBITDA®). EBITDA wird zur Messung des EBIT ohne
Berlicksichtigung von nicht operativen Aufwendungen und bestimmten nicht zahlungswirksamen
Aufwendungen verwendet.

Das Nettoumlaufvermdgen (im Folgenden das ,,Nettoumlaufvermdgen™) ist definiert als Vorrite
zuziglich Forderungen aus Lieferungen und Leistungen abziglich Verbindlichkeiten aus Lieferungen
und Leistungen. Das Nettoumlaufvermdgen beriicksichtigt VVorréte, Forderungen aus Lieferungen und
Leistungen sowie andere Forderungen und Verbindlichkeiten aber nicht Barmittel oder andere liquide
Mittel. Es dient zur Messung der kurzfristigen Liquiditat von Instones Geschéaft und der Fahigkeit,
Vermdgenswerte effizient zu nutzen.

Die Summe der finanziellen Verbindlichkeiten (,,Finanzielle Verbindlichkeiten®) setzt sich aus den
gesamten langfristigen finanziellen Verbindlichkeiten und den gesamten kurzfristigen finanziellen
Verbindlichkeiten zusammen. Die Gesellschaft verwendet Finanzielle Verbindlichkeiten, um ihre
gesamten finanziellen Verbindlichkeiten zu messen.

Die historische Brutto-Projektmarge (die ,,Historische Brutto-Projektmarge”) ist definiert als der
Quotient aus (i) historischen Gesamtprojekteinnahmen abzuglich historischer Gesamtprojektkosten fur
voll entwickelte Projekte und (ii) historischer Gesamtprojekteinnahmen. Die historischen
Gesamtprojektkosten beinhalten keine Finanzierungs-, Personal-, Unternehmensausgaben oder
Kaufpreisallokationseffekte. Instone verwendet die Historische Brutto-Projektmarge zur Messung der
Rentabilitat ihrer fertiggestellten Projekte sowie zur Uberwachung und Berichterstattung (iber
tatséchliche historische Projektmargen.
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Die Alternativen Leistungskennzahlen werden nicht als Kennzahlen nach IFRS anerkannt und sollten nicht als
Ersatz fir die nach IFRS ermittelten Zahlen zum Ergebnis vor Steuern, Nettoergebnis, Cashflow aus laufender
Geschaftstatigkeit, zur Darstellung der konsolidierten Vermogenslage oder zu Cashflow-Daten herangezogen
werden oder als MaR fiir Rentabilitat oder Liquiditdt betrachtet werden. Die Alternativen Leistungskennzahlen
geben auch nicht notwendigerweise an, ob der Cash-Flow fiir den Liquiditatsbedarf von Instone ausreicht oder
verfligbar ist, und auch nicht, ob eine solche Kennzahl auf die historischen Betriebsergebnisse von Instone
schlieBen lasst. Die Alternativen Leistungskennzahlen sollen keine Hinweise auf zukinftige Ergebnisse geben.
Da nicht alle Unternehmen diese Kennzahlen auf die gleiche Weise berechnen, ist die Darstellung der
Alternativen Leistungskennzahlen von Instone nicht unbedingt mit &hnlich bezeichneten Kennzahlen anderer
Unternehmen vergleichbar. Obwohl bestimmte dieser Daten aus den in diesem Prospekt enthaltenen
Konzernabschliissen der Gesellschaft extrahiert oder abgeleitet wurden, wurden diese Daten, sofern nicht anders
angegeben, von Deloitte weder geprift noch tberprift.

Fir den am 30. September
endenden Fur das am 31. Dezember
Neunmonatszeitraum endende Geschaftsjahr
2017 2016 2016 2015 2014
(ungepriift) (ungeprdift, soweit nicht anders angegeben)
(in € Millionen) (in € Millionen)

UmSAtZEerlOse. ......coervevienieeseieesesiee e 123,8 164,9 203,6 358,7 64,4
Bestandsveranderungen ..........cccocceveeeveenenne 30,4 86,0 158,9 (23,1) (7,8)
Konzerngesamtleistung ..........c.ccoceevvennennnn 154,2 250,9 362,5 335,6 56,7

Rickbuchung (Reversal) der

Kaufpreisallokationseffekte in Bezug

auf VOrrate® ..o, 16,8 22,2 50.0 13.7 33

Kaufpreisallokationseffekte bezuiglich

Instone Developments..........ccccevveriereenne. 3,9 8,3 11.9 13.7 3.3

Kaufpreisallokationseffekte beztiglich

INStONe LeIPZIQ .oovvvvveeieeiiecie e 12,9 13,9 38.1 - -
Bereinigte Konzerngesamtleistung............ 171,0 273,1 4125 349.3 60.0
1= RN 3,9 (9,3) 0,8? (7,6)® 13,3@

Ruckbuchung (Reversal) der

Kaufpreisallokationseffekte™................ 16,8 22,2 49,1 10,6 (20,5)

Kaufpreisallokationseffekte bezuglich

Instone Developments..........ccoceeververeenne. 3,9 8,3 111 10,8 (20,5)

Kaufpreisallokationseffekte bezuglich

INStone LeIPZig ..ooovevveveererriveereieeeeie e 12,9 13,9 38,1 0,2) -

Einmaleffekte.......cccocvveviniieiieiec, (4,9 4,8 (1,5 14,7 13,2

Aufwendungen flr

Unternehmenskaufe®...............coccovuenn.... - (0,0 0,3 42 4,4

Aufwendungen flr

Restrukturierungsmafnahmen von

INSEONE® ..o - - - 6,8 33

Verbindlichkeiten aus

Kaufvertragen®..........occcooovevveveennn, - - - 39 2,1

Langfristige Anreize! ........c.cooovvervnnne. - 6,5 8,9 2,3 0.0

Ertrage aus Carve-out Verkaufen® ....... (4,9) - (6,5) (4,1) -

Ertrage aus Entschadigungen @ ............ - 0,7) (3,2) - -

Ertrage aus Anspriichen aus

Kaufvertragen™ ..........cc..ccoocvvvvevrneins - (2,1) (2,1) - -

Verluste aus Rechtsstreit® .................... - - - 1,0 -

SONStIGES™™ ... 0,0 1,1 1,1 0,6 33
Bereinigtes EBIT......cccocovvivieveieieee e 15,8 17,7 48,4 17,7 6,0

(1) Riuckbuchung der Kaufpreisallokationseffekte in Bezug auf Vorrdte bezieht sich nur auf die Rickbuchung jener
Kaufpreisallokationseffekte, die zu einer Bestandsverédnderung aufgrund der Wertrealisierung der im Rahmen der Akquisition der
Instone Development und Instone Leipzig erworbenen Vermdgenswerte gefiihrt haben.

(2) Geprift.

(3) Rickbuchung der Kaufpreisallokationseffekte bezieht sich auf die Riickbuchung sémtlicher Kaufpreisallokationseffekte.

(4) Aufwendungen fiir Unternehmenskéufe bezieht sich auf Aufwendungen die in Zusammenhang mit der Beauftragung externer Berater
durch Instone in Zusammenhang mit Instone Development und Instone Leipzig entstanden sind.
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(5) RestrukturierungsmalRnahmen von Instone bezieht sich auf Restrukturierungskosten der Instone zur Fokussierung der Instone
Development auf das Kerngeschéft, SchlieBung bestimmter Standorten und Reduktion der Geschéftstatigkeiten im Ausland.

(6) Verbindlichkeiten aus Kaufvertrdgen bezieht sich auf Aufwendungen die durch Erfassung von Riickstellungen fir
Gewaéhrleistungsanspriiche fir einzelne Projekte, welche im Rahmen des Kaufvertrages, der zwischen der Gesellschaft und der
HOCHTIEF Solutions AG im Zuge des Erwerbs der Instone Development abgeschlossen wurde, entstanden sind.

(7) Langfristige Anreize bezieht sich auf Aufwendungen fiir die Erfassung von Personalriickstellungen fir langfristige Anreizprogramme
zugunsten einzelner Mitarbeiter, welche eine Beteiligung an dem fiir die Bestehenden Aktiondre geschafften Mehrwert darstellen.

(8) Ertrdge aus Carve-out Verkdufen bezieht sich auf Ertrdge aus dem Verkauf von nicht zum Kerngeschéft gehérenden
Vermégensgegenstanden der Instone Leipzig, welche laut den Earn-Out Regeln im Kaufvertrag betreffend den Erwerb der Instone
Leipzig dem Verk&ufer zustehen und als Ertrag in der Riickbuchung der Kaufpreisallokationseffekte enthalten sind.

(9) Ertrage aus Entschadigungen bezieht sich auf Ertrdge durch die Riickerstattung von Planungskosten durch die Stadt Wiesbaden an
Instones Tochterunternehmen “Projekt Wiesbaden Wilhelmstrale GmbH & Co. KG” im Rahmen der Teilnahme an einer 6ffentlichen
Ausschreibung sowie durch Entschadigungszahlungen von HOCHTIEF Solutions AG in Zusammenhang mit dem Vergleich eines
Rechtsstreits in Luxembourg.

(10) Ertrage aus Anspriichen aus Kaufvertrdgen bezieht sich auf Vergleichszahlungen durch HOCHTIEF Solutions AG an Instone in
Zusammenhang mit dem Verkauf von Office Park Hamm in Luxemburg.

(11) Verluste aus Rechtsstreit bezieht sich auf Verluste in Zusammenhang mit dem Vergleich in einem gerichtlichen Verfahren in Bezug
auf den Cour de Justice, Luxemburg zwischen HOCHTIEF Solutions AG und dem GrolRherzogtum von Luxemburg, fir welches
HOCHTIEF Solutions AG unter dem Kaufvertrag beteffend Instone Development haftbar bleibt.

(12) Sonstiges bezieht sich auf Management-Vergiitungen an verbundene Parteien, die im Zusammenhang mit dem Erwerb der Instone
Development und Instone Leipzig als nicht wiederkehrende Posten angefallen sind.

Die folgende Tabelle zeigt die einzelnen Elemente des Nettoumlaufvermdgens zu den jeweilig
angegebenen Stichtagen:

Zum 30. Zum
September 31. Dezember
2017 2016 2015 2014
(ungeprift) (geprift, soweit nicht anders angegeben)
(in € Millionen) (in € Millionen)
V0] = LT PSR 572,6 5427 415,5 233,0
davon:
Kapitalisierung von Grundstiicken .... 258,0 220,8Y 60,2 69,6
Unfertige Leistungen / Vorrate 309,2 316,81 345,4Y 163,4Y
Fertige Erzeugnisse.......cocevvvevvevierinieeieece e 54 51 9,9 -
Forderungen aus Lieferungen und Leistungen.. 114 19,6 110,2 1154
davon:
Gegenlber Kunden féllige Forderungen aus
Vertragsleistungen (POC) .......ccocooviirinciinenenn 0,0 13,6 2425 216,0
Erhaltene Anzahlungen®...........ccccooovvverrrencne. - (10,3) (151,1) (122,9)
Andere Forderungen aus Lieferungen und
LEIStUNGEN ..ot 11,4 15,7 18,2 20,8
Forderungen aus Lieferungen und Leistungen
nicht konsolidierter Tochtergesellschaften .......... - 0,5 0,6 1,6
Verbindlichkeiten aus Lieferungen und
LEIStUNQEN ...ocvveiicecec e (248,5) (215,2) (99,0) (79,2)
davon:
Gegenuber Kunden féllige Forderungen aus
Vertragsleistungen (POC) ........cccooiviiiinininnnns - - 10,8 58,7
Erhaltene Anzahlungen®.............cccoooovvvererennn. - - (11,3) (64,6)
Verbindlichkeiten aus Lieferungen und
LEIStUNGEN ettt e (41,4) (53,6) (55,5) (62,6)
Erhaltene Anzahlungen®............cccooovvrerrrennn. (207,1) (161,5) (43,0 (10,7)
Verbindlichkeiten aus Lieferungen und
Leistungen nicht konsolidierter
Tochtergesellschaften - 0,0 0,0 (01)
Nettoumlaufvermagen 3355 347,10 426,7" 269,2"

(1) Ungepriift.
(2) Bezieht sich auf Kundenvertrége, die nach der Percentage-of-Completion-Methode bilanziert werden.
(3) Bezieht sich auf Kundenvertrége, die nach der Completed-Contract-Methode bilanziert werden.

Wesentliche In dem am 30. September 2017 endenden Neunmonatszeitraum sowie in den zum 31.
Anderungen der  Dezember 2014, 31. Dezember 2015 und 31. Dezember 2016 endenden
Finanzlage und Geschaftsjahren traten nachfolgende wesentliche Anderungen der Finanzlage und des
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des
Betriebsergebniss
es des Emittenten
in oder nach dem
von den
wesentlichen
historischen
Finanzinformatio
nen abgedeckten
Zeitraum.

Betriebsergebnisses von Instone auf.

Am 30. September 2016 und am 30. September 2017 endende
Neunmonatszeitrdume

Die Konzerngesamtleistung  verringerte sich von  €250,9 Mio. im
Neunmonatszeitraum zum 30. September 2016 um €96,7 Mio., oder 38,5%, auf
€154,2 Mio. im Neunmonatszeitraum zum 30. September 2017. Die Bereinigte
Konzerngesamtleistung, bereinigt um Kaufpreisallokationseffekte, verringerte sich
von €273,1 Mio. um €102,1 Mio., oder 37,4%, auf €171,0. Dieser Riickgang ist
hauptséchlich auf den verzdgerten Effekt des niedrigen Akquisitionsvolumens in den
Geschéftsjahren 2013 und 2014, als Instone Development noch unter der Kontrolle
der HOCHTIEF Solutions AG stand, auf Projektentwicklungen in der
gegenstandlichen Periode zuriickzufiihren. Dartber hinaus ist der Riickgang auch den
deutlich geringeren Umsatzerldsen aus Projektentwicklungen geschuldet, die nach der
Percentage-of-Completion-Methode bilanziert wurden, da die neue Standard-
Vertragsform fur fast alle in der Entwicklung befindlichen Projekte verwendet wurde.
Zudem wirken sich die Bestandsverdnderungen aufgrund des geringeren
Akquisitionsvolumens in den ersten neun Monaten 2017 negativ auf die
Konzerngesamtleistung aus.

EBIT erhohte sich von minus €9,3 Mio. im Neunmonatszeitraum zum 30. September
2016 um €13,2 Mio., oder 141,9%, auf €3,9 Mio. im Neunmonatszeitraum zum 30.
September 2017. Das Bereinigte EBIT, bereinigt um Kaufpreisallokationseffekte und
Einmaleffekte, sank von €17,7 Mio. im Neunmonatszeitraum zum 30. September
2016 um €1,9 Mio., oder 10,7%, auf €15,8 Mio. im Neunmonatszeitraum zum 30.
September 2017. Dieser Riickgang ist hauptséchlich auf den verzégerten Effekt des
geringeren Akquisitionsvolumens in den Geschaftsjahren 2013 und 2014, als Instone
Development noch unter der Kontrolle der HOCHTIEF Solutions AG stand, auf
Projektentwicklungen in der gegenstandlichen Periode zurlckzufiihren. Dariiber
hinaus spiegelt der Ruckgang auch die deutlich geringeren Umsatzerldse aus
Projektentwicklungen wider, die nach der Percentage-of-Completion-Methode
bilanziert wurden, da die neue Standard-Vertragsform flr fast alle in der Entwicklung
befindlichen Projekte verwendet wurde sowie auch eine hohere Anzahl von erst im
vierten Quartal Ubergebenen Einheiten. Die hdhere Anzahl der erst im vierten Quartal
Uibergebenen Einheiten ist auf die hdhere Investitionstatigkeit infolge des Erwerbs der
Instone Development durch die Gesellschaft zurlickzufuhren. Diese Effekte werden
sich im vierten Quartal 2017 positiv auf Umsatzerlése und Bereinigtes EBIT
auswirken.

Am 31. Dezember 2015 und 31. Dezember 2016 endende Geschaftsjahre

Die Konzerngesamtleistung erhdhte sich um €26,9 Mio. oder 8,0% von €335,6 Mio.
im Geschéftsjahr zum 31. Dezember 2015 auf €362,5 Mio. im Geschiftsjahr zum 31.
Dezember 2016. Die Bereinigte Konzerngesamtleistung, bereinigt um
Kaufpreisallokationseffekte, erhohte sich um €63,2 Mio., oder 18,1%, von €349.3
Mio. im zum 31. Dezember 2015 endenden Geschiftsjahr auf €412,5 Mio. im zum
31. Dezember 2016 endenden Geschaftsjahr. Dies ist vor allem auf die gestiegenen
Bestandsverdnderungen im Geschéftsjanr 2016 im Zusammenhang mit der
Aktivierung von Grundstuckserwerbskosten, die teilweise durch den Riickgang der
Umsatzerlose aus Kundenvertrdgen, die gemdl der Percentage-of-Completion-
Methode erfasst wurden, kompensiert wurden, zurlckzufiihren. Einen weiteren
positiven Effekt auf die Bereinigte Konzerngesamtleistung hatte die Konsolidierung
von Instone Leipzig fur das gesamte zum 31. Dezember 2016 endende Geschéftsjahr.

EBIT verbesserte sich von minus €7,6 Mio. im zum 31. Dezember 2015 endenden
Geschiftsjahr, um €8,4 Mio. auf €0,8 Mio. im zum 31. Dezember 2016 endenden
Geschaftsjahr. Das Bereinigte EBIT, bereinigt um Kaufpreisallokationseffekte und
Einmaleffekte, erhdhte sich von €17,7 Mio. im zum 31. Dezember 2015 endenden
Geschiftsjahr um €30,7 Mio., oder 173,4%, auf €48,4 Mio. im zum 31. Dezember
2016 endenden Geschéftsjahr. Dieser Anstieg ist in erster Linie bedingt durch die
héhere Entwicklungstatigkeit im Geschéftsjahr 2016, ungeachtet der gestiegenen
Bedeutung von Umsatz- und Ergebnisverschiebungen im Zusammenhang mit einer
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zunehmenden Anzahl laufender Entwicklungsprojekte, welche gemal der Completed-
Contract-Methode erfasst werden. Einen weiteren positiven Effekt auf die Bereinigte
Konzerngesamtleistung hatte die Konsolidierung von Instone Leipzig fiir das gesamte
zum 31. Dezember 2016 endende Geschaftsjahr.

Am 31. Dezember 2014 und 31. Dezember 2015 endende Geschéftsjahre

Die Konzerngesamtleistung erhghte sich um €278,9 Mio., oder 491,9%, von €56,7
Mio. im zum 31. Dezember 2014 endenden Geschéftsjahr auf €335,6 Mio. im zum
31. Dezember 2015 endenden Geschéftsjahr. Die Bereinigte Konzerngesamtleistung,
bereinigt um Kaufpreisallokationseffekte, erhohte sich um €289,3 Mio. von €60,0
Mio. im zum 31. Dezember 2014 endenden Geschéftsjahr im Vergleich zu €349.3
Mio. im zum 31. Dezember 2015 endenden Geschéftsjahr. Dies ist vor allem auf das
Rumpfgeschéftsjahr 2014 und die Konsolidierung der Instone Development nur fir
das letzte Quartal 2014 zurlckzufuhren, wéhrend im zum 31. Dezember 2015
endenden Geschéftsjahr Instone Development fiir das Gesamtjahr konsolidiert wurde.
Aufgrund des Rumpfgeschéftsjahres und des Unterschieds im Konsolidierungskreis
ist das Geschéftsjahr 2014 nur teilweise mit dem Geschéftsjahr 2015 vergleichbar.

EBIT verringerte sich um €20,9 Mio., oder 157,1%, von €13,3 Mio. im zum 31.
Dezember 2014 endenden Geschéftsjahr auf minus €7,6 Mio. im zum 31. Dezember
2015 endenden  Geschéaftsjahr. Das  Bereinigte EBIT, bereinigt um
Kaufpreisallokationseffekte und Einmaleffekte, erhohte sich um €11,7 Mio. oder
195.0% von €6,0 Mio. im zum 31. Dezember 2014 endenden Geschiftsjahr auf €17,7
Mio. im zum 31. Dezember 2015 endenden Geschaftsjahr. Dies ist vor allem auf das
Rumpfgeschéftsjahr 2014 und die Konsolidierung der Instone Development nur fir
das letzte Quartal 2014 zurlckzufihren, wéhrend im zum 31. Dezember 2015
endenden Geschaftsjahr Instone Development fur das Gesamtjahr konsolidiert wurde.

Neueste Entwicklungen

Am 28. Dezember 2017 wurden an die Gesellschaft von Gesellschaftern ausgereichte
Darlehen in Hohe von €48,0 Millionen teilweise gewandelt und in die
Kapitalriicklage der Gesellschaft eingebracht. Am 13. Februar 2018, und zwar kurz
nach der Festlegung des Platzierungspreises fiir die Platzierungsaktien (wie in B.7
definiert) und vor der Bezahlung und Lieferung, werden die Bestehenden Aktionare
beschlieBen, €41.930,00 der Kapitalriicklage der Gesellschaft in Aktienkapital der
Gesellschaft umzutauschen (die ,,Kapitalerhéhung vor der Umwandlung®). Nach
der Kapitalerhéhung vor der Umwandlung wird das Grundkapital der Gesellschaft
€50.316,00 betragen. Am selben Tag, nach Wirksamkeit der N.V. Umwandlung, wird
die Hauptversammlung beschlieBen, €29.938.020,00 der Kapitalriicklage der
Gesellschaft in Aktienkapital der Gesellschaft umzuwandeln (die ,,Kapitalerhéhung
nach der Umwandlung®). Nach der Kapitalerh6hung nach der Umwandlung und vor
der Kapitalerhéhung im Rahmen der Privatplatzierung wird das Grundkapital der
Gesellschaft €29.988.336,00 betragen.

Am 29. Dezember 2017 verkaufte und Ubertrug Codperatieve Activum V 295 Anteile
an der Gesellschaft an Codperatieve Formart, wodurch sich die Beteiligung von
Cooperatieve Formart an der Gesellschaft auf 33,3% erhohte. Nach der Ubertragung
der Aktien halt Cotperatieve Activum V 7,1% der Anteile an der Gesellschaft.

Im letzten Quartal 2017 lieferte Instone 190 Wohneinheiten mit einem
Gesamtumsatzvolumen fir vollstdndig entwickelte Projekte von €75,6 Millionen.
Zum 30. September 2017 bestand das Projektportfolio von Instone aus 48
Entwicklungsprojekten mit einem erwarteten Gesamtumsatzvolumen fiir voll
entwickelte Projekte von rund €3,4 Milliarden. Seit diesem Zeitpunkt und bis zum
Datum dieses Prospekts hat der Vorstand der Gesellschaft drei zusatzliche Projekte
mit einem erwarteten Gesamtumsatzvolumen fiir voll entwickelte Projekte in Hohe
von rund €128,0 Millionen genehmigt, inklusive:

e Projekt Teemanufaktur” in Halle (fiir welches Instone bereits den Erwerb
der  Grundstiicke  abgeschlossen hat) mit einem  erwarteten
Gesamtumsatzvolumen (wenn vollstdndig entwickelt) von rund €25,0
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Millionen;

e Projekt Kosmos“ (Siemens-Areal) in Frankfurt mit einem erwarteten
Gesamtumsatzvolumen (wenn vollstdndig entwickelt) von rund €33,0
Millionen; und

e Projekt Schorndorf mit einem erwarteten Gesamtumsatzvolumen (wenn
vollstidndig entwickelt) von rund €69,8 Millionen.

Zum 31. Dezember 2017 hatte Instone 71 Akquisitionsmdglichkeiten mit einem
potenziellen Gesamtumsatzvolumen fiir voll entwickelte Projekte von mehr als €13,0
Milliarden identifiziert. Mittelfristig strebt Instone jahrlich den Erwerb wvon
Grundstucken oder Grundstiicken mit einem erwarteten Gesamtumsatzvolumen flr
voll entwickelte Projekte von €900 Millionen €1,0 Milliarde an.

Am 2. Februar 2018 haben die Gesellschaft und die Bestehenden Aktiondre,
zusammen mit Credit Suisse Securities (Europe) Limited, London, Grofbritannien
(“Credit Suisse”), Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft, Frankfurt am Main,
Deutschland (“Deutsche Bank”, gemeinsam mit Credit Suisse, die “Joint Global
Coordinators”), BNP Paribas (“BNP Paribas”), Morgan Stanley & Co. International
plc (“Morgan Stanley”) or UniCredit Bank AG (“UniCredit”, gemeinsam mit BNP
Paribas, Morgan Stanley und den Joint Global Coordinators, die “Joint
Bookrunners” oder die “Konsortialbanken”), im Vorfeld der erwarteten Zulassung
der Aktien der Gesellschaft zum Handel im regulierten Markt der Frankfurter
Wertpapierborse mit gleichzeitiger Zulassung zum Teilbereich des regulierten Markts
mit weiteren Zulassungsfolgepflichten (Prime Standard) eine Privatplatzierung von
7.000.000 neu ausgegebene Inhaberaktien der Gesellschaft aus einer Kapitalerhdohung
gegen Bareinlage, die von der Hauptversammlung der Gesellschaft am oder um den
13. Februar 2018 beschlossen werden soll (die ,,Neuen Aktien*), und von bis zu
13.350.000 bestehende Inhaberaktien der Gesellschaft aus dem Bestand der
Bestehenden Aktiondre (die ,,Bestehenden Aktien®, und, gemeinsam mit den Neuen
Aktien, die ,,Basisaktien®) initiiert.

Anlegern konnen zusétzlich zu den Basisaktien bis zu 3.050.000 zusétzliche
Inhaberaktien der Gesellschaft (die ,,Mehrzuteilungsaktien®, und gemeinsam mit
den Basisaktien, die ,,Platzierungsaktien) im Rahmen der Privatplatzierung
zugeteilt werden (die ,,Mehrzuteilung®). Zum Zweck einer potenziellen
Mehrzuteilung werden der Credit Suisse, in ihrer Funktion als Stabilisierungsmanager
(der ,Stabilisierungsmanager®) fir Rechnung der Konsortialbanken bis zu
3.050.000 bestehende Inhaberaktien der Gesellschaft aus dem Bestand der
Bestehenden Aktiondre in Form eines Wertpapierdarlehens zur Verfiigung gestelit.
Die Anzahl der Mehrzuteilungsaktien wird 15% der Anzahl der Basisaktien nicht
Uberschreiten. Zudem haben die Bestehenden Aktiondre den Konsortialbanken eine
Option zum Erwerb einer der Anzahl der entliehenen Aktien entsprechenden Anzahl
an Aktien der Gesellschaft zum finalen Platzierungspreis abziglich vereinbarter
Provisionen eingerdumt (die ,,Greenshoe-Option®). Die Greenshoe-Option kann nur
wahrend des Stabilisierungszeitraums ausgetibt werden (der Zeitraum, der mit dem
Datum beginnt, an dem die Aktien der Gesellschaft mit dem Handel beginnen und
nicht spéater als 30 Kalendertage danach endet) und endet 30 Kalendertage nach
Beginn des Handels der Aktien der Gesellschaft, welcher voraussichtlich am 15.
Februar 2018 stattfinden wird.

Am 1. Februar 2018 haben die Gesellschaft und die Bestehenden Aktionére
gemeinsam mit den Konsortialbanken die Preisspanne auf €21,50 bis €25,50 je
Privatplatzierungssaktie festgesetzt (die ,,Preisspanne®).

Der Platzierungspreis und die endgultige Anzahl der in der Privatplatzierung
platzierten Aktien der Gesellschaft werden voraussichtlich auf der Grundlage des im
Rahmen eines Bookbuilding-Verfahrens (welches voraussichtlich im Zeitraum vom
2. Februar 2018 bis zum 13. Februar 2018 stattfinden wird) erstellten Orderbuchs am
13. Februar 2018 festgelegt.

Die Gesellschaft beabsichtigt ihre Aktien zum Handel zuzulassen, um Zugang zu den
Kapitalmérkten zu erhalten und die Mdglichkeit zu schaffen, Eigenkapital- und
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B.8

B.9

Ausgewahlte
wesentliche Pro-
Forma-
Finanzinformatio
nen.

Gewinnprognose
und -schatzung.

B.10 Einschrankungen

im
Prufungsbericht
hinsichtlich der
historischen
Finanzinformatio
nen.

B.11 Nicht

ausreichendes
Geschéftskapital
des Emittenten.

C — Wertpapiere

C1

Cz2

C3

C4

Art und Gattung
der angebotenen
und zum Handel
zuzulassenden
Wertpapiere.

Wertpapierkennn
ummer.

Waéhrung der
Wertpapieremissi
on.

Anzahl der
ausgegebenen und
voll einbezahlten
Aktien sowie
Nennwert pro
Aktie.

Mit den
Wertpapieren
verbundene
Rechte.

Fremdkapitalmarktfinanzierungen zu erhalten. Die Gesellschaft beabsichtigt derzeit,
einen Teil des der Gesellschaft zurechenbaren Nettoerléses von rund €55,5 Millionen
zur vollstandigen Rickzahlung sémtlicher zum 19. Februar 2018 unter allen
Gesellschafterdarlehen ausstehender Betrdge und die restlichen Nettoerlése in Hohe
von rund €100,3 Millionen (unter Annahme einer finalen Platzierung der Neuen
Aktien zum Mittelwert der Preisspanne) zur Finanzierung ihrer Akquisitions- und
Entwicklungstatigkeiten zur Schaffung von Mehrwert zu verwenden und stabile
Ertrége aus dem Projektentwicklungsgeschaft zu generieren.

Mit Ausnahme der oben genannten Entwicklungen haben sich zwischen dem 30.
September 2017 und dem Datum dieses Prospekts keine wesentlichen Anderungen in
der Finanz- oder Handelsposition von Instone ergeben.

Entfallt. Die Gesellschaft hat keine Pro-Forma-Finanzinformationen erstellt.

Entfallt. Die Gesellschaft hat keine Gewinnprognose oder -schétzung erstellt.

Entfallt. Die in diesem Prospekt enthaltenen gepriiften historischen Abschlisse
wurden mit uneingeschrankten Bestatigungsvermerken versehen.

Entféllt. Die Gesellschaft ist der Auffassung, dass ihr Geschéftskapital fur ihre
gegenwartigen Anforderungen ausreicht, d. h. zumindest wahrend der néchsten zwolf
Monate seit dem Datum der Verdffentlichung dieses Prospekts.

Auf den Inhaber lautende Stammaktien der Gesellschaft, jeweils mit einem

rechnerischen Nennwert von €1,00 und voller Dividendenberechtigung ab dem
1. Januar 2017.

International Securities Identification Number (ISIN): NL0012757355
Deutsche Wertpapierkennnummer (WKN): A2JCTW
Borsenkiirzel: INS

Euro.

Im Zeitpunkt dieses Prospekts betrdgt das Grundkapital der Gesellschaft €8.386,00
und ist aufgeteilt in 8.386 Aktien mit einem Nennwert von jeweils €1,00 und wurden
die Aktien der Gesellschaft als Namensaktien (op naam) ausgegeben. Mit
Wirksamkeit der N.V. Umwandlung wird die Art der Aktien in Inhaberaktien
(aandelen aan toonder) gedndert. Das Grundkapital ist vollstandig einbezahlt.

Jede Aktie der Gesellschaft berechtigt zu einer Stimme in der Hauptversammlung der
Gesellschaft. Alle Aktien der Gesellschaft sind mit denselben Stimmrechten
ausgestattet. Es bestehen keine Stimmrechtsbeschrdnkungen aufler gemé&R einer
beschrankten Anzahl gesetzlicher Bestimmungen.
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C.5 Beschriankungen
der freien
Ubertragbarkeit
der Wertpapiere.

C.6 Antrag auf
Zulassung zum
Handel in einem
regulierten
Markt; Nennung
aller regulierten
Markte, in denen
die Wertpapiere
gehandelt werden
sollen.

C.7 Dividendenpolitik.

D — Risiken

D.1 Firden

Im Zeitpunkt dieses Prospekts sind die Aktien der Gesellschaft als Namensaktien (op
naam) ausgegeben. Mit Wirksamkeit der N.V. Umwandlung wird die Art der Aktien
in Inhaberaktien (aandelen aan toonder) gedndert. Mit Ausnahme der nachstehend
beschriebenen und in Abschnitt E.5 enthaltenen Beschrankungen bestehen fir die
Aktien der Gesellschaft mit Wirksamkeit der N.VV. Umwandlung keine Verbote oder
Beschrankungen im Hinblick auf deren Ubertragbarkeit.

Jedoch konnen spezifische Vorschriften oder Beschréankungen greifen, wenn sich die
Privatplatzierung an Personen richtet, die nicht in den Niederlanden wohnhaft oder
ansassig sind bzw. die keine niederlandischen Staatsbiirger oder nicht in den
Niederlanden gemeldet sind, oder wenn die Platzierungsaktien in andere
Jurisdiktionen als die Niederlande tibertragen werden sollen.

Die Gesellschaft hat die Zulassung ihrer Aktien zum Handel am regulierten Markt der
Frankfurter Wertpapierb6rse und die gleichzeitige Zulassung zum Teilbereich des
Regulierten Marktes mit zusatzlichen Zulassungsfolgepflichten (Prime Standard) der
Frankfurter Wertpapierbdrse am 9. Februar 2018 beantragt. Der Zulassungsbeschluss
fur die Platzierungsaktien der Gesellschaft wird voraussichtlich am 14. Februar 2018
erteilt. Der Handel mit den Platzierungsaktien der Gesellschaft an der Frankfurter
Wertpapierbdrse wird voraussichtlich am 15. Februar 2018 beginnen.

Die Gesellschaft beabsichtigt derzeit, vorbehaltlich der vollen Riickzahlung der
Gesellschafterdarlehen von einem  Teilbetrag der Nettoerlose aus der
Privatplatzierung, alle verfiigharen Mittel und zukiinftigen Ertrédge einzubehalten, um
das Wachstum und die Entwicklung des Geschéfts zu finanzieren. Derzeit
beabsichtigt die Gesellschaft nicht, fiir die Geschaftsjahre 2017 bis 2019 Dividenden
auszuschutten. Mittelfristig, friihestens jedoch im Jahr 2021 fir das Geschéftsjahr
2020, plant die Gesellschaft, Dividenden in Hohe von 20% bis 30% ihres
Nettoeinkommens auszuschitten, sofern sie sich zu diesem Zeitpunkt nicht
entscheiden sollte, die ausschittungsfahigen Mittel stattdessen in weiteres Wachstum
zu investieren.

Etwaige zukinftige Entscheidungen betreffend die Ausschiittung von Dividenden
werden gemaR anwendbarem Recht getroffen und hangen unter anderem von den
Geschaftsergebnissen, der finanziellen Lage, den vertraglichen Beschrankungen und
dem Kapitalbedarf ab. Die zukiinftige F&higkeit der Gesellschaft Dividenden
auszuschutten, kann ferner durch Bedingungen bestehender sowie zukiinftiger
Verbindlichkeiten oder VVorzugsaktien beschrankt sein.

Der Erwerb von Aktien der Gesellschaft ist mit verschiedenen Risiken verbunden.
Potenzielle Anleger sollten vor der Entscheidung uber eine Investition in Aktien der
Gesellschaft die nachfolgend beschriebenen Risiken sowie alle sonstigen in diesem
Prospekt enthaltenen Informationen sorgfaltig prifen. Die folgenden Risiken kénnten
allein oder zusammen mit weiteren Risiken und Unwégbarkeiten, die der Gesellschaft
derzeit nicht bekannt sind oder die die Gesellschaft derzeit als unwesentlich erachtet,
erhebliche beeintrdchtigende Auswirkungen auf die Geschéfts-, Finanz- und
Ertragslage von Instone haben. Der Marktpreis der Aktien der Gesellschaft kdnnte
sinken, wenn sich eines dieser Risiken verwirklichen sollten; in diesem Fall konnten
die Anleger ihre Investition teilweise oder ganz verlieren.

Die Reihenfolge, in der die Risiken nachfolgend dargestellt sind, stellt keine Aussage
Uber die Eintrittswahrscheinlichkeit oder Bedeutung und Hoéhe der Risiken oder das
Ausmald einer etwaigen Beeintrachtigung der Geschaftstatigkeit, Vermdgenswerte,
Finanzlage, Liquiditats- oder Ertragslage von Instone, dar. Die in diesem Prospekt
benannten Risiken kénnen einzeln oder kumulativ eintreten.

Markt- und Geschaftsschlisselrisiken
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Emittenten oder
die Branche des
Emittenten
charakteristische
SchlUsselrisiken.

Instone ist vom deutschen Wohnimmobilienmarkt abhangig, dessen
Bedingungen sich aufgrund makrodkonomischer und sonstiger Faktoren
verschlechtern kénnen.

Instone konnte niedrigere Umsdtze und Einnahmen fir seine Projekte als
erwartet erzielen, insbesondere wenn sich das allgemeine Preisniveau fir
Wohnimmobilien verschlechtert.

Das Projektportfolio von Instone ist geografisch und projektbezogen
konzentriert, was das Verlustrisiko erh6hen kann.

Instone ist einem starkem Wettbewerb ausgesetzt, der sich in der Zukunft
intensivieren konnte.

Instone kdnnte nicht in der Lage sein, Entwicklungsprojekte zu profitablen
Bedingungen oder plangeman zu realisieren.

Das Wachstum und die Rentabilitat von Instone hdngen von seiner Fahigkeit
ab, attraktive Grundsticke oder unter Denkmalschutz stehende
Sanierungsimmobilien zu identifizieren und zu attraktiven Bedingungen zu
erwerben.

Wenn es Instone nicht gelingt, erforderliche fur die Wohnraumentwicklung
geeignete Flachennutzungs- oder Bebauungsplédne und Baugenehmigungen
sowie Genehmigungen fir seine Entwicklungs- oder Sanierungsprojekte zu
erwirken, wenn diesbezlglich erhebliche Verzdgerungen eintreten oder
solche Genehmigungen spater widerrufen oder angefochten werden, kdnnte
sich dies nachteilig auf die Geschaftstatigkeit von Instone auswirken.

Instone konnte nicht in der Lage sein, eine ausreichende Finanzierung
aufrechtzuerhalten oder zu annehmbaren Bedingungen zu bekommen.

Die Instone Development konnte nicht mehr in der Lage sein,
Kautionsversicherungsvertrage Uberhaupt oder zu wirtschaftlich vertretbaren
Bedingungen abzuschlieRen.

Die Privatplatzierung und die Borsennotierung konnen zu einem Wechsel
der Kontrolle in der Beteiligung an der Gesellschaft fuihren, welcher im
Rahmen bestimmter Finanzierungsvertrage Kindigungsrechte und die
Verpflichtung vorzeitiger Rickzahlung ausldsen kann.

Instone ist bei der Entwicklung und dem Bau seiner Immobilien abhangig
von externen Lieferanten und Vertragspartnern.

Instone ist dem Risiko von Baumangeln und fehlerhaften Baustoffen
ausgesetzt.

Der Bau neuer Wohnimmobilien birgt Gesundheits-, Sicherheits- und
Umweltrisiken.

Die Nachfrage nach Instones Immobilien hangt von den Kéuferpraferenzen
im Hinblick auf Art und Standort der Immobilien und davon ab, inwieweit
die Produktentwicklungen als attraktiv und qualitativ hochwertig empfunden
werden.

Eine Schadigung des Rufs von Instone und/oder des gesamten
Wohnimmobilienentwicklungsmarktes oder eine mangelnde
Kéuferzufriedenheit kdnnten zu einer sinkenden Nachfrage nach den von
Instone entwickelten Immobilien fiihren.

Eine eingeschrankte Verflgbarkeit von wund hohere Kosten fur
grundpfandrechtlich besicherten Finanzierungen kdnnte sich negativ auf die
Umsatzerldse von Instone auswirken.

Die Nichteinhaltung  bestimmter ~ Anforderungen  betreffend die
Projektentwicklungen von Instone in Bezug auf denkmalgeschiitzte Gebéaude
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koénnte sich negativ auf die Geschéftstatigkeit auswirken.

Anderungen  der  deutschen  Steuergesetzgebung  im  Bereich
Sonderabschreibungen von Sanierungsinvestitionen in denkmalgeschiitzte
Immobilien kdnnten sich negativ auf die Geschéftstatigkeit von Instone
auswirken.

Instone konnten verschiedene Kosten bei der Verfolgung eines zukinftigen
Wachstums- oder Expansionskurses entstehen und die prognostizierten
Vorteile kdnnten nie eintreten.

Instone konnte wichtige Mitarbeiter verlieren oder nicht in der Lage sein,
qualifiziertes Personal flir Schlisselpositionen zu gewinnen.

Instone ist auf einen ungestorten Betrieb und die Sicherheit seiner
Infrastruktur- und Informationstechnologie (IT) angewiesen, die ein
malgeblicher Bestandteil seines Risikomanagementsystems ist.

Die Integration von Instone Leipzig in Instone kdnnte nicht erfolgreich oder
nicht wie geplant verlaufen und hohere Kosten verursachen als erwartet.

Instone konnten erhebliche Verluste aufgrund nicht versicherter Schaden
oder Schéden, die die Versicherungsdeckung Uberschreiten, entstehen.

Grundstiicke und Immobilien kdnnen illiquide Vermdgenswerte darstellen
und die Mdglichkeiten von Instone erheblich beintrachtigen, auf ungunstige
Veranderungen auf den Immobilien- oder Finanzmarkten zu reagieren.

Der Bewertungsbericht und die in diesem Prospekt enthaltenen
Finanzinformationen kodnnten den Wert von Instones Immobilien
unzutreffend abbilden.

Regulatorische, rechtliche und steuerliche Schltsselrisiken

Anderungen des geltenden Rechts und/oder der Regularien im Bereich
Wohnimmobilien kénnten den nachhaltigen Erfolg des Geschéftsmodells
von Instone negativ beeinflussen.

VerstoRe gegen die MaBV oder die Gewerbeordnung (GewO) konnten
BuBgelder oder den Widerruf der Instone erteilten Erlaubnis nach sich
ziehen, von Privatkdufern Abschlagszahlungen nach Baufortschritt zu
fordern.

Die Standard-AGB, die in den Vertrdgen zum Einsatz kommen, die Instone
mit Kaufern, Architekten und Bauunternehmen abschliellt, kodnnten
unwirksam sein.

Die von Instone eingesetzten Compliance-Systeme waren bzw. sind
mdoglicherweise nicht ausreichend, um rechtliche, finanzielle und
betriebliche Risiken zu verhindern bzw. zu erkennen.

Wenn es der Gesellschaft nicht gelingt, ein effektives internes
Kontrollsystem aufrechtzuerhalten, kdnnte sie nicht in der Lage sein, ihre
Geschaftsergebnisse korrekt zu bestimmen und gefordert sein ihren
Jahresabschluss anzupassen, wodurch die Aktionare ihr Vertrauen in die
Geschéftsergebnisse der Gesellschaft verlieren kdnnten.

Instone kénnte durch Anderungen des allgemeinen steuerlichen Umfelds in
Deutschland und den Niederlanden negativ beeinflusst werden, da diese
Anderungen zu einer Erhéhung der Steuerlast von Instone fiihren kdnnten.

Aufgrund der gegenwértigen doppelten Steueranséssigkeit kénnte Instone
auch in einer anderen Jurisdiktion als Deutschland steuerpflichtig werden.

Instone konnte verpflichtet sein einen Abzug deutscher und niederl&dndischer
Quellensteuer von Dividenden vorzunehmen.

Instone hat bereits erhebliche UmstrukturierungsmaBnahmen durchgefiihrt,
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D.3 Fur die
Wertpapiere
charakteristische
Schlusselrisiken.

E — Angebot

E.1 Gesamtnettoerldse.

und erwartet  kinftig  erhebliche  Umstrukturierungsmafinahmen,
einschlieBlich  des geplanten  Formwechsels in eine  deutsche
Aktiengesellschaft, durchzufiihren, die zu einer zusétzlichen steuerlichen
Belastung fiihren kénnen.

Schlisselrisiken im Zusammenhang mit der Privatplatzierung und die
Borsennotierung sowie den Platzierungsaktien

o Es gibt keinen Bestandsmarkt fiir die Aktien der Gesellschaft und die
Entwicklung eines aktiven Handels kénnte begrenzt sein.

e Der Marktpreis und das Handelsvolumen der Aktien der Gesellschaft
koénnten erheblich schwanken, was zu erheblichen Verlusten fiihren kann.

e Nach der Privatplatzierung und der Borsennotierung werden die
Bestehenden Aktiondre eine signifikante Beteiligung an der Gesellschaft
behalten, und ihre Interessen kénnten mit denen der anderen Aktiondre in
Konflikt stehen.

e  Zukinftige KapitalmaBnahmen kdnnten zu einer erheblichen Verwésserung
der Beteiligungen der Aktionédre sowie ihrer Stimmrechte fiilhren und sich
negativ auf den Marktpreis der Aktien auswirken.

e Zukinftige Verkdufe durch die Bestehenden Aktiondre konnten den
Marktpreis der Aktien der Gesellschaft unter Druck setzen.

o Die Fahigkeit der Gesellschaft zur Ausschittung von Dividenden hangt von
einer Vielzahl von Faktoren ab. Die in der Vergangenheit ausgeschiitteten
Dividenden sind nicht unbedingt aussagekraftig im Hinblick auf zukinftige
Zahlungen und die Dividendenpolitik der Gesellschaft kdnnte sich &ndern.

o Die Gesellschaft ist eine Gesellschaft mit beschréankter Haftung
niederlandischen Rechts (B.V.) und wird in eine Aktiengesellschaft
niederlandischen Rechts (N.V.) umgewandelt, bei welcher sich die
Aktiondrsrechte von den Rechten unterscheiden kénnen, tber die Aktionédre
einer sich in einer anderen Jurisdiktion befindenden Gesellschaft verfligen.

o Die Gesellschaft beabsichtigt der Hauptversammlung vorzuschlagen, einen
Beschluss Uber die Umwandlung der Gesellschaft in eine Aktiengesellschaft,
die deutschem Recht unterliegt, zu fassen, bei welcher sich die
Aktiondrsrechte von den Rechten unterscheiden kdnnen, uber die Aktionare
einer sich in einer anderen Jurisdiktion befindenden Gesellschaft verfuigen.

Entfallt. Es wird kein 6ffentliches Angebot geben. Die Gesellschaft erhélt allerdings
die Erlése aus der Privatplatzierung, die sich aus dem Verkauf der Neuen Aktien
ergeben. Die Gesellschaft erhdlt keine Erlése aus dem Verkauf der Bestehenden
Aktien oder der Mehrzuteilungsaktien aus dem Bestand der Bestehenden Aktionare.

Unter der Annahme der Platzierung der Bestandsaktien zum unteren Wert, zum
Mittelwert und zum oberen Wert der Preisspanne, wiirden die Bruttoerlése fiir die
Gesellschaft nach Einschatzung der Gesellschaft zum unteren Wert, zum Mittelwert
und zum oberen Wert der Preisspanne ca. €150,5 Millionen, €164,5 Millionen bzw.
€178,5 Millionen betragen und die Nettoerlose sich auf ca. €142,2 Millionen, €155,8
Millionen bzw. €169,4 Millionen belaufen.

Unter der Annahme der Platzierung der Bestehenden Aktien und s&mtlicher
Mehrzuteilungsaktien sowie unter der Annahme der vollstdndigen Auslibung der
Greenshoe-Option, was insgesamt 16.400.000 Aktien ergdbe, wirden die Bruttoerldse
fur die Bestehenden Aktionére nach Einschatzung der Gesellschaft zum unteren Wert,
zum Mittelwert und zum oberen Wert der Preisspanne ca. €352,6 Millionen,
€385,4 Millionen bzw. €418,2 Millionen betragen und die Nettoerldse sich auf
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Geschatzte
Gesamtkosten der
Emission/des
Angebots.

Dem Anleger in
Rechnung zu
stellende
geschéatzte Kosten.

E.2a Grinde fur das
Angebot.

Verwendung der
Erlose, geschéatzte
Hohe der
Nettoerlose.

E.3 Angebots-
konditionen.

E.4 Wesentliche
Interessen an der
Emission/dem
Angebot,
einschliefilich
Interessen-
konflikte.

ca. €334,8 Millionen, €366,7 Millionen bzw. €398,5 Millionen belaufen.

Entfallt. Die Kosten der Gesellschaft im Zusammenhang mit der Privatplatzierung
und der Borsennotierung der Privatplatzierungsaktien werden sich schatzungsweise
auf ca. €109 Millionen  belaufen  (exklusive der  Konsortial- und
Platzierungsprovisionen, die an die Konsortialbanken zu zahlen sind). Die
Bestehenden Aktionédre werden ca. 65,6% der Gesamtkosten tragen, was bedeutet,
dass die Gesellschaft letztlich ca. 34,4% der Kosten tragen wird.

Entfallt. Den Anlegern werden von der Gesellschaft, den Bestehenden Aktionéren
und den Konsortialbanken keine Kosten in Rechnung gestellt. Die Anleger haben
Ubliche Transaktions- und Bearbeitungsgebiihren zu tragen, die ihnen von ihren
Brokern oder sonstigen Finanzdienstleistern in Rechnung gestellt werden, tber die sie
ihre Wertpapiere halten.

Entfallt. Es wird kein &ffentliches Angebot geben. Die Gesellschaft beabsichtigt, ihre
Aktien am regulierten Markt der Frankfurter Wertpapierbdrse und gleichzeitig im
Teilbereich des regulierten Marktes mit zusatzlichen Zulassungsfolgepflichten (Prime
Standard) der Frankfurter Wertpapierborse notieren zu lassen, um Zugang zu den
Kapitalmérkten zu erhalten.

Die Bestehenden Aktionére verfolgen mit der Privatplatzierung das Ziel, die ihnen
zuzurechnenden Nettoerlgse aus der Privatplatzierung zu erzielen.

Entfallt. Es wird kein &ffentliches Angebot geben. Die Gesellschaft beabsichtigt
derzeit, einen Teil der Nettoerldse aus der Privatplatzierung, der der Gesellschaft
zuzurechnen ist, in Hohe von rund €55,5 Millionen zur vollstindigen Riickzahlung
samtlicher noch ausstehenden Betrage unter den Gesellschafterdarlehen und die
restlichen Nettoerlose in Héhe von rund €100,3 Millionen (unter Annahme einer
finalen Platzierung der Neuen Aktien zum Mittelwert der Preisspanne) zur
Finanzierung ihrer Akquisitions- und Entwicklungstétigkeiten zur Schaffung von
Mehrwert zu verwenden und stabile Ertrdge aus dem Projektentwicklungsgeschaft zu
generieren.

Entfallt. Es wird kein 0offentliches Angebot geben. Informationen zu den
Bedingungen der Privatplatzierung finden Sie in B.7.

Im Zusammenhang mit der Privatplatzierung und der Zulassung der Aktien der
Gesellschaft zum Handel sind die Konsortialbanken vertragliche Beziehungen mit der
Gesellschaft und den Bestehenden Aktionéren eingegangen.

Die Konsortialbanken handeln im Rahmen der Strukturierung und Durchfiihrung der
Privatplatzierung fir die Gesellschaft und die Bestehenden Aktionéare. Darliber hinaus
wurde die Deutsche Bank als Designated Sponsor fur die Aktien der Gesellschaft,
und als Zahlstelle, beauftragt. Die Borsennotierung ist eine Voraussetzung flr den
Vollzug der Privatplatzierung. Nach erfolgreicher Durchfiihrung der Privatplatzierung
erhalten die Konsortialbanken eine Provision, deren GroRenordnung sich an den
Ergebnissen der Privatplatzierung orientiert. Infolge dieser Vertragsverhdltnisse
haben die Konsortialbanken ein wirtschaftliches Interesse am Erfolg der
Privatplatzierung zu bestmdéglichen Bedingungen.

Einige der Konsortialbanken oder mit ihnen verbundene Unternehmen unterhalten
gegenwartig und moglicherweise auch in Zukunft gelegentlich Geschaftsbeziehungen
zu Instone und den Bestehenden Aktionéren, einschliellich Finanzierungsaktivitéten,
oder erbringen mdglicherweise im Rahmen ihrer gewdhnlichen Geschaftstatigkeit
Leistungen fiir Instone oder die Bestehenden Aktionére.
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E.5 Name der
Person/des
Unternehmens,
die/das die
Wertpapiere zum
Verkauf anbietet.

Lock-Up-
Vereinbarung:
beteiligte Parteien
und Angabe zur
Lock-Up-Frist.

Die Bestehenden Aktionére haben ein Interesse an der Bérsennotierung, da dies eine
Bdrsennotierung fir die Privatplatzierung ist und den Erlés aus dem Verkauf von bis
zu 13.350.000 Bestehenden Aktien und bis zu 3.050.000 gegebenenfalls im Rahmen
der Privatplatzierung verkauften Mehrzuteilungsaktien erhalten werden (nach Abzug
von Gebuhren und Kommissionen).

Neben den oben beschriebenen Interessen bestehen keine wesentlichen Interessen,
insbesondere  keine wesentlichen Interessenkonflikte, in Bezug auf die
Privatplatzierung oder der Borsennotierung der Aktien der Gesellschaft.

Entfallt. Es wird kein offentliches Angebot geben. Die Privatplatzierungsaktien
werden von den Joint Bookrunners zum Verkauf im Rahmen der Privatplatzierung
angeboten.

In dem zwischen der Gesellschaft, den Bestehenden Aktiondren und den
Konsortialbanken am 2. Februar 2018 vereinbarten Vertrag hinsichtlich der
Privatplatzierung (der ,,Konsortialvertrag”) hat die Gesellschaft mit jedem Joint
Bookrunner vereinbart, dass die Gesellschaft, soweit gesetzlich zuléssig ist, in der
Zeit vom 2. Februar 2018 bis sechs Monate nach dem ersten Handelstag der Aktien
der Gesellschaft an der Frankfurter Wertpapierborse (derzeit voraussichtlich der 15.
Februar 2018) ohne vorherige schriftliche Zustimmung der Konsortialbanken, welche
nicht ohne verniinftigen Grund verweigert werden darf, folgende MalRhahmen nicht
vornehmen wird:

(@) Anklndigung oder Durchfihrung einer Erhohung des Grundkapitals der
Gesellschaft aus allfalligem genehmigten oder bedingten Kapital,

(b) Vorschlag der Erhéhung des ausgegebenen Grundkapitals an die
Hauptversammlung, oder

(c) Ankiindigung, Durchfiihrung oder VVorschlag der Emission von Wertpapieren mit
Wandel- oder Optionsrechten in Bezug auf Aktien der Gesellschaft;

(d) Angebot, Verpfandung, Zuteilung, Ausgabe (sofern nicht nach geltendem Recht
erforderlich), Verkauf, Eingehen einer Verkaufsverpflichtung, Verkauf einer
Kaufoption oder Kaufverpflichtung, Erwerb einer Verkaufsoption, Gewéhrung
einer Kaufoption, eines Kaufrechts oder Bezugsrechts oder anderweitige
Ubertragung oder VerauBerung, direkt oder indirekt, von Aktien ihres Kapitals
oder jeglicher Wertpapiere, die in Aktien ihres Kapitals umwandelbar, fir diese
ausubbar oder gegen Aktien ihres Kapitals umtauschbar sind, oder Eingehen
eines Swap oder einer sonstigen Regelung, mit dem bzw. der das wirtschaftliche
Risiko des Eigentums an den Aktien ihres Kapitals vollstandig oder teilweise auf
andere Ubertragen wird; oder

(e) Abschluss einer Transaktion oder Durchfiihrung einer Malinahme, die den in den
vorstehenden Absatzen (a) bis (d) beschriebenen MalRnahmen wirtschaftlich
ahnlich ist.
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Vorstehende Ausfiihrungen gelten nicht fiir (i) die Umwandlung von bis zu €30,0
Millionen aus der Kapitalriicklage der Gesellschaft in das Aktienkapital der
Gesellschaft vor Boérsennotierung der Aktien der Gesellschaft an der Frankfurter
Wertpapierborse, (ii) die Erhdéhung des Aktienkapitals der Gesellschaft im
Zusammenhang mit der Privatplatzierung, (iii) Vorschlage an die Hauptversammlung
zur Schaffung eines genehmigten Kapitals, eines bedingten Kapitals, einer
Erméchtigung zur Ausgabe von in Aktien der Gesellschaft umtauschbaren oder
auslibbaren oder umtauschbaren Wertpapieren (solche Erméchtigungen dirfen
wahrend der Sperrfrist nicht ausgeuibt werden), (iv) die Ausgabe oder den Verkauf
von Aktien oder anderen Wertpapieren an Mitarbeiter und Mitglieder von Organen
der Gesellschaft oder ihrer Tochtergesellschaften im Rahmen von (blichen
Management- oder Mitarbeiterbeteiligungsprogrammen, oder (v) von der Gesellschaft
vorgenommene gesellschaftsrechtliche MalRnahmen zum Zwecke der Umwandlung
der Gesellschaft in eine deutsche Aktiengesellschaft.

AuRerdem haben die Bestehenden Aktiondre zugestimmt, dass sie in der Zeit vom
2. Februar 2018 bis sechs Monate nach dem ersten Handelstag der Aktien der
Gesellschaft an der Frankfurter Wertpapierborse (derzeit voraussichtlich der
15. Februar 2018) ohne vorherige schriftliche Zustimmung der Konsortialbanken,
welche nicht ohne verniinftigen Grund verweigert werden darf, folgende MalRhahmen
nicht vornehmen werden:

Angebot, Verpfandung, Zuteilung, Verkauf, Eingehen einer
Verkaufsverpflichtung, Verkauf einer Kaufoption oder Kaufverpflichtung,
Erwerb einer Verkaufsoption, Gewahrung einer Kaufoption, eines Kaufrechts
oder Bezugsrechts oder anderweitige Ubertragung oder VerauRerung, direkt oder
indirekt, von Aktien oder jeglicher Wertpapiere der Gesellschaft, die in Aktien
der Gesellschaft umwandelbar, fiir diese austbbar oder gegen Aktien der
Gesellschaft umtauschbar sind;

Beantragung oder Ausiibung eines Rechts beziiglich der Registrierung geman
US-Wertpapiergesetzen in Bezug auf jegliche Aktien der Gesellschaft oder
jegliches Wertpapier, das in Aktien der Gesellschaft umwandelbar, fir diese
auslibbar oder gegen Aktien der Gesellschaft umtauschbar ist;

Vorschlag einer Erhohung des Grundkapitals der Gesellschaft, Stimmabgabe
zugunsten einer solchen vorgeschlagenen Kapitalerh6hung oder anderweitige
Unterstiitzung eines Vorschlags Uber die Ausgabe jeglicher Wertpapiere, die in
Aktien der Gesellschaft wandelbar sind oder mit einer Option auf Aktien der
Gesellschaft ausgestattet sind; oder

Abschluss einer Transaktion oder Durchfiihrung einer MalRnahme, die den in den
vorstehenden Absdtzen beschriebenen MalRnahmen wirtschaftlich &hnlich ist,
insbesondere Abschluss eines Swap oder einer sonstigen Regelung, mit dem
bzw. der das wirtschaftliche Risiko des Eigentums an Aktien der Gesellschaft
vollstdndig oder teilweise auf andere Ubertragen wird, unabhdngig davon, ob
diese Transaktion im Wege der Lieferung von Aktien der Gesellschaft oder
sonstigen Wertpapieren, in bar oder anderweitig abgewickelt wird.

Vorstehende Ausfiihrungen gelten nicht fir (i) die Schaffung genehmigten Kapitals,
bedingten Kapitals oder die Erméchtigung zur Ausgabe von gegen in Aktien der
Gesellschaft umtauschbare oder austibbare Wertpapieren (solche Ermdchtigungen
dirfen allerdings nicht in der Sperrfrist geschaffen werden), (ii) jegliche zur
Durchfiihrung der Erhéhung des Grundkapitals der Gesellschaft vor Borsennotierung
der Aktien der Gesellschaft an der Frankfurter Wertpapierbdrse und der N.V.
Umwandlung erforderlichen MalRnahmen, (iii) jegliche zur Durchfiihrung der AG
Umwandlung erforderlichen MalRnahmen (ohne eine Erhdhung des Aktienkapitals zu
bewirken), (iv) Ubertragungen von Aktien in Zusammenhang mit der Mehrzuteilung
auf den Stabilisierungsmanager durch die Bestehenden Aktiondre aufgrund der
Wertpapierleihe, (v) VerauBerung und Ubertragung an Mitglieder des Vorstands der
Gesellschaft oder an Geschaftsfiihrer der Instone Konzerngesellschaften im Rahmen
der Umstrukturierung von Managementbeteiligungsprogrammen, und
(vi) Ubertragungen an verbundene Unternehmen des jeweiligen Bestehenden
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Aktionars, hinsichtlich der Punkte (v) und (vi) allerdings jeweils vorausgesetzt, dass
der bzw. die betreffende(n) Erwerber den Joint Global Coordinators gegeniiber
bestatigen, dass sie an dieselbe oder eine langere Lock-up-Verpflichtung gebunden
sind.

E.6 Betrag und Entfallt. Es wird kein offentliches Angebot geben.
Prozentsatz der
aus dem Angebot
resultierenden
unmittelbaren
Verwasserung.

Das Eigenkapital von Instone (d.h., der Netto-Buchwert (Summe der Aktiva
abzlglich der Summe der langfristigen Schulden und der Summe der kurzfristigen
Schulden)) betrug zum 30. September 2017 minus €11,0 Millionen und wiirde auf der
Grundlage von 29.988.336 ausgegebenen Aktien der Gesellschaft unmittelbar vor der
Privatplatzierung und nach Bereinigung um die Darlehen die von den Gesellschaftern
an die Gesellschaft ausgereicht wurden und in Hohe von €48,0 Millionen teilweise
gewandelt und in die Kapitalriicklage der Gesellschaft eingebracht wurden, €1,23 je
Aktie der Gesellschaft betragen.

Der Verwasserungseffekt der Privatplatzierung wird in der nachstehenden Tabelle
dargestellt. Die Tabelle veranschaulicht den Betrag um den der Platzierungspreis das
Eigenkapital (bersteigt, das den Aktiondren je Aktie nach Abschluss der
Privatplatzierung und unter der Annahme des Abschlusses der Privatplatzierung am
30. September 2017 zuzurechnen ist. In dieser Hinsicht wurde der Nettobuchwert, der
den Aktiondren zum 30. September 2017 zuzurechnen ist, um die Effekte des
erfolgreichen Abschlusses dieser Privatplatzierung bereinigt, und zwar unter der
Annahme (i) der Durchfihrung der Kapitalerhdhung im Rahmen der
Privatplatzierung und (ii) einer Erhéhung des Nettobuchwertes, der den Aktionéren
zuzurechnen ist, um €3,98 Millionen (unter der Annahme einer erfolgreichen
Platzierung der Neuen Aktien zum Mittelwert der Preisspanne und ohne
Berucksichtigung von  steuerlichen  Auswirkungen). Der den Aktiondren
zuzurechnende bereinigte Nettobuchwert wird als Zahl je Aktie ausgewiesen, unter
der Annahme, dass nach Abschluss der Privatplatzierung 36.988.336 Aktien der
Gesellschaft ausstehend sind (diese Zahl je Aktie wird als ,,Nach- Bérseneinfiihrung
den Aktionaren zuzurechnendes Eigenkapital” bezeichnet).

Zum 30. September
2017

(ungeprft)
(in €, sofern nicht
anders angegeben)
PIatZierungspreis J& AKLIE .......o.oiiie e 23,50
Nettobuchwert je Aktie (basierend auf 29.988.336 ausstehenden Aktien der Gesellschaft vor
der Kapitalerhohung im Rahmen der Privatplatzierung)™® ...........ccoooveeeeoeveereseeeeeseseeeean 1,23
Nach-Bérseneinfithrung den Aktionaren zuzurechnendes Eigenkapital®.............cccccovveveeane. 5,21
Betrag, um den der Platzierungspreis das Nach-Bdrseneinfiihrung den Aktiondren
zuzurechnendes Eigenkapital je Aktie ibersteigt (unmittelbare Verwésserung der neuen
Aktionadre der GESEISChATL) .......oiiiiiice e 18,29
Prozentsatz, um den der Platzierungspreis den Nettobuchwert je Aktie Ubersteigt................... 77,8%

(1) Basierend auf 29.988.336 ausstehenden Aktien der Gesellschaft unmittelbar vor der Privatplatzierung und einem Eigenkapital von
Instone in Hohe von minus €11,0 Millionen zum 30. September 2017 und nach Bereinigung um die Darlehen die von den
Gesellschaftern an die Gesellschaft ausgereicht wurden und in Hohe von €48,0 Millionen teilweise gewandelt und in die
Kapitalriicklage der Gesellschaft eingebracht wurden.

(2) Unter Annahme einer erfolgreichen Platzierung der Neuen Aktien zum Mittelwert der Preisspanne.

E.7 Geschatzte Entfallt. Den Anlegern werden von der Gesellschaft, den Bestehenden Aktionéren
Kosten, die dem und den Joint Bookrunners keine Kosten in Rechnung gestellt. Die Anleger haben
Anleger durch ubliche Transaktions- und Bearbeitungsgeblihren zu tragen, die ihnen von ihren

den Emittenten Brokern oder sonstigen Finanzdienstleistern in Rechnung gestellt werden, tber die sie
oder Anbieter in  ihre Wertpapiere halten.

Rechnung gestellt

werden.

S-52




1. RISK FACTORS

An investment in the shares of Instone Real Estate Group B.V. (the “Company”) is subject to risks. In
addition to the other information contained in this prospectus (this “Prospectus”), investors should carefully
consider the following risks when deciding whether to invest in the Company’s shares. The market price of the
Company’s shares could decline if any of these risks were to materialize, in which case investors could lose
some or all of their investment.

The following risks, alone or together with additional risks and uncertainties not currently known to
the Company, or that the Company might currently deem immaterial, could have a material adverse effect on
the business, assets, financial condition, cash flows and results of operations of Instone. The order in which the
risks are presented is not an indication of the likelihood of the risks actually materializing, or the significance or
degree of the risks or the scope of any potential harm to the business, assets, financial condition, cash flows or
results of operations of Instone. The risks mentioned herein may materialize individually or cumulatively.

1.1 Market and Business Risks

1.1.1 Instone is dependent on the German residential property market, the conditions of which may
deteriorate due to macroeconomic developments, changes in interest rates or other factors.

The Company, together with its consolidated subsidiaries (“Instone”), develops modern, urban,
multifamily residential properties and redevelops listed buildings for residential use. Instone’s business is highly
dependent on the German residential real estate market and most significantly affected by developments in, and
related to, the residential real estate sector in Germany’s key metropolitan regions. As of September 30, 2017,
approximately 93% of Instone’s portfolio (by expected sales volume for fully developed projects) was located in
Germany’s key metropolitan regions (Berlin, Bonn, Cologne, Dusseldorf, Frankfurt am Main, Hamburg,
Leipzig, Munich and Stuttgart (including Herrenberg)) and 7% in other prospering medium-sized cities.

The German residential real estate market is currently in a dynamic phase with housing prices growing
strongly in the context of robust housing demand and insufficient and relatively inelastic supply. On average,
housing prices in Germany have risen considerably since 2010, substantially outpacing consumer price inflation
which has remained at very low levels notwithstanding the low interest rate environment and sustained
monetary stimulation by the European Central Bank (“ECB”). Germany’s gross domestic product grew by 1.9%
in 2016 (price-adjusted) and continued moderate growth is forecast for 2017. In general, Germany’s economic
strength and stability has made it a perceived “safe haven” for investors, leading to strong demand and price
increases for German real estate assets.

However, there can be no assurance that the currently favorable situation in the German economy, in
particular the German residential real estate market, will continue. The ongoing refugee crisis and the impending
exit of the U.K. from the European Union have created political and economic uncertainty in Europe. The recent
push by the Catalan regional government for separation from Spain and similar movements for increased
regional autonomy elsewhere in Europe have contributed to this uncertainty. Elsewhere, geopolitical threats,
such as North Korea’s continued intercontinental ballistic missile and nuclear warhead testing, could result in, or
exacerbate the risk of, international conflicts, including war, that could have a negative impact on the global
economy and adversely affect Europe and Germany. Other adverse political or economic developments in or
affecting Germany could also result in higher unemployment rates, lower purchasing power per capita and
increasing economic uncertainty. Such developments could lead to a significant decrease or delay in demand for
residential real estate. Further, demographic and socioeconomic trends could have a significant impact on
demand for residential real estate in Instone’s key markets. While between 2010 and 2015 population in all of
Germany’s key metropolitan regions grew as a result of the growing population in Germany and the trend
toward increased urbanization (Source: bulwiengesa), this trend could reverse itself or become less pronounced.
Net of immigration, Germany’s population as a whole is shrinking and ageing. Lower immigration levels as
well as an ageing society that is less of a driver for urbanization could decrease demand, particularly in Instone’s
key markets.

Moreover, if the recent positive economic development in the Eurozone continues, inflation could
increase and the ECB could be led to raise interest rates from the current level, which, with the base rate at
0.000%, is at a historical low. Recently, the ECB announced a plan to reduce monetary stimulus of the economy
by reducing the pace of its monthly bond repurchases, which is a sign that it expects inflation to increase. If
interest rates increase, the corresponding increase of mortgage lending costs could result in a decline of demand
and sales prices for residential real estate. Increasing interest rates could also shift private and institutional
investors’ interest to higher-yielding investments than residential real estate.



Any of the above developments could result in a deterioration of the currently favorable economic
environment for residential real estate in Germany which could adversely affect Instone’s business, net assets,
financial condition, cash flow, and results of operations.

1.1.2  Instone may achieve lower sales volumes and revenues for its projects than estimated, in particular
if the general housing price level deteriorates.

Estimating the sales volume and revenues of fully developed (re)development projects is inherently
subjective due to the individual nature of each project and is heavily affected by broader market conditions
outside of Instone’s control. Factors such as changes in regulatory requirements and applicable laws (including
in relation to building and environmental regulations, taxation and planning), transport and infrastructure
policies, political conditions, the condition of financial markets, the financial condition of purchasers,
potentially adverse tax consequences and interest and inflation rate fluctuations also contribute to the
uncertainty and potential volatility of forward-looking valuations and projections. Moreover, Instone’s
valuations and projections are made on the basis of assumptions that may not prove to reflect economic or
demographic reality.

Housing prices in Germany have risen sharply in recent years, with real estate prices in cities like
Berlin, Hamburg, Munich and Frankfurt having increased by more than 60% since 2010 (Source: Bundesbank).
Although the Company believes the fundamentals of the real estate market in Germany continue to be sound,
some market observers point to a potential risk in Germany of a real estate bubble due to the sharp rise in
housing prices, continued low interest rates and the willingness of banks to provide highly leveraged financing
to real estate purchasers (Source: Bundesbank). If housing prices in Germany were to decline, Instone’s sales
volumes or margin could decrease.

Instone’s expected sales volumes and revenues for its fully developed project portfolio are estimates
only and are ascertained on the basis of assumptions (including steady housing prices in general and items such
as demand for units and unit sizes, average sales prices, an assumption of construction cost increases of 1.5%
and assumed number of units within (re)developments), which may prove to be inaccurate. Any failure to sell as
many residential units as anticipated, or for at least the sales prices expected, could result in Instone not
achieving its expected sales volume for fully developed projects. There can be no assurance that Instone’s
valuations of land plots or properties or its expected sales volumes or revenues for fully developed projects will
reflect the actual sales volumes and revenues achieved.

Any of the above factors, were they to materialize, could adversely affect Instone’s business, net assets,
financial condition, cash flow, and results of operations.

1.1.3  Instone’s project portfolio is concentrated in terms of geography and project type, which may
increase the risk of loss.

Instone focuses on the development of residential properties and the redevelopment of listed buildings
for residential use in Germany’s key metropolitan regions. As of September 30, 2017, approximately 93% of
Instone’s portfolio (by expected sales volume for fully developed projects) was located in Germany’s key
metropolitan regions (Berlin, Bonn, Cologne, Dusseldorf, Frankfurt am Main, Hamburg, Leipzig, Munich and
Stuttgart (including Herrenberg)) and 7% in other prospering medium-sized cities. Instone’s business is
therefore highly dependent on the German residential real estate market and most significantly affected by
developments in, and related to, the residential real estate sector in Germany’s key metropolitan regions.

As a result of any high levels of concentration, any adverse economic, political or other effects on the
residential development market specifically or the real estate industry in general or limited to such geographic
markets could adversely affect Instone’s business, net assets, financial condition, cash flow, and results of
operations.

1.1.4  Instone is exposed to significant competition, which may intensify in the future.

The German real estate market is competitive. Instone faces competition all along the development
value chain from large real estate developers, such as Bonava Deutschland GmbH (Bonava) and BPD
Immobilienentwicklung GmbH (BPD), which are active in most of the regions and cities focused on by Instone,
and from regional players with specialized knowledge of these markets. Instone competes with other residential
real estate developers for the acquisition of attractive development plots, which are typically limited in number
and in high demand. Moreover, recruiting and retaining skilled personnel which is essential to successfully
operate and further expand Instone’s business, is challenging due to a shortage in qualified personnel in the real



estate development sector, resulting in attractive competing offers by other market participants. The current
growth of the real estate development market also leads to competition with regard to the commissioning of
reliable and experienced third-party suppliers, in particular concept planners, architects, building contractors,
and real estate agents. Finally, Instone faces competition in the sale of residential units, including pricing and
access to potential purchasers.

Some of Instone’s competitors may have comparatively greater name recognition, a broader client
base, a larger or more diversified project portfolio, substantially greater financial, technical and marketing
resources or better access to land acquisitions. These competitors might increase their market presence through
greater use of advertising, more aggressive pricing, or by making more attractive offers to current and future
employees or to companies that do business with Instone. Furthermore, there are generally no significant
barriers to invest in residential real estate developments other than the availability of capital, real estate expertise
and access to land acquisition offers. These are ideal conditions for the entry of new market participants,
including residential real estate companies currently, primarily, or only focused on letting residential real estate,
which could result in competition increasing in the future.

The competition to which Instone is currently exposed and the potential increase of competition in the
German residential real estate development market may lead to a substantial increase of development costs
(including, among others, higher land acquisition and construction costs) or force Instone to lower its sales
prices, any of which could result in lower margins and/or loss of market share thus jeopardizing Instone’s
growth strategy.

Instone’s inability to compete successfully, or to distinguish itself adequately from its competitors,
could adversely affect Instone’s business, net assets, financial condition, cash flow, and results of operations.

1.1.5 Instone may not be able to realize development projects on profitable terms or as scheduled.

Instone’s development activities span the entire development value chain, from the acquisition of land,
land development, concept design and construction management to marketing and sales. The entire development
process may take as long as six years from initial land acquisition through the completion of construction
(potentially in construction phases (Bauabschnitte)) and delivery to purchasers of completed units. Instone
undertakes these developments at its own risk and, given the complexity of the development process and its
inherent uncertainties, Instone’s business model is subject to the risk that the project developments it undertakes
may not be profitable. This may also result in Instone failing to complete construction and delivery of project
developments within the scheduled timeframe.

Instone invests in the acquisition of land plots or properties earmarked for new development without
any certainty that it will find purchasers for its development projects. Instone’s land acquisition strategy focuses
primarily on land plots or properties without zoning or planning permission for residential development
purposes at the time of acquisition, as it believes that such plots or properties typically offer a higher potential
for value creation and less competition than land with full zoning and planning permission. While Instone’s
experienced personnel thoroughly analyzes open zoning or planning requirements prior to any acquisition of
land, negotiations with multiple stakeholders, in particular local authorities, are highly unpredictable and may
result in significant delays and lead to cost increases. Instone could also ultimately fail to obtain zoning plans
(Flachennutzungsplane), land-use plans (Baupléne), or building permits (Baugenehmigungen) suitable for its
residential development projects, in which case it may be forced to sell acquired land plots or properties at a
loss.

Instone seeks to mitigate development risks by selling a significant portion of its residential units in
buildings for which it has obtained building permission prior to the beginning of construction. Typically, Instone
does not initiate construction until at least 30% of the development project has been presold. New development
projects nevertheless proceed largely at Instone’s risk. Given that, generally, 70% of the development project
remains unsold when construction begins, there can be no assurance that Instone will be able to successfully
find purchasers for the rest of the development project. On average, Instone must sell approximately 80% of a
new project development (assuming development is approximately 80% complete) to enable it to cover its
project-related outstanding debt. Any individual factor, or combination of factors, preventing Instone from
successfully managing its development projects, including unanticipated delays, could adversely affect Instone’s
ability to recoup its investment and result in substantial losses. Such delays may also result in increased
construction costs, which Instone may not be able to pass on to purchasers in the form of higher purchase prices,
particularly with regard to units that have already been sold. As a result, Instone may not be able to fully or
partially sell its development properties at all or on profitable terms. Moreover, while the recently amended
German Civil Code (Birgerliches Gesetzbuch) generally excludes ordinary and extraordinary termination rights,



with or without cause, for residential property development contracts, purchasers may have the right to
withdraw from the entire contract, including the purchase of property, if Instone significantly fails to deliver
completed units in compliance with its contractual obligations, fails to rectify such non-compliance and deliver
within the agreed standard and within a reasonable deadline set by such purchaser or refuses to rectify such non-
compliance. In the event purchasers are entitled to withdraw from their purchase contracts, Instone would be
required to reimburse such purchasers’ pre-payments and could face claims for damages.

As of September 30, 2017, Instone expected a sales volume of approximately €3.4 billion from its
project portfolio for fully developed projects. As of the same date, Instone had entered into purchase contracts
with regard to 24% of the residential units projected to be constructed in total and with regard to 75% of the
residential units that are in the pre-construction or construction development phase (in each case measured by
expected sales volume). Furthermore, as of September 30, 2017, Instone had agreed on the sale of two-thirds of
its residential units planned to be completed by 2020 (measured by expected sales volume). Although Instone
has strong risk-management processes, there can be no assurance that Instone will be able to complete
construction and delivery as scheduled or that it will be able to sell the remaining residential units at all or on
profitable terms. Any failure to complete development projects on time and within budget or difficulty in
finding purchasers for the remaining residential units could adversely affect Instone’s business, net assets,
financial condition, cash flow, and results of operations.

1.1.6  Instone’s growth and profitability depends on its ability to identify attractive land plots or listed
buildings and acquire them on attractive terms.

Instone’s mid- and long-term growth depends on its ability to successfully identify and acquire land
plots or listed buildings for residential property development at attractive prices, in the appropriate geographic
locations and on terms that meet Instone’s profitability targets. Instone’s strategy is to focus on the acquisition
of land plots or properties without zoning or planning permission for residential development purposes at the
time of acquisition. This includes, among other matters, old industrial or commercial properties, for the purpose
of (re)developing such properties. Although this approach may require a relatively longer period of time to
fulfill its objectives as compared to acquiring land with zoning or planning permission for residential
development purposes, Instone believes that it may provide a higher potential for value creation.

A key factor contributing to Instone’s growth in the past has been its ability to acquire attractive land
plots and properties via its sourcing network, in particular through the contacts of its branches. There can,
however, be no assurance that Instone’s sourcing network will be able to continue identifying sufficient
attractive acquisition opportunities or that Instone will be able to maintain its sourcing network in the future.
Furthermore, Instone’s ability to acquire land plots or properties without zoning or planning permission for
residential development purposes may be adversely affected by the willingness of sellers to sell such land plots
or properties at attractive prices, the availability of acquisition financing, regulatory requirements including
those in relation to zoning, housing density, the environment, and other market conditions.

As of December 31, 2017, Instone had identified near- to medium-term acquisition opportunities for 40
development projects with a total land area of 1.4 million sgm and an aggregate potential sales volume for fully
developed projects of more than €6.7 billion. As of the same date, Instone had further identified long-term
acquisition opportunities for an additional 31 development projects with a total land area of 1.4 million sgm and
an aggregate potential sales volume for fully developed projects of more than €6.6 billion. There can be no
assurance, however, that Instone will be able to acquire any of the identified land plots or properties on
attractive terms or at all. The emergence of competitors with a business model and strategy similar to Instone
has led to increased demand among developers for attractive development land plots or properties, which has
made it more difficult for Instone to succeed in acquiring them, has resulted in increased acquisition costs and in
a lower than expected acquisition volume. While the increase of acquisition costs has been partially
counterbalanced by an increase of sales prices for residential units, there can be no assurance that acquisition
costs will remain stable within a range of 16% to 20% of the total sales volume. Any of the above factors,
therefore, may result in Instone ultimately being able only to acquire land plots or properties making up an even
smaller percentage of identified acquisition opportunities.

If the availability of land plots or properties without zoning or planning permission for residential
development purposes becomes limited, or Instone fails to identify or acquire such land plots or properties,
Instone’s ability to grow could be significantly limited, the number of residential units it may be able to develop
and sell could be reduced, and its costs per residential unit could be substantially increased, any of which could
adversely affect Instone’s business, net assets, financial condition, cash flow, and results of operations.



1.1.7  Instone may not be able to identify all risks associated with land plots or listed buildings it acquires.

Instone generally conducts a thorough due diligence investigation of land plots or listed buildings it
intends to acquire to identify and evaluate relevant risks. There can, however, be no assurance that the
information provided during any such due diligence exercise is accurate and not misleading and that the review
thereof will reveal all relevant risks. Due to a need for quick reaction to attractive opportunities and constraints
imposed by the sellers, Instone may in some cases only be able to conduct a limited due diligence investigation.
Accordingly, Instone may not always be in a position to identify and examine all risks associated with its
acquisitions of land plots or redevelopment properties, including structural, technical and environmental defects,
as well as negative tax implications (e.g., liability as purchaser for taxes that have not been paid by the seller of
the acquired land plot or redevelopment property). Instone may also not be able to assess whether the original
owners (and potential successors) have obtained, maintained or renewed any relevant required permits and/or
satisfied all associated permit conditions. In addition, the acquired land plots or redevelopment properties may
suffer from hidden defects or damages, and Instone may not be in a position to carry out all investigations,
inspections and appraisals or to obtain the results of such inquiries. Accordingly, in the course of the acquisition
of any land plots or redevelopment property, specific risks may not be, or might not have been, recognized,
evaluated and addressed correctly. Legal and/or economic liabilities may be, or might have been, overlooked or
misjudged.

Although Instone typically obtains warranties from the seller of the respective land plots or
redevelopment properties, it is possible that these warranties do not cover all risks or that they fail to cover such
risks sufficiently. Additionally, such warranties may be unenforceable due to a seller’s insolvency or for other
reasons (e.g., the expiration of such warranties). In some cases, a seller also may refuse to make any
representation or warranty as to risks associated with the acquisition, or make no representation or warranty as
to the sufficiency and correctness of the information made available in the context of a due diligence
investigation, or as to whether such information remains correct during the period between the conclusion of the
due diligence investigation and the closing of the respective acquisition.

The acquisition of land plot or redevelopment properties is subject to further uncertainty and risks,
including the non-completion of a purchase despite Instone having already invested significant amounts of time,
money and management resources to such purchase.

Any of the above factors may result in Instone having difficulties implementing, or being unable to
implement at all, the envisaged development projects. Any such failure could expose Instone to additional costs
and result in termination of contracts and loss of resources already invested, which could adversely affect
Instone’s business, net assets, financial condition, cash flow, and results of operations.

1.1.8  Instone’s business may be adversely affected if it fails to obtain, or if there are any material delays in
obtaining, required zoning or land-use plans and building permits and approvals for its residential
development or redevelopment projects or if these are subsequently withdrawn or challenged.

Instone’s acquisition strategy is to focus on land plots or properties without zoning or planning
permission for residential development purposes at the time of acquisition. This includes, among other matters,
old industrial or commercial properties, for the purpose of (re)developing such properties. In order to begin with
the realization of its development projects, Instone must obtain a variety of approvals from local authorities,
such as zoning plans (Flachennutzungsplane), land-use plans (Bauplane), and building permits
(Baugenehmigungen) suitable for its residential development projects. Instone’s development activities require
further approvals and permits with respect to, among others, protection of listed buildings, density, site
planning, and environmental issues. Obtaining such permits and approvals entails a time-consuming and costly
process involving multiple and overlapping regulatory jurisdictions and is often subject to discretion of local
authorities.

Instone’s ability to obtain the permits required to realize its development projects is dependent on its
ability to meet the relevant regulatory and planning requirements. As of September 30, 2017, Instone owned
land plots and properties in 14 different municipalities, with different political parties in office, and may
therefore need to meet different requirements for each municipality while being subject to various authorities’
discretion in granting such permits.

Instone’s progress on its development activities is highly dependent on the decisions of such local
authorities, and this process is often uncertain and political, and may require significant efforts in order to secure
approvals. There can be no assurance that the necessary approvals and permits will be received, or that they will
be received in a timely manner. Planning regulations and permits could also be challenged within the relevant



statutory period, which could eventually lead to delays in the realization or even in completion of a particular
development project. As a result of the high demand for properties, property owners are in most cases not
willing to agree on option agreements enabling Instone to only acquire the land plot or property if the required
planning permission can be obtained within a set time frame, or to grant Instone withdrawal or price reduction
rights, if the required planning permission cannot be obtained within a set time. Accordingly, Instone has to
generally take the risk that it may never be able to build on an acquired land plot or property.

Moreover, to realize its development concepts, Instone may have to enter into urban development
contracts (stadtebauliche Vertrage) with local authorities. Negotiations with the local authorities in relation to
urban development contracts may result in additional development measures, such as the construction of
kindergartens, school facilities or landscaping of adjacent land, being imposed on Instone. Such urban
development contracts often also require Instone to dedicate a certain percentage of floor space of a
development project for subsidized housing purposes (6ffentlich geférderter Wohnungsbau).

Furthermore, environmental interest groups and owners of adjoining properties have opposed land-use
plans and proposed development plans, and have taken various legal and other actions to partially or completely
restrict development in some areas (e.g., Project Wohnen am Wildpark in Dusseldorf, Project Nemo in
Dusseldorf and Project TheresienstraBe in Munich). In the past, such actions involved opposition and complaints
from environmental interest groups and owners of adjoining properties relating, for example, to the protection of
flora and fauna on the respective building plot or concerning noise emissions due to construction works. While
some of these actions or complaints were successful in the past, settlement of such actions is generally not
associated with high costs and often considered in Instone’s project calculation. Instone generally actively
opposes such actions and does not believe unfavorable rulings would have a significant long-term adverse effect
on its development activities. However, because of the regulatory environment and additional intensive
opposition of such interest groups, there can be no assurance that Instone’s expectations will prove correct. As a
result, Instone’s ability to realize future sales from its project portfolio could be delayed, reduced, prevented or
become more expensive.

Any failure to obtain required approvals and permits on favorable terms or at all, any material delays in
obtaining such approvals and permits, or additional development measures imposed could adversely affect
Instone’s business, net assets, financial condition, cash flow, and results of operations.

1.1.9  Instone may not be able to maintain or obtain sufficient financing on acceptable terms, or at all.

The real estate development industry is capital-intensive and requires significant up-front expenditures
to acquire land plots or properties and carry out (re)development activities.

Instone historically has financed and currently finances its business operations predominantly from
borrowings under individual project financings and therefore depends on the availability of such financing.
There can, however, be no assurance that Instone will be able to maintain its existing project financings or to
secure sufficient further project financing for its business operations, due to various factors. General conditions
for real estate financing are subject to constant change, and the attractiveness of different financing options
depends on a variety of factors beyond Instone’s control, including overall monetary policy, interest rates,
general tax conditions and the value of real estate properties to be used as collateral. For instance, Instone’s
creditors could terminate existing project financings, which are typically subject to regular termination rights
with short notice periods. Lenders may also require increased amounts of equity to be invested in a project by
borrowers in connection with both new loans and the extension of existing loans or higher interest rates. If
Instone is not successful in obtaining sufficient financing for its planned capital and other expenditures, it may
be unable to acquire additional land plots or properties for its (re)development activities or unable to fund their
development. Any difficulty in maintaining or obtaining sufficient capital for planned development expenditures
could also cause project delays and any such delay could result in cost increases. Any one or more of the
foregoing events could adversely affect Instone’s business, net assets, financial condition, cash flow, and results
of operations.

Furthermore, Instone is able to finance a substantial part of its ongoing development costs by means of
the staggered purchase price framework provided by the German Real Estate Agent and Commercial Contractor
Regulation (Makler- und Bautragerverordnung) (“MaBV”). In principle, the staggered payment framework
entitles Instone to receive fixed down payments to be paid by individual purchasers, such as owner-occupiers or
retail buy-to-let investors, of residential units as and when construction milestones are achieved. As a result, to
the extent residential units have been sold, a total of 58% of the agreed purchase price will have been paid to
Instone upon completion of the building shell. However, Instone may not issue the first partial invoice to the
purchaser unless Instone has registered a priority notice (Auflassungsvormerkung) in the land register



(Grundbuch) with respect to the respective purchaser’s title of ownership, or if this process is delayed, until a
surety covering the respective pre-payment amount has been provided to the purchaser (also known as MaBV
Aval). Any significant delays in registering a priority notice (Auflassungsvormerkung) in the land register
(Grundbuch) or in issuing sureties could cause project delays and any such delay could result in cost increases.
If purchasers of Instone’s residential units are consumers and instalment payments have been agreed by the
parties, Instone is further required to issue a surety with respect to 5% of the agreed remuneration upon
beginning of construction works (i.e., when the first instalment under the MaBV is due and payable) (the
“FoSiG Surety”). This obligation to issue a FoSiG Surety was introduced by the Act to Secure Contractor
Claims and Improve the Enforcement of Payment Claims (Forderungssicherungsgesetz (“FoSiG”)). The
purpose of the FoSIiG Surety is to secure contractual performance in a timely and adequate manner and to
protect purchasers from the consequences of an insolvency of project developers. If Instone were unable to
obtain FoSiG Sureties at all or on acceptable terms, it could only request partial instalments from private
investors under the MaBV, if such investors were entitled to deduct from these partial instalments an amount
corresponding to 5% of the agreed remuneration. Any one or more of the foregoing events could adversely
affect Instone’s business, net assets, financial condition, cash flow, and results of operations.

Instone may also in the future seek additional bank borrowings or issue debt for future expansion and
development of its business in the longer term. There can, however, be no assurance that such additional
financing are available at the relevant time or, if available, whether it would be on acceptable terms. If, in the
longer term, Instone does not successfully obtain further financing (should it be required to fund its future
investments), this may constrain its ability to grow by limiting further acquisitions of land plots or properties, as
well as investments in development projects, which could adversely affect Instone’s business, net assets,
financial condition, cash flow, and results of operations.

1.1.10 Instone Real Estate Development GmbH may cease to be able to obtain surety facility agreements at
all or on economically viable terms.

Instone Real Estate Development GmbH, (“Instone Development”) has entered into nine surety
facility agreements (Kautionsversicherungsvertrage) with an aggregate surety volume of approximately €185
million for purposes of providing sureties to the purchasers of its residential units in connection with its
development activities.

Due to its solid equity ratio, Instone Development has been granted favorable terms and an attractive
credit rating by surety facility providers. Compared to Instone Development, the Company has, however, a
lower equity ratio. Given the prevailing view among surety facility providers and credit rating agencies that a
subsidiary cannot be granted a better credit rating than its parent company, Instone Development may not be
able to maintain its current credit rating.

The German Federal Bank (Deutsche Bundesbank) has withdrawn the eligibility of collateral by
Instone for the purposes of Eurosystem credit operations (Notenbankfahigkeit) as a result of the Company’s low
equity ratio. As a result, Instone could incur higher costs under future surety facility agreements or may not be
able to obtain surety facility agreements at all or on economically viable terms and, consequently, may not be
able to provide MaBV sureties and FoSiG Sureties to its purchasers. Consequently, Instone would receive
private investor’s purchase price payments only at the earliest once the completed residential units are handed
over and, with regard to the last 5% of the purchase price, after remediation of defects claimed at acceptance
(Abnahme) of the residential units.

Any of these risks, if they were to materialize, could adversely affect Instone’s business, net assets,
financial condition, cash flow, and results of operations.

1.1.11 The private placement and listing may result in a change of control in the Company, which may
trigger termination and acceleration rights under certain financing agreements.

Some of Instone’s project-related financing agreements concluded with local financing partners grant
such financing partners the right to prematurely terminate the agreement in case of a change of control, merger
or other form of corporate transactions, including the private placement (the “Private Placement”) and listing.
It remains unclear in certain cases of project-related and other financing arrangements whether termination
rights will be triggered as a result of the Private Placement. While Instone believes on the basis of individual
feedback from several of its lenders that none or only a limited number of lenders would exercise such
termination rights, Instone has not obtained formal and binding waivers and it cannot be excluded that
termination rights are exercised. If a lender rightfully exercises his termination right upon a change of control,
Instone would be required to immediately repay the outstanding principal, any accrued interest on and any other



amounts owed by it under such financing agreement. Instone may have difficulty finding an alternate financing
provider on similar terms and in an acceptable timeframe, its costs may increase, its business could be
interrupted and/or the results of its operations could be harmed. The materialization of any of the risks described
above could adversely affect Instone’s business, net assets, financial condition, cash flow, and results of
operations.

1.1.12 Instone is dependent on third-party suppliers and contractors to develop and construct its properties.

Instone is dependent on third-party suppliers and contractors to provide construction and various other
services with respect to the realization of its development projects. In particular, these outsourced services
include architectural design, concept design, construction, and sale of its residential units. As part of its business
strategy, Instone relies on regional networks of qualified and reliable contractors with most of which Instone has
built up longstanding business relationships. Due to the competitive environment in the German residential real
estate sector, particularly in Germany’s key metropolitan areas, qualified and reliable contractors are in great
demand. If Instone is unable to find or hire qualified and reliable contractors for any of its development projects,
its ability to successfully complete projects in time or with the required quality or to sell its residential units
within the expected time frame and price could be impaired.

Despite the contractor selection and monitoring processes that Instone has implemented, its contractors
may fail to meet its standards and deadlines. In particular, although Instone attempts to verify the compliance of
its contractors with health, safety and environmental regulations, labor laws (in particular with respect to the
common issue of illegal employment (Schwarzarbeit) and minimum wage (Mindestlohn) compliance) and other
applicable laws and regulations, any failure by contractors to so comply could render Instone liable in respect of
these obligations. Also, in most cases, Instone does not employ a general contractor for conducting its
development activities, in order to avoid the significant margins generally charged by such general contractor.
Instead, internal project managers assume the role of a general contractor and are responsible for continuously
supervising Instone’s contractors, as well as the individual progress of construction works. If any of these third
parties fails to provide its services in a timely and/or adequate manner, labor, equipment or materials, due to
financial difficulties, reduced availability as a result of increased market demand, or any other reason, Instone
may be required to source these services or materials at a higher price than anticipated and may face material
delays at its project sites until it is able to identify appropriate alternative third parties. Any of these events could
negatively affect Instone’s profitability and cash position, as Instone will not be able to pass on any increased
costs to its purchasers, and it may be liable for damages resulting from project execution delays, any of which
could have an adverse effect on Instone’s reputation and its ability to maintain the high quality standards of its
developments.

In addition, third-party suppliers and contractors have been and may continue to be adversely affected
by economic downturns or poor management decisions. Instone may hire a contractor that subsequently
becomes insolvent, causing cost overruns and project delays and increasing the risk that Instone will be unable
to recover costs in relation to any defective work performed by such contractor, to the extent such costs are not
covered by insurance or other security provided by the contractor. The insolvency or other financial distress of
one or more contractors could cause financial and reputational harm to Instone and also result in substantial
delays in the performance of construction works. Any of these risks, were they to materialize, could adversely
affect Instone’s business, net assets, financial condition, cash flow, and results of operations.

1.1.13 Instone is exposed to the risk of construction defects and of defective construction materials.

With respect to the construction of its development projects, Instone is exposed to various risks relating
to defective construction work or the use or installation of defective construction materials by third-party
suppliers or contractors. Although Instone seeks to obtain warranty, guarantee or indemnity protection in its
contracts with such third-party suppliers and contractors, and has arrangements with insurance providers to
insure against certain risks, it may not be able to obtain this protection in all cases, or the protection may not
cover all risks. Furthermore, Instone may not be able to enforce claims in the respective amount, or at all, due to
the third-party contractor’s or supplier’s insolvency, or for other reasons. Significant liabilities may not be
identified or may only come to light after the expiry of Instone’s warranty, guarantee or indemnity claims. Any
claims relating to defects arising from or related to one of Instone’s development projects may give rise to
contractual or other liabilities, which can extend, depending on the relevant contractual or statutory provisions,
for five years following completion of the development project and may not be covered by claims against
Instone’s contractors or suppliers.



Unexpected levels of expenditure attributable to such construction defects or defective construction
materials arising on a development project may adversely affect Instone’s business, net assets, financial
condition, cash flow, and results of operations.

1.1.14 The construction of new residential properties involves health, safety and environmental risks.

Operating in the residential real estate industry poses certain health, safety, and environmental
(“HSE”)-related risks. A significant HSE incident at one of Instone’s (re)development projects or a general
deterioration in Instone’s HSE standards could put its employees, its contractors or the general public at risk of
injury or death and could lead to litigation, significant penalties or damage to Instone’s reputation.

Instone may be liable for the costs of removal, investigation or remediation of hazardous or toxic
substances (including, but not limited to, asbestos) located on, under or in a property currently or formerly
owned by Instone, whether or not it caused or knew of the pollution. Furthermore, Instone may also be deemed
responsible for latent or historic risks from unknown contamination, or may incur greater liability or costs than
originally anticipated. The costs of remediation, investigation or defending against claims can be substantial,
and they may not be covered by warranties and indemnities from the seller of the affected land plot or property
or by Instone’s insurance policies, or may prove unenforceable.

Any failure in HSE performance, including any delay in responding to changes in HSE regulations,
may result in penalties for non-compliance with relevant regulatory requirements. Monitoring and ensuring HSE
best practices may become increasingly expensive for Instone in the future if additional HSE requirements were
to come into effect. Any of these risks, were they to materialize, could adversely affect Instone’s business, net
assets, financial condition, cash flow, and results of operations.

1.1.15 Sales may not materialize on the terms agreed at the time the contract is signed, if at all.

Instone may not be able to perform its obligations under its sales contracts at all or within the
contractually agreed time frame. This may occur for a variety of reasons, such as a significant increase in costs
making the development not viable or the applicable land-use plan (Bebauungsplan) and/or building permit
(Baugenehmigung) for its development or redevelopment projects being withdrawn or challenged. Instone may
also be unable to perform its obligations under a sales contract, if it does not reach the level of sales necessary to
commence construction of the project (generally a sales level of 30% of the total units planned for a project is
required). In addition, Instone is exposed to the risk of its purchaser not performing their obligations under the
sales contracts including, among other matters, their purchase price payment obligations.

In case Instone fails to perform its obligations under its sales contracts, Instone may need to refund its
purchasers the funds that they had advanced, or its purchasers may terminate their contracts or seek to
renegotiate the terms of their contracts to obtain more favorable terms. With respect to the purchasers failing to
perform their obligations, Instone may be exposed to additional significant costs in litigation or for marketing
and selling the respective unit to other purchasers.

The occurrence of any of these events could affect Instone’s sales and expected sales volumes for fully
developed projects, which could adversely affect its business, net assets, financial condition, cash flow, and
results of operations.

1.1.16 Demand for Instone’s properties depends on purchaser preferences for types of accommodations or
locations of property and perceptions as to the attractiveness or quality of its project developments.

The residential real estate market in which Instone operates is subject to changing purchaser trends,
demands and preferences. Demand and preferences may vary over the course of the development of a project,
which takes up to six years, depending on project phasing, and are mainly outside of Instone’s control. For
instance, targeted purchasers may develop preferences for a different micro-location, neighborhood, specific
home design (such as multifamily condominiums, micro homes, or detached houses), or may otherwise be
influenced by macroeconomic, socioeconomic, or employment dynamics that restrict demand in a specific area.

There can be no assurance that Instone will be able to timely identify and evaluate such changes and
adapt its existing or planned development projects in a timely fashion to suit such changes in purchaser
preferences. Hence, Instone’s failure to timely identify any changes in such trends or preferences, its inability to
adapt its development projects accordingly, or its misinterpretation of such could adversely affect Instone’s
business, net assets, financial condition, cash flow, and results of operations.



1.1.17 Damage to Instone’s reputation, the reputation of the residential real estate development sector as a
whole or inadequate purchaser satisfaction may result in decreased demand for Instone’s
development properties.

Instone’s business and growth strategy is dependent in part on the maintenance of the integrity of
Instone and its reputation for quality. Instone’s reputation can be damaged by a number of factors and events,
some of which may be outside its control. Such factors and events may include unethical or illegal practices of
employees or business partners, labor conditions, incidents at development sites, widespread or significant
construction defects and related claims for damages, inability to meet purchaser preferences, negative media
coverage (including social media), or actual or threatened litigation. In addition, Instone may face disagreements
with local authorities and/or regulatory bodies in the course of its operations, which may be subject to
administrative proceedings and unfavorable orders, directives or decrees that result in financial losses and delay
the completion of its development projects. There can be no assurance that Instone will be able to adequately
and timely detect or respond to such threats to its reputation.

Instone’s reputation may also suffer from actions taken by one or more of its competitors resulting in
an industry-wide contagion stemming from misconduct at one of its peers. Residential real estate developments
entail significant public interest. The range and likelihood of reputational risks deriving from negative publicity
therefore tends to be higher than that of other businesses. Real estate developers may become the subject of
political debate, for example, by being blamed for the potential negative impacts of the design or location of
their development projects. As most real estate development projects are both long-term and highly visible in
their communities, the risk of becoming associated with dubious actions by a competitor is higher. In such a
situation, the reputation of the entire sector may be tarnished, and all market participants may suffer the
consequences of significant adverse publicity.

Any loss of reputation, whether in or outside Instone’s control, could result in a decreased demand for
Instone’s development projects, Instone being unable to raise capital on favorable terms or at all, Instone being
exposed to stricter regulation and/or opposition from public authorities, or strained key relationships with its
third-party suppliers, contractors and other service providers, any of which may adversely affect Instone’s
business, net assets, financial condition, cash flow, and results of operations.

1.1.18 Constraints on the availability and higher costs of mortgage funding may adversely affect Instone’s
sales.

The vast majority of residential property purchases in Germany are usually facilitated through
mortgage lending. Instone’s business therefore partly depends upon the ability of Instone’s purchasers to obtain
such mortgage lending.

Access to residential mortgage lending in Germany may be restricted due to a number of factors,
including the exit of a number of mortgage providers from the German and/or European market, more stringent
equity requirements for German financial entities, a more cautious approach to valuations of properties by
surveyors (which, in turn, reduces the value of the mortgage loan that can be obtained on a given property),
stricter underwriting standards by lenders that have resulted in more stringent mortgage application
requirements for borrowers (including increased down payments), a desire by certain lenders to limit their
lending exposure in relation to specific types of housing developments, and the reduction or discontinuation of
government-backed residential property financing purchase assistance programs, such as Kreditanstalt flr
Wiederaufbau’s (KfW) promotional loans.

Mortgage lending rates for private homeowners predominantly bear fixed interest rates for at least ten
years in Germany. Interest rates for new mortgages (or prolongations of mortgages) are closely linked to the
ECB’s main refinancing rate. An increase in interest rates would increase mortgage costs and may negatively
affect the availability or attractiveness of mortgage loans as a source of financing for the acquisition of
residential property and, accordingly, reduce demand, and potentially sales prices, for Instone’s residential units.
Individual investors who could obtain a mortgage loan at current interest rates may not be able to obtain a
mortgage loan at increased interest rates or be deterred by increased interest rates (and, in turn, higher monthly
interest payments) and instead elect to remain in their current property. Institutional investors who had been
looking to invest in property could also be deterred by the possibility of increased interest rates, as higher
interest rates could negatively affect their investment returns, and they may make a higher-yielding investment
in a different sector.

Regardless of the type of investor, limited availability of mortgage lending may constrain growth in
sales volumes and housing prices in the German residential development industry. Even if potential purchasers
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do not themselves need financing, adverse changes in interest rates and mortgage availability could make it
more difficult for them to sell their existing homes to other potential purchasers who need mortgage financing,
thereby constraining their ability to purchase a new home.

Any decrease in the availability or higher costs of mortgage financing in the future may make it more
difficult for Instone to sell its residential units, which could adversely affect Instone’s business, net assets,
financial condition, cash flow, and results of operations.

1.1.19 Non-compliance with certain building requirements with respect to Instone’s redevelopment of listed
buildings may adversely affect its business.

In addition to Instone’s regular development activities, Instone engages in the redevelopment of listed
buildings in Germany. Instone primarily engages in redevelopment activities through its subsidiary Instone Real
Estate Leipzig GmbH Leipzig (former GRK-Holding GmbH) (“Instone Leipzig™) that primarily engages itself
in redevelopment activities and contributes significant operating performance and assets. In 2016, Instone
Leipzig contributed €53.6 million of Instone’s total operating performance of €362.6 million and owned €125.4
million of the total of €542.7 million inventories.

In order to enable its purchasers to benefit from the favorable tax framework provided by current
German tax legislation (see “1.1.20 Changes in German tax legislation allowing for special depreciation of
redevelopment investments in listed buildings may adversely affect Instone’s business.”), Instone is required to
comply with certain building requirements with respect to the redevelopment of listed buildings under
applicable heritage protection laws (Denkmalschutzgesetze). If Instone fails to comply with such requirements,
its purchasers may not be able to apply the special depreciation rate on the portion of the purchase price that
relates to the redevelopment of listed buildings. The special depreciation rate is, however, one of the main
selling points for redeveloped listed buildings. In case Instone’s purchasers are not able to benefit from the
special depreciation rate due to Instone’s non-compliance with applicable building requirements, Instone may be
required to refund its purchasers the funds that they had advanced, or its purchasers may terminate their
contracts or seek to renegotiate the terms of their contracts to obtain more favorable terms. The occurrence of
any of these events could adversely affect Instone’s business, net assets, financial condition, cash flow, and
results of operations.

1.1.20 Changes in German tax legislation allowing for special depreciation of redevelopment investments
in listed buildings may adversely affect Instone’s business.

Current German tax legislation allows purchasers to apply a special depreciation rate on the portion of
the purchase price that relates to the redevelopment of listed buildings. In particular, investors are entitled to
depreciate 9% of their redevelopment costs per annum over a period of eight years and additional 7% per annum
over a subsequent period of four years, resulting in the possibility to depreciate the total redevelopment costs
over a period of twelve years in total. Investors occupying the property (owner-occupiers) are entitled to
depreciate 9% of their redevelopment costs per annum over a period of ten years.

The special depreciation is one of the main selling factors for redeveloped listed buildings. Any change
in German tax law with respect to the deductibility of redevelopment costs may lead to a reduced demand for
Instone’s redevelopment properties, which could adversely affect Instone’s business, net assets, financial
condition, cash flow, and results of operations.

1.1.21 Instone may incur a variety of costs to engage in future growth or expansion, and the anticipated
benefits may never be realized.

Instone intends to grow its operations in existing markets, and it may expand into new markets or seek
to acquire other real estate portfolios. Instone may be unable to achieve the anticipated benefits of any such
growth or expansion (including through acquisitions), or it may incur greater costs than expected in attempting
to achieve the anticipated benefits. Growth or expansion could disrupt Instone’s ongoing operations and divert
management resources that would otherwise focus on developing its existing business, in which case Instone
may need to employ additional personnel or consultants that are knowledgeable of such markets. There can be
no assurance that Instone will be able to employ or retain the necessary personnel, to successfully implement a
disciplined management process and culture with local management, or that its expansion operations will be
successful. Accordingly, any such expansion could expose Instone to significant risks, beyond those associated
with operating its existing business, which could adversely affect Instone’s business, net assets, financial
condition, cash flow, and results of operations.
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1.1.22 Instone may lose key personnel or may be unable to recruit qualified personnel for key positions.

Instone’s success greatly depends on the performance of the members of the Company’s management
board and other qualified employees in key positions. In particular, Instone’s key employees are fundamental to
its ability to successfully generate and manage its business opportunities, including, among other matters, in the
acquisition of land, land development, concept design, construction management, and marketing and sales, in
every stage of which local knowledge and relationships are key to Instone’s success.

Furthermore, Instone may need to hire additional qualified employees if its future growth exceeds the
capacities of its current platform, or if Instone is forced to replace qualified employees. Even though key
positions at Instone have been occupied for many years with qualified and experienced real estate experts and
Instone aims to provide attractive working conditions, due to the intense competition for qualified personnel in
the residential real estate sector, there can be no assurance that Instone will be able to hire and retain sufficiently
qualified key employees on acceptable terms in the future. If any key personnel leave and carry on any activities
that compete with Instone, it may lose potential purchasers, other key professionals and staff members, and legal
remedies against such individuals may be limited.

The loss of any key employees or failure to attract new qualified employees could impair Instone’s
growth and make it difficult to maintain its business activities at current levels and therefore could adversely
affect Instone’s business, net assets, financial condition, cash flow, and results of operations.

1.1.23 Instone is exposed to risks related to natural disasters and risks resulting from acts of terrorism
affecting its properties.

Instone’s development projects are exposed to risks relating to natural disasters and acts of terrorism.
Disastrous natural events, such as storms, floods, fires, earthquakes, or terrorist incidents in locations where
Instone’s development projects are located may result in damage to Instone’s project portfolio, increased costs
for development site reparations and lower property values. In particular, such natural disasters as well as
certain acts of terrorism or vandalism may cause structural damage to existing groundwork, infrastructure or
construction, thereby leading to additional costs for Instone that may not be, in whole or in part, covered by
Instone’s insurance policies and could have an adverse effect on Instone’s business, net assets, financial
condition, cash flow, and results of operations.

1.1.24 Instone is dependent on the undisrupted operation and security of its infrastructure and information
technology (“IT”) that is a key component of its risk management system.

Instone’s business operations are dependent on reliable and efficient IT systems. Instone uses a
sophisticated IT system tailored to the requirements of managing its development activities. In particular, all
procurement activities and other project-related costs exceeding €1,000 are filed in Instone’s electronic award
procedure system through which project costs are monitored and individual trades are authorized throughout the
project development process. Instone has, however, not yet completed the ongoing implementation of its IT
system at the level of Instone Leipzig. As a result, Instone has a higher risk profile with respect to its
redevelopment activities.

Instone’s IT systems could fail to operate properly or become disabled as a result of events that are
wholly or partially beyond Instone’s control and be vulnerable to unauthorized access and data loss (from within
or outside the group), computer viruses, malicious code, cyber-attacks that have a security impact, and the
interception or misuse of information transmitted or received by Instone.

Instone has put in place data security provisions (and is currently implementing such provisions at the
level of Instone Leipzig) that it believes are appropriate and sufficient, but there can be no assurance that it will
not suffer such events in the future. If one or more of such events were to occur, it could cause serious
interruptions or malfunctions in Instone’s business operations and risk management systems. It could further
result in the loss of Instone’s or its purchasers’ confidential and other information. Instone may be subject to
litigation, reputational harm and financial losses that are either not insured against or not fully covered through
any insurance maintained by it. Any of the foregoing could adversely affect Instone’s business, net assets,
financial condition, cash flow, and results of operations.
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1.1.25 The integration of Instone Leipzig into Instone may not be successful or not proceed as planned and
may result in higher costs than expected.

The integration of Instone Leipzig into Instone is expected to be fully completed by December 31,
2018 and may still require considerable management and financial resources. In particular, the final
implementation of Instone’s IT, risk management and compliance systems at Instone Leipzig is particularly
relevant for a successful integration and comparable group-wide risk profile. Furthermore, it is also important
that existing staff is integrated, different company cultures are connected and common processes for the
integration of Instone Leipzig into Instone are put into place. As of the date of this Prospectus, the integration of
Instone Leipzig was on schedule, time- and resource-wise. However, any failure or significant delay in
completing the integration of Instone Leipzig into Instone may result in the loss of qualified and experienced
employees, the loss of synergy effects or the materialization of a weakness in Instone’s risk management and
monitoring at Instone Leipzig. This could adversely affect Instone’s business, net assets, financial condition,
cash flow, and results of operations.

1.1.26 Instone could incur substantial losses from damage not covered by, or exceeding the coverage limits
of, its insurance policies.

While Instone is insured against fire, natural disasters, operational interruptions and third-party
liability, Instone’s insurance policies are subject to exclusions (€.g., acts of terrorism) and limitations of liability
both in amount and with respect to the insured events. There can be no assurance that Instone’s assessment that
it is sufficiently insured against contingencies is accurate. Even where Instone has obtained sufficient insurance
coverage, its insurance providers could become insolvent, requiring Instone to bear any liabilities and losses. If
Instone suffers a loss or incurs a liability against which it is uninsured or insufficiently insured, this could
adversely affect Instone’s business, net assets, financial condition, cash flow, and results of operations.

1.1.27 Land plots and real estate properties can be illiquid assets and could significantly impede Instone’s
ability to respond to adverse changes in the real estate or financial markets.

Land plots and real estate properties can be relatively illiquid, meaning that they may not be easily sold
and converted into cash. Although Instone acquires land plots and properties for (re)development purposes and
generally expects to sell such assets in the form of residential units following completion of development,
Instone may seek to, or be required to, sell entire land plots or properties in certain circumstances, including due
to changes in development plans, failure to obtain required building permits, its decision not to proceed with the
development, changes in economic or property market conditions, negative political developments affecting the
residential real estate market or financial distress. Such illiquidity may affect Instone’s ability to value, or
dispose of or liquidate part of, its project portfolio in a timely fashion and at satisfactory prices when required or
desirable, and it may incur additional costs until it is able to sell such land plots or properties. This could have a
material adverse effect on Instone’s business, net assets, financial condition, cash flow, and results of
operations.

1.1.28 The valuation report and financial information contained in this Prospectus may incorrectly assess
the value of Instone’s properties.

The valuation report on the fair value of Instone’s properties and property-related assets as of
September 30, 2017 (the “Valuation Report”) included in this Prospectus was prepared by the independent
appraiser BNP Paribas Real Estate Consult GmbH (“BNP Paribas Real Estate”). A property’s valuation
depends on the factors considered and on the valuation method used. The Valuation Report is based on standard
valuation principles, and represents the opinion of BNP Paribas Real Estate. In addition to considering a
property’s location, condition and sales status, a property appraiser may consider such other factors as: the
general market environment, interest rates, real estate tax rates, real estate transfer tax (Grunderwerbsteuer)
rates, operating expenses, land values, development potential and demand, expected further development costs,
expected development value, potential claims for environmental problems and risks associated with certain
construction materials. A negative change in one of the assumptions used or factors considered in valuing a
property can considerably decrease the assessed value of the property. Moreover, a change in the factors
considered may cause valuation results to differ significantly.

The Valuation Report is thus made on the basis of assumptions and is inherently subjective and subject
to uncertainty, as the assumptions may not prove to be accurate, and because of the individual nature of each
land plot and property which may prove in hindsight to not have been accurate. For example, the Valuation
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Report includes assumptions as at and prior to the date of the Valuation Report as to stable economic and
political conditions and is based in part on property information provided by Instone and which may have varied
if made as at the date of this Prospectus or which may not be realized in practice. Therefore, land and property
valuations might not accurately reflect the market value of Instone’s projects at a given date and there can be no
assurance that the indicated property valuations would reflect actual sales prices in the event that such real estate
were to be sold or liquidated, even if such sale or liquidation were to occur shortly after the relevant valuation
date. Accordingly, the Valuation Report does not necessarily represent future or current realistically expected
sales prices of Instone’s properties.

The property valuations contained in the Valuation Report are stated as at September 30, 2017, and
although Instone believes there has been no material change to the aggregate market value of its properties,
there can be no assurance that these figures accurately reflect the market value of Instone’s properties as at any
other date. The market value of Instone’s properties may decline significantly over time due to various factors.
In addition, the values ascribed by BNP Paribas Real Estate should not be taken as an indication of the amounts
that could be obtained by Instone upon disposal of such properties, whether in the context of the sale of
individual properties or the portfolio as a whole. Furthermore, the periods in which Instone completes its
projects may not coincide with the actual recognition of revenues in relation to those projects in accordance with
the applied accounting standards as the recognition of sale occurs upon the transfer of the property to the
purchaser (the so-called completed contracts method).

In addition, erroneous valuations in connection with the acquisition of properties could result in Instone
being unable to achieve the returns expected from the disposal of such properties. This could adversely affect
Instone’s business, net assets, financial condition, cash flow, and results of operations.

1.2 Regulatory, Legal and Tax Risks

1.2.1 Changes to applicable law and/or regulations in the residential real estate sector may adversely
affect the sustainable success of Instone’s business model.

Instone is required to comply with a wide range of laws and regulations and their application by local
authorities. These relate, in particular, to land use, planning, developing, building (requiring, for example, fire,
health and safety protection measures), environmental protection, consumer protection and employment.

Changes in relevant laws, regulations or policies (or the interpretation thereof), as well as
administrative requirements, may give rise to substantial compliance, remediation and other costs (including
penalties) in connection with Instone’s development activities. Furthermore, significant planning uncertainty
and additional development costs may arise from legislative initiatives and the public debates they engender,
even if they do not ultimately become law. Any of these factors may prevent or severely restrict Instone from
developing and building in certain locations. There may also be changes in laws or regulations between the time
when Instone acquires a particular site and before Instone obtains a building permit (Baugenehmigung), which
may cause delays, increase costs, reduce the expected rate of return or make a proposed development project
financially unviable.

Accordingly, actual or potential changes to applicable local laws, regulations, policies and
administrative requirements in the residential real estate sector as well as the risk of conditions being imposed
by local authorities may result in significant planning uncertainty, and additional development costs could have
a material adverse effect on Instone’s business, net assets, financial condition, cash flow, and results of
operations.

1.2.2  Non-compliance with the Real Estate Agent and Commercial Contractor Regulation (Makler- und
Bautragerverordnung (MaBV)) or the German Trade Regulation (Gewerbeordnung (GewO)) could
result in administrative fines (BuRgelder) or a revocation of Instone’s license entitling it to receive
staggered down payments from private purchasers upon the achievement of certain development
milestones.

As a residential real estate developer, Instone is subject to the German Trade Regulation
(Gewerbeordnung) (“GewO”) and the Real Estate Agent and Commercial Contractor Regulation (Makler- und
Bautragerverordnung) (“MaBV?”). Instone holds a license (Erlaubnis) pursuant to Sec. 34c of the GewO
allowing it to conduct its development business under the GewQO and the MaBV.
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Prior to granting such license, the relevant authorities review whether the applicant (in case of a legal
entity, the members of its management board) is reliable (zuverlassig) as required for the exercise of this trade.
Each real estate developer is required to undergo an annual audit with respect to its obligations under the MaBV.
The GewO and the MaBV provide for a broad range of administrative obligations (e.g., provision of security,
record keeping, information, reporting and notification requirements), the non-compliance with which could
result in administrative fines (BufRgelder) or even a revocation of the license.

If Instone repeatedly failed to comply with its obligations under the GewO and the MaBV and/or if the
members of the Company’s management board were no longer considered reliable (zuverlassig), the competent
local authorities could accordingly impose administrative fines (Bufigelder) or even revoke Instone’s license.

A revocation of Instone’s license would render Instone no longer entitled to request and receive
staggered down payments from certain purchasers of real estate, such as owner-occupiers and retail buy-to-let
investors, upon the achievement of certain development milestones (e.g., 30% down payment upon start of
ground works, further instalments to be paid depending on the progress of construction activities) as provided by
the MaBV. This staggered payment framework enables real estate developers to partially cover ongoing
development costs under certain conditions. A revocation of this license could have a material adverse effect on
Instone’s business, net assets, financial condition, cash flow, and results of operations.

1.2.3  Standard terms and conditions used in Instone’s agreements with purchasers, architects, and
construction companies may be invalid.

Instone uses standardized clauses in its contractual relationships with a large number of parties, in
particular with its purchasers. Any invalid provisions or ambiguities in standardized contracts can therefore
affect a multitude of contractual relationships. Standardized contract terms under German law have to comply
with the rules of the German Civil Code (Burgerliches Gesetzbuch) on general terms and conditions (Allgemeine
Geschéftsbedingungen). This means that standardized contract terms are subject to fairness control by
competent courts regarding their content and the way they are presented to the other contractual party by
Instone. As a general rule, standardized terms are invalid if they are not transparent, are unclearly worded,
unbalanced or discriminatory. Any standardized clauses in Instone’s contracts found invalid could lead to a
substantial number of claims being brought against Instone.

In addition, Instone uses standardized agreements vis-a-vis architects. In Germany, the German Fee
Regulations for Architects and Engineers (Honorarordnung fiir Architekten und Ingenieure (HOAI)) imposes
mandatory fee rules on architects and their counterparties. Instone’s standardized agreements with architects do
not adhere in every regard to the minimum fee requirements pursuant to the German Fee Regulations for
Architects and Engineers. As a result, Instone could be required to pay higher fees than contractually agreed
upon, if an architect successfully claims compensation pursuant to the German Fee Regulations for Architects
and Engineers.

Further, Instone uses standardized agreements vis-a-vis building contractors that deviate in part from
Part B of the German Construction Contract Procedures (Vergabe- und Vertragsordnung fiir Bauleistungen, Teil
B (VOB/B)). If Part B of the German Construction Contract Procedures is incorporated without any changes, the
agreements are not subject to the German law on general terms and conditions pursuant to the rules of the
German Civil Code (Burgerliches Gesetzbuch). As a result of the deviation from Part B of the German
Construction Contract Procedures, some provisions in Instone’s construction contracts may be found unfair and
void under the German law on general terms and conditions. Consequently, Instone could also incur higher
construction cost, thereby decreasing its profits.

Furthermore, Instone, uses standardized sales contracts vis-a-vis certain purchasers in order to benefit
from favorable provisions provided by the MaBV. For example, the staggered payment framework under the
MaBYV entitles Instone to fixed down payments to be paid by certain purchasers of its residential units as and
when construction milestones are achieved. However, these provisions are only applicable to sales contracts
with owner-occupiers and retail buy-to-let investors. As a result of a deviation from the MaBYV, certain
provisions in Instone’s sales contracts may be found unfair and void.

The occurrence of any one or more of the aforementioned risks could adversely affect Instone’s
business, net assets, financial condition, cash flow, and results of operations.
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1.2.4  Instone’s compliance systems may not have been, or may not be, sufficient to adequately prevent or
detect legal, financial and operational risks.

Instone’s business is subject to various laws and regulations relating to, among other things, prevention
of illegal employment, bribery and corruption (for example, in connection with land-use plans or building
permits), and money laundering, as well as compliance with antitrust, data protection, consumer protection and
minimum wage regulations. Instone is reliant on the compliance of its employees and the members of the
Company’s management board with applicable laws and compliance policies implemented by Instone. In 2015,
Instone implemented a set of detailed guidelines including compliance policies and procedures at the level of
Instone Development to further enhance its compliance management following its carve-out from HOCHTIEF
Solutions AG. After the acquisition of Instone Leipzig, Instone started implementing such set of compliance
guidelines on a group-wide level by extending these to Instone Leipzig in 2017. For example, Instone currently
has a policy in place which requires it to request clearance certificates (Unbedenklichkeitsbescheinigungen)
relating to the legal employment of employees as well as minimum wage certificates from its contractors on a
regular basis. However, Instone has not yet fully completed the implementation of its compliance system at the
level of Instone Leipzig which significantly increases Instone’s compliance-related risk exposure with respect to
its redevelopment activities. Instone expects the integration of Instone Leipzig into Instone, in particular with
respect to the roll-out of its group-wide compliance policies and procedures, to be fully completed by the end of
2018.

In general, it cannot be excluded that employees or members of the management board have committed
or will commit criminal, unlawful or unethical acts (including corruption) or that Instone’s compliance and risk
management and its monitoring capabilities may prove insufficient to prevent or detect any breaches of the law.
Any such acts or breaches of law could cause significant civil penalties and damage claims, as well as
considerable damage to Instone’s reputation in the real estate market, thereby negatively affecting future
business opportunities and could have a material adverse effect on Instone’s business, net assets, financial
condition, cash flow, and results of operations.

1.25 If the Company fails to maintain an effective system of internal controls, it may not be able to
accurately determine its financial results and may be required to restate its financial statements, as a
result of which the Company’s shareholders could lose confidence in the Company’s financial
results.

Effective internal controls are necessary for the Company to provide reliable financial reports.
However, a control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not
absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Further, the design of control systems
reflects resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered in relation to their costs.
Accordingly, there can be no assurance that all control issues will be detected. The Company cannot be certain
that it will be successful in maintaining adequate internal control over its financial reporting and financial
processes. The integration of Instone Leipzig and Instone Development under the Company increased the
complexity of Instone’s internal control systems and required an adequate allocation of the purchase prices of
the acquisition of Instone Leipzig and Instone Development. Furthermore, in connection with the Private
Placement and as Instone continues to grow its business, its internal controls will become more complex, and it
will require significantly more resources to ensure its internal controls remain effective. Additionally, the
existence of any material weakness or significant deficiency would require management to devote significant
time and incur significant expense to remediate any such material weaknesses or significant deficiencies and
management may not be able to remediate any such material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in a timely
manner. Any of the above effects could also result in errors in the Company’s financial statements, requiring it
to restate its financial statements, causing it to fail to meet its reporting obligations and causing shareholders to
lose confidence in its reported financial information, all of which could have a material adverse effect on
Instone’s business, net assets, financial condition, cash flow, and results of operations.

1.2.6  Instone is exposed to risks from ongoing and potential future litigation and other legal and
regulatory actions and risks, and could incur significant liabilities and substantial legal fees.

Instone is, and may become, a party to legal disputes, administrative proceedings and government
investigations. Such legal disputes, proceedings and investigations may, in particular, arise from its relationships
with investors, employees, third-party facility managers, building contractors and other contractual
counterparties, neighbors and public authorities alleging breaches of contract, tort or the failure to comply with
applicable laws and regulations. Instone may be required to pay damages or fines and to take, or to refrain from
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taking, certain actions. There may also be investigations by governmental authorities into circumstances of
which Instone is currently not aware or which will arise in the future, including possible regulatory and
environmental laws, licensing requirements or criminal proceedings.

If Instone were to be found liable under any such claims or even if complaints, lawsuits or
investigations brought against Instone are unsuccessful, they could result in significant liabilities and substantial
legal fees which could adversely affect Instone’s business, net assets, financial condition, cash flow, and results
of operations.

1.2.7  Instone may become taxable in a jurisdiction other than Germany and this may result in an increase
of Instone’s tax burden.

The Company is an entity incorporated under Dutch law, but with its place of effective management in
Germany (and not in the Netherlands) and the Company is a tax resident corporation of Germany under German
national tax law but also deemed to be tax resident in the Netherlands (dual tax resident). However, based on its
current management structure and current tax laws of Germany and the Netherlands, as well as applicable
income tax treaties, and current interpretations thereof, it should be tax resident solely in Germany for the
convention between the Federal Republic of Germany and the Netherlands for the avoidance of double taxation
with respect to taxes on income of 2012.

The applicable tax laws, tax treaties or interpretations thereof may change. Furthermore, whether the
question of place of management is largely a question of fact and degree based on all circumstances, rather than
a question of law, which facts and degree may also change. Changes to applicable laws or interpretations thereof
and changes to applicable facts and circumstances (for example, a change of board members or the place where
board meetings take place), may result in the Company becoming a tax resident of a jurisdiction other than
Germany. As a consequence, Instone’s overall effective income tax rate and income tax expense could
materially increase, which could have a material adverse effect on Instone’s business, results of operation,
financial condition and prospects, which could cause the Company’s share price and trading volume to decline.
However, if there is a double tax treaty between Germany and the respective other country similar to the current
one with the Netherlands the double taxation of income may be avoided. Thus, the detrimental tax effects should
be mitigated by the application of the respective double tax treaty.

1.2.8  Instone may withhold tax on dividends in Germany and the Netherlands.

As an entity incorporated under Dutch law, but with its place of effective management in Germany
(and not in the Netherlands), dividends paid by the Company are generally subject to German dividend
withholding tax and not Dutch dividend withholding tax. Dutch dividend withholding tax will be required to be
withheld from dividends if and when paid to Dutch resident holders of the Company’s shares (and non-Dutch
resident holders of the Company’s shares that have a permanent establishment in the Netherlands to which their
shareholding is attributable). As a result, upon a payment (or deemed payment) of dividends, the Company will
be required to identify its shareholders in order to assess whether there are Dutch residents (or non-Dutch
residents with a permanent establishment to which the shareholding is attributable) in respect of which Dutch
dividend tax has to be withheld. Such identification may not always be possible in practice. The Company may
approach the competent Dutch tax authorities prior to a payment (or deemed payment) of dividends to apply for
a tax ruling confirming that no withholding of any Dutch dividend tax is applicable at all (as the dividend
withholding tax can generally be credited against a Dutch resident shareholder’s income tax). The outcome of
tax ruling requests is uncertain. If a favorable tax ruling cannot be obtained and if the identity of the
shareholders cannot be established, both German and Dutch dividend tax from such dividend may have to be
withheld upon a payment (or deemed payment) of dividends.

1.2.9 Instone may be adversely affected by changes to the general tax environment in Germany and the
Netherlands as such changes might result in an increase of Instone’s tax burden.

Instone is dependent on the general tax environment in Germany and the Netherlands. Instone’s tax
burden depends on various tax laws, as well as their application and interpretation. For instance, further
increases in the real estate transfer tax (Grunderwerbsteuer) rate, as experienced in the majority of the German
federal states in the past years, could make the acquisition of land plots or properties more expensive, adversely
affect Instone’s business, and also have an impact on the expected sales volume for its fully developed projects.
Instone’s taxation depends on the current and expected tax environment. Amendments to German or Dutch tax
laws may have a retroactive effect and their application or interpretation by tax authorities or courts may change
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more or less unexpectedly. This may also increase Instone’s tax burden. Furthermore, court decisions are
occasionally limited to their specific facts by tax authorities by way of non-application decrees.

It can also not be excluded that the current RETT regime for sale and transfer of shares or interests will
be amended in near future. There is an ongoing discussion regarding a possible significant reduction of the 95%
ceiling. At the moment a reduction to 50% (which would trigger RETT on a pro rata basis) and to 75% (which
would trigger 100% RETT) as well as a look-through approach is being considered. The outcome of the current
discussion is uncertain.

Furthermore, as a holding company, the Company’s ability to distribute dividends depends to a large
extent on dividend payments by its subsidiaries. Among other things, these intra-group distributions are subject
to withholding tax (Kapitalertragssteuer) on multiple intra-group levels. No assurance can be given that the
taxation of intra-group distributions may not negatively affect the Company’s ability to pay dividends in the
future.

Moreover, the Company and the Company’s subsidiaries are regularly subject to tax audits in Germany
and the Netherlands. The most recent tax audits with respect to Instone Leipzig covered the financial years from
2012 up to and including 2014 and with respect to Instone Development the financial year 2013, respectively.
With respect to the Company, no tax audit has been ordered as of September 30, 2017. Future tax audits and
other investigations could result in the assessment of additional taxes and result in an increase of Instone’s
future tax burden. In particular, this may be the case with respect to corporate measures or impairment on
properties with regard to which tax authorities could take the view that they ought to be disregarded for tax
purposes. Furthermore, given the legal uncertainties regarding German regulation of earning stripping rules
(Zinsschranke) which limits the deductibility of interest expenses for German tax purposes, it cannot be ruled
out that the tax authorities might not accept all tax deductions for interest payments. In addition, expenses could
be treated as non-deductible. While Instone is only entitled to deductions of input value-added tax to a very
limited extent, tax authorities could also not accept such deductions of input value-added tax. Any of these
findings could lead to an increase in the Company’s and the Company’s subsidiaries’ tax obligations and could
result in the assessment of penalties. The Company and the Company’s subsidiaries have established, and will
continue to establish, provisions for risks associated with audits based on its past experience. These provisions,
however, may prove to be insufficient and when paid may negatively impact the Company’s and the Company’s
subsidiaries’ cash flow.

In addition, Instone is and may become party to tax proceedings, the outcome of which may not be
predictable and may turn out to be detrimental to Instone.

The materialization of any of these risks could adversely affect Instone’s business, net assets, financial
condition, cash flow, and results of operations.

1.2.10 Instone has undergone, and is expected to undergo, significant reorganizations, including the
planned conversion of the Company into a German stock corporation (Aktiengesellschaft), which
may result in an additional tax burden.

In the financial years 2014 through 2017, which have not yet been subject to a tax audit, Instone
underwent significant reorganizations, involving, among other things, the combination of Instone Development
and Instone Leipzig under Instone Real Estate Group B.V. The integration of Instone Leipzig and Instone
Development under the Company required the Company to determine an adequate allocation of the purchase
prices of the acquisition of Instone Leipzig and Instone Development, which could be challenged by the
competent tax authorities.

As of the date of this Prospectus, the Company is a private limited liability company (besloten
vennootschap met beperkte aansprakelijkheid) incorporated under the laws of the Netherlands. Its legal form
will be converted into a public company with limited liability (naamloze vennootschap (N.V.)), incorporated
under the laws of the Netherlands, shortly after the determination of the placement price of the placement shares
(the “Placement Shares”) and before payment for, and delivery of, the Placement Shares, effected by a notarial
deed of conversion and amendment of its articles of association (the “Articles of Association”) and in
accordance with a resolution of the Company’s general shareholders’ meeting (the “General Meeting”) to be
adopted at or prior to such time (the “N.V. Conversion™).

As Instone’s business activities and properties are geographically concentrated in Germany, the
Company plans to propose to its General Meeting to resolve upon the conversion of the Company into a German
stock corporation (Aktiengesellschaft), governed by the laws of the Federal Republic of Germany and having its
registered seat in Essen, Germany (the “AG Conversion”). The resolution to convert the Company into a
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German stock corporation is expected to be proposed as joint proposal of the Management Board and the
Supervisory Board and will as such require a simple majority (50%) of the votes cast. The existing shareholders,
Cooperatieve Formart Investments U.A. (“CoOperatieve Formart”), Codperatieve Activum SG Fund III
Investments U.A. (“Co0peratieve Activum 111”), and Codperatieve Activum SG Fund V Investments U.A.
(“Codperatieve Activum V” and, together with Cooperatieve Formart and Co0peratieve Activum Ill, the
“Existing Shareholders”), each a cooperative with excluded liability (codperatie met uitgesloten
aansprakelijkheid), registered in the commercial register of the Dutch Chamber of Commerce (Handelsregister
van de Kamer van Koophandel), having its registered offices at Prins Bernhardplein 200, 1097 JB Amsterdam,
the Netherlands, have committed to vote in favor of such conversion and will continue to hold 36.7% of the
Company’s share capital following the settlement of the Private Placement and not to dispose of their
shareholdings until the end of the lock-up period (August 15, 2018).

Each shareholder voting against the resolution to effect the AG Conversion in the General Meeting (a
“Dissenting Shareholder”) may demand within one month following the date of such General Meeting that the
Company acquire such Dissenting Shareholder’s shares in the Company’s share capital, against payment by the
Company to such Dissenting Shareholder of a cash compensation per share held by such Dissenting
Shareholder. Such cash compensation to be paid by the Company will be equal to the higher of (i) the closing
price per share on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange on the date of the General Meeting resolving upon the AG
Conversion, or (ii) as relevant, upon a request to that effect submitted by the relevant Dissenting Shareholder
with the Dutch Enterprise Chamber of the Amsterdam Court of Appeal (ondernemingskamer van het
gerechtshof te Amsterdam) (the “Enterprise Chamber”) and provided that the Enterprise Chamber does not
declare itself incompetent to adjudicate such request, a price per share in the Company’s capital determined by
the Enterprise Chamber as being the value thereof on the date of the General Meeting resolving upon the AG
Conversion, based on a valuation performed by one or three experts designated by the Enterprise Chamber. The
Company has, however, the right in each case not to implement the AG Conversion if the Management Board
determines that the Company is unwilling, or not allowed under applicable law, to acquire shares from any such
Dissenting Shareholder against payment of the relevant price. The repurchase of the Dissenting Shareholder’s
shares in the Company by the Company is generally subject to Dutch dividend withholding tax to the extent that
the total compensation paid for the shares exceeds the total amount of capital paid in for those shares (i.e.,
nominal share capital and share premium) as recognized for Dutch tax purposes. The Dutch dividend
withholding tax only applies to shareholders of the Company who (i) are Dutch residents, or (ii) have a
permanent establishment in the Netherlands to which their shareholding is attributable, and in each case who are
not entitled to an exemption. Any such dividend withholding tax can generally be refunded or credited against
such shareholder’s Dutch (corporate) income tax. Any capital gains from the repurchase of the shares are
generally subject to taxation in Germany provided that (i) the Dissenting Shareholder is tax resident in
Germany, (ii) the shares form part of the business assets of a permanent establishment in Germany or of
business assets for which a permanent representative is appointed, or (iii) the Dissenting Shareholder has
directly or indirectly held at least 1% in the capital of the Company within the last five years prior to the
acquisition of shares from any such Dissenting Shareholder by the Company. If the shares are held in custody or
administered by a German bank or financial service institution, a German securities trading company or a
German securities trading bank (including German branches of foreign banks and financial service institutions),
or if such entity or branch sells the shares and pays out or credits the capital gains (each a “Domestic Paying
Agent”), the Domestic Paying Agent has to withhold German withholding tax.

The Company will only initiate the consummation of the AG Conversion after assuring that the AG
Conversion will not trigger any materially adverse taxes in any jurisdiction. In particular, the AG Conversion
will only be consummated following receipt of favorable binding tax rulings by the competent German tax
authorities confirming that the AG Conversion can be consummated without triggering substantial German
corporate income, German trade tax, German withholding tax or German real estate transfer tax on the level of
the Company or its consolidated subsidiaries and would not be treated as an actual or deemed liquidation from a
German tax perspective (the “Favorable Binding Tax Rulings”), provided the assumptions contained therein
regarding Dutch legal and tax matters are sufficiently confirmed by Dutch legal advisors or Dutch binding tax
rulings. Instone will submit requests for such tax rulings as soon as practicable following the Private Placement
and listing of the Company’s shares on the regulated market of the Frankfurt Stock Exchange (Frankfurter
Wertpapierborse). The outcome of these ruling requests is uncertain and may also be conditional upon the
transactions being treated similarly in the Netherlands. If the Favorable Binding Tax Rulings cannot be
obtained, the Company would not be converted into a German stock corporation (Aktiengesellschaft). In this
case, the Company would remain a public company with limited liability (naamloze vennootschap (N.V.)),
incorporated under the laws of the Netherlands, unless a new resolution were adopted by its General Meeting to
change its legal form. However, given that the Company’s place of management will continue to be in
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Germany, the Company would remain subject to corporate income tax on its worldwide income in Germany
(unlimited tax liability (unbeschrankte Steuerpflicht)).

In the Netherlands, the Company does not expect any material adverse Dutch tax consequences
resulting from the AG Conversion. Pursuant to Dutch tax law, with respect to certain domestic conversions (i.e.,
the conversion of a Dutch legal entity into a different Dutch legal form) that are provided for in the Dutch Civil
Code (Burgerlijk Wetboek, the “DCC”), a converting entity is, however, deemed to be liquidated for Dutch tax
purposes, resulting in a deemed profit distribution to its shareholders. While the Company expects that the AG
Conversion, as a cross-border conversion which is not provided for in the DCC, will not be treated as a deemed
liquidation for Dutch tax purposes, it cannot be excluded that Dutch tax authorities would successfully argue
that the tax provision dealing with domestic conversions provided for in the DCC may be applicable, in analogy
and in absence of specific rules, to a cross-border conversion. If the AG Conversion were deemed a liquidation
for Dutch tax purposes, Dutch dividend withholding tax could become due for shareholders of the Company
who are Dutch residents and who are not entitled to an exemption as well as to non-Dutch resident shareholders
of the Company that have a permanent establishment in the Netherlands to which their shareholding is
attributable. If the Company was unable to identify its shareholders following the Effectiveness of the AG
Conversion in order to assess whether they are Dutch residents (or non-Dutch residents with a permanent
establishment to which the shares are attributable) in respect of which Dutch dividend tax has to be withheld, it
could make use of the possibility to approach the relevant Dutch tax authorities to confirm in a tax ruling that
the AG Conversion will not be deemed as a liquidation for Dutch tax purposes. If a favorable tax ruling cannot
be obtained and the identity of the shareholders cannot be established following the Effectiveness of the AG
Conversion, Dutch dividend withholding tax could be triggered in relation to the full amount deemed distributed
as a result of the deemed liquidation. The amount of the deemed distribution would equal the fair market value
of the Company’s shares exceeding the nominal capital and share premium of such shares recognized for Dutch
tax purposes. In practice, it may be difficult to recover Dutch dividend withholding tax from shareholders,
which may result in cost to be borne by the Company. Effectively, the Company could incur cost equaling
Dutch dividend withholding tax of 17.65% of such deemed distribution amount.

In addition, Instone has a multi-level group structure. This structure added considerable complexity to
the acquisitions and internal restructurings that Instone has conducted in the past few years and will continue to
increase the legal complexity of acquisitions and corporate restructurings that Instone may intend to conduct in
the future. Given the complexity and the scope of these transactions, there can be no assurance that none of
these transactions may have entailed or will entail unforeseen adverse tax consequences.

1.3 Risks related to the Private Placement and the Listing and the Placement Shares

1.3.1  There is no existing market for the Company’s shares and the development of an active trading
market may be limited.

Prior to the Private Placement and listing, there has been no public market for the shares of the
Company, and there is no certainty that an active trading market in the Company’s shares will develop. The
shares to be sold in the Private Placement and listing represent only 63.3% of the Company’s share capital.
Further, all of the Existing Shareholders are subject to lock-up agreements. Accordingly, the market in the
Company’s shares may be relatively illiquid or subject to fluctuation, and it may therefore be more difficult for
potential investors in the Private Placement and listing to sell any of the shares that they buy. The Company
cannot predict the extent to which investor interest will lead to an active trading market or how liquid that
market might become. The lack of an active trading market in the shares could affect an investor’s ability to sell
the Company’s shares at a desired price, at a desired time and/or in a desired quantity.

1.3.2  The market price and trading volume of the Company’s shares could fluctuate considerably, which
can result in substantial losses.

Following the Private Placement and listing, the trading volume and price of the Company’s shares
may fluctuate significantly. Securities markets in general and shares of companies in the real estate sector in
particular have been volatile in the past. If the share price declines significantly, potential investors in the
Private Placement and listing may be unable to resell the Company’s shares at or above their purchase price.

Some of the factors that could negatively affect the share price of the Company’s shares or result in
fluctuations in the price or trading volume of the Company’s shares include, for example, changes in the
Company’s actual or projected results of operations or those of its competitors, changes in earnings projections
or failure to meet investors’ and analysts’ earnings expectations, investors’ evaluations of the success and
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effects of the strategy described in this Prospectus, as well as the evaluation of the related risks, changes in
general economic conditions and changes in the Company’s shareholder base and liquidity as well as an
exclusion from indices. Additionally, general fluctuations in share prices, particularly of shares of companies in
the real estate sector, could put pricing pressure on the Company’s shares, even where there may not necessarily
be a reason for this in the Company’s business or earnings outlook.

1.3.3  If securities analysts do not publish research or reports about the Company or if they downgrade the
shares or the Company’s sector, the share price and trading volume could decline.

The trading market for the Company’s shares will be influenced by the research and reports that
industry or securities analysts publish about the Company, its business, its markets, or its competitors. If any of
the analysts who cover the Company issue an adverse or misleading opinion regarding its stock, the price for the
Company’s shares would likely decline. If one or more of these analysts cease coverage of the Company or fail
to publish reports on it regularly, the Company could lose visibility in the financial markets, which in turn could
cause its share price or trading volume to decline.

1.3.4 Following the Private Placement and listing, the Existing Shareholders will retain a significant
interest in the Company and their interests may conflict with those of the other shareholders.

Upon completion of the Private Placement and listing, the Existing Shareholders will jointly hold at
least 36.7% of the issued shares (assuming a placement of all Placement Shares and full exercise of the
greenshoe option). Due to their large shareholdings, the Existing Shareholders will be in a position to exert
substantial influence at the Company’s General Meeting and, consequently, on matters decided by the General
Meeting, including the appointment of the members of the Company’s supervisory board, the distribution of
dividends, and any proposed capital increase. The Existing Shareholders’ future stake in the Company would
endow them with the ability to block certain corporate measures that require the approval of the General
Meeting. In addition, the interests of the Existing Shareholders may substantially deviate from, or conflict with,
the Company’s interests or the interests of the Company’s other shareholders. There is no assurance that the
Existing Shareholders will exercise their influence over the Company in a way that serves the interests of the
Company’s other shareholders.

1.3.5 The Company will face additional administrative requirements, including the obligation to issue
half-year and quarterly financial statements or notices and to adhere to capital market laws, and will
incur higher ongoing costs as a result of the Private Placement and listing.

After the listing, the Company will for the first time be subject to the legal requirements for Dutch
public limited liability companies listed on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange (Frankfurter Wertpapierborse). These
requirements include periodic financial reporting (including those required by the Frankfurt Stock Exchange
(Frankfurter Wertpapierborse), regular calls with securities and industry analysts and other required public
disclosures of information. There can be no assurance that the Company’s accounting, controlling and legal or
other corporate functions will be capable of responding to these additional requirements without difficulties and
inefficiencies that cause the Company to incur significant additional costs and/or expose it to regulatory or civil
litigation or penalties. Furthermore, the preparation for, and convening of, General Meetings and the Company’s
regular communications with shareholders and potential investors will entail substantially greater expenses and
risks. The members of the management board will need to devote time to these additional requirements that they
could have otherwise devoted to other aspects of managing the Company’s operations, and these additional
requirements could also entail substantially increased time commitments and costs for the accounting,
controlling and legal departments and other administrative functions.

Furthermore, if the Company is unable to satisfy their obligations as a public company, it could be
subject to delisting of its shares, fines, sanctions and other regulatory action and potentially civil litigation.

1.3.6  Future capital measures could lead to a substantial dilution of shareholders’ interests in the
Company and their voting rights and may adversely affect the market price of the shares.

The Company may require additional capital in the future to finance acquisitions and business
operations or to repay its existing debt. The raising of additional equity through the issuance of new shares, the
potential exercise of conversion or option rights by holders of convertible bonds or bonds with warrants, which
may be issued in the future, and the exercise of stock option rights which may be granted to the management
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board members and certain other employees may dilute shareholders’ interests and could have an adverse effect
on the price of the Company’s shares.

As of the date of this Prospectus, the Company has not issued any conversion or option rights by
holders of convertible bonds or bonds with warrants and has no current planning to do so in the near future.
Upon Effectiveness of the N.V. Conversion, the Articles of Association will provide for the authorization to
issue up to 50% of the Company’s issued share capital as additional shares within its authorized capital. The
Company may issue these shares subject to approval by the General Meeting (or a corporate body authorized for
that purpose by the General Meeting). Under certain conditions, for example, in the event of a capital increase
against contributions in kind, no preemptive subscription rights will apply for existing shareholders. Because the
Company’s decision to issue, or propose the issuance of, securities in any future offering will also depend on
market conditions and other factors beyond its control, the Company cannot predict or estimate the amount,
timing or nature of future offerings. Thus, holders of shares bear the risk of the Company’s future offerings
reducing the market price of the shares and diluting their shareholdings in the Company.

1.3.7  Future sales by the Existing Shareholders could depress the price of the Company’s shares.

If the Existing Shareholders of the Company were to sell substantial amounts of their shareholdings on
the public exchange or if market participants were to become convinced that such sales might occur, this could
have a material adverse effect on the market price of the shares of the Company.

1.3.8  The Company’s ability to pay dividends depends on a variety of factors. Dividends paid in the past
are not necessarily indicative of future payments and the Company’s dividend policy may change.

The Company is a holding company with no operations of its own and no significant assets other than
shares of its direct and indirect subsidiaries and may therefore be unable or elect not to declare dividends in the
future. The payment of dividends, if any, by the Company will depend on, among other things, future profits,
financial position and capital requirements, the sufficiency of the Company’s distributable reserves, the ability
of its operating subsidiaries to upstream sufficient cash and/or pay dividends to the Company, financial
obligations, general economic conditions and other factors that its directors deem to be important from time to
time. In particular, the Company’s operating subsidiaries have financial obligations that must be satisfied,
including among others, debt service and obligations to trade creditors, and are furthermore subject to
contractual and regulatory restrictions on the payment of dividends. The Company currently intends to retain all
available funds and any future earnings to support operations and to finance the growth and development of its
business and currently does not intend to pay any dividends for the financial years 2017 through 2019. In the
medium term, at the earliest in 2021 for the financial year 2020, the Company plans to distribute dividends
amounting to 20% to 30% of its net income, unless it then decides to rather continue investing such distributable
funds into further growth.

Upon Effectiveness of the AG Conversion, dividends may only be distributed from the distributable
profit (Bilanzgewinn) of the Company. The distributable profit is calculated based on the Company’s
unconsolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with the requirements of the generally accepted
accounting principles of the German Commercial Code (Handelsgesetzbuch). Accounting principles set forth in
the German Commercial Code (Handelsgesetzbuch) differ from IFRS in material respects. When determining
the distributable profit, net income or loss for the year (Jahrestberschuss/-fehlbetrag) must be reduced by
profit/loss carry-forwards (Gewinn-/Verlustvortrage) from the prior fiscal year and releases of or allocations to
reserves. Certain reserves are required to be set up by law, and mandatorily allocated to these reserves in the
given year must be deducted when calculating the distributable profit.

Should the Company be unable to distribute dividends, or decide against declaring dividends in the
future if investors were to expect dividend distribution at such time, this could have a material adverse effect on
the market price of the shares of the Company.

1.3.9  The Company is a Dutch private limited liability company (B.V.) and will be converted into a Dutch
public limited liability company (N.V.) the shareholder rights of which may differ from rights of
shareholders in a corporation organized in another jurisdiction.

The Company is a private limited liability company (besloten vennootschap met beperkte
aansprakelijkheid) incorporated under the laws of the Netherlands. Its legal form will be converted into a public
company with limited liability (naamloze vennootschap (N.V.)), incorporated under the laws of the Netherlands,
shortly after the determination of the placement price of the Placement Shares and before payment for, and
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delivery of, the Placement Shares. The rights of the Company’s shareholders are governed by the Articles of
Association and by Dutch law. These rights may differ in some respects from the rights of shareholders of stock
corporations organized in jurisdictions other than the Netherlands, for example, from a German public limited
liability company (Aktiengesellschaft). In addition, it may be difficult for investors to enforce the securities laws
of other jurisdictions, or to prevail with claims against the Company based on those laws.

1.3.10 The Company plans to propose to its General Meeting to convert the Company into a German stock
corporation (Aktiengesellschaft) the shareholder rights of which may differ from rights of
shareholders in a corporation organized in another jurisdiction.

The Company plans to propose to its General Meeting the AG Conversion, thereby converting the
Company into a German stock corporation (Aktiengesellschaft). The resolution to convert the Company into a
German stock corporation is expected to be proposed as joint proposal of the Management Board and the
Supervisory Board and will as such require a simple majority (50%) of the votes cast. The Existing Shareholders
have committed to vote in favor of such conversion and not to dispose of their shareholdings until the end of the
lock-up period (August 15, 2018). The Existing Shareholders will continue to hold at least 36.7% of the
Company’s share capital (assuming a placement of all Placement Shares and full exercise of the greenshoe
option). The Company will only initiate the consummation of the AG Conversion if (i) the General Meeting
resolves in favor of the AG Conversion, (ii) the Company obtains the Favorable Binding Tax Rulings and
provided the assumptions contained therein regarding Dutch legal and tax matters are sufficiently confirmed by
Dutch legal advisors or Dutch binding tax rulings, (iii) no creditor has opposed the AG Conversion, unless such
opposition has been revoked or lifted by the competent District Court (rechtbank) of Amsterdam, the
Netherlands, (iv) the Management Board has not determined that the Company is unwilling, or not allowed
under applicable law, to acquire shares in the Company from any Dissenting Shareholder requesting such
acquisition by the Company against payment of the relevant price, and (v) no governmental opposition has been
filed and not been revoked or lifted by the competent District Court (rechtbank) of Amsterdam, the Netherlands.

Shareholders’ rights may differ in some respects from the rights of shareholders of stock corporations
organized in jurisdictions other than Germany. If any of the aforementioned conditions is not met or if the AG
Conversion, for which no explicit rules exist under applicable law, cannot be effectively consummated or is
successfully challenged, the Company would not be converted into a German stock corporation
(Aktiengesellschaft). As a result, the Company would remain a public company with limited liability (naamloze
vennootschap (N.V.)), incorporated under the laws of the Netherlands and subject to Dutch law, unless a new
resolution were adopted by its General Meeting to change its legal form. However, given that the Company’s
place of management will continue to be in Germany despite a failed implementation of the AG Conversion, the
Company would remain subject to tax with its worldwide income (unlimited tax liability; unbeschréankte
Steuerpflicht) in Germany.

1.3.11 An investment in the Company’s shares by an investor whose principal currency is not the euro may
be affected by exchange rate fluctuations.

The Company’s shares are quoted in euro. If such currency represents a foreign currency to an investor
in the Private Placement and listing, such investor is particularly exposed to the risk of changes in currency
exchange rates. Changes in currency exchange rates result from various factors such as macroeconomic factors,
speculative transactions and interventions by central banks and governments. Fluctuations in the exchange rates
between the euro and other currencies will influence and potentially reduce the value of, and return on, the
Company’s shares when converted into a foreign currency.
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2. GENERAL INFORMATION
2.1 Responsibility Statement

Instone Real Estate Group B.V. (the “Company” and, together with its consolidated subsidiaries,
“Instone”) accepts responsibility for the information contained in this prospectus (the “Prospectus”) and
declares that it has taken all reasonable care to ensure that, to the best of its knowledge, the information
contained in this Prospectus is in accordance with the facts and contains no material omissions.

As of the date of this Prospectus, the Company is a private limited liability company (besloten
vennootschap met beperkte aansprakelijkheid) incorporated under the laws of the Netherlands. The Company
has its corporate seat (statutaire zetel) in Amsterdam, the Netherlands, its place of effective management and its
registered business address at Baumstra3e 25, 45128 Essen, Federal Republic of Germany (“Germany”), and is
registered with the commercial register of the Dutch Chamber of Commerce (Handelsregister van de Kamer van
Koophandel) under number 60490861. The Company’s legal form will be converted into a public company with
limited liability (naamloze vennootschap (N.V.)) incorporated under the laws of the Netherlands, shortly after
the determination of the placement price of the placement shares and before payment for, and delivery of, the
placement shares, effected by a notarial deed of conversion and amendment of its articles of association (the
“Articles of Association”) and in accordance with a resolution of the Company’s general shareholders’ meeting
(the “General Meeting”) to be adopted at or prior to such time (the “N.V. Conversion”, and upon its
effectiveness, the “Effectiveness of the N.V. Conversion”).

The Company plans to propose to its General Meeting to resolve upon the conversion of the Company
into a German stock corporation (Aktiengesellschaft), governed by the laws of the Federal Republic of Germany
and having its registered seat in Essen, Germany (the “AG Conversion”). The resolution to convert the
Company into a German stock corporation is expected to be proposed as joint proposal of the Management
Board and the Supervisory Board and will as such require a simple majority (50%) of the votes cast. The
Existing Shareholders have committed to vote in favor of such conversion and will continue to hold 36.7% of
the Company’s share capital following the settlement of the Private Placement (as defined under “2.3.1 Private
Placement”) and not to dispose of their shareholdings until the end of the lock-up period (August 15, 2018). The
Company will only initiate the consummation of the AG Conversion after assuring that the AG Conversion will
not trigger any materially adverse taxes in any jurisdiction. In particular, the AG Conversion will only be
consummated following receipt of favorable binding tax rulings by the competent German tax authorities
confirming that the AG Conversion can be consummated without triggering substantial German corporate
income, German trade tax, German withholding tax or German real estate transfer tax on the level of the
Company or its consolidated subsidiaries and would not be treated as an actual or deemed liquidation from a
German tax perspective (the “Favorable Binding Tax Rulings”), provided the assumptions contained therein
regarding Dutch legal and tax matters are sufficiently confirmed by Dutch legal advisors or Dutch binding tax
rulings. Following receipt of the Favorable Binding Tax Rulings and subsequent registration of the AG
Conversion in the commercial register of the local court (Amtsgericht) of Essen, Germany (the “Effectiveness
of the AG Conversion”), the legal name of the Company will become “Instone Real Estate Group AG” and the
Company will have its registered seat and business address at Baumstralie 25, 45128 Essen, Germany. The
Company expects the AG Conversion to be effected in the course of 2018, provided that the aforementioned
requirements are satisfied.

If any claims are asserted before a court of law based on the information contained in this Prospectus,
the investor appearing as plaintiff may have to bear the costs of translating this Prospectus prior to the
commencement of the court proceedings pursuant to the national legislation of the member states of the
European Economic Area (the “EEA”).

The information contained in this Prospectus will not be updated subsequent to the date hereof except
for any significant new event or significant error or inaccuracy relating to the information contained in this
Prospectus that may affect an assessment of the securities and occurs or comes to light following the approval of
this Prospectus, but before the admission of the securities to trading. These updates must be disclosed in a
prospectus supplement in accordance with Section 5:23 of the Dutch Financial Supervision Act (Wet op het
financieel toezicht, the “DFSA”).

2.2 Purpose of this Prospectus

This Prospectus relates to the admission of all of the Company’s 36,988,336 shares (following the
consummation of (i) the Pre—Placement Share Capital Increases as defined below under “8.7.2.4 Shareholder
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Loan Conversion and Pre—Placement Share Capital Increases” and (ii) the Placement Capital Increase as
defined below under “2.3.3 Placement Capital Increase”), comprising:

(i) 7,000,000 newly issued bearer shares of the Company from a capital increase against contributions in
cash to be resolved by the Company’s General Meeting on or about February 13, 2018 (the “New
Shares”);

(if) up to 13,350,000 existing bearer shares of the Company (the “EXisting Shares” and, together with the
New Shares, the “Base Shares”) from the holdings of the Codperatieve Activum SG Fund Il
Investments U.A. (“Codperatieve Activum I11”), Codperatieve Formart Investments U.A
(“Codperatieve Formart”) and Codperatieve Activum SG Fund V Investments U.A. (“Codperatieve
Activum V”, and, together with Codperatieve Formart and CodOperatieve Activum III, the “EXxisting
Shareholders™);

(iii) up to 3,050,000 existing bearer shares of the Company (“Over-Allotment Shares” and, together with
the Base Shares, the “Placement Shares”) as part of the allocation of the Base Shares (“Over-
Allotment”) from the holdings of the Existing Shareholders in the form of a securities loan; and

(iv) the balance of 36,988,336 of the Company’s shares and (i) through (iii) above (amounting to
13,588,336 of the Company’s shares held by the Existing Shareholders assuming a placement of all
Placement Shares)

to trading on the regulated market (regulierter Markt) of the Frankfurt Stock Exchange (Frankfurter
Wertpapierbdrse) and the simultaneous admission to the sub-segment of the regulated market with additional
post-admission obligations (Prime Standard), each such share representing a nominal value of €1.00 and with
full dividend rights from January 1, 2017. The AFM has been requested by the Company to provide the German
Federal Financial Supervisory Authority (Bundesanstalt fiir Finanzdienstleistungsaufsicht, “BaFin”) with a
certificate of approval attesting that the Prospectus has been drawn up in accordance with Commission
Regulation (EC) No 809/2004 of 29 April 2004 implementing Directive 2003/71/EC of the European Parliament
and of the Council as regards information contained in prospectuses as well as the format, incorporation by
reference and publication of such prospectuses and dissemination of advertisements, as amended.

2.3 Background to the Private Placement
2.3.1  Private Placement

On February 2, 2018, in anticipation of the expected admission to trading of the Company’s shares on
the regulated market segment of the Frankfurt Stock Exchange (Frankfurter Wertpapierborse), the Company
and the Existing Shareholders together with Credit Suisse Securities (Europe) Limited, London, United
Kingdom (“Credit Suisse”), Deutsche Bank Aktiengesellschaft, Frankfurt am Main, Germany (“Deutsche
Bank”, together with Credit Suisse, the “Joint Global Coordinators”), BNP Paribas (“BNP Paribas”),
Morgan Stanley & Co. International plc (“Morgan Stanley”) or UniCredit Bank AG (“UniCredit”, together
with BNP Paribas, Morgan Stanley and the Joint Global Coordinators, the “Joint Bookrunners” or the
“Underwriters”), initiated a private placement (the “Private Placement”) of the Placement Shares and set the
price range at €21.50 to €25.50 per share (the “Price Range”).

The placement price and the final number of shares to be placed in the Private Placement are expected
to be determined based on the order book prepared during the bookbuilding process (expected to take place in
the period from February 2, 2018 and February 13, 2018) on or about February 13, 2018. The results of the
Private Placement, including the final placement price, will be published by the Company through an electronic
information dissemination system and on the Company’s website on or about February 15, 2018.

In addition, Credit Suisse, or its affiliates, acting as the stabilization manager (the “Stabilization
Manager”) for the account of the Underwriters, will be provided with the Over-Allotment Shares from the
holdings of the Existing Shareholders in the form of a securities loan.

Once the Placement Capital Increase (as defined below under “2.3.3 Placement Capital Increase”)
takes effect, the share capital of the Company that will be represented by the Company’s shares will amount to
€36,988,336.00. Approximately 63.3% of the share capital of the Company (after effectiveness of the Placement
Capital Increase) is expected to be offered in the Private Placement.

Immediately prior to the Private Placement, Codperatieve Activum SG Fund Il Investments U.A., a
cooperative with excluded liability (codperatie met uitgesloten aansprakelijkheid), registered in the commercial
register of the Dutch Chamber of Commerce (Handelsregister van de Kamer van Koophandel) under
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registration number 59216239, having its registered offices at Prins Bernhardplein 200, 1097 JB Amsterdam, the
Netherlands (“Co0peratieve Activum I11”), holds 59.6% of the shares in the Company, Co6peratieve Formart
Investments U.A., a cooperative with excluded liability (coOperatie met uitgesloten aansprakelijkheid),
registered in the commercial register of the Dutch Chamber of Commerce (Handelsregister van de Kamer van
Koophandel) under registration number 61216275, having its registered offices at Prins Bernhardplein 200,
1097 JB Amsterdam, the Netherlands (“Codperatieve Formart”), holds 33.3% of the shares in the Company,
and Codperatieve Activum SG Fund V Investments U.A., a cooperative with excluded liability (codperatie met
uitgesloten aansprakelijkheid), registered in the commercial register of the Dutch Chamber of Commerce
(Handelsregister van de Kamer van Koophandel) under registration number 67273300, having its registered
offices at Prins Bernhardplein 200, 1097 JB Amsterdam, the Netherlands (“Codperatieve Activum V”, and,
together with Codperatieve Formart and Codperatieve Activum III, the “Existing Shareholders™), holds 7.1%
of the shares in the Company. For a discussion of the ownership structure of the Existing Shareholders, see
“10 Information on the Existing Shareholders”.

2.3.2  Private Placement Structure

The Private Placement is exclusively addressed to qualified investors and fewer than 150 non-qualified
investors in any member state of the EEA, including in Germany, and to institutional investors in certain other
jurisdictions, provided that for any offer of Placement Shares to fewer than 150 non-qualified investors in the
Netherlands a standard exemption logo and wording are disclosed as required by article 5:20(5) of the DFSA.
The Placement Shares have not been and will not be registered under the U.S. Securities Act of 1933, as
amended (the “Securities Act”), or the securities laws of any other jurisdiction of the United States of America
(“United States”) and may not be offered, sold or otherwise transferred within the United States, except
pursuant to an exemption from, or in a transaction not subject to, the registration requirements of the Securities
Act and in compliance with any applicable securities laws of any state or other jurisdiction in the United States.
The Placement Shares offered or sold outside the United States will be offered or sold in offshore transactions as
defined in, and in reliance on, Regulation S under the Securities Act.

Book-entry delivery of the Placement Shares sold in the Private Placement against payment of the
share price is expected to occur on February 19, 2018.

2.3.3  Placement Capital Increase

With respect to the Private Placement, the Company’s General Meeting will resolve on February 13,
2018 to increase the Company’s share capital by €7,000,000.00 to €36,988,336.00 against contributions in cash
through the issuance of the New Shares, thereby effecting the capital increase, and this capital increase is
expected to be registered with the commercial register on February 14, 2018 (the “Placement Capital
Increase™).

2.3.4  Dilution

Instone’s total equity (i.e., the net book value (total assets less total non current liabilities and total
current liabilities)) amounted to negative €11.0 million as of September 30, 2017, and would amount to €1.23
per share of the Company based on 29,988,336 outstanding shares of the Company immediately prior to the
Placement Capital Increase and after adjusting for the shareholder loans extended to the Company that were
partially converted in an amount of €48.0 million and contributed into the Company’s share premium.

The dilutive effect of the Private Placement is illustrated in the table below, demonstrating the amount
by which the placement price exceeds the equity attributable to shareholders per share after completion of the
Private Placement and assuming the Private Placement had been completed on September 30, 2017. In this
respect, the net book value attributable to shareholders as of September 30, 2017 is adjusted for the effects of the
Private Placement, assuming (i) the execution of the Placement Capital Increase and (ii) an increase in the net
book value attributable to shareholders by €3.98 million (assuming successful placement of the New Shares at
the mid-point of the Price Range and completion of the Private Placement and not taking into account any tax
effects). The adjusted net book value attributable to shareholders is expressed as a per share figure, assuming
36,988,336 shares of the Company outstanding upon completion of the Private Placement (this per share figure
being referred to as the “Post-Placement per Share Net Book Value™).

The table below illustrates the dilutive effect following the completion of the Private Placement:
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As of September 30,
2017
(unaudited)

(in €, unless
otherwise specified)

PlacemeNt PriCe PEF SNAIE .....c..eiviii ittt sb et sre e e e et e nee e 23.50
Per share net book value (based on 29,988,336 outstanding shares of the Company before

the Placement Capital INCrEase)M..............ccoo.orvverveereeieeesseeesseeeesesssssseesss s 1.23
Post-Placement per Share Net Book Value® (net book Value) ............ccc.cocveecveeceeerrrereeerrnenene, 5.21
Amount by which the price per share exceeds the Post-Placement per Share Net Book

Value (immediate dilution Per SNAre) ... 18.29
Immediate dilUtion (IN 90).......coveiiiiii s 77.8%

(1) Based on 29,988,336 outstanding shares of the Company immediately prior to the Private Placement and total equity of
Instone in the amount of negative €11.0 million as of September 30, 2017 and after adjusting for the shareholder loans
extended to the Company that were partially converted in an amount of €48.0 million and contributed into the
Company’s share premium.

(2) Assuming successful placement of the New Shares at the mid-point of the Price Range.

2.3.5  Delivery and Settlement

The delivery of the Placement Shares sold in the Private Placement against payment of the share price
is expected to take place on February 19, 2018. The Placement Shares will be made available to the shareholders
as co-ownership interests in the respective global share certificate.

At the shareholder’s option, the Placement Shares purchased in the Private Placement will be credited
either to a securities deposit account maintained by a German bank with Clearstream Banking
Aktiengesellschaft, Mergenthalerallee 61, 65760 Eschborn, Germany (“Clearstream”) or to a securities account
of a participant in Euroclear Bank S.A./N.V., 1 Boulevard Roi Albert Il, 1120, Brussels, Belgium, as the
operator of the Euroclear system.

2.3.6  Reasons for the Private Placement

The Company intends to list its shares on the regulated market (regulierter Markt) of the Frankfurt
Stock Exchange (Frankfurter Wertpapierbdrse) and, simultaneously, on the sub-segment with additional post-
admission obligations (Prime Standard) of the Frankfurt Stock Exchange (Frankfurter Wertpapierborse) to gain
access to the capital markets providing for the ability to obtain equity and debt capital markets financing.

The Existing Shareholders intend to pursue the Private Placement to receive the net proceeds from the
Private Placement attributable to the Existing Shareholders.

2.3.7 Use of Proceeds

The Company will, at the low end, mid-point and high end of the Price Range, receive gross proceeds
of €150.5 million, €164.5 million, and €178.5 million, respectively, and estimated net proceeds of
approximately €142.2 million, €155.8 million, and €169.4 million, respectively.

The Company currently intends to use a portion of the net proceeds from the Private Placement
attributable to the Company of about €55.5 million to fully repay the outstanding amounts under all shareholder
loans (see “8.7.2 Shareholder Loans”) and the remaining net proceeds of about €100.3 million (assuming that
the New Shares are finally placed at the mid-point of the Price Range) to fund its acquisition and development
activities to create additional value and stable returns from its development business.

2.3.8  Stabilization Measures, Over-Allotments and Greenshoe Option

In connection with the listing of the Placement Shares, the Stabilization Manager, or its affiliates,
acting for the account of the Underwriters, may make over-allotments and take stabilization measures in
accordance with Article 5 paras. 4 and 5 of MAR in conjunction with Articles 5 through 8 of Commission
Delegated Regulation (EU) 2016/1052 of March 8, 2016, to provide support for the market price of the
Company’s shares, thus alleviating sales pressure generated by short-term investors and maintaining an orderly
market in the Company’s shares.
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The Stabilization Manager is under no obligation to take any stabilization measures. Therefore, no
assurance can be provided that any stabilization measures will be taken. Where stabilization measures are taken,
these may be terminated at any time without notice. Such measures may start from the date the Company’s
shares commence trading on the regulated market (regulierter Markt) of the Frankfurt Stock Exchange
(Frankfurter Wertpapierbdrse) and must end no later than 30 calendar days thereafter (i.e., on March 16, 2018
(the “Stabilization Period”)).

Stabilization measures are intended to provide support for the price of the Company’s shares during the
Stabilization Period. These measures may result in the market price of the Company’s shares being higher than
would otherwise have been the case. Moreover, the market price may temporarily be at an unsustainable level.

Under the possible stabilization measures, investors in the Private Placement may, in addition to the
Base Shares, be allocated up to 3,050,000 Over-Allotment Shares. For the purpose of a potential
Over-Allotment, the Stabilization Manager, acting for the account of the Underwriters, will be provided with up
to 3,050,000 existing bearer shares of the Company from the holdings of the Existing Shareholders in the form
of a securities loan. The total number of Over-Allotment Shares will not exceed 15% of the Base Shares. In
addition, the Existing Shareholders have granted the Underwriters an option to acquire the Over-Allotment
Shares at the placement price, less agreed commissions (the “Greenshoe Option”). The Greenshoe Option may
only be exercised during the Stabilization Period and will terminate 30 calendar days after the commencement
of trading of the Company’s shares (expected to take place on February 15, 2018).

The Stabilization Manager, acting for the account of the Underwriters, is entitled to exercise the
Greenshoe Option to the extent Over-Allotment Shares are allocated to investors in the Private Placement. The
number of Over-Allotment Shares acquired under the Greenshoe Option will be reduced by any shares of the
Company held by the Stabilization Manager when the Greenshoe Option is exercised, if such shares were
acquired by the Stabilization Manager in the context of stabilization measures.

Public announcements regarding stabilization measures (i) have been made prior to commencement of
the Private Placement, (ii) will be made by the end of the seventh daily market session following the date any
stabilization measure was taken, and (iii) will be made within one week after the end of the Stabilization Period.

Within one week of the end of the Stabilization Period, the Stabilization Manager will ensure adequate
public disclosure as to whether stabilization measures were taken, the date on which stabilization started and last
occurred, and the Price Range within which stabilization measures were carried out, for each of the dates during
which stabilization measures were carried out and the trading venue(s) on which the stabilization measures were
carried out, where applicable.

Exercise of the Greenshoe Option will be disclosed to the public promptly, together with all appropriate
details, including in particular the date of exercise of the Greenshoe Option and the number and nature of
Over-Allotment Shares involved, in accordance with Article 8 (f) of the Commission Delegated Regulation
(EU) 2016/1052 of March 8, 2016.

2.3.9  Lock-up Agreements and Limitations on Disposal

In the underwriting agreement relating to the Private Placement as entered into between the Company,
the Existing Shareholders and the Underwriters on February 2, 2018 (the “Underwriting Agreement”), the
Company agreed with each Underwriter that, during the period commencing on February 2, 2018 and ending six
months after the first day of trading of the Company’s shares on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange (Frankfurter
Wertpapierborse) (currently expected to take place on February 15, 2018), to the extent legally permissible,
without the prior written consent of the Underwriters, which may not be unreasonably withheld, the Company
will not:

(a) announce or effect an increase of the Company’s share capital out of authorized capital or contingent
capital, if any;

(b) propose to the General Meeting an increase of the issued share capital;

(c) announce, effect or propose the issuance of securities with conversion or option rights on shares of the
Company;

(d) offer, pledge, allot, issue (unless required by applicable law), sell, contract to sell, sell any option or
contract to purchase, purchase any option to sell, grant any option, right or warrant to purchase, or
otherwise transfer or dispose of, directly or indirectly, any shares in its capital or any securities
convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for shares in its capital or enter into any swap or other
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arrangement that transfers to another, in whole or in part, the economic risk of ownership of shares in
its capital; or

(e) enter into a transaction or perform any action economically similar to those described in (a) through (d)
above.

The foregoing will not apply to (i) conversion of up to €30 million of the Company’s share premium
into the Company’s share capital prior to the listing of the Company’s shares on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange
(Frankfurter Wertpapierborse), (ii) increase of the Company’s share capital in connection with the Private
Placement, (iii) proposals to the General Meeting to create authorized capital, contingent capital, an
authorization to issue securities convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for shares in the Company’s
share capital (such authorizations not to be exercised throughout the lock-up period), (iv) issuance or sale of any
shares or other securities to employees and members of executive bodies of the Company or its subsidiaries
under customary management or employee stock option plans or (v) any corporate actions undertaken by the
Company for the purpose of converting the Company into a German stock corporation (Aktiengesellschaft).

In addition, for the period commencing on February 2, 2018 and ending six months after the first day
of trading of the Company’s shares on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange (Frankfurter Wertpapierbdrse) (currently
expected to take place on February 15, 2018), the Existing Shareholders have agreed that they will not, without
the prior written consent of the Underwriters, which may not be unreasonably withheld:

offer, pledge, allot, sell, contract to sell, sell any option or contract to purchase, purchase any option to sell,
grant any option, right or warrant to purchase, or otherwise transfer or dispose of, directly or indirectly, any
shares or any other securities of the Company convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for shares of the
Company;

make any demand for, or exercise any right with respect to, the registration under U.S. securities laws of any
shares of the Company or any security convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for shares of the
Company;

propose any increase in the share capital of the Company, vote in favor of such a proposed increase or otherwise
support any proposal for the issuance of any securities convertible into shares of the Company, or with option
rights for shares of the Company; or

enter into a transaction or perform any action economically similar to those described in each of the cases above,
in particular enter into any swap or other arrangement that transfers to another, in whole or in part, the economic
risk of ownership of shares of the Company, whether any such transaction is to be settled by delivery of shares
of the Company or such other securities, in cash or otherwise.

The foregoing shall not apply to (i) the creation of an authorized capital, contingent capital, or the
authorization to issue securities convertible into or exercisable or exchangeable for shares in the Company’s
share capital (such authorizations not to be exercised throughout the lock-up period), (ii) any measure required
to increase the Company’s share capital prior to the listing of the Company’s shares on the Frankfurt Stock
Exchange (Frankfurter Wertpapierborse) and to adopt and implement the N.V. Conversion, (iii) any measure
required to adopt and implement the AG Conversion (without effecting an increase in the share capital of the
Company), (iv) transfer of shares under the securities loan granted by the Existing Shareholders to the
Stabilization Manager in connection with the Over-Allotment, (v) sale and transfer of shares to members of the
Company’s management board or to managing directors of Instone group entities in connection with the
restructuring of the management compensation programs, and (vi) transfers to affiliates of the respective
Existing Shareholder, provided, however, that in case of (v) and (vi) such transferee(s) agree(s) towards the
Joint Global Coordinators to be bound by the same or longer lock-up undertakings.

2.3.10 Interests of Parties Participating in the Private Placement

In connection with the admission to trading of the Company’s shares and the Private Placement, the
Underwriters have formed a contractual relationship with the Company and the Existing Shareholders.

The Underwriters are acting for the Company and the Existing Shareholders in connection with the
structuring and execution of the Private Placement. In addition, Deutsche Bank has been mandated to act as
designated sponsor for the Company’s shares and as paying agent. The listing is a condition precedent to the
consummation of the Private Placement. Therefore, the Underwriters have a financial interest in the listing as
they will only receive the commission agreed upon in the Underwriting Agreement following the successful
completion of the Private Placement and thus the completion of the listing.
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Some of the Underwriters or their affiliates have, and may from time to time in the future continue to
have, business relations with Instone and the Existing Shareholders, including lending activities, or may perform
services for Instone or the Existing Shareholders in the ordinary course of business.

The Existing Shareholders have an interest in the listing as this is a condition precedent to the Private
Placement and will receive the proceeds from the sale of up to 13,350,000 Existing Shares and of up to
3,050,000 Over-Allotment Shares (if any) sold in the Private Placement (after deduction of fees and
commissions).

Other than the interests described above, there are no material interests, in particular no material
conflicts of interest, with respect to the Private Placement or the listing of the Company’s shares.

2.3.11 MIFID Il Product Governance Requirements

Solely for the purposes of the product governance requirements contained within: (a) EU Directive
2014/65/EU on markets in financial instruments, as amended (“MIiFID II”); (b) Articles 9 and 10 of
Commission Delegated Directive (EU) 2017/593 supplementing MiFID II; and (c) local implementing measures
(together, the “MIFID Il Product Governance Requirements”), and without assuming any responsibility or
liability, whether arising in tort, contract or otherwise, which any “manufacturer” (for the purposes of the MiFID
Il Product Governance Requirements) may otherwise have with respect thereto, the Placement Shares have been
subject to a product approval process, which has determined that such shares are: (i) compatible with an end
target market of retail investors and investors who meet the criteria of professional clients and eligible
counterparties, each as defined in MiFID II; and (ii) eligible for distribution through all distribution channels as
are permitted by MiFID II (the “Target Market Assessment”). Notwithstanding the Target Market Assessment,
distributors (within the meaning of the MiFID Il Product Governance Requirements) should note that: the price
of the Placement Shares may decline and investors could lose all or part of their investment; the Placement
Shares offer no guaranteed income and no capital protection; and an investment in the Placement Shares is
compatible only with investors who do not need a guaranteed income or capital protection, who (either alone or
in conjunction with an appropriate financial or other adviser) are capable of evaluating the merits and risks of
such an investment and who have sufficient resources to be able to bear any losses that may result therefrom.
The Target Market Assessment is without prejudice to the requirements of any contractual, legal or regulatory
selling restrictions in relation to the Private Placement. Furthermore, it is noted that, notwithstanding the Target
Market Assessment, the Joint Bookrunners will only procure investors who meet the criteria of professional
clients and eligible counterparties in the Private Placement. For the avoidance of doubt, the Target Market
Assessment does not constitute: (a) an assessment of suitability or appropriateness for the purposes of MiFID II;
or (b) a recommendation to any investor or group of investors to invest in, or purchase, or take any other action
whatsoever with respect to the Placement Shares. Each distributor is responsible for undertaking its own target
market assessment in respect of the Placement Shares and determining appropriate distribution channels.

2.4 Information on the Shares
2.4.1 Dividend and Liquidation Rights

Each share in the Company carries full dividend rights from January 1, 2017. In the event of the
Company’s liquidation, any proceeds will be distributed to the holders of the Company’s shares in proportion to
their shareholding in the Company.

2.4.2  Voting Rights

Each share in the Company carries one vote at the General Meeting. All of the Company’s shares
confer the same voting rights. There are no restrictions on voting rights except pursuant to a limited number of
statutory provisions as set out below and in Section “12.3.5 Voting Rights* of this Prospectus. Shareholders may
vote by proxy. Resolutions are passed by a simple majority of the votes cast, unless Dutch law or the Articles of
Assaciation prescribe a larger majority (such as a resolution to reduce the issued share capital or a resolution to
restrict or exclude pre-emptive rights, which requires at least two-thirds of the votes cast, if less than half of the
issued share capital is present or represented).

Upon Effectiveness of the AG Conversion, resolutions will be passed by a simple majority of the votes
cast, unless German law or the Articles of Association prescribe a larger majority (such as a resolution to reduce
the issued share capital or a resolution to restrict or exclude pre-emptive rights, which requires at least three-
quarters of the share capital represented in the General Meeting (des vertretenen Grundkapitals)). There are no
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restrictions on voting rights except pursuant to a limited number of statutory provisions as set out in Section
“12.3.6 Voting Rights upon Effectiveness of the AG Conversion® of this Prospectus.

2.4.3  Form, Certification of the Shares and Currency of the Securities Issue

At the date of this Prospectus, the Company’s shares are in registered form (op naam). Upon
Effectiveness of the N.V. Conversion, the Company’s shares will be converted into bearer form (aandelen aan
toonder) and will be represented by one global share certificate, which will be deposited with Clearstream. All
shares of the Company provide holders thereof with the same rights, and no shares provide any additional rights
or advantages.

The Company’s shares are denominated in euros.

2.4.4  ISIN/WKN/Ticker Symbol

International Securities Identification NUmber (ISIN) ..o NL0012757355
German Securities Code (Wertpapierkennnummer (WKN))......coooiririiiininineeeeeeee e A2JCTW
THCKET SYMDOL .. et b ettt INS

2.4.5  Transferability of the Shares; Lock-up

As of the date of this Prospectus, the Company’s shares are in registered form (op naam). Upon
Effectiveness of the N.V. Conversion, the Company’s shares will be converted into bearer form (aandelen aan
toonder) and will be freely transferable in accordance with the legal requirements for bearer shares. Except for
the restrictions set forth in “2.3.9 Lock-up Agreements and Limitations on Disposal*, there are no prohibitions
on disposals or restrictions with respect to the transferability of the Company’s shares.

2.5 Admission to the Frankfurt Stock Exchange and Commencement of Trading

The Company applied for the admission of its shares to trading on the regulated market (regulierter
Markt) of the Frankfurt Stock Exchange (Frankfurter Wertpapierborse) and, simultaneously, to the sub-segment
thereof with additional post-admission obligations (Prime Standard) on February 9, 2018. The listing approval
(admission decision) for the Company’s shares is expected to be granted on February 14, 2018. Trading in the
Company’s shares on the Frankfurt Stock Exchange (Frankfurter Wertpapierbdrse) is expected to commence on
February 15, 2018.

2.6 Designated Sponsor, Paying Agent

Deutsche Bank has been mandated as designated sponsor of the Company’s shares traded on the
Frankfurt Stock Exchange (Frankfurter Wertpapierborse). Pursuant to the designated sponsor agreement
expected to be concluded between the designated sponsor and the Company, the designated sponsor will, among
other things, place limited buy and sell orders for the Company’s shares in the electronic trading system of the
Frankfurt Stock Exchange (Frankfurter Wertpapierbdrse) during regular trading hours. This is intended to
achieve greater liquidity in the market for the Company’s shares.

The paying agent is Deutsche Bank.
2.7 Cost of the Private Placement and Listing

The costs of the Company and the Existing Shareholders related to the Private Placement and the
listing of the Placement Shares are expected to total approximately €10.9 million (excluding underwriting and
placement commissions payable to the Underwriters). Of the total cost, the Existing Shareholders will bear
approximately €7.3 million and the Company will bear the remaining amount of €3.6 million.

Investors will not be charged expenses by the Company, the Existing Shareholders or the Underwriters.
Investors will have to bear customary transaction and handling fees charged by their brokers or other financial
institutions through which they hold their securities.
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2.8 Forward-looking Statements

This Prospectus contains forward-looking statements. A forward-looking statement is any statement
that does not relate to historical facts or events or to facts or events as of the date of publication of this
Prospectus. This applies, in particular, to statements in this Prospectus containing information on Instone’s
future earnings capacity, plans and expectations regarding its business growth and profitability, and the general
economic conditions to which Instone is exposed. Statements made using words such as “predicts”, “forecasts”,
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“plans”, “intends”, “endeavors”, “expects” or “targets” may be an indication of forward-looking statements.

The forward-looking statements contained in this Prospectus are subject to risks and uncertainties, as
they relate to future events, and are based on estimates and assessments made to the best of the Company’s
present knowledge. These forward-looking statements are based on assumptions, uncertainties and other factors,
the occurrence or non-occurrence of which could cause Instone’s actual results, including the financial condition
and profitability of Instone, to differ materially from, or fail to meet, the expectations expressed or implied in
the forward-looking statements. These expressions can be found in different sections of this Prospectus,
particularly in the sections titled “1 Risk Factors®, “6 Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Net Assets,
Financial Condition and Results of Operations®, “7 Markets and Competition, and “8 Business*, and wherever
information is contained in this Prospectus regarding the Company’s intentions, beliefs, or current expectations
relating to its future financial condition and results of operations, plans, liquidity, business prospects, growth,
strategy and profitability, as well as the economic and regulatory environment to which Instone is subject.

In light of these uncertainties and assumptions, it is also possible that the future events mentioned in
this Prospectus might not occur. In addition, the forward-looking estimates and forecasts reproduced in this
Prospectus from third-party reports could prove to be inaccurate (for more information on the third-party
sources used in this Prospectus, see “2.10 Sources of Market Data”). Actual results, performance or events may
differ materially from those in such statements due to, among other reasons:

changes in general economic conditions in Germany, including changes in the unemployment rate, the level of
consumer prices, wage levels etc.;

demographic changes, in particular with respect to Germany;

changes affecting interest rate levels;

changes in the competitive environment, e.g., changes in the level of construction activity relating to housing;
the occurrence of accidents, terrorist attacks, natural disasters, fire, or environmental damage;

inability to attract and retain qualified personnel;

political changes;

changes to the taxation of corporations and particularly tax rates for real estate transfer tax (Grunderwerbsteuer,
“RETT”); and

changes in laws and regulations, in particular construction planning law (Bauplanungsrecht), the German Real
Estate Agent and Commercial Contractor Regulation (Makler- und Bautrégerverordnung), as well as
environmental laws and regulations.

Moreover, it should be noted that all forward-looking statements only speak as of the date of this
Prospectus and that neither the Company nor the Underwriters, solely or together, assume any obligation, except
as required by law, to update any forward-looking statement or to conform any such statement to actual events
or developments.

See “1 Risk Factors” for a further description of some of the factors that could influence the actual
outcome of the matters described in the Company’s forward-looking statements.

29 Appraiser

The independent, external appraiser BNP Paribas Real Estate Consult GmbH (“BNP Paribas Real
Estate”), Kurfiirstendamm 22, 10719 Berlin, Germany has prepared a condensed valuation report (the
“Valuation Report”) relating to the market value of Instone’s project portfolio as of September 30, 2017. In
determining the market value of Instone’s project portfolio, BNP Paribas Real Estate considered 52 properties
split into 86 valuation units. The Valuation Report is reprinted in this Prospectus on pages V-1 et seq.

Not included in the valuation were a number of projects due to the fact that the required zoning or
planning permissions for these projects had not been obtained as of September 30, 2017. The Valuation Report
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states that Instone expects an aggregate sales volume of €359 million for the excluded projects. Following the
issuance of the Valuation Report, Instone’s master planning processes enabled Instone to develop an additional
residential development project on a property that was already included in its project portfolio as of
September 30, 2017 (but one of the projects excluded in the Valuation Report). Instone expects for the
additional residential units in Wiesbaden-Delkenheim an aggregate additional sales volume of €50 million when
fully developed.

For more information on BNP Paribas Real Estate’s independence, see “Compliance” on page V-5 of
the Valuation Report. BNP Paribas Real Estate employs duly qualified employees and members of the Royal
Institution of Chartered Surveyors (RICS). BNP Paribas Real Estate has consented to the inclusion of the
Valuation Report in this Prospectus in the unmodified form authorized by them and has approved the context in
which it is presented. For the avoidance of doubt, BNP Paribas Real Estate only accepts responsibility for the
Valuation Report and for no other part or parts of this Prospectus.

The Company affirms that, as of the date of this Prospectus, no material changes in the value of the
properties appraised in the Valuation Report have occurred since the valuation date of September 30, 2017 for
the total portfolio.

2.10 Sources of Market Data

Unless otherwise specified, the information contained in this Prospectus on the market environment,
market developments, growth rates, market trends and competition in the markets in which Instone operates are
based on the Company’s assessments. These assessments, in turn, are based in part on internal observations of
the markets and on various market studies.

The following sources were used in the preparation of this Prospectus:

BulwienGesa AG, Potential Analysis — German Housing Market, dated October 24, 2017 (“bulwiengesa,
Potential Analysis™);

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited, Publication, “Property Index: Overview of European Residential Markets”,
published July 2017 (“Deloitte, Property Index”);

Destatis, German Federal Statistical Office, last accessed October 12, 2017 (“Destatis, German Federal
Statistical Office, Population densities in German cities”);

Destatis, German Federal Statistical Office, “Building Activity”, last accessed November 24, 2017 (“Destatis,
Building Activity”);

Destatis, German Federal Statistical Office, “Building Permits: Permits granted in building construction,
construction of new buildings, residential and non-residential buildings”, last accessed October 12, 2017
(“Destatis, Building Permits”);

Destatis, German Federal Statistical Office, “Deutsche Wirtschaft im Jahr 2016 weiter auf Wachstumskurs”,
published January 12, 2017 (“Destatis, Press Release 010”);

Destatis, German Federal Statistical Office, “Inlandsproduktberechnung”, published August 25, 2017
(“Destatis, Domestic Product”);

Destatis, German Federal Statistical Office, “Residential buildings, dwellings, living floor space: Germany,
reference date, number of dwellings”, last accessed October 12, 2017 (“Destatis, Residential Buildings,
dwellings, living floor space”);

Destatis, German Federal Statistical Office, Annual Report, “Bauen und Wohnen. Baugenehmigungen /
Baufertigstellungen lange Reihen z.T. ab 1949”, published July 26, 2017 (“Destatis, Construction and Living,
Building Permits / Building Completions”);

Destatis, German Federal Statistical Office, Press Release, “Consumer prices in August 2017: +1.8% on August
2016”, published September 13, 2017 (“Destatis, Press Release No. 319”);

Destatis, German Federal Statistical Office, Press Release, “Positive development of employment continued in
3rd quarter 20177, published November 16, 2017 (“Destatis, Press Release No. 411”);

Destatis, German Federal Statistical Office, Press Release, “Staat erzielt Uberschuss von fast 24 Milliarden Euro
im Jahr 2016”, published February 23, 2017 (“Destatis, Press Release No. 063”);
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Destatis, German Federal Statistical Office, Report, “Entwicklung der Privathaushalte bis 2035: Ergebnisse der
Haushaltsvorausberechnung — 20177, published February 28, 2017 (“Destatis, Trends in Private Households
until 2035™);

Destatis, German Federal Statistical Office. “Housing situation: Development of owner-occupied dwelling rate”,
last accessed November 24, 2017 (“Destatis, German Federal Statistical Office, Housing Situation™);

Deutsche Bundesbank, “System of indicators for residential property markets, Price Indicators”, published
September 7, 2017 (“Deutsche Bundesbank, System of indicators for residential property markets”);

Deutsche Bundesbank, Monthly Report, “Outlook for the German economy — macroeconomic projections for
2017 and 2018 and an outlook for 2019”, published December 12, 2016 (“Deutsche Bundesbank, Outlook for
the German Economy”);

Deutsche Bundesbank, Monthly Report, “Perspektiven der deutschen Wirtschaft — Gesamtwirtschaftliche
Vorausschitzungen fiir die Jahre 2017 und 2018 mit einem Ausblick auf das Jahr 2019”, published June 2017
(“Deutsche Bundesbank, Monthly Report 20177);

European Commission, Directorate-General for Economic and Financial Affairs, Economic Brief, “Recent
Supply and Demand developments in the German Housing Market), published May 2017 (“European
Commission, Economic Brief 025”);

European Commission, Report, “Winter 2017 Economic Forecast — Germany”, published February 13, 2017
(“European Commission, Winter 2017 Economic Forecast Germany”);

European Mortgage Federation, Statistical Report, “Hypostat 20177, published September 11, 2017 (“EMF,
Hypostat 2017”);

Eurostat, Database, Subject: “Distribution of population by tenure status, type of household and income group —
EU-SILC survey”, last updated November 14, 2017 (“Eurostat, Housing Statistics™);

Eurostat, Database, Subject: “Employment and Unemployment (labour force survey), last updated
November 21, 2017(“Eurostat, Unemployment Statistics™);

Eurostat, Database, Subject: “Employment statistics”, last updated September 19, 2017 (“Eurostat,
Employment and activity by sex and age”);

Eurostat, Database, Subject: “National accounts — international data cooperation, annual national accounts, GDP
and main aggregates — selected international annual data”, last updated October 11, 2017 (“Eurostat, Annual
National Accounts™);

Eurostat, Database, Subject: “Share of Member States in EU GDP”, published April 4, 2017 (“Eurostat, Share
of EU GDP);

Federal Employment Agency (Bundesagentur fiir Arbeit), Database, Subject: “Arbeitslosigkeit im Zeitverlauf:
Entwicklung der Arbeitslosenquote, Deutschland und West/Ost, Oktober 20177, last updated November 2017
(“Federal Employment Agency, Development Unemployment Rate, Report October 20177);

Federal Employment Agency (Bundesagentur fiir Arbeit), Press Release, “Der Arbeitsmarkt im Oktober 20177,
published November 2, 2017 (“Federal Employment Agency, Press Release No. 237);

Federal Employment Agency (Bundesagentur fiir Arbeit), reporting period October 2017, “Arbeitsmarkt im
Uberblick — Berichtsmonat Oktober 2017 — Berlin, Bundesland”, published October 2017 (“Federal
Employment Agency, Unemployment Berlin October 20177);

Federal Employment Agency (Bundesagentur fur Arbeit), reporting period October 2017, “Arbeitsmarkt im
Uberblick — Berichtsmonat Oktober 2017 — K&ln, Stadt”, published November 2017 (“Federal Employment
Agency, Unemployment Cologne October 2017”);

Federal Employment Agency (Bundesagentur fur Arbeit), reporting period October 2017, “Arbeitsmarkt im
Uberblick — Berichtsmonat Oktober 2017 — Diisseldorf, Stadt”, published November 2017 (“Federal
Employment Agency, Unemployment Dusseldorf October 20177);

Federal Employment Agency (Bundesagentur fiir Arbeit), reporting period October 2017, “Arbeitsmarkt im
Uberblick — Berichtsmonat Oktober 2017 — Hamburg, Bundesland”, published November 2017 (“Federal
Employment Agency, Unemployment Hamburg October 2017”);
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Federal Employment Agency (Bundesagentur fiir Arbeit), reporting period October 2017, “Arbeitsmarkt im
Uberblick — Berichtsmonat Oktober 2017 — Frankfurt am Main, Stadt”, published November 2017 (“Federal
Employment Agency, Unemployment Frankfurt October 2017”);

Federal Employment Agency (Bundesagentur fur Arbeit), reporting period October 2017, “Arbeitsmarkt im
Uberblick — Berichtsmonat Oktober 2017 — Leipzig, Stadt”, published November 2017 (“Federal Employment
Agency, Unemployment Leipzig October 20177);

Federal Employment Agency (Bundesagentur fur Arbeit), reporting period October 2017, “Arbeitsmarkt im
Uberblick — Berichtsmonat Oktober 2017 — Miinchen, Landeshauptstadt”, published November 2017 (“Federal
Employment Agency, Unemployment Munich October 20177);

Federal Employment Agency (Bundesagentur fiir Arbeit), reporting period October 2017, “Arbeitsmarkt im
Uberblick — Berichtsmonat Oktober 2017 — Stuttgart, Landeshauptstadt”, published November 2017 (“Federal
Employment Agency, Unemployment Stuttgart October 2017”);

Jones Lang LaSalle GmbH, Market Report, “Resident City Profile Berlin — 1. Halbjahr 20177, published August
2017 (“JLL, Resident City Profile Berlin, H1 2017”);

Jones Lang LaSalle GmbH, Market Report, “Resident City Profile Cologne — 1. Halbjahr 20177, published
August 2017 (“JLL, Resident City Profile Cologne, H1 2017”);

Jones Lang LaSalle GmbH, Market Report, “Resident City Profile Diisseldorf — 1. Halbjahr 2017”, published
August 2017 (“JLL, Resident City Profile Dusseldorf, H1 2017”);

Jones Lang LaSalle GmbH, Market Report, “Resident City Profile Frankfurt — 1. Halbjahr 2017”, published
August 2017 (“JLL, Resident City Profile Frankfurt, H1 2017”);

Jones Lang LaSalle GmbH, Market Report, “Resident City Profile Hamburg — 1. Halbjahr 20177, published
August 2017 (“JLL, Resident City Profile Hamburg, H1 2017”);

Jones Lang LaSalle GmbH, Market Report, “Resident City Profile Leipzig — 1. Halbjahr 2017, published
August 2017 (“JLL, Resident City Profile Leipzig, H1 2017”);

Jones Lang LaSalle GmbH, Market Report, “Resident City Profile Munich — 1. Halbjahr 20177, published
August 2017 (“JLL, Resident City Profile Munich, H1 2017”);

Jones Lang LaSalle GmbH, Market Report, “Resident City Profile Stuttgart — 1. Halbjahr 20177, published
August 2017 (“JLL, Resident City Profile Stuttgart, H1 2017”);

KPMG, Publication, “Property Lending Barometer 2017: A survey of banks on the prospects for real estate
sector lending in Europe”, published October 5, 2017 (“KPMG, Property Lending Barometer”); and

WHU-Otto Beisheim School of Management, Report, “Winning Frankfurt: Brexit Bankers’ Welfare Effect
Beyond Bringing Their Jobs”, published August 2017 (“WHU-Otto Beisheim School of Management:
Winning Frankfurt”).

It should be noted, in particular, that reference has been made in this Prospectus to information
concerning markets and market trends. Such information was obtained from the aforementioned sources. The
Company has accurately reproduced such information and, as far as it is aware and able to ascertain from
information published by such third parties, no facts have been omitted that would render the reproduced
information inaccurate or misleading. Nevertheless, prospective investors are advised to consider this data with
caution. For example, market studies are often based on information or assumptions that may not be accurate or
appropriate, and their methodology is inherently predictive and speculative.

Irrespective of the assumption of responsibility for the content of this Prospectus by the Company and
the Underwriters (see “2.1 Responsibility Statement”), neither the Company nor the Underwriters have
independently verified the figures, market data or other information on which third parties have based their
studies. Accordingly, the Company and the Underwriters make no representation or warranty as to the accuracy
of any such information from third-party studies included in this Prospectus. Prospective investors should note
that the Company’s own estimates and statements of opinion and belief are not always based on studies of third
parties.

211 Documents Available for Inspection

For the period during which this Prospectus remains valid, the following documents will be available
for inspection during regular business hours at the Company’s offices at Instone Real Estate Group B.V. (to be
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converted into Instone Real Estate Group N.V.), Baumstralle 25, 45128 Essen, Germany (telephone: +49 (201)
45355-334):

the Articles of Association (as they may read from time to time);

the unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements of Instone Real Estate Group B.V., prepared
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, as adopted by the European Union (“IFRS”),
on interim financial reporting (IAS 34) as of and for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2017; and

the audited consolidated financial statements of Instone Real Estate Group B.V. (formerly Formart Holding
B.V.) prepared in accordance with IFRS as of and for the financial years ended December 31, 2016,
December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014.

The aforementioned documents and this Prospectus are also available on the Company’s website at
www.instone.de under the “Going Public” section. The Company’s future consolidated financial statements and
condensed interim consolidated financial statements will be available from the Company on its website and
from the paying agent designated in this Prospectus (see “11.10 Announcements”™).

In addition, the Valuation Report, prepared by BNP Paribas Real Estate and dated November 24, 2017.
is available for inspection at the Company’s offices at Baumstralle 25, 45128 Essen, Germany.

Information on the Company’s website www.instone.de and information accessible via this website is
neither part of, nor incorporated by reference into, this Prospectus.

2.12 Non-1FRS Measures

Throughout this Prospectus, the Company presents financial measures and adjustments that are not
presented in accordance with IFRS, or any other internationally accepted accounting principles, including the
following alternative performance measures operating performance, adjusted operating performance, earnings
before interest and taxes (“EBIT”), adjusted EBIT, earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization
(“EBITDA”), historical gross project margin, net working capital, total financial liabilities (collectively, the
“Non-IFRS Measures” or “Alternative Performance Measures”). For more information on the Alternative
Performance Measures, see ‘5.4 Alternative Performance Measures”.

The Non-IFRS Measures should not be considered as alternatives or as substitutes for figures on net
assets, results before taxes, net earnings, cash flow from operating activities or other data from the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated cash flow statement or the consolidated statement of
financial position, as determined in accordance with IFRS, or as measures of profitability or liquidity. The Non-
IFRS Measures neither necessarily indicate whether cash flow will be sufficient or available for Instone’s cash
requirements nor whether any such measure is indicative of Instone’s historical operating income. The Non-
IFRS Measures are not meant to be indicative of future results. Because not all companies calculate these Non-
IFRS Measures in the same way, the Non-IFRS Measures used by Instone are not necessarily comparable with
similarly titled measures used by other companies.

2.13 Currency Presentation and Presentation of Financial Information

In this Prospectus, “euro” and “€” refer to the single European currency adopted by certain
participating member states of the European Union, including Germany.

Where financial data in this Prospectus is labelled “audited”, this means that it has been taken from the
audited financial statements mentioned above in “2.11 Documents Available for Inspection“ and does not
indicate that the individual amount is audited. The label “unaudited” is used in this Prospectus to indicate
financial data that has not been taken from the audited financial statements mentioned above but was taken
either from Instone’s unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements or Instone’s internal
reporting system, or is based on calculations of figures from the sources mentioned before.

All of the financial information presented in the text and tables in this Prospectus are shown in millions
of euro (in € million), except as otherwise stated. Certain financial information (including percentages) in this
Prospectus has been rounded according to established commercial standards. As a result, the aggregate amounts
(sum totals or subtotals or differences or if numbers are put in relation) may not correspond in all cases to the
aggregated amounts of the underlying (unrounded) figures appearing elsewhere in this Prospectus. Furthermore,
these rounded figures may not add up exactly to the totals contained in certain tables in this Prospectus.
Financial information presented in parentheses denotes the negative of such number presented. In respect of
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financial information set out in this Prospectus, a dash (“—) signifies that the relevant figure is not available,
while a zero (“0.0”) signifies that the relevant figure is available but has been rounded to zero.
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3. DIVIDEND POLICY; RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS PER SHARE; USE OF PROFITS
3.1 General Provisions Relating to Profit Allocation and Dividend Payments

The Company may only make distributions on the shares issued by it insofar as the Company’s equity
exceeds the aggregate of the nominal value of the paid in and called up share capital plus the reserves required
to be maintained by Dutch law or by the Articles of Association.

Profit may be distributed after the adoption of the Company’s annual accounts from which it appears
that distribution of such profit is admissible. The Company’s management board (raad van bestuur) (the
“Management Board” and each member thereof, a “Managing Director”), subject to the approval of the
Company’s supervisory board (raad van commissarissen) (the “Supervisory Board” and each member thereof,
a “Supervisory Director”), may decide how much of the profit will be allocated to reserves. The profits
remaining shall be at the free disposal of the General Meeting.

3.2 General Provisions Relating to Profit Allocation and Dividend Payments upon Effectiveness of
the AG Conversion

The shareholders’ share of the Company’s profits is determined based on their respective interests in
the Company’s share capital. In a German stock corporation (Aktiengesellschaft) under the laws of the Federal
Republic of Germany the distribution of dividends for a given year and the amount and payment date thereof are
resolved by the shareholders’ meeting (Hauptversammlung) of the subsequent year either upon a joint proposal
by the Management Board and the Supervisory Board or upon the Management Board’s or the Supervisory
Board’s proposal. The shareholders’ meeting must be held within the first eight months of each year.

Dividends may only be distributed from the distributable profit (Bilanzgewinn) of the Company. The
distributable profit is calculated based on the Company’s unconsolidated financial statements prepared in
accordance with the requirements of the generally accepted accounting principles of the German Commercial
Code (Handelsgesetzbuch). Accounting principles set forth in the German Commercial Code
(Handelsgesetzbuch) differ from IFRS in material respects.

When determining the distributable profit, net income or loss for the year (Jahresiiberschuss/-
fehlbetrag) must be reduced by profit/loss carry-forwards (Gewinn-/Verlustvortrage) from the prior fiscal year
and releases of or allocations to reserves. Certain reserves are required to be set up by law, and mandatorily
allocated to these reserves in the given year must be deducted when calculating the distributable profit.

The Management Board must prepare unconsolidated financial statements (balance sheet, income
statement and notes to the unconsolidated financial statements) and a management report for the previous fiscal
year by the statutory deadline and present these to the Supervisory Board and the auditors immediately after
preparation. At the same time, the Management Board must present to the Supervisory Board a proposal for the
allocation of the Company’s distributable profits pursuant to Section 170 para. 2 of the German Stock
Corporation Act (Aktiengesetz). According to Section 171 of the German Stock Corporation Act (Aktiengesetz),
the Supervisory Board must review the unconsolidated financial statements, the Management Board’s
management report and the proposal for the allocation of the distributable profit and report to the shareholders’
meeting in writing on the results.

The shareholders’ meeting’s resolution on the allocation of the distributable profits requires a simple
majority of votes to be passed. Pursuant to Section 23 of the Company’s articles of association following
Effectiveness of the AG Conversion (the “AG Articles of Association”), the shareholders’ meeting may also
resolve that the dividends be distributed partially or entirely in kind. For example, dividends may be distributed
as treasury shares if held by the Company at the time. Dividends resolved by the shareholders’ meeting are due
and payable immediately after the relevant shareholders’ meeting, unless provided otherwise in the dividend
resolution, in compliance with the rules of the respective clearing system. Any dividends not claimed within the
past three years become time-barred. Once the statute of limitations applies, the dividend payment claim passes
to the Company. Since all of the Company’s dividend entitlements will be evidenced by one global dividend
coupon deposited with Clearstream Banking AG, Clearstream Banking AG will be able to transfer the dividends
to the shareholders’ custodian banks for crediting to their accounts. German custodian banks are under the same
obligation to distribute the funds to their customers. Shareholders using a custodian bank located outside
Germany must inquire at their respective bank regarding the terms and conditions applicable in their case.
Notifications of any distribution of dividends resolved upon are published in the German Federal Gazette
(Bundesanzeiger) immediately after the sharecholders” meeting. To the extent dividends can be distributed by the
Company in accordance with the German Commercial Code (Handelsgesetzbuch) and corresponding decisions
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are taken, there are no restrictions on shareholder rights to receive dividends. Generally, withholding tax
(Kapitalertragsteuer) is withheld from dividends paid. For more information on the taxation of dividends, see
“15.2.3 Taxation of Dividends of Shareholders with a Tax Residence in Germany” and “15.2.4 Taxation of
Dividends of Shareholders without a Tax Residence in Germany”.

3.3 Dividend Policy and Earnings per Share

The Company currently intends to retain all available funds, subject to the full repayment of the
Shareholder Loans from a portion of the net proceeds from the Private Placement, and any future earnings to
support operations and to finance the growth and development of its business and currently does not intend to
pay any dividends for the financial years 2017 through 2019. In the medium term, at the earliest in 2021 for the
financial year 2020, the Company plans to distribute dividends amounting to 20% to 30% of its net income,
unless it then decides to rather continue investing such distributable funds into further growth.

Any future determination to pay dividends will be made in accordance with applicable laws, and will
depend upon, among other factors, its results of operations, financial condition, contractual restrictions and
capital requirements. The Company’s future ability to pay dividends may be limited by the terms of any existing
and future debt or preferred securities.

No distributions of profits or reserves were made to the Company’s shareholders in any of the years
ended December 31, 2014, December 31, 2015, December 31, 2016, December 31, 2017 or in 2018 (up to the
date of this Prospectus).
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4. CAPITALIZATION AND INDEBTEDNESS; STATEMENT ON WORKING CAPITAL

The following tables show Instone’s consolidated capitalization and indebtedness as of November 30,

2017 as adjusted the effects of the Shareholder Loan Conversion and the Pre—Placement Share Capital Increases
(each as defined in “8.7.2.4 Shareholder Loan Conversion and Pre—Placement Share Capital Increases”) as
well as for application of the Private Placement and application of the proceeds therefrom as described in
“2.3 Background to the Private Placement” and not considering any tax effects. Investors should read these
tables in conjunction with “5 Selected Consolidated Financial Information®, “6 Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Net Assets, Financial Condition and Results of Operations“, Instone’s consolidated financial
statements, including the related notes thereto, contained in this Prospectus, and additional financial information
contained elsewhere in this Prospectus.

4.1 Capitalization
Effects of the
Effects of the  Recognition of
Shareholder Provisions for
Loan the Pre-
Conversion Placement
and Pre— LTIP and the Effects of the
As of Placement LTIP application of
November 30,  Share Capital Indemnifi- the Private
2017 Increases® cation® Placement® Total®
(unaudited)
(in € million)
Total current debt®..................... 4295 - - (21.5) 408.0
Thereof guaranteed..............ccvu.e.. 0.0 - - - 0.0
Thereof secured® ...........ccccovvvnene. 53.1 - - - 53.1
Thereof unguaranteed/unsecured.... 376.4 - - (21.5) 354.91
Total non-current debt® .............. 347.6 (48.0) - (34.0) 265.6
Thereof guaranteed...........ccoccevvvenee - - - - -
Thereof secured® ..........ccccovvinenn. 129.8 - - - 129.8
Thereof unguaranteed/unsecured.... 217.8 (48.0) - (34.0) 135.8
Total shareholder’s equity® ........ (11.0) 48.0 8.0 155.8 200.8
Share capital“? ..........ccccooveeiirennn. 0.0 30.0 - 7.0 37.0
Legal reserve®™ ..o, 0.0 - - - 0.0
Other reserves™...........ccccoevvreunen. (11.0) 18.0 8.0 148.8 163.8
Total....ooooiiii 766.1 0.0 8.0 100.3 874.4
(1) On December 28, 2017, shareholder loans extended to the Company were partially converted in an amount of

@

®

4)

Q)
(6)

€48.0 million and contributed into the Company’s share premium. On February 13, 2018, the Existing Shareholders will
convert the Company’s share premium into share capital thereby increasing the Company’s share capital from
€8,386.00 to €50,316.00 and, following the Effectiveness of the N.V. Conversion, from €50,316.00 to €29,988,336.00
(for further details see “8.7.2 Shareholder Loans”, “12.1.2 Development of the Share Capital” and “14.1 Relationships
and Transactions with Related Parties”).

In connection with the Pre-Placement LTIP (as defined in “13.11 Management Board Remuneration”), Instone
recognized provisions for the benefit of the Pre-Placement LTIP Beneficiaries (as defined in “13.11 Management Board
Remuneration”) in previous periods (before September 30, 2017) in view of the expected valuation of Instone in the
Private Placement, reflecting a participation in the added value created for the Existing Shareholders. The Existing
Shareholders have agreed to indemnify Instone under the LTIP Indemnification (as defined in “13.11 Management
Board Remuneration”) for payments resulting from the Pre-Placement LTIP (see “13.11 Management Board
Remuneration”). The expected net impact on equity will be €8.0 million.

Assuming that the New Shares are finally placed at the mid-point of the Price Range, the Company’s net proceeds
would amount to €155.8 million (gross proceeds of €164.5 million net of €8.7 million total transaction costs), of which
€55.5 million are being used to fully repay all amounts outstanding under all shareholder loans as of February 19, 2018
(see “8.7.2 Shareholder Loans”).

The column “Total” presents Instone’s capitalization as of November 30, 2017, adjusted for (i) the effects of the
Shareholder Loan Conversion and Pre—Placement Share Capital Increases (each as defined in “8.7.2.4 Shareholder
Loan Conversion and Pre—Placement Share Capital Increases”), (ii) the effects of the recognition of provisions for the
Pre-Placement LTIP and the LTIP Indemnification (each as defined in “13.11 Management Board Remuneration”) and
(iii) the effects of the application of the Private Placement.

Referred to as total current liabilities in the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Comprises debt secured by land charges. Referred to as current financial liabilities in the Company’s consolidated
financial statements.
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™

(8
©9)

(10)
(11)

(12)

Includes €2.7 million interest payments accrued under the Shareholder Loans (as defined in “8.7.2 Shareholder Loans™)
between November 30, 2017 and the expected full repayment of the Shareholder Loans (as defined in
“8.7.2 Shareholder Loans”) on February 19, 2018.

Referred to as total non-current liabilities in the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Referred to as total equity in the Company’s consolidated financial statements. Legal reserve and other reserves do not
include profit or loss of the two month-period ending November 30, 2017 in accordance with margin note 127 of the
ESMA update of the CESR recommendations of March 20, 2013, ESMA/2013/319 (the “ESMA Update”).

Referred to as share capital in the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Legal reserve does not include profit or loss of the two month-period ending November 30, 2017 in accordance with
margin note 127 of the ESMA Update.

Referred to as capital reserve, retained earnings / loss carryforwards, accumulated other comprehensive income and
non-controlling interests in the Company’s consolidated financial statements. Other reserves do not include profit or
loss of the two month-period ending November 30, 2017 in accordance with margin note 127 of the ESMA Update.

4.2 Indebtedness
Effects of the
Effects of the Recognition
Shareholder of Provisions
Loan for the Pre-
Conversion Placement
and Pre— LTIP and the  Effects of the
As of Placement LTIP application of
November 30,  Share Capital Indemnifi- the Private
2017 Increases® cation® Placement® Total®
(unaudited)
(in € million)

A, Cash® e, 138.5 - - 100.3 238.8

B. Cashequivalents® ........................ - - - - -

C. Trading securities .........ccccovevveeunenne 0.0 - - - 0.0

D. Liquidity (A)+(B)+(C).....cceevvenen. 138.5 - - 100.3 238.8

E. Current financial receivables?” ... 1.9 - - - 1.9

F. Current bank debt® ........c.c.cccooeeene. 73.3 - - - 73.3

G. Current portion of non-current

debt ..o, 0.7 - - - 0.7
H. Other current financial debt®......... 18.8 - - (21.5) (2.7
. Current Financial Debt

(F)HG)H(H) v, 92.8 - - (21.5) 71.3
J. Net current financial

indebtedness (1)-(E)-(D) .......cccoevenee. (47.6) - - (121.8) (169.4)

K. Non-current bank loans™V .............. 230.3 - - - 230.3

L. BondsissUed.........ccoeovrrerinivnrencnn. 0.0 - - - 0.0

M. Other non-current loans™?............. 82.0 (48.0) - (34.0) 0.0

N. Non-current financial liabilities
(K)F(L)H(M) o, 312.3 (48.0) - (34.0) 230.3

O. Net financial indebtedness

(J)FN) e 264.7 (48.0) - (155.8) 60.9

(1) On December 28, 2017, shareholder loans extended to the Company were partially converted in an amount of
€48.0 million and contributed into the Company’s share premium. On February 13, 2018, the Existing Shareholders will
convert the Company’s share premium into share capital thereby increasing the Company’s share capital from
€8,386.00 to €50,316.00 and, following the Effectiveness of the N.V. Conversion, from €50,316.00 to €29,988,336.00
(for further details see “8.7.2 Shareholder Loans”, “12.1.2 Development of the Share Capital” and ““14.1 Relationships
and Transactions with Related Parties™).

(2) In connection with the Pre-Placement LTIP (as defined in “13.11 Management Board Remuneration”), Instone
recognized provisions for the benefit of the Pre-Placement LTIP Beneficiaries (as defined in “13.11 Management Board
Remuneration”) in previous periods (before September 30, 2017) in view of the expected valuation of Instone in the
Private Placement, reflecting a participation in the added value created for the Existing Shareholders. The Existing
Shareholders have agreed to indemnify Instone under the LTIP Indemnification (as defined in “13.11 Management
Board Remuneration”) for payments resulting from the Pre-Placement LTIP (see “13.11 Management Board
Remuneration”). The expected net impact on equity will be €8.0 million.

(3) Assuming that the New Shares are finally placed at the mid-point of the Price Range, the Company’s net proceeds

would amount to €155.8 million (gross proceeds of €164.5 million net of €8.7 million total transaction costs), of which
€55.5 million are being used to fully repay all amounts outstanding under all shareholder loans as of February 19, 2018
(see “8.7.2 Shareholder Loans”).
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(4) The column “Total” presents Instone’s indebtedness as of November 30, 2017, adjusted for (i) the effects of the
Shareholder Loan Conversion and Pre—Placement Share Capital Increases (each as defined in “8.7.2.4 Shareholder
Loan Conversion and Pre—Placement Share Capital Increases”), (ii) the effects of the recognition of provisions for the
Pre-Placement LTIP and the LTIP Indemnification (each as defined in “13.11 Management Board Remuneration”) and
(iii) the effects of the application of the Private Placement.

(5) Referred to as cash and cash equivalents in the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

(6) Cash equivalents are included in item “A. Cash” (see footnote 3).

(7) Referred to as current financial receivables in the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

(8) Referred to as liabilities to banks (current) in the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

(9) Sum of liabilities to third parties (current) and liabilities to shareholders (current) as referred to in the Company’s
consolidated financial statements.

(10) Includes €2.7 million interest payments accrued under the Shareholder Loans (as defined in “8.7.2 Shareholder Loans™)
between November 30, 2017 and the expected full repayment of the Shareholder Loans (as defined in
“8.7.2 Shareholder Loans”) on February 19, 2018.

(11) Referred to as liabilities to banks (non-current) in the Company’s consolidated financial statements.

(12) Sum of liabilities to third parties (non-current) and liabilities to shareholders (non-current) as referred to in the
Company’s consolidated financial statements.

Instone’s indirect and contingent indebtedness amounted to €11.2 million as of November 30, 2017. As
of November 30, 2017, these contingent obligations comprised operate leasing in the amount of €7.8 million and
letter of comforts in the amount of €3.4 million.

4.3 Statement on Working Capital

The Company is of the opinion that its working capital is sufficient for its present requirements, that is
for at least 12 months from the date of publication of this Prospectus.
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5. SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The financial information contained in the following tables is taken or derived from the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the financial years ended December 31, 20186,
December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 and the unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial
statements of the Company as of and for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2017. The Company’s
financial year 2014 began with its foundation on April 16, 2014 and ended December 31, 2014. Additional
financial information is taken or derived from the Company’s accounting records or internal reporting system.
The audited consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance with IFRS. The unaudited
condensed consolidated interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS on interim
financial reporting (IAS 34).

Deloitte Accountants B.V. (“Deloitte”), has audited and issued an unqualified independent auditor’s
report with respect to the Company’s consolidated financial statements as of and for the financial years ended
December 31, 2016, December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014. The aforementioned audited consolidated
financial statements of the Company and the respective independent auditor’s report thereon, and the
Company’s unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements as of and for the nine-month period
ended September 30, 2017 are included in this Prospectus.

Where financial information in the following tables are labelled “audited”, this means that they have
been taken from the audited financial statements mentioned above and does not indicate that the individual
amount is audited. The label “unaudited” is used in the following tables to indicate financial information that
has not been taken from the audited financial statements mentioned above, but has been taken either from the
Company’s unaudited condensed interim consolidated financial statements mentioned above or the Company’s
accounting records or internal reporting system, or has been calculated based on figures from the
aforementioned sources.

All of the financial information presented in the tables below are shown in millions of Euro (in
€ million), except as otherwise stated. Certain financial information (including percentages) in the following
tables has been rounded according to established commercial standards. As a result, the aggregate amounts
(sum totals or sub totals or differences or if numbers are put in relation) in the following tables may not
correspond in all cases to the aggregated amounts of the underlying (unrounded) figures appearing elsewhere
in this Prospectus. Furthermore, in those tables, these rounded figures may not add up exactly to the totals
contained in those tables. Financial information presented in parentheses denotes the negative of such number
presented. In respect of financial information set out in this Prospectus, a dash (“—") signifies that the relevant
figure is not available, while a zero (“0.0”) signifies that the relevant figure is available but has been rounded
to zero.

The following selected consolidated financial information should be read together with the Section
“10. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Net Assets, Financial Condition and Results of Operations”, the
consolidated financial statements, including the related notes contained in this Prospectus, and additional
financial information contained elsewhere in this Prospectus.
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5.1 Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss

For the nine-month period
ended September 30,

For the financial year
ended December 31,

2017 2016 2016 2015 2014
(unaudited) (audited)
(in € million) (in € million)

REVENUE.......ocviieeieice et 123.8 164.9 203.6 358.7 64.4
Change in inVentories ..........ccocccvvvereencrennns 30.4 86.0 158.9 (23.1) (7.8)
Other operating iNCOME .........cccccvrriviiriennn. 4.2 18 8.3 8.6 315
Cost of materialS........cccooevviereiiiciicies (109.5) (207.9) (293.7) (284.3) (51.0)
Staff COSES v.vvviiiiiic e (19.2) (24.1) (35.2) (26.9) (6.4)
Other operating eXPenSeS........ccovvvveververeennn (26.5) (31.4) (42.4) (38.5) (19.0)
Income from associated affiliates ................. 0.5 1.4 1.3 (1.4) 1.6
Other net income from investmentst............ 0.6 0.3 0.3 (0.1) -
Earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortization
(=121 - OO 4.2 (9.0) 1.3 (7.1) 13.4
Depreciation and amortization...................... (0.3) (0.3) (0.4) (0.5) (0.2)
Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) .. 3.9 (9.3) 0.8 (7.6) 13.3
Finance iNCOMEe........ceoevvvevie i 0.8 — 0.1 0.9 0.2
FiNance COStS.......ccovvvirenieiiee e (15.7) (18.8) (25.0) (21.8) (5.4)
Write-down of long-term securities............... - - 0.1 (0.2) -
Finance result® ..........ccccooovovecomveeeceeen, (14.9) (18.8) (24.8) (21.0) (5.2)
Earnings before tax (EBT) .......cccccvevvvennnnne. (11.0) (28.1) (24.0) (28.6) 8.1
INCOME tAXES ..cvvveveeevecie e (2.0) 2.5 1.8 6.2 2.7
Earnings after tax (EAT) ....ccovvvvvevvinene (13.0) (25.7) (22.2) (22.4) 10.8
Attributable to:

Shareholders of the Group.........c.cccveu.. (13.2) (24.8) (22.4) (22.4) 10.8

Non-controlling interests.............ccoeeuee. 0.1 (0.8) 0.2 - 0.0

(13.0) (25.7) (22.2) (22.4) 10.8

(1) In the financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015, referred to as “Other income from investments”.
(2) In the financial statements as of and for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, referred to as “Financial result”.
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5.2 Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

As of As of
September 30, December 31,
2017 2016 2015 2014
(unaudited) (audited)
(in € million) (in € million)
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Intangible aSSetS........coccovveieieninc e 0.0 0.0 0.0 -
Property, plant and equipment ..........cccccoevvvrennne. 1.6 15 1.6 13
Equity-method investments ............ccocveviveiverienenn 0.4 1.4 0.1 9.5
Other financial asSetS........cocvvveevviiieiieieeiee e 0.6 0.7 0.9 0.4
Financial receivables............ccccovovevivvveeceecrennn, 0.7 0.7 - -
Total Nnon-current assetsS........ccvvveveeveeieevrecenenn, 3.2 4.3 2.6 11.2
Current assets
INVENTOTIES .ot 572.6 542.7 4155 233.0
Financial receivables..........cccovviviiiiiicnie e 2.4 0.2 0.2 2.1
Trade receivables.........cococeiiieccie e 11.4 19.6 110.2 115.4
Other receivables and other assets........c..cccceeenneane. 8.3 5.6 16.6 5.2
Current inCOME tax aSSetS ......ccvveveerereireeeireriireeeerenn 0.2 0.3 0.3 1.1
Cash and cash equivalents ..........c.c.cecvvvvnveeverenenenn, 110.7 112.5 35.9 25.1
Total CUFTENt @SSELS........viveeeeeeceeereeee e eeeeeeee e 705.6 680.9 578.7 382.0
Total ASSELS ..vvevvviecreecie e 708.9 685.2 581.3 393.2
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Share capital..........ccocoviiiii 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Capital FESEIVE ..o 37.4 37.4 37.4 21.0
Retained earnings / loss carryforwards.................... (48.7) (35.5) (13.2) 111
Accumulated other comprehensive income............ (1.3) (1.3) (0.1) (0.2)
Equity attributable to shareholders .................... (12.5) 0.7 24.2 31.9
Non-controlling interests ..............ccoevveverrererrrnnnnn. 15 2.0 115 0.0
Total EQUILY......cvriiric e (11.0) (2.7) 35.7 32.0
Non-current liabilities
Provisions for pensions and similar obligations...... 4.5 4.1 2.4 2.1
Other Provisions.........ccovvevievieie e 12.8 12.4 4.5 3.0
Financial liabilities...........ccoocvviiiiiiiiice e, 338.8 300.9 299.0 214.2
Other labilities ......cccovvviiieeieccee e, - - 0.3 -
Deferred tax abilities ........ooeeveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeenns 16.5 23.4 36.3 11.2
Total non-current liabilities .........c..ccoeevvviineennn. 372.6 340.9 342.5 230.6
Current liabilities
Other ProviSions..........coccieeieienie e 33.3 25.6 20.2 16.8
Financial liabilities...........ccooevviiivieiii e 58.0 81.6 65.6 32.2
Trade payables ... 248.5 215.2 99.0 79.2
Other labilities .....cceevvviieeie e 6.2 13.1 16.2 2.4
Income tax liabilities. .......cooveeveeeeeee e, 1.4 6.2 2.0 -
Total current liabilities ..........cccovveveeeeeeeeeeeeen 347.3 341.7 203.0 130.6
Total equity and liabilities...........c...ccoo.covvvrrrrnnns 708.9 685.2 581.3 393.2
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5.3 Selected Information from the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

For the nine-month period For the financial year
ended September 30, ended December 31,
2017 2016 2016 2015 2014
(unaudited) (audited)
(in € million) (in € million)
Net cash flow from operating activities........ (5.1) 39.3 87.7 (15.9) (11.4)
Cash flow from investing activities.............. (21.9) (18.2) (21.8) (51.2) (120.7)
Cash flow from financing activities............. 25.0 16.4 8.5 78.4 157.2
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash
EQUIVAIENES ..o (1.9 37.6 74.3 11.2 25.1
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of
PEFIOU. ... e 110.7 73.5 1125 35.9 25.1
5.4 Alternative Performance Measures

The Company believes that the key performance indicators described in this section constitute
significant indicators for measuring the operating and financial performance of Instone’s business (all
alternative performance measures referred to hereinafter as “Alternative Performance Measures™):

Operating performance (hereinafter “Operating Performance”) is defined as the sum of
revenue and change in inventories as stated in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
Change in inventories is measured by the value of the entries into inventories as a result of
(i) acquisitions, (ii) capitalized development costs and (iii) project-related interest expenses
(excluding commission fees) less the value of withdrawals during the accounting period as a
result of disposals. Operating Performance is a common measure in the real estate
development industry as it measures not only revenues realized from development activities
but also measures acquisition costs for land plots acquired for future developments and
capitalized development activities. Accordingly, Operating Performance, as the sum of
revenues and change in inventories is less affected by the method of accounting applied and
provides a more consistent measure of Instone’s development activities over time. Under each
method of accounting, Operating Performance includes the price paid for the acquisition of
land plots, which is recorded in change of inventories. Under the percentage of completion
method, Operating Performance reflects the contract revenue for units sold, including the
Anticipated Gross Project Margin (as defined below), that can be attributed in any given
period to the proportion of work completed in such period and also includes, within changes in
inventories, costs capitalized in the periods under review associated with ongoing construction
that, based on units sold and construction progress cannot yet be recognized in revenue. Under
the completed contract method, revenues and margins are not recognized during the
construction phase, but construction costs, finance cost and staff cost are capitalized and
included in change in inventories as work progresses, while revenues, including profits, are
recognized only upon delivery of the residential units. Accordingly, as the sum of revenue and
change in inventories, Operating Performance provides a broadly consistent measure of the
Company’s performance over time, notwithstanding the fact that they include projects
accounted for under both the percentage of completion method and the completed contract
method. Differences remain, however, as Operating Performance for projects accounted for
under the completed contract method does not include any portion of the Anticipated Gross
Project Margin for units sold and also does not reflect operating expenses that cannot be
capitalized, such as certain sales costs, which are, however, reflected in revenue under the
percentage of completion method for units sold. Anticipated Gross Project Margin
(“Anticipated Gross Project Margin”) is defined as the quotient of (i) total estimated project
income minus total estimated project costs for fully developed projects and (ii) total estimated
project income on the basis of the current estimated market price for such project. Total
estimated project costs include a 1.5% construction cost inflation assumption and sales
commission but do not include financing, personnel, corporate expense or PPA Effects (as
defined below). Instone uses the Anticipated Gross Project Margin to determine whether to
pursue with acquisitions of land plots for new project developments. As described above, the
Anticipated Gross Project Margin was used to determine the relevant proportion of work
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completed to be allocated to contract revenue for units sold under the percentage of
completion method.

e Adjusted Operating Performance (hereinafter “Adjusted Operating Performance”) is
defined as Operating Performance adjusted for inventories-related PPA Effects (as defined
below). PPA Effects are defined as the effects on the consolidated financial statements
resulting from the acquisition of Instone Real Estate Development GmbH (“Instone
Development”) in 2014 and Instone Real Estate Leipzig GmbH (“Instone Leipzig”) in 2015,
that required the Company to allocate the purchase prices to the assets and liabilities that were
acquired based on estimated fair values and resulted in a step up in the value of the acquired
assets, an increase in liabilities and income tax liabilities and thereby impacted change in
inventories, Operating Performance, other income and EBIT in the periods of the acquisition
and in subsequent periods (“PPA Effects”). At the time of delivery of such assets (when fully
developed) to Instone’s customers, such additional values result in the recognition of
correspondingly higher costs in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and reduce
Operating Performance in such periods. The adjustments applied on Operating Performance
therefore reverse such higher costs resulting from the amortization of the value step ups. As
PPA Effects relating to “other income” do not affect revenues or change in inventories,
Operating Performance is only adjusted for inventories-related PPA Effects. Instone believes
the resulting Adjusted Operating Performance to be a valuable performance indicator as it
shows Operating Performance as it would have been without PPA Effects that are not
indicative of Instone’s underlying ordinary course of business Operating Performance.

e Adjusted EBIT is defined as EBIT adjusted by all of the PPA Effects and One-Off Items
(hereinafter “Adjusted EBIT™). EBIT is a line item in the Company’s consolidated statement
of profit or loss and comprises earnings before interest and tax (“EBIT”). One-off items are
defined as items which, in management’s view, are unusual or incurred on a non-recurring
basis in particular due to acquisition events, disposals or structural changes within Instone
(“One-Off Items”).

e EBITDA is a line item in the Company’s consolidated statement of profit or loss and defined
as earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization (“EBITDA”). EBITDA is
used to measure EBIT excluding non-operating expenses and certain non-cash expenses.

e Net working capital (hereinafter “Net Working Capital”) is defined as inventories plus trade
receivables minus trade payables. Net Working Capital takes into account inventories, trade
receivables and other receivables as well as liabilities and does not take into account cash and
other available liquid resources. It serves to measure the short-term liquidity of Instone’s
business and its ability to utilize assets in an efficient manner.

e Total financial liabilities (“Total Financial Liabilities”) consist of total non-current financial
liabilities and total current financial liabilities. The Company uses Total Financial Liabilities
to measure its aggregate financial liabilities.

e Historical Gross Project Margin (“Historical Gross Project Margin™) is defined as quotient
of (i) total historical project income minus total historical project costs and (ii) total historical
project income. Total historical project costs include sales commission but do not include
financing, personnel, corporate expense or PPA Effects. Instone uses Historical Gross Project
Margin to measure the profitability of its completed projects to monitor and report on actual
historical project margins.

The Alternative Performance Measures are not recognized as measures under IFRS and should not be
considered as substitutes for figures on earnings before tax, net earnings, cash flow from operating activities or
other consolidated statement of financial position or cash flow data, as determined in accordance with IFRS, or
as measures of profitability or liquidity. The Alternative Performance Measures do not necessarily indicate
whether cash flow will be sufficient or available for Instone’s cash requirements, nor whether any such measure
is indicative of its historical operating results. The Alternative Performance Measures are not meant to be
indicative of future results. Because not all companies calculate these measures and figures in the same way,
Instone’s presentation of the Alternative Performance Measures is not necessarily comparable with similarly
titled measures used by other companies. Although certain of this data has been extracted or derived from the
Company’s consolidated financial statements contained in this Prospectus, this data has not been audited or
reviewed by Deloitte, except as otherwise indicated.
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For the nine-month period For the financial year
ended September 30, ended December 31,
2017 2016 2016 2015 2014
(unaudited) (unaudited, unless otherwise indicated)
(in € million) (in € million)
REVENUE ...t 123.8 164.9 203.6 358.7 64.4
Change in iNVentories ..........ccocecvvereencrennns 30.4 86.0 158.9 (23.2) (7.8)
Operating Performance...........c.ccocccvenenns 154.2 250.9 362.5 335.6 56.7
Reversal of inventories-related PPA
EFfeCts™ ..o 16.8 22.2 50.0 13.7 3.3
PPA Effects re Instone Development .. 3.9 8.3 11.9 13.7 3.3
PPA Effects re Instone Leipzig............ 12.9 13.9 38.1 - -
Adjusted Operating Performance ............. 171.0 273.1 412.5 349.3 60.0
1= I OO 3.9 (9.3) 0.8? (7.6)® 13.3@
Reversal of PPA Effects® ..................... 16.8 22.2 49.1 10.6 (20.5)
PPA Effects re Instone Development .. 3.9 8.3 11.1 10.8 (20.5)
PPA Effects re Instone Leipzig............ 12.9 13.9 38.1 0.2) -
One-Off HEMS ....ovviiiiriireeee (4.9) 4.8 (1.5) 14.7 13.2
Expenses with respect to the - 0.0 0.3 4.2 4.4
acquisition of companies®..................
Expenses with respect to the - - - 6.8 3.3
restructuring of Instone®..................
Liabilities under purchase - - - 3.9 2.1
agreements® ...
Long term incentive!” .........cc.c..cccvu.ne. - 6.5 8.9 2.3 0.0
Gain from carve-out disposals®......... (4.9) - (6.5) (4.1) -
Gain from reimbursements® .............. - (0.7) (3.2) - -
Gains from provisions under - (2.1) (2.1) - -
acquisition agreements™® .................
Litigation losses™...........cc.ccoovrrernnc. - - - 1.0 -
Other™.........oviveieeeeeeee e 0.0 1.1 1.1 0.6 33
Adjusted EBIT 15.8 17.7 48.4 17.7 6.0

@
@
®3)
@
®)
(6)

Q]
®)

O]

(10)

(11

(12)

Reversal of inventories-related PPA Effects relates to a reversal of such PPA Effects only that resulted in a change in inventories due
to the recorded step up in the value of the assets acquired as part of the acquisitions of Instone Development and Instone Leipzig.
Audited.

Reversal of PPA Effects relates to the reversal of all PPA Effects.

Expenses with respect to the acquisition of companies refers to expenses incurred relating to external advisors commissioned by
Instone in connection with Instone Development and Instone Leipzig.

Expenses with respect to the restructuring of Instone refers to expenses incurred in connection with the internal restructuring of Instone
Development with a particular focus on its core business, the closure of certain branches as well as the reduction of business activities
in foreign countries.

Liabilities under purchase agreements refers to expenses incurred for the recognition of certain provisions for claims to be made for
certain projects agreed upon under the sale and purchase agreement entered into by the Company and HOCHTIEF Solutions AG
relating to the acquisition of Instone Development.

Long-term incentive refers to expenses incurred for the recognition of provisions for the long-term incentive plans for the benefit of
certain employees reflecting a participation in the added value created for the Existing Shareholders.

Gain from carve-out disposals refers to gain from the disposal of non-core assets of Instone Leipzig the proceeds of which are,
however, attributable to the seller pursuant to the earn-out rules under the sale and purchase agreement relating to Instone Leipzig and
included as gain in the reversal of PPA Effects.

Gain from reimbursements refers to gain relating to a reimbursement paid by the City of Wiesbaden to Instone’s subsidiary “Projekt
Wiesbaden Wilhelmstrale GmbH & Co. KG” relating to planning costs for a public building as well as a reimbursement with respect
to the settlement of legal disputes in Luxembourg paid by HOCHTIEF Solutions AG.

Gains from provisions under acquisition agreements refers to settlement payments by HOCHTIEF Solutions AG to the Company in
connection with the disposal of Office Park Hamm in Luxembourg.

Litigation losses refers to losses incurred in connection with the settlement of the proceeding relating to Cour de Justice, Luxemburg
between HOCHTIEF Solutions AG and the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg for which HOCHTIEF Solutions AG remained liable under
the sale and purchase agreement relating to the acquisition of Instone Development.

Other includes management compensation to related parties incurred in connection with the acquisition of Instone Development and
Instone Leipzig as non-recurring items.

Net Working Capital consists of inventories plus trade receivables minus trade payables. Inventories

consist of (i) costs capitalized for the acquisition of land plots, (ii) work in progress inventories and (iii) finished
goods. Trade receivables consist of (i) trade receivables related to customer contracts accounted for under the
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percentage of completion method if contract costs and Anticipated Gross Project Margin for units sold exceed
progress payments received for such projects, (ii) other trade receivables and (iii) trade receivables from non-
consolidated subsidiaries. Trade payables consist of (i) trade payables related to customer contracts accounted
for under the percentage of completion method if progress payments received for sold units exceed contract
costs and Anticipated Gross Project Margin for such units, (ii) (other) trade payables, (iii) progress payments
received related to customer contracts accounted for under the completed contract method and (iv) payables
from non-consolidated subsidiaries.

If projects are accounted for under the percentage of completion method, capitalized land plots and
work-in progress inventories accounted for under inventories (i.e., prior to the sale of units) are accounted for as
trade receivables if contract costs and Anticipated Gross Project Margin for units sold exceed progress payments
received. If progress payments exceed contract costs and Anticipated Gross Project Margin for units sold, the
projects are accounted for as trade payables. Amounts due from customers for contract work (PoC) are netted in
each case against the progress payments received for projects accounted for under the percentage of completion
method. To the extent projects have not been sold, project development progress is accounted for under work in
progress inventories.

Under the completed contract method, progress of Instone’s project developments is not accounted for
as trade receivable but as work-in-progress inventories until delivery of the residential units. Progress payments
received for projects accounted for under the completed contract method are booked at their gross value
(payments received) as trade payables and are not netted against inventories (or receivables).

The following table shows the elements of Net Working Capital as of the dates indicated:

As of As of
September 30, December 31,
2017 2016 2015 2014
(unaudited) (audited, unless otherwise indicated)
(in € million) (in € million)
INVENTOTIES .ocvveiee e 572.6 542.7 415.5 233.0
thereof:
Capitalization of land plotS...........cc..covevvereerenns 258.0 220.8% 60.2Y 69.6"
Work in progress inventories ............c..cooeeveen. 309.2 316.8" 345.4Y 163.4%
Finished goods ..o 54 51 9.9 -
Trade receivables ... 11.4 19.6 110.2 1154
Thereof
Amounts due from customers for contract work
(POC) i s 0.0 13.6 242.5 216.0
Progress payments received®............ccccccoueeunne. - (10.3) (151.1) (122.9)
Other trade receivables...........cccoovvevviiiiieiiennn, 114 15.7 18.2 20.8
Trade receivables from non-consolidated
SUDSIAIANIES .o.veeve e - 0.5 0.6 16
Trade payables ... (248.5) (215.2) (99.0) (79.2)
Thereof
Amounts due from customers for contract work
(POC) ittt - - 10.8 58.7
Progress payments received®.............c..ccccocvu..e. — — (11.3) (64.6)
Trade payables.........ccoovieoiiiinieeee (41.4) (53.6) (55.5) (62.6)
Progress payments received®............c.ccccovv.n. (207.1) (161.5) (43.0) (10.7)
Payables from non-consolidated subsidiaries...... - (0.0) (0.0) (0.1)
Net Working Capital ...........ccc..coeveervecrrrrienrnnne, 335.5 347.10 426.7" 269.2""

(1) Unaudited.
(2) Relates to customer contracts accounted for under the percentage of completion method.
(3) Relates to customer contracts accounted for under the completed contract method.
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6. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF NET ASSETS, FINANCIAL
CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS

Investors should read the following management’s discussion and analysis of net assets, financial
condition and results of operations in conjunction with the sections entitled “1 Risk Factors”, “5 Selected
Consolidated Financial Information” and “8 Business”.

The financial information contained in the following tables is taken or derived from the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company as of and for the financial years ended December 31, 2016,
December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014 and the unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial
statements of the Company as of and for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2017. The Company’s
financial year 2014 began with its foundation on April 16, 2014 and ended December 31, 2014. Additional
financial information is taken or derived from the Company’s accounting records or internal reporting system.
The audited consolidated financial statements were prepared in accordance with IFRS. The unaudited
condensed consolidated interim financial statements have been prepared in accordance with IFRS on interim
financial reporting (IAS 34).

Where financial information in the following tables is labelled “audited”, this means that they have
been taken from the audited financial statements mentioned above and does not indicate that the individual
amount is audited. The label “unaudited” is used in the following tables to indicate financial information that
has not been taken from the audited financial statements mentioned above, but has been taken either from the
Company’s unaudited condensed interim consolidated financial statements mentioned above or the Company’s
internal reporting system, or has been calculated based on figures from the aforementioned sources.

6.1 Overview of Instone’s Business

Instone is a leading nationwide residential real estate developer in Germany as measured in terms of
square meters (“sqm”) of secured development projects not yet under construction (Source: bulwiengesa).
Instone develops modern, urban, multifamily residential properties and redevelops listed buildings for
residential use. As of September 30, 2017, Instone’s project portfolio comprised 48 development projects with
an aggregate expected sales volume for fully developed projects of approximately €3.4 billion. As of that date,
approximately 93% of Instone’s portfolio (by expected sales volume for fully developed projects) was located in
Germany’s key metropolitan regions (Berlin, Bonn, Cologne, Dusseldorf, Frankfurt am Main, Hamburg,
Leipzig, Munich and Stuttgart (including Herrenberg)) and 7% in other prospering medium-sized cities.
Instone’s key purchaser groups are owner-occupiers, retail buy-to-let investors and institutional investors.

Instone believes the German residential real estate market to be highly attractive. Germany is Europe’s
largest and most stable economy. In 2016, Germany had the highest gross domestic product (GDP) in Europe
(€3.1 trillion) as well as one of the highest GDP per capita (€38.1 thousand) (Source: Destatis, German Federal
Statistical Office). Sound structural growth in the German residential property market is expected to continue
due to a combination of several factors, including modest population growth (Source: Institut der deutschen
Wirtschaft Kéln (IW)), an increasing number of households (Source: Destatis, German Federal Statistical
Office) and the current structural undersupply of residential properties (Source: bulwiengesa). From 2012 until
2030, the population is expected to grow by 10.3% in Berlin, by 14.2% in Frankfurt am Main and by 4% in
Munich (Source: bulwiengesa, Potential Analysis). In addition, Instone’s business benefits from favorable
German regulatory framework for project developments. The German Real Estate and Commercial Contractor
Regulation (Makler- und Bautrégerverordnung (“MaBV™)) enables Instone to contractually agree on significant
fixed down payments based on construction milestones for residential units sold to owner-occupiers and retail
buy-to-let investors which substantially reduces its development risk.

Instone is one of only a few pure play residential real estate developers in Germany with operations
spanning the entire development value chain other than actual construction. Instone operates through a fully
integrated nationwide platform covering the acquisition of land, land development, concept design, construction
management, as well as marketing and sales. Headquartered in Essen, Instone also operates through seven
branches in Berlin, Cologne, Frankfurt am Main, Hamburg, Leipzig, Munich and Stuttgart. Each branch has its
own local teams for acquisition, planning, construction management and marketing and sales activities, while
strategic decisions are coordinated and managed together with Instone’s headquarters. Instone has strong risk-
management processes in place and applies sophisticated reporting and planning tools to mitigate development
risks. Due to these measures, for a total of 25 projects completed in the period between January 2015 and
September 30, 2017, Instone Development successfully delivered 100% of its projects on time and realized on
average 1% more floor space than initially projected. During the same period, Instone Development’s actual
project construction costs were on average 0.5% lower than initially anticipated.
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Instone has a successful acquisition track record. Since 2015, Instone has acquired land plots and
properties for residential development with an aggregate expected sales volume for fully developed projects of
€2,847 million at the time of acquisition. Instone also has a successful development track record. Since 1991,
Instone (including its predecessors) has developed residential units comprising more than one million sgm of
residential space. In 2015, Instone successfully completed and delivered 1,112 residential units, in 2016 1,204,
and in the first nine months of 2017 270, respectively. Instone achieved a weighted average Historical Gross
Project Margin of 23.6% over all projects completed between January 1, 2015 and September 30, 2017.

In the years to come, Instone expects to deliver, subject to market and other conditions:

e approximately 700 residential units with an aggregate expected sales volume for fully developed
projects of €328 million in 2018;

e approximately 1,450 residential units with an aggregate expected sales volume for fully developed
projects of €507 million (aggregate expected sales volume of €489 million as shown in the Valuation
Report and including additional condominiums in Wiesbhaden-Delkenheim with an expected additional
sales volume of €15 million and other condominiums with an expected additional sales volume of €3
million each of which have not been included in Valuation Report) in 2019; and

e approximately 1,300 residential units with an aggregate expected sales volume for fully developed
projects of €588 million in 2020.

e From 2021 onwards, Instone expects to deliver, subject to market and other conditions, approximately
2,000 residential units with an aggregate expected sales volume for fully developed projects of €900
million to €1,000 million. Out of these 2,000 units, approximately 1,800 units relate to projects covered
by the Valuation Report with an aggregate expected sales volume for fully developed projects of €874
million. Instone expects to deliver the additional 200 units based on new projects not covered by the
Valuation Report with an aggregate expected sales volume for fully developed projects of €26 million
to €126 million.

All of these projects are accounted for under the completed contract method and will result in the
recognition of revenues upon delivery of each unit under application of the completed contract method. Of the
projects that are planned to be completed by 2020, Instone had sold already two-thirds as of September 30, 2017
(measured by expected sales volume). For all of these projects, Instone has obtained sufficient debt financing. In
addition, Instone will receive customer pre-payments in accordance with construction progress enabling it to
repay debt financing once projects become cash positive.

6.2 Overview of Instone’s Portfolio

As of September 30, 2017, Instone’s project portfolio comprised 48 projects units with an aggregate
expected sales volume for fully developed projects of approximately €3.4 billion.

Instone divides its project portfolio into three categories based on the development phase. Projects in
the “pre-sale” category comprise projects for which land plots have been acquired or secured by Instone but for
which it has not yet commenced its marketing and sales activities. In the pre-sale category, Instone performs its
land development and concept design activities to enable it to initiate its sales activities. Once Instone starts its
marketing and sales activities, projects are assigned to the “pre-construction” phase. Once building measures are
being carried out, projects are categorized as being “under construction”.

The following table provides an overview of Instone’s project portfolio as of September 30, 2017,
broken down by development phase:

Expected
Number of Expected Sales Price
Number of Expected % of Units Construction  Sales Volume Per Unit
Development Phase Projects Units Sold (in %) (in € million) (in€)
(unaudited)  (unaudited) (unaudited)  (unaudited) (unaudited) (unaudited)
Pre-sale ......ccoeoeiiiniencieneens 29 5,473 - 3 2,273 415,361
Pre-construction..........cccceeevveenee. 4 526 57 7 207 394,288
Under construction............c......... 15 2,043 80 47 894 437,645
Total..oovieeeeeec e, 48 8,042 25 14 3,375 419,644

As of that date, Instone had entered into purchase contracts with regard to 24% of the residential units
projected to be constructed in total and with regard to 75% of the residential units that are in the pre-
construction or construction development phase (in each case measured by expected sales volume). With regard
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to projects the completion of which is planned by 2020, two-thirds were sold as of that date (measured by
expected sales volume).

6.3 Foundation of the Company and Acquisition of Instone Development and Instone Leipzig

Instone’s core business originates from HOCHTIEF Solutions AG’s real estate development division.
In 2013, HOCHTIEF Solutions AG contributed its development division into a separate entity, formart GmbH
& Co. KG. On April 16, 2014, the Company was founded as a private limited liability company (previously
under the legal name “Formart Holding B.V.”). In October 2014, the Company acquired a limited partnership
interest (Kommanditanteil) in formart GmbH & Co. KG as well as all of the outstanding shares of its general
partner (Komplementér), formart Management GmbH. Following the acquisition of the remaining partnership
interest in March 2017, the Company became the sole partner in formart GmbH & Co. KG which has since been
renamed and converted into Instone Real Estate Development GmbH. Instone Development has been fully
consolidated in the Company’s consolidated financial statements since October 1, 2014.

In December 2015, the Company acquired 94% of the shares GRK-Holding GmbH, which has since
been renamed Instone Real Estate Leipzig GmbH, a real estate developer specialized in the redevelopment of
listed buildings for residential use. Instone Leipzig has been fully consolidated in the Company’s consolidated
financial statements since December 31, 2015 with transactions being reflected in its accounts for the period
from December 10, 2015 to December 31, 2015.

As a result of the acquisition of Instone Development and Instone Leipzig, the Company was required
to allocate the purchase prices to the assets and liabilities that were acquired based on estimated fair values. The
allocation of the purchase price resulted in the PPA Effects. For further information on these effects, see
“6.5 Factors Affecting Comparability” below.

6.4 Form of Customer Contract, Application of Accounting Method and Operating Performance

As a project developer, the Company’s results are significantly affected by the method used to account
for its contracts. Historically, Instone Development’s standard customer contracts provided for a right of its
customers to request that fundamental changes be made to the project during the course of construction in
accordance with a policy of Instone Development’s previous shareholder HOCHTIEF Solutions AG. In the new
form of contract, which Instone Development introduced on August 1, 2015, this right was eliminated. As a
result of this contract modification, for development projects the marketing of which began on or after August 1,
2015, the Company no longer recognizes costs and revenues using the percentage of completion method under
IAS 11 but rather does so using the completed contract method under IAS 18.

Certain types of Instone Development’s project developments (e.g., micro apartments, completed
apartments that had not been sold) were sold using contracts that already required application of the completed
contract method prior to this contract modification. This was also true for the sale of land plots, which is
accounted for under the completed contract method. Instone Leipzig’s customer contracts have always required
application of the completed contract method.

Under the percentage of completion method, revenues from agreed contracts are matched with the
contract costs incurred in reaching the relevant stage of completion in relation to the total, resulting in the
reporting of revenue, expenses and Anticipated Gross Project Margin in any given reporting period for units
sold that can be attributed to the proportion of the work completed in such period. Under the completed contract
method, revenues are recognized only upon the transfer of goods. As a result, under this method revenues and
profits from project developments are not recognized until residential units that have been sold are actually
delivered following completion. During the construction phase, production costs are capitalized in inventories.
Because revenues and profits under this method are not recognized until the delivery of completed units,
earnings generally remain negative until the end of the project development process.

Consequently, the Company’s results in the periods under review include projects accounted for under
the percentage of completion method and projects accounted for under the completed contract method. Although
the new form of contract was introduced as of August 1, 2015, for projects already being marketed at that date
Instone Development continued to use the prior form. Accordingly, such projects continued to be accounted for
using the percentage of completion method and to contribute to revenues and earnings until the final unit was
delivered in the second quarter of 2017. As of the second half financial year 2017, all of Instone’s projects have
been accounted for using the completed contract method.

While revenue and earnings from contracts accounted for using the percentage of completion declined
over time until the final unit subject to the old form of contract was delivered in the second quarter of 2017,
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projects marketed using the new form of contract and accounted for under the completed contract method did
not begin to contribute to revenues and earnings until 2017 as the first units from such projects began to be
delivered following completion.

As a consequence of the contract modification and the ensuing different accounting treatment for
development projects, revenues and earnings in the more recent periods under review were negatively affected
and only reflect a portion of the value created through Instone’s project development activities. Operating
Performance, as the sum of revenues and change in inventories is less affected by the method of accounting
applied and provides a more consistent measure of Instone’s development activities over time. Under each
method of accounting, Operating Performance includes the price paid for the acquisition of land plots, which is
recorded in change of inventories. Under the percentage of completion method, Operating Performance reflects
the contract revenue for units sold, including the Anticipated Gross Project Margin, that can be attributed in any
given period to the proportion of work completed in such period and also includes, within changes in
inventories, capitalized costs associated with ongoing construction that, based on units sold and construction
progress, cannot yet be recognized in revenue. Under the completed contract method, revenues and margins are
not recognized during the construction phase, but construction costs, finance cost and staff cost are capitalized
and included in change in inventories as work progresses, while revenues, including profits, are recognized only
upon delivery of the residential units. Accordingly, as the sum of revenue and change in inventories, Operating
Performance provides a broadly consistent measure of the Company’s performance in the periods under review,
notwithstanding the fact that they include projects accounted for under both the percentage of completion
method and the completed contract method. Differences remain, however, as Operating Performance for
projects accounted for under the completed contract method does not include any portion of the Anticipated
Gross Project Margin for units sold and also does not reflect operating expenses that cannot be capitalized, such
as certain sales costs, which are, however, reflected in revenue under the percentage of completion method for
units sold.

The following chart provides an illustrative calculation of the Operating Performance and EBT in €
million of a typical project accounted for under the completed contract method over four financial periods,
assuming revenues of €100 million, a typical project margin and development costs:

] Revenue and EBT realized at project delivery i--l
Land acquisition Start of construction Sale completion (loo%sold)_______aai;gr; _________________ i
In €m A Cum. In €m A Cum. In €m A Cum. In €m A Cum. i
Revenue - - Revenue - - Revenue - - Revenue 100 (_1?_).6_ :7- -
Change in inventory 22 22 Change in inventory 5 27 Change in inventory 29 56 Change in inventory (56) - i
;)gr?;ar\*na%\ce 22 22 Operating performance 5 27 Operating performance 29 56 Operating performance 44 100 E
Cost of materials (20) (20) Cost of materials 3) (23) Cost of materials (28) (51) Cost of materials (20) (71) :
Staff costs™ @) @) Staff costs®™ @) ) Staff costs™ ) ®) Staff costs™” 1) [O)) i
Net other expenses® &) &) Net other expenses™ @) 3) Net other expenses™ () 4) Net other expenses® (1) 5) i
Finance costs - - Finance costs 1) 1) Finance costs 1) @) Finance costs - 2) _ __:
EBT @) @) EBT (1) 2 EBT 2 (4) EBT 22 !:_—_E_:‘,

Cumulative view of a single project over time

(1) Partially capitalized.
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The following table shows the split of revenue for development projects accounted for under the
percentage of completion method and the completed contract method for the periods indicated:

For the nine-month

For the financial year period ended
ended December 31, September 30,
20147 2015 2016 2017
(audited) (unaudited)
(in € million) (in € million)
REVENUE ..t 64.4 358.7 203.6 123.8
thereof realized under percentage of
completion method ..o, 9.6 248.4 78.9 0.8
thereof realized under completed contract
MELhO ... 54.8 98.9 121.0 123.0
Change in INVENLOFIES ..........cvvveeverversreersseenees (7.8) (23.1) 158.9 30.4
Operating Performance..............cocovvevecvevenee, 6.7 335.6 362.5 154.2

(1) In the financial year ended December 31, 2014, Instone sold residential units in a large block-sale, completed projects held as finished
goods and a number of land plots, which transactions were required to be accounted for under the completed contract method.
Revenues accounted for under the percentage of completion method were impacted in 2014 by the step-up to fair market value of
inventories which resulted in a decline in the Anticipated Gross Project Margin and, hence, lower revenue was recognized.

6.5 Factors Affecting Comparability

In addition to the effects described above relating to the modification of Instone Development’s
customer contracts resulting in a different accounting treatment for its projects, the comparability of the
Company’s financial statements in the periods under review has been affected by changes in the scope of
consolidation and certain related matters. Due to the fact that the Company was founded on April 16, 2014 and
Instone Development was only consolidated into the Company’s 2014 consolidated financial statements for the
last three months of 2014, the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the short 2014 financial year are
not comparable with its 2015 consolidated financial statements, which include Instone Development for a full
year.

Although the impact is less significant, the Company’s acquisition of Instone Leipzig in December
2015 also affects the comparability of the Company’s financial statements for 2015 and 2016. In the Company’s
consolidated financial statements for the financial year 2016, Instone Leipzig’s results were consolidated for the
entire period, while Instone Leipzig did not contribute any earnings to Instone’s results in the financial year
2015 as the consolidation became effective as of December 31, 2015 and only had an impact on specific profit
and loss line items.

In addition to these differences in the scope of consolidation, the Company’s consolidated financial
statements in the periods under review were affected by PPA Effects and One-Off Items.

PPA Effects resulted from the effects on the consolidated financial statements in connection with the
acquisition of Instone Development in 2014 and Instone Leipzig in 2015. These acquisitions required the
Company to attribute values to each acquired asset. The acquisition of Instone Development in 2014 resulted in
a write-up of current assets by €36.1 million, an increase of liabilities by €7.8 million and an increase of
deferred tax liabilities by €9.0 million. The acquisition of Instone Leipzig in 2015 resulted in a write-up of
current assets by €120.8 million and an increase of deferred tax liabilities by €37.4 million.

At the time of delivery of such assets (when fully developed) to Instone’s customers, such additional
values result in the recognition of correspondingly higher costs in the consolidated statement of profit or loss.
The amortization of PPA Effects is related to the realization of each single project development which carries
the single defined write-up of current assets. Fluctuations result from the different write-ups on projects by
different projects-size and therefore different hidden reserves.
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The following table sets forth information with regard to the Company’s Operating Performance, as

adjusted by PPA Effects, and EBIT, as adjusted by PPA Effects and One-Off Items, for the periods indicated:

For the nine-month period For the financial year
ended September 30, ended December 31,
2017 2016 2016 2015 2014
(unaudited) (unaudited, unless otherwise indicated)
(in € million) (in € million)
REVENUE ...t 123.8 164.9 203.6 358.7 64.4
Change in inventories . 304 86.0 158.9 (23.1) (7.8)
Operating Performance 154.2 250.9 362.5 335.6 56.7
Reversal of inventories-related PPA
EFfECts™ oo 16.8 22.2 50.0 13.7 3.3
PPA Effects re Instone Development .. 3.9 8.3 11.9 13.7 3.3
PPA Effects re Instone Leipzig 12.9 13.9 38.1 - -
Adjusted Operating Performance ............. 171.0 273.1 412.5 349.3 60.0
=] 1 OO 3.9 (9.3) 0.8 (7.6)® 13.3@
Reversal of PPA Effects™ ..................... 16.8 22.2 49.1 10.6 (20.5)
PPA Effects re Instone Development .. 3.9 8.3 11.1 10.8 (20.5)
PPA Effects re Instone Leipzig............ 12.9 13.9 38.1 0.2) -
One-Off HeMS ..cvvviiiiiecee e (4.9) 4.8 (1.5) 14.7 13.2
Expenses with respect to the - 0.0 0.3 4.2 4.4
acquisition of companies®..................
Expenses with respect to the - - - 6.8 3.3
restructuring of Instone®..................
Liabilities under purchase - - - 3.9 2.1
agreements® ............c.ccocoererrceniennnn.
Long term incentive” ........c..cc...coo...... - 6.5 8.9 2.3 0.0
Gain from carve-out disposals®......... (4.9) - (6.5) (4.1) -
Gain from reimbursements® .............. - (0.7) (3.2) - -
Gains from provisions under - (2.1) (2.1) - -
acquisition agreements™® ..................
Litigation 10sses™.........c.coovvvvrernnnne - - - 1.0 -
Other®™ .o 0.0 1.1 1.1 0.6 3.3
Adjusted EBIT ....ccoovviiieceeceiee 15.8 17.7 48.4 17.7 6.0

@
@
®3)
Q)
®)
(6)

M
®)

O]

(10)

(11

(12)

Reversal of inventories-related PPA Effects relates to a reversal of such PPA Effects only that resulted in a change in inventories due
to the recorded step up in the value of the assets acquired as part of the acquisitions of Instone Development and Instone Leipzig.
Audited.

Reversal of PPA Effects relates to the reversal of all PPA Effects.

Expenses with respect to the acquisition of companies refers to expenses incurred relating to external advisors commissioned by
Instone in connection with Instone Development and Instone Leipzig.

Expenses with respect to the restructuring of Instone refers to expenses incurred in connection with the internal restructuring of Instone
Development with a particular focus on its core business, the closure of certain branches as well as the reduction of business activities
in foreign countries.

Liabilities under purchase agreements refers to expenses incurred for the recognition of certain provisions for claims to be made for
certain projects agreed upon under the sale and purchase agreement entered into by the Company and HOCHTIEF Solutions AG
relating to the acquisition of Instone Development.

Long-term incentive refers to expenses incurred for the recognition of provisions for the long-term incentive plans for the benefit of
certain employees reflecting a participation in the added value created for the Existing Shareholders.

Gain from carve-out disposals refers to gain from the disposal of non-core assets of Instone Leipzig the proceeds of which are,
however, attributable to the seller pursuant to the earn-out rules under the sale and purchase agreement relating to Instone Leipzig and
included as gain in the reversal of PPA Effects.

Gain from reimbursements refers to gain relating to a reimbursement paid by the City of Wiesbaden to Instone’s subsidiary “Projekt
Wiesbaden WilhelmstraBe GmbH & Co. KG” relating to planning costs for a public building as well as a reimbursement with respect
to the settlement of legal disputes in Luxembourg paid by HOCHTIEF Solutions AG.

Gains from provisions under acquisition agreements refers to settlement payments by HOCHTIEF Solutions AG to the Company in
connection with the disposal of Office Park Hamm in Luxembourg.

Litigation losses refers to losses incurred in connection with the settlement of the proceeding relating to Cour de Justice, Luxemburg
between HOCHTIEF Solutions AG and the Grand Duchy of Luxembourg for which HOCHTIEF Solutions AG remained liable under
the sale and purchase agreement relating to the acquisition of Instone Development.

Other includes management compensation to related parties incurred in connection with the acquisition of Instone Development and
Instone Leipzig as non-recurring items.
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6.6 Key Factors Influencing the Company’s Results of Operations
6.6.1 Demand and Market Conditions

Instone develops modern, urban, multifamily, residential properties and redevelops listed buildings for
residential use. Instone’s business is highly dependent on the German residential real estate market and most
significantly affected by developments in, and related to, the residential real estate sector in Germany’s key
metropolitan regions (Berlin, Bonn, Cologne, Dusseldorf, Frankfurt am Main, Hamburg, Leipzig, Munich and
Stuttgart (including Herrenberg)) in which 93% of Instone’s project portfolio (by expected sales volume) is
located. Demand for housing units and the customers’ ability to pay are affected by macroeconomic factors such
as the state of the economy, interest rates, the unemployment rate, as well as by demographic factors such as
population growth and urbanization. For additional information see “1.1.1 Instone is dependent on the German
residential property market, the conditions of which may deteriorate due to macroeconomic developments,
changes in interest rates or other factors.”, and 7 Markets and Competition”.

6.6.2  Sales price per residential units and number of residential units

As a project developer, the Company’s results of operations are strongly influenced by the sale it is
able to achieve per residential unit and by the number of residential units it is able to sell and deliver.

Instone’s sales prices are mainly influenced by demand and general market conditions in the regions in
which Instone operates. Instone sells its residential units to private investors, such as owner-occupiers and retail
buy-to-let investors, and to institutional clients. Its largest customer group is owner-occupiers, comprising
singles and families from the mid to upper income range. Instone plans its project developments in accordance
with the preferences and purchasing power of targeted purchasers. The planned average sales price per
residential unit amounts to €400,000. In the periods under review, the average realized sales price per unit
amounted to €407,446. Instone’s project portfolio as of September 30, 2017 had an expected average sales price
per residential unit of approximately €420,000.

The number of residential units Instone is able to sell in any given period is a function of the volume of
land plots and properties it has acquired in prior periods and the extent to which it has been able to obtain the
regulatory approvals required to begin construction of the units it plans to construct. It takes Instone six to
twelve months from initial sourcing to acquire land plots or properties for its development projects. Depending
on volume and complexity of a project, Instone usually needs 12 to 40 months following land acquisition to
develop a concept design and obtain the required approvals. The subsequent construction management phase,
which Instone typically begins only after having sold at least 30% of the planned development units generally
takes 18 to 24 months. Consequently, Instone’s project developments usually take approximately 36 to 76
months from the initial sourcing of land plots or properties to delivery of completed units.

The following table sets forth the number of units delivered and the average price per residential unit
delivered for the periods indicated:

For the nine-month period For the financial year
ended September 30, ended December 31,
2017 2016 2016 2015 2014
(unaudited) (unaudited)
Number of units delivered .............ccccceoennee. 270 664 1,204 1,112 874
Average price per unit (in €).........ccccevuereenne. 467,120 347,872 315,028 235,806 396,919

The period in which revenues and profits are realized from the sales of residential units depends on the
method of accounting applied. If the percentage of completion method is applied, contract revenues and profits
in respect of units that have been sold are matched with contract costs in the period in which they are incurred as
construction progresses. Where the completed contract method was applied, revenues and profits are recognized
only upon delivery of the completed residential units.

Given the time lag between the acquisition of land plots or properties and the sale of completed units,
the low level of numbers of units delivered in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2017 is a function of
the fact that Instone’s acquisitions in 2014, following the decision by HOCHTIEF Solutions AG to dispose of
the business, had an aggregate expected sales volume at the time of acquisition of only €229 million. This
compares with acquisitions following the acquisition of Instone Development in 2015 and 2016 having an
aggregate expected sales volume for fully developed projects of €1,476 million (including €550 million
attributable to the acquisition of Instone Leipzig) and €995 million, respectively. As a result of this high
investment level, Instone’s project portfolio as of September 30, 2017 had an expected sales volume for fully
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developed projects of €3.4 billion, which can be expected to result in a substantial increase in the number of
units delivered in future periods.

The revenues that will be recognized in future periods will depend on the timing of sales and delivery
of units which in turn depend on its ability to obtain required permits, construction progress, sufficient working
capital, additional financing facilities and sufficient personnel and other factors, some of which are beyond
Instone’s control and may not correspond to current planning. Given the time that typically elapses between
acquisition and delivery of units, revenues in future periods will also reflect the delivery of units related to
project developments in respect of land plots or properties acquired after September 30, 2017 to the extent
completed. With regards to such future acquisitions, Instone had identified 71 acquisition opportunities with an
aggregate potential sales volume for fully developed projects of more than €13.0 billion as of December 31,
2017.

6.6.3  Ability to deliver projects on time and in budget

The Company’s results are significantly impacted by its ability to meet its projected development costs
and delivery dates. When acquiring land plots or properties, Instone projects achievable sales prices per
residential unit on the basis of actual demand and market conditions, determines a detailed development budget
and sets the maximum acquisition price for such land plots or properties that enable it to achieve its Anticipated
Gross Project Margin, subject to successful planning and construction.

Instone’s projections include a schedule for obtaining necessary regulatory approvals, commencement
of construction, and delivery of completed residential units. Instone typically does not have construction carried
out until at least 30% of the projected residential units have been sold. With regard to such purchasers, Instone
cannot increase sales prices to cover project development cost overruns should occur. Further, it may not be able
to find purchasers for the remaining residential units under development willing to pay a higher purchase price
offsetting any such cost overruns. While the recently amended German Civil Code (Biirgerliches Gesetzbuch)
generally excludes ordinary and extraordinary termination rights, with or without cause, for residential property
development contracts, purchasers may have the right to withdraw from the entire contract, including the
purchase of property, if Instone significantly fails to deliver completed units in compliance with its contractual
obligations, fails to rectify such non-compliance and deliver within the agreed standard and within a reasonable
deadline set by such purchaser or refuses to rectify such non-compliance. Accordingly, Instone may not be able
to achieve a positive margin and may even suffer a loss from project development if it does not adhere to its
projected development costs or delivery schedule.

The accounting for cost overruns and delays depends on the applied method of accounting. Under the
percentage of completion method, cost overruns and delay are reflected in contract loss provisions. Under the
completed contract method, cost overruns result in impairment losses if the carrying amount of capitalized
building costs exceeds the net consideration to which Instone expected to be entitled upon sale, less any
remaining costs still to be incurred that relate to the relevant project development.

As a result of Instone’s strong risk-management processes and sophisticated reporting and planning
tools, for a total of 25 projects completed in the period between January 2015 and September 30, 2017, Instone
Development successfully delivered 100% of its projects on time and realized on average 1% more floor space
than initially projected. During the same period, Instone Development’s actual project construction costs were
on average 0.5% lower than initially anticipated. There can, however, be no assurance that Instone will continue
to meet its calculation targets as precisely in future periods is dependent on a number of factors not fully under
its control.

6.6.4  Cost Structure

The Company’s results of operations are significantly impacted by Instone’s ability to control its cost
structure by limiting both internal and external cost and expenses during the development process.

The largest component of Instone’s cost structure is cost of materials comprising cost of materials and
supplies and cost of purchased services. In the financial year ended December 31, 2016, the total cost of
materials amounted to €293.7 million, of which €165.3 million were cost of materials and supplies and €128.4
million were cost of purchased services.

Instone manages these largely variable costs by a highly systematized construction process, internal
approval guidelines, reporting systems and a specialized internal software system for the constant monitoring,
evaluation and control of costs. For a total of 25 projects completed by Instone Development in the period
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between January 2015 and September 30, 2017, actual project construction costs were on average 0.5% lower
than initially anticipated.

Other operating expenses account for the second largest component of Instone’s cost structure.
Instone’s other operating expenses are largely driven by commissions fees and other distribution costs, rental
expenses, legal and notary fees. Commission fees and other distribution costs for Instone Development and
Instone Leipzig range between 2.4% and 14.4% of the sales price for commissions fees and other distribution
costs. Costs vary depending on customer type (owner-occupiers or retail investors) and type of sales (traditional
agents vs. network marketing) with commission fees and other distribution costs being significantly higher for
Instone Leipzig’s business activities.

The third largest component of Instone’s cost structure are staff cost. As a result of the acquisition of
Instone Leipzig, Instone’s staff cost slightly increased, partially offset by a reduction of staff and staff cost at
Instone Development. In general, Instone’s staff costs provide for a platform that enables it to scale up the
number of its development projects with limited additional staff per project. Instone had a workforce of 240.9
full-time equivalent employees as of September 30, 2017, responsible for the development of its current project
portfolio that had an expected sales volume for fully developed projects of approximately €3.4 billion.

For information on the cost and profitability on a project level, please refer to “8.4.6 Project
Development Cost Structure and Profitability of Projects.”

6.6.5 Financial Expenses

The Company’s earnings are also affected by its financing expenses. To finance its total cost of
materials, Instone typically obtains third party debt financing with respect to its building construction
management activities (Hochbaufinanzierung). Instone’s financing expenses are primarily influenced by the
interest rates and the volume of its interest-bearing liabilities and the interest rate maturity strategy chosen by it
in its project financing arrangements.

Building construction financing usually comprises equity investments in the amount of 15% of the
expected total development costs for fully developed projects and third party debt financing for the remaining
85%. Instone has a well-proven project and cash utilization planning in place to adequately allocate its cash
resources to current and planned projects and general corporate purposes. As Instone obtains most of its third
party debt financings from local banks, financial liabilities, in particular financial liabilities to banks increase
accordingly. On the other hand, however, the purchasers’ instalment payments under the MaBV result in a
corresponding increase of trade payables throughout the construction management process until the final
payments following delivery of the projects upon which revenues are realized. Instone further benefits from the
staggered payment framework provided by the MaBV as the amount of such purchasers’ instalment payments is
offset against the amount drawn under a credit facility (ausgenitzter Kreditrahmen) significantly reducing the
drawn credit amount under the respective financing agreements and resulting in a lower overall interest burden
(Zinslast) to be borne by Instone (for further details, see “8.7.5 Financing of the Project Developments™).

6.6.6  Seasonality

Instone experiences that a higher number of purchase agreements entered into towards the end of a
calendar year. This increase towards the end of a calendar is partially driven by the possibility to claim certain
tax benefits for the year of the purchase of the relevant residential unit, even though less relevant for owner-
occupiers, Instone’s largest customer group.

For customer contracts accounted for under the percentage of completion method, the moderate
increase of conclusion of sales contracts towards the end of a calendar year was more relevant as revenues for
projects were recognized in accordance with construction progress and resulted in immediate recognition of
revenues for projects construction of which had already started.

Under the completed contract method, applying to all projects the marketing of which commenced on
or after August 1, 2015, seasonality has become less relevant as revenues are only recognized upon delivery of
completed residential units. Due to the time lag between the signing of the customer contracts and delivery of
completed units, the seasonality factor has only a limited effect on revenues recognized under this method.
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6.7 Results of Operations

The following table shows selected financial data taken from the Company’s consolidated statement of
profit and loss for the periods indicated:

For the nine-month period For the financial year
ended September 30, ended December 31,
2017 2016 2016 2015 2014
(unaudited) (audited)
(in € million) (in € million)

REVENUES .....ocveieiecieice e 123.8 164.9 203.6 358.7 64.4
Change in iNVeNtories ........c.ccoeovvereeicniennns 30.4 86.0 158.9 (23.2) (7.8)
Other operating inCOME ........ccceecvvveveiereenn, 4.2 1.8 8.3 8.6 315
Cost of materialS.......cccceveveniviieiiiciieieienns (109.5) (207.9) (293.7) (284.3) (51.0)
Staff COSES v (19.2) (24.1) (35.2) (26.9) (6.4)
Other operating eXPenseS........ccovvvveververeennes (26.5) (31.4) (42.4) (38.5) (19.0)
Income from associated affiliates ................. 0.5 14 1.3 (1.4) 16
Other net income from investments®............ 0.6 0.3 0.3 (0.1) -
Earnings before interest, tax,

depreciation and amortization

(EBITDA) oo 4.2 (9.0) 1.3 (7.1) 13.4
Depreciation and amortization...................... (0.3) (0.3) (0.4) (0.5) (0.2)
Earnings before interest and tax (EBIT) .. 3.9 (9.3) 0.8 (7.6) 13.3
Finance inCOMe........cccoviiiiii i 0.8 - 0.1 0.9 0.2
FINANCE COSES.....veiviieecieecirce e (15.7) (18.8) (25.0) (21.8) (5.4)
Write-down of long-term securities............... - - 0.1 (0.2) -
Finance result® ...........cccooovovecomvoneceeees (14.9) (18.8) (24.8) (21.0) (5.2)
Earnings before tax (EBT) .......cccccvevvvennnnne. (11.0) (28.1) (24.0) (28.6) 8.1
INCOME tAXES ..ovvveveevecie e (2.0) 2.5 1.8 6.2 2.7
Earnings after tax (EAT) ..o (13.0) (25.7) (22.2) (22.4) 10.8

(1) In the financial statements as of and for the year ended December 31, 2015, referred to as “Other income from
investments”.
(2) In the financial statements as of and for the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, referred to as “Financial result”.

6.7.1 Revenue

The Company’s revenue comprises revenues recognized under the percentage of completion method
and under the completed contract method as well as a limited volume of revenues from other services. Revenues
from other services comprise non-project development related revenues including rental income with respect to
a very limited number of commercial and residential units, income from other non-project development related
sales as well as income from certain services delivered by Instone to third parties.

The following table provides a breakdown of the Company’s revenue by type for the periods indicated:

For the nine-month period For the financial year
ended September 30, ended December 31,
2017 2016 2016 2015 20140
(unaudited) (audited)
(in € million) (in € million)
Revenues from project developments 123.4 163.1 199.9 347.3 64.4
thereof under percentage of completion
MEthOd ....ooviiiicecce e 0.8 62.9 78.9 248.4 9.6
thereof under completed contract method .... 122.6 100.2 121.0 98.9 54.8
OthEr SEIVICES ..o e ee e 0.4 1.7 3.7 11.4 0.0
REVENUES ... 1238 164.9 203.6 358.7 64.4

(1) In the financial year ended December 31, 2014, Instone sold residential units in a large block-sale, completed projects held as finished
goods and a number of land plots, which transactions were required to be accounted for under the completed contract method.
Revenues accounted for under the percentage of completion method were impacted in 2014 by the step-up to fair market value of
inventories which resulted in a decline in the Anticipated Gross Project Margin and, hence, lower revenue was recognized.
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The following table provides a breakdown of Instone’s revenue by geographic region for the periods
indicated:

For the nine-month period For the financial year
ended September 30, ended December 31,
2017 2016 2016 2015 2014
(unaudited) (audited)
(in € million) (in € million)
GeIMANY ...ttt 120.8 161.3 190.5 342.8 53.2
Rest Of EUIOPE ....ovveviieieiciieees e 3.0 3.6 13.1 15.8 11.2
TOtal oo 123.8 164.9 203.6 358.7 64.4

6.7.1.1 Comparison of the Nine-Month Period Ended September 30, 2017 and September 30, 2016

Revenues decreased by €41.1 million, or 24.9%, from €164.9 million in the nine-month period ended
September 30, 2016 to €123.8 million in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2017, primarily due to a
less active acquisition phase in the financial years 2013 and 2014 while Instone Development was still under the
control of HOCHTIEF Solutions AG, resulting in a lower development activity in the first nine-months of the
financial year 2017.

Revenue accounted for under the percentage of completion method declined by €62.1 million, or
98.7%, from €62.9 million in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2016 to €0.8 million in the nine-
month period ended September 30, 2017. This decline was primarily due to the fact that projects for which
marketing began on or after August 1, 2015 are accounted for under the completed contract method and the last
two projects for which revenue was accounted for under the percentage of completion method were completed
in the first half of 2017.

Revenues from projects accounted for under the completed contract method increased by €22.4 million,
or 22.4%, from €100.2 million in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2016 to €122.6 million in the
nine-month period ended September 30, 2017. This increase is primarily due to the delivery of the first
residential units under the new form of contract and therefore accounted for under the completed contract
method.

6.7.1.2 Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015

Revenues decreased by €155.1 million, or 43.2%, from €358.7 million in the financial year ended
December 31, 2015 to €203.6 in the financial year ended December 31, 2016, notwithstanding the first full year
consolidation of Instone Leipzig, which contributed €102.7 million in the financial year ended December 31,
2016, compared to only €23.7 million in the period from December 10, 2015 through December 31, 2015.
Excluding Instone Leipzig, revenues declined by €234.1 million, or 69.9%, from €335.0 million in the financial
year ended December 31, 2015 to €100.9 in the financial year ended December 31, 2016. This decrease in
revenues is primarily due to the decline in revenue from Instone Development’s customer contracts accounted
for under the percentage of completion method which was only partially offset by an increase in revenue from
contracts accounted for under the completed contract method.

Revenue accounted for under the percentage of completion method declined by €169.5 million, or
68.2%, from €248.4 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2015 to €78.9 million in the financial year
ended December 31, 2016. This decline was primarily due to the use of the new form of customer contracts as
of August 2015 that only began to contribute to revenues in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2017,
while revenues from contracts accounted for using the percentage of completion method declined as they were
completed over time.

Revenues from projects accounted for under the completed contract method increased by €22.1 million,
or 22.3%, from €98.9 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2015 to €121.0 million in the financial
year ended December 31, 2016. This increase is primarily attributable to the first full year consolidation of
Instone Leipzig in the financial year ended December 31, 2016 after its acquisition in December 2015.
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6.7.1.3 Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014

Revenues increased by €294.3 million, or 457.0%, from €64.4 million in the short financial year 2014
to €358.7 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2015, reflecting the full year contribution of Instone
Development in 2015, which was consolidated for only the last quarter of 2014. Revenues in the financial year
ended December 31, 2015 also include €23.7 million attributable to the first time consolidation of Instone
Leipzig in December 2015.

Revenues accounted for under the percentage of completion method in the financial year ended
December 31, 2015 increased significantly by €238.8 million from €9.6 in the short financial year 2014 million
to €248.4 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2015. In the short financial year 2014, PPA Effects
led to a step-up to fair market value of inventories which resulted in a decline in the Anticipated Gross Project
Margin and, hence, lower revenue was recognized. Revenues accounted for under the percentage of completion
method in the financial year ended December 31, 2015 declined due to the use of the new form of customer
contract as of August 2015, resulting in the application of the completed contract method.

Revenues from projects accounted for under the completed contract method increased by €44.1 million,
or 80.5%, from €54.8 million in the short financial year 2014 to €98.9 million in the financial year ended
December 31, 2015 primarily due to completion and delivery of several significant project developments by
Instone Development with customer contracts that required, notwithstanding the general rule prior to August
2015, application of the completed contract method (e.g., micro apartments in Frankfurt, project Junkersdorf,
Cologne and Project Dreyerstrale, Hannover). In addition, Instone Development sold two land plots in Munich
and Instone Leipzig was consolidated for the first time. In 2014, Instone Development realized the majority of
its revenues from projects accounted for under the completed contract method as it sold residential units in a
large block-sale, completed projects held as finished goods and a number of land plots, which transactions were
required to be accounted for under the completed contract method.

6.7.2  Change in Inventories

Change in inventories comprises the acquisition and disposal of land plots and cost of production for
project developments. Depending on the applied method of accounting, construction costs, finance cost and staff
cost are capitalized and included in change in inventories (completed contract method) or are already partially or
fully recognized as revenues in accordance with the progress of the project development following the
commencement of construction (percentage of completion method).

6.7.2.1 Comparison of the Nine-Month Period Ended September 30, 2017 and September 30, 2016

Change in inventories decreased by €55.6 million from €86.0 million in the nine-month period ended
September 30, 2016 to €30.4 million in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2017, primarily due to a
lower level of acquisitions of land plots or properties for (re)development purposes in the nine-month period
ended September 30, 2017 than in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2016. The lower level of change
in inventories was furthermore influenced by the completion and delivery of 270 units in the nine-month period
ended September 30, 2017 for which revenue was accounted for under the completed contract method resulting
in a decrease of inventories. These effects were only partially offset by an increase of work in progress
inventories from construction activities during this period.

6.7.2.2 Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015

Change in inventories increased by €182.0 million from negative €23.1 million in the financial year
ended December 31, 2015 to €158.9 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2016, primarily due to the
change of the form of Instone Development’s customer contracts. Under the new contracts, project development
costs are only recognized upon delivery of the completed residential units, while they were recognized over time
for units sold in accordance with construction progress under the old contracts.

Change in inventories also increased in the financial year ended December 31, 2016 due to
significantly more acquisitions of land plots in such period. The consolidation of Instone Leipzig further
contributed to the change in inventories by €49.0 million, while, in the financial year ended December 31, 2015,
it led to a change in inventories amounting to negative €23.1 million due to the delivery of completed residential
units in this period.
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6.7.2.3 Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014

Change in inventories decreased by €15.3 million from negative €7.8 million in the financial year
ended December 31, 2014 to negative €23.1 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2015, primarily
attributable to the consolidation of Instone Leipzig, which contributed €23.1 million to such decrease of
inventories in the financial year ended December 31, 2015, partially offset by an increase in change in
inventories from Instone Development’s business activities.

In the financial year ended December 31, 2014, change in inventories was negative as a result of the
delivery of completed projects in the fourth quarter of 2014 combined with less active investments and business
activities in 2013 and 2014.

6.7.3  Operating Performance

6.7.3.1 Comparison of the Nine-Month Period Ended September 30, 2017 and September 30, 2016

Operating Performance decreased by €96.7 million, or 38.5%, from €250.9 million in the nine-month
period ended September 30, 2016 to €154.2 million in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2017.
Adjusted for PPA Effects, Adjusted Operating Performance decreased by €102.1 million, or 37.4%, from €273.1
million to €171.0 million. This decline was primarily due to the delayed effect on projects under development of
the less active acquisition phase in the financial years 2013 and 2014 while Instone Development was still under
the control of HOCHTIEF Solutions AG. It also reflects substantially lower revenues from projects accounted
for using the percentage of completion method as the new form of contract was used for almost all projects
under development in the period. Change in inventories also had a negative impact on Operating Performance
due to a lower level of land acquisitions in the first nine months of 2017.

6.7.3.2 Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015

Operating Performance increased by €26.9 million, or 8.0%, from €335.6 million in the financial year
ended December 31, 2015 to €362.5 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2016. Adjusted for PPA
Effects, Adjusted Operating Performance increased by €63.2 million, or 18.1%, from €349.3 million in the
financial year ended December 31, 2015 to €412.5 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2016. This
was primarily due to the significant increase in change in inventories in the financial year 2016 in connection
with the capitalization of land acquisition cost which was partially offset by the decline in revenues from
contracts accounted for using the percentage of completion method as they were completed over time. A further
positive impact on Adjusted Operating Performance in 2016 resulted from the consolidation of Instone Leipzig
for the full financial year.

6.7.3.3 Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014

Operating Performance increased by €278.9 million, or 491.9%, from €56.7 million in the financial
year ended December 31, 2014 to €335.6 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2015. Adjusted for
PPA Effects, Adjusted Operating Performance increased by €289.3 million from €60.0 million in the financial
year ended December 31, 2014 compared to €349.3 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2015
accordingly. This was primarily due to the short financial year in 2014 and the consolidation of Instone
Development only for the last quarter of 2014, while in the financial year ended December 31, 2015, Instone
Development was consolidated for the full financial year. As a result of the short financial year and the
difference in the scope of consolidation, the financial year 2014 is only partially comparable to the financial
year 2015.
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6.7.4  Other Operating Income

Other operating income comprises Instone’s other income sources, a breakdown of which is provided
in the following table for the periods indicated:

For the nine-month period For the financial year
ended September 30, ended December 31,
2017 2016 2016 2015 2014
(unaudited) (audited)
(in € million) (in € million)
Reimbursement of planning services............ - - 1.6 - -
Income from the settlement of legal
ISPULES ... - 0.7 1.6 3.7 -
Income from the reversal of provisions ........ 2.0 0.3 1.3 3.2 4.3
Income from business acquisitions................ - - - 0.2 20.1
Income from settlement agreement............... - - - - 6.9
Other iNCOME .......ccoceviiiiiice e 0.7 0.7 2.6 0.3 0.1
Miscellaneous™ ..........c..cooeevveemveenrcerenrennens 15 0.1 1.2 1.2 0.1
e L7: OO 4.2 18 8.3 8.6 315

(1) Miscellaneous is comprised of cost reimbursements, rental income, insurance reimbursements, income from the
reduction impairment, profit of sale of property, plant and equipment and income from the reversal of specific bad debt
allowances.

6.7.4.1 Comparison of the Nine-Month Period Ended September 30, 2017 and September 30, 2016

Other operating income increased by €2.4 million, or 133.3%, from €1.8 million in the nine-month
period ended September 30, 2016 to €4.2 million in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2017. The
significantly higher other operating income in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2017 is a result of the
reversal of provisions for legal advisory fees relating to a legal issue in Luxembourg as well as provisions for
work to be performed in the aggregate amount of €2.0 million.

6.7.4.2 Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015

Other operating income remained stable amounting to €8.6 million in the financial year ended
December 31, 2015 and amounting to €8.3 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2016.

6.7.4.3 Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014

Other operating income decreased by €22.9 million, or 72.7%, from €31.5 million in the financial year
ended December 31, 2014 to €8.6 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2015.

The significantly higher other operating income in the financial year ended December 31, 2014 is a
result of the Company’s income from business acquisitions of €20.1 million during this period. This income was
generated through the acquisition of Instone Development that led to the recognition of a gain in accordance
with IFRS 3.34. This gain was primarily attributable to a step up in fair value.

Further other operating income recognized in the financial year ended December 31, 2014 resulted
from the acquisition of Instone Development, income from a settlement agreement determining a repayment of a
purchase price paid by Instone for the acquisition of land in 2013 as well as income from the reversal of
provisions recognized on the level of Instone Development in periods prior to the Company’s acquisition of
Instone Development.

63



6.7.5  Cost of Materials

Cost of materials comprises cost of materials and supplies and cost of purchased services. Cost of
materials and supplies primarily relate to costs incurred from the acquisition of land plots and purchasing costs
for construction materials. Cost of purchased services primarily relate to the procurement cost for concept
planners, architects and building contractors.

The following table provides a breakdown of Instone’s cost of materials for the periods indicated:

For the nine-month period For the financial year
ended September 30, ended December 31,
2017 2016 2016 2015 2014
(unaudited) (audited)
(in € million) (in € million)
Cost of materials and supplies ........c..cccenene 22.9 112.2 165.3 139.8 18.2
Cost of purchased Services..............c.cceeuenen. 86.6 95.7 128.4 144.6 32.7
e L7: OO 109.5 207.9 293.7 284.3 51.0
6.7.5.1 Comparison of the Nine-Month Period Ended September 30, 2017 and September 30, 2016

Cost of materials decreased by €98.4 million, or 47.3%, from €207.9 million in the nine-month period
ended September 30, 2016 to €109.5 million in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2017, primarily due
to less acquisitions of land plots or properties for (re)development purposes in the nine-month period ended
September 30, 2017. This resulted in a significant decrease of cost of materials and supplies by €89.3 million, or
79.6%, from €112.2 million in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2016 to €22.9 million in the nine-
month period ended September 30, 2017. As a consequence thereof, cost of purchased services also decreased
by €9.1 million, or 9.5%, from €95.7 million in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2016 to €86.6
million in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2017.

6.7.5.2 Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015

Cost of materials increased by €9.4 million, or 3.3%, from €284.3 million in the financial year ended
December 31, 2015 to €293.7 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2016. This increase was
primarily due to the consolidation of Instone Leipzig’s costs of materials for the full financial year ended
December 31, 2016 amounting to €44.8 million, compared to €0.0 million in the period from December 10,
2015 through December 31, 2015. Excluding Instone Leipzig cost of materials decreased by €35.4 million in the
financial year ended December 31, 2016 primarily due to a decline in construction work for multi-annual project
developments compared to the financial year ended December 31, 2015.

6.7.5.3 Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014

Cost of materials increased by €233.3 million, or 457.5%, from €51.0 million in the financial year
ended December 31, 2014 to €284.3 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2015, primarily due to the
short financial year in 2014 and the consolidation of Instone Development only for the last quarter of 2014,
while in the financial year ended December 31, 2015, Instone Development’s cost of materials were
consolidated for the full financial year.
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6.7.6  Staff Costs

Staff costs comprise wages and salaries, social insurance, pensions and support as well as costs
incurred in connection with long-term incentive plans.

The following table provides a breakdown of Instone’s staff costs for the periods indicated:

For the nine-month period For the financial year
ended September 30, ended December 31,
2017 2016 2016 2015 2014
(audited)
(unaudited) (ill € million)
(in € million)
Wages and salaries...........ccooveevevverevenininnnnns 16.7 15.2 22.8 20.9 5.3
Social insurance, pensions and support ........ 2.5 2.4 35 3.7 1.0
LoNng-term inCeNtive ........coovvvvvvrvreeeverersnennn,s - 6.5 8.9 2.3 0.0
e} 1 SO 19.2 241 35.2 26.9 6.4
6.7.6.1 Comparison of the Nine-Month Period Ended September 30, 2017 and September 30, 2016

Staff costs decreased by €4.9 million, or 20.3%, from €24.1 million in the nine-month period ended
September 30, 2016 to €19.2 million in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2017. This decrease was
primarily due to no accumulation of liabilities for special payments in connection with a long-term incentive
scheme in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2017.

6.7.6.2 Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015

Staff costs increased by €8.3 million, or 30.9%, from €26.9 million in the financial year ended
December 31, 2015 to €35.2 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2016, primarily due to an
increase in the variable compensation component with long-term incentive effect and risk character amounting
to €6.6 million. Wages and salaries also increased as a result of the consolidation of Instone Leipzig’s staff costs
for the full financial year ended December 31, 2016 amounting to €2.6 million, compared to the financial year
ended December 31, 2015, where no staff costs were accounted for.

6.7.6.3 Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014

Staff costs increased by €20.5 million, or 320.3%, from €6.4 million in the financial year ended
December 31, 2014 to €26.9 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2015, primarily due to the short
financial year in 2014 and the consolidation of Instone Development only for the last quarter of 2014, while in
the financial year ended December 31, 2015, Instone Development was consolidated for the full financial year.

6.7.7  Other Operating Expenses

Other operating expenses mainly comprise commission fees and distribution costs, rentals and lease
rentals, technical and business consulting, as well as court costs, attorneys’ and notaries’ fees.

The following table provides a breakdown of Instone’s other operating expenses for the periods
indicated:

For the nine-month period For the financial year
ended September 30, ended December 31,
2017 2016 2016 2015 2014
(unaudited) (audited, unless otherwise indicated)
(in € million) (in € million)
Commission fees and other distribution
COSES .ttt ettt 155 17.5 24.1 12.0 2.9
Rentals and lease rentals.............ccccoeeveennane 3.3 2.2 3.1 4.1 1.2
Technical and business consulting................ 0.1 0.5 2.6 0.6 0.1
Court costs, attorneys’ and notaries’ fees ..... 2.8 2.0 2.3 6.8 6.2
Operating CoStS ....ouvviverererereseseseereeseenees - 1,1 15 - -
Litigation COStS......ccvverierirnre s 0.7 0.6 1.3 0.2 0.0
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For the nine-month period For the financial year
ended September 30, ended December 31,
2017 2016 2016 2015 2014
(unaudited) (audited, unless otherwise indicated)
(in € million) (in € million)
Adjustment of liabilities due to the
acquisition of Instone Real Estate Leipzig
GMBH ..o - - 0.9 - -
Compensation during the construction
PEFIOU ...t 0.0 0.8 0.8 - -
Travel expenses, transportation costs............ 0.3 0.3 0.7 0.8 0.3
AdVertising MeasuUres.........c.ccveveveivereervereennns 0.4 0.1 0.6 0.2 0.1
INSUFANCES ... 0.6 0.5 0.6 1.1 0.3
Restructuring and adjustment costs .............. 0.2 0.1 0.2 3.0 3.6
Costs from the settlement of legal disputes .. - - - 2.8 -
Sundry operating expensest) ............cc.......... 0.6 3.1 1.4 38 2.9
Miscellaneous® ............cocoeveveeenreseeeses 2.1 2.7 2.3 3.3 1.4
LIS L OO 26.5 314 424 38.5 19.0

(1) Sundry operating expenses mostly comprise order processing, costs of materials for administrative purposes, costs of
preparing the annual financial statements and other expenses not reported elsewhere.

(2) Unaudited. Miscellaneous is comprised of mail and funds transfer expenses, real estate tax, wealth tax and other taxes,
vehicle costs, further education measures, entertainment expenses, stationery, property levies, management
compensation, external administrative services and impairment losses and losses on disposal of assets (excluding
inventories).

6.7.7.1 Comparison of the Nine-Month Period Ended September 30, 2017 and September 30, 2016

Other operating expenses decreased by €4.9 million, or 15.6%, from €31.4 million in the nine-month
period ended September 30, 2016 to €26.5 million in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2017. This
was primarily due to a decrease of commission fees and other distribution costs by €2.0 million, or 11.4%, from
€17.5 million in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2016 to €15.5 million in the nine-month period
ended September 30, 2017 due to a lower volume of units sold in the nine-month period ended September 30,
2017.

6.7.7.2 Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015

Other operating expenses increased by €3.9 million, or 10.1%, from €38.5 million in the financial year
ended December 31, 2015 to €42.4 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2016, primarily due to the
consolidation of Instone Leipzig’s other operating expenses for the full financial year ended December 31, 2016
amounting to €18.7 million (including an increase of commission fees and other distribution costs), compared to
€2.0 million in the period from December 10, 2015 through December 31, 2015. This was partially offset by a
decrease in costs on the level of Instone Development by €11.4 million, including the decrease in court, legal
and notary fees by €4.5 million to €2.3 million, the decrease of costs for structural and adjustment measures by
€2.8 million to €0.2 million as well as the decrease in costs from the settlement of legal disputes in the amount
of €2.8 million to €0.0 million.

Commission fees and other distribution costs for Instone Development and Instone Leipzig range
between 2.4% and 14.4% of the sales price. Costs vary depending on customer type (owner-occupiers or retail
investors) and type of sales (traditional agents or network marketing). Commission fees and other distribution
costs are significantly higher for Instone Leipzig’s business activities, resulting in an increase of commission
fees and other distribution costs by €12.1 million, or 100.8%, from €12.0 million in the financial year ended
December 31, 2015 to €24.1 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2016.

6.7.7.3 Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014

Other operating expenses increased by €19.5 million, or 102.6%, from €19.0 million in the financial
year ended December 31, 2014 to €38.5 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2015, primarily due to
the short financial year in 2014 and the consolidation of Instone Development only for the last quarter of 2014,
while in the financial year ended December 31, 2015, Instone Development was consolidated for the full
financial year.
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6.7.8  Earnings before Interest, Tax, Depreciation and Amortization (EBITDA)

6.7.8.1 Comparison of the Nine-Month Period Ended September 30, 2017 and September 30, 2016

EBITDA increased by €13.2 million, or 146.7%, from negative €9.0 million in the nine-month period
ended September 30, 2016 to €4.2 million in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2017. While Instone
only delivered 270 units in the first nine-months of the financial year 2017 primarily due to a less active
acquisition phase in the financial years 2013 and 2014, EBITDA increased primarily due to the delivery of units
accounted for under the completed contract method. These projects contributed the complete Historical Gross
Project Margin in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2017, where most of the substantially higher
number of units delivered in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2016 were accounted for under the
percentage of completion method for which the Anticipated Gross Project Margin had been accounted for over
time in accordance with construction progress.

6.7.8.2 Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015

EBITDA increased by €8.4 million, or 118.3%, from negative €7.1 million in the financial year ended
December 31, 2015 to €1.3 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2016, primarily due to the higher
level of development activities in the financial year ended December 31, 2016, notwithstanding the delayed
recognition of revenue and earnings due to the increasing humber ongoing development projects accounted for
under the completed the contract method. A further positive impact on EBITDA resulted from the consolidation
of Instone Leipzig for the full financial year ended December 31, 2016.

6.7.8.3 Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014

EBITDA decreased by €20.5 million, or 153.0%, from €13.4 million in the financial year ended
December 31, 2014 to negative €7.1 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2015, primarily due to the
significantly higher other operating income of €31.5 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2014 as a
result of the Company’s acquisition of Instone Development that resulted in gain attributable to a step up in fair
value amounting of €20.1 million. As a result thereof, EBITDA was, however, negatively affected by PPA
Effects in the financial year ended December 31, 2015.

6.7.9  Earnings before Interest and Tax (EBIT)

6.7.9.1 Comparison of the Nine-Month Period Ended September 30, 2017 and September 30, 2016

EBIT increased by €13.2 million, or 141.9%, from negative €9.3 million in the nine-month period
ended September 30, 2016 to €3.9 million in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2017. Adjusted for
PPA Effects and One-Off Items, Adjusted EBIT decreased by €1.9 million, or 10.7%, from €17.7 million in the
nine-month period ended September 30, 2016 to €15.8 million in the nine-month period ended September 30,
2017. This decrease was primarily due to the delayed effect on projects under development of the less active
acquisition phase in the financial years 2013 and 2014 while Instone Development was still under the control of
HOCHTIEF Solutions AG. It also reflects substantially lower profit from projects accounted for using the
percentage of completion method, as the new form of contract was used for almost all projects under
development in the period, and a higher number of units delivered to customers in the last quarter of 2017. The
higher number of deliveries in the last quarter of 2017 was primarily due to the higher investment activity
following Instone’s acquisition of Instone Development. These effects will positively impact revenue and
Adjusted EBIT in the fourth quarter of 2017.

6.7.9.2 Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015

EBIT improved by €8.4 million from negative €7.6 million in the financial year ended December 31,
2015 to €0.8 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2016. Adjusted for PPA Effects and One-Off
Items, Adjusted EBIT increased by €30.7 million, or 173.4%, from €17.7 million in the financial year ended
December 31, 2015 to €48.4 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2016. This increase was primarily
due to the higher level of development activities in the financial year ended December 31, 2016,
notwithstanding the delayed recognition of revenue and earnings due to the increasing number ongoing
development projects accounted for under the completed the contract method. A further positive impact on
EBIT in 2016 resulted from the consolidation of Instone Leipzig for the full financial year.
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6.7.9.3 Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014

EBIT decreased by €20.9 million, or 157.1%, from €13.3 million in the financial year ended
December 31, 2014 to negative €7.6 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2015. Adjusted for PPA
Effects and One-Off Items, Adjusted EBIT increased by €11.7 million, or 195.0%, from €6.0 million in the
financial year ended December 31, 2014 to €17.7 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2015. This
increase was primarily due to the short financial year in 2014 and the consolidation of Instone Development
only for the last quarter of 2014, while in the financial year ended December 31, 2015, Instone Development
was consolidated for the full financial year.

6.7.10 Finance Result

The finance result primarily comprises finance income from interest and similar income and finance
cost from interest and similar expenses and net interest expenses on pension obligations.

The following table provides a breakdown of Instone’s financial result for the periods indicated:

For the nine-month period For the financial year
ended September 30, ended December 31,
2017 2016 2016 2015 2014
(unaudited) (audited)
(in € million) (in € million)
Interest and similar income®............cc.......... 0.8 0.0 0.1 0.9 0.2
Finance iNCOME.......ccccevvieve i 0.8 0.0 0.1 0.9 0.2
Interest and similar expenses® ................... (15.6) (17.9) (23.5) (20.0) (5.0)
Accrued interest put option..........c.cccoeerenen. - (0.9) (1.2) (1.6) (0.4)
Interest components of increase in
PrOVISIONS.....cvveieiiesie e seeste e e eeeens - - (0.3) (0.2) (0.0)
Net interest expenses on pension
OBIGALIONS....vroroooesoesoeeesoerres (0.1) - 00® ©n®  00®
FiNance CoSt........ccovvevvevicece e (15.8) (18.8) (25.0) (21.8) (5.4)
Result from long-term securities ............... 0.1 - 0.1 (0.1) -
Financial reSUlt.........oovveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee, (14.9) (18.8) (24.8) (21.0) (5.2)

(1) Interest and similar income consists of interest income on cash investments, interest-bearing securities and other loans.
Interest and similar income furthermore represent all profit shares and dividends from long-term and short-term
securities.

(2) Interest and similar expenses consists of interest expenses on cash investments, interest-bearing securities and other
loans.

(3) Net interest expenses on pension obligations include the annual interest on the net present value of pension obligations
in the amount of €0.2 million in 2016, €0.2 million in 2015 and €0.1 million in 2014, offset against interest income
from plan assets in the amount of €0.1 million in 2016, €0.0 million in 2015 and €0.0 million in 2014.

6.7.10.1 Comparison of the Nine-Month Period Ended September 30, 2017 and September 30, 2016

The financial result improved by €3.9 million, or 20.7%, from negative €18.8 million in the nine-month
period ended September 30, 2016 to negative €14.9 million in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2017
primarily due to a decrease in interest and similar expenses.

6.7.10.2 Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015

The financial result decreased by €3.8 million, or 18.1%, from negative €21.0 million in the financial
year ended December 31, 2015 to negative €24.8 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2016,
primarily due to an increase in investments in the acquisition of land plots and properties and a corresponding
increase in loans. In addition, the Company incurred higher interest and similar expenses due an increase of
shareholder loans and bank loans resulting from the financing of the acquisition of Instone Leipzig.

6.7.10.3 Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014

The financial result decreased by €15.8 million, or 303.8%, from negative €5.2 million in the financial
year ended December 31, 2014 to negative €21.0 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2015,
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primarily due to interest expenses for the full financial year ended December 31, 2015, compared to interest
expenses only relating to the last quarter of the financial year ended December 31, 2014. In addition, in the
financial year ended December 31, 2015, Instone took increased its financing volume for the acquisition of
Instone Leipzig.

6.7.11 Earnings before Tax (EBT)

6.7.11.1 Comparison of the Nine-Month Period Ended September 30, 2017 and September 30, 2016

EBT increased by €17.1 million, or 60.9%, from negative €28.1 million in the nine-month period ended
September 30, 2016 to negative €11.0 million in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2017. This
increase was primarily due to the completion and delivery of units accounted for under the completed contract
method. These projects contributed the complete Historical Gross Project Margin in the nine-month period
ended September 30, 2017 compared to projects accounted for under the percentage of completion method for
which the Anticipated Gross Project Margin was accounted for over time in accordance with construction
progress. In addition, EBT also increased as a result of the improvement of the finance result by €3.9 million.

6.7.11.2 Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015

EBT increased by €4.6 million, or 16.1%, from negative €28.6 million in the financial year ended
December 31, 2015 to negative €24.0 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2016, primarily due to
an increase in change of inventories and EBIT, partially offset by the more negative finance result.

6.7.11.3 Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014

EBT decreased significantly by €36.7 million, or 453.1%, from €8.1 million in the financial year ended
December 31, 2014 to negative €28.6 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2015, primarily due to
the significantly higher other operating income of €31.5 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2014
as a result of the Company’s acquisition of Instone Development that resulted in gain attributable to a step up in
fair value of €20.1 million. In addition, the Company’s financial result in the financial year ended December 31,
2014 was significantly better.

6.7.12 Income Taxes

The following table provides a breakdown of Instone’s income taxes for the periods indicated:

For the nine-month period For the financial year
ended September 30, ended December 31,
2017 2016 2016 2015 2014
(unaudited) (audited)
(in € million) (in € million)
Income taxes
Corporate income tax (domestic and
fOreign) ..ooveeeeceece (4.5) (3.5 (4.6) (0.2) (0.0)
Trade iNCOME taX ....cvvvvvrieiriireirieecseee (4.8) 4.7 (6.3) (0.0 (2.6)
Current iNCOME taxes.........cocevververerieeieennens (9.3) (8.2) (10.8) (0.2) (2.6)
DEferred tAXES .. .veveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeanas 7.3 10.7 12.6 6.3 5.3®
TOtAl oo (2.0) 2.5 1.8 6.2 2.7

(1) Due to the spin-off of formart GmbH & Co. KG from the former majority shareholder, HOCHTIEF Solutions AG, and
an agreement entered into in 2014, deferred taxes include an income item amounting to €1.5 million in 2015 and
€4.1 million in 2014, which is derived from the reversal of deferred tax liabilities.

6.7.12.1 Comparison of the Nine-Month Period Ended September 30, 2017 and September 30, 2016

Income taxes decreased by €4.5 million, or 180.0%, from €2.5 million in the nine-month period ended
September 30, 2016 to negative €2.0 million in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2017, primarily due
to a decrease in deferred taxes by €3.4 million, or 31.8%, from €10.7 million in the nine-month period ended
September 30, 2016 to €7.3 million in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2017 due to higher
amortization of PPA Effects in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2016 compared to the nine-month
period ended September 30, 2017 resulting in a decrease of interest. This result was further influenced by an
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increase in corporate income tax (domestic and foreign) by €1.0 million as well as in trade income tax by €0.1
million in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2017.

6.7.12.2 Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015

Income taxes decreased by €4.4 million, or 71.0%, from €6.2 million in the financial year ended
December 31, 2015 to €1.8 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2016, primarily due to an increase
in corporate income tax (domestic and foreign) of €4.5 million as well as in trade income tax of €6.3 million in
the financial year ended December 31, 2016. This result was further influenced by an increase in deferred taxes
from €6.3 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2015 to €12.6 million in the financial year ended
December 31, 2016 due to effects in connection with the acquisition of Instone Development and of Instone
Leipzig and related PPA Effects.

6.7.12.3 Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014

Income taxes increased by €3.5 million, or 129.6%, from €2.7 million in the financial year ended
December 31, 2014 to €6.2 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2015, primarily due to a decrease
in trade income tax incurred in the financial year ended December 31, 2015. In the financial year ended
December 31, 2015, deferred taxes amounted to €6.3 million due to the acquisition of Instone Development.
Deferred taxes included an income item amounting to €1.5 million attributable to an agreement entered into in
the financial year ended December 31, 2014 in the course of the spin-off of Instone Development’s former
majority shareholder HOCHTIEF Solutions AG.

6.7.13 Earnings after Tax (EAT)

6.7.13.1 Comparison of the Nine-Month Period Ended September 30, 2017 and September 30, 2016

Earnings after tax (EAT) increased by €12.7 million, or 49.4%, from negative €25.7 million in the
nine-month period ended September 30, 2016 to negative €13.0 million in the nine-month period ended
September 30, 2017, primarily due to a higher EBITDA as well as interest effects, partially countered by the
higher taxes incurred.

6.7.13.2 Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015

Earnings after tax (EAT) increased by €0.2 million, or 0.9%, from negative €22.4 million in the
financial year ended December 31, 2015 to negative €22.2 million in the financial year ended December 31,
2016 primarily due to the positive result of EBIT of €0.8 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2016
as compared to a negative EBIT of €7.6 in the financial year ended December 31, 2015 as well as a significant
decrease in income taxes from €6.2 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2015 to €1.8 million in the
financial year ended December 31, 2016.

6.7.13.3 Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014

Earnings after tax (EAT) decreased significantly by €33.2 million, or 307.4%, from €10.8 million in
the financial year ended December 31, 2014 to negative €22.4 million in the financial year ended December 31,
2015, primarily due to the negative EBIT of €7.6 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2015 as
compared to a positive EBIT of €13.3 in the financial year ended December 31, 2014 as well as a significant
increase of finance costs by €16.4 million, or 303.7%, from €5.4 million in the financial year ended
December 31, 2014 to €21.8 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2015.

6.8 Assets

The following table provides an overview of Instone’s assets as of the dates indicated:

As of As of
September 30, December 31,
2017 2016 2015 2014
(unaudited) (audited)
(in € million) (in € million)
ASSETS
Non-current assets
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As of As of
September 30, December 31,
2017 2016 2015 2014
(unaudited) (audited)
(in € million) (in € million)

Intangible assetS........occovevvinenc e 0.0 0.0 0.0 -
Property, plant and equipment .............ccoceevvnnne. 1.6 1.5 1.6 13
Equity-method investments ............c.cccveieienennns 0.4 1.4 0.1 9.5
Other financial assSetS.........ccovvvevveiiieeiieiiieeiriens 0.6 0.7 0.9 0.4
Financial receivables...........ccooooeevviveise s 0.7 0.7 - -
Total non-current assetsS........coovevveeeeeiiieeenenns 3.2 4.3 2.6 11.2
Current assets

INVENTOTIES ..ot 572.6 542.7 415.5 233.0
Financial receivables..........ccccoviiiiieieciie e, 2.4 0.2 0.2 2.1
Trade receivables.........cocveviiieeeiec e, 11.4 19.6 110.2 115.4
(thereof percentage of completion receivables)... - (3.4) (91.4) (93.0)
Other receivables and other assets ............cccceue.. 8.3 5.6 16.6 5.2
Current inCOmMe tax assets ......ccoevvevveeriveeiiieeeineens 0.2 0.3 0.3 1.1
Cash and cash equivalents ............cccceeevereveeenee. 110.7 1125 35.9 25.1
Total CUrrent asSets...........ocveveieieeeeeeesieeenans 705.6 680.9 578.7 382.0
TOLAl ASSELS .v.vvveveeeeeeeeecreeese e 708.9 685.2 581.3 393.2

6.8.1 Non-Current Assets

Non-current assets are comprised of intangible assets, property, plant and equipment, equity-method
investments, other financial assets as well as financial receivables.

6.8.1.1 September 30, 2017 Compared to December 31, 2016

Non-current assets decreased by €0.9 million, or 25.6%, from €4.3 million as of December 31, 2016 to
€3.2 million as of September 30, 2017 primarily due to a decrease in equity-method investments which are
comprised of associates and joint ventures. The decrease of equity-method investments by €1.0 million, or
71.4%, from €1.4 million as of December 31, 2016 to €0.4 million as of September 30, 2017 is mainly
attributable to a decrease in the carrying amount of “Projektentwicklungsgesellschaft Holbeinviertel mbH & Co.
KG” due to the distribution of profits by “Projektentwicklungsgesellschaft Holbeinviertel mbH & Co. KG”.

In contrast, property, plant and equipment increased by €0.1 million, or 6.7%, from €1.5 million as of
December 31, 2016 to €1.6 million as of September 30, 2017 and other financial assets decreased by €0.1
million, or 14.3%, from €0.7 million as of December 31, 2016 to €0.6 million as of September 30, 2017.

6.8.1.2 December 31, 2016 Compared to December 31, 2015

Non-current assets increased by €1.7 million, or 65.4%, from €2.6 million as of December 31, 2015 to
€4.3 million as of December 31, 2016, primarily due to an increase in equity-method investments which are
comprised of associates and joint ventures. The increase of equity-method investments as of December 31, 2016
is mainly attributable to an increase in the carrying amount of the associate company
“Projektentwicklungsgesellschaft Holbeinviertel mbH & Co. KG” in the amount of €1.4 million due to the
acquisition of land plots. In addition, the non-current financial receivables attributable to associated companies
increased to €0.7 million.

6.8.1.3 December 31, 2015 Compared to December 31, 2014

Non-current assets decreased by €8.6 million, or 76.8%, from €11.2 million as of December 31, 2014
to €2.6 million as of December 31, 2015, primarily due to a decrease of equity-method investments as of
December 31, 2016 attributable to the disposal of land plots by Instone’s associate company “Wohnentwicklung
Theresienstrale GmbH & Co. KG” in the amount of €8.8 million.

In contrast, property, plant and equipment increased by €0.3 million, or 23.1%, from €1.3 million to
€1.6 million and other financial assets increased by €0.5 million, or 125.0%, from €0.4 million to €0.9 million as
of December 31, 2015.
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6.8.2  Current Assets

Current assets include inventories, financial receivables, trade receivables, other receivables and assets
that can be readily converted to cash, current income tax assets as well as cash and cash equivalents.

6.8.2.1 Inventories

The following table provides an overview of Instone’s inventories as of the dates indicated:

As of As of
September 30, December 31,
2017 2016 2015 2014
(unaudited) (audited)
(in € million) (in € million)
Materials and SUPPIIES .....cccevvvvvviircieicce e, - - - 0.0
Work in progress™@ ... 567.1 537.6 405.5 233.0
Finished goods.........ccccoeiiiiiiiiiiiicec e, 54 5.1 9.9 —
TOtAl covvooveeee e 5726 542.7 415.5 233.0

(1) Subject to restrictions under project financing agreements in the amount of €254.3 million in 2016, €161.2 million in
2015 and €35.1 million in 2014.

(2) Comprises “capitalization of land plots” and “work in progress inventories” in the notes to the financial statements
printed on pages F-1 et. seq. in the Prospectus and in the Net Working Capital table (see “5.4 Alternative Performance
Measures”).

6.8.2.1.1  September 30, 2017 Compared to December 31, 2016

Inventories increased by €29.9 million, or 5.5%, from €542.7 million as of December 31, 2016 to
€572.6 million as of September 30, 2017 primarily due to the acquisition and capitalization of land plots,
partially offset by a decrease in work in progress inventories.

6.8.2.1.2  December 31, 2016 Compared to December 31, 2015

Inventories increased by €127.2 million, or 30.6%, from €415.5 million as of December 31, 2015 to
€542.7 million as of December 31, 2016. This increase was primarily due to the acquisition of additional land
plots or properties, partially offset by a decrease in work in progress inventories.

In addition, borrowing costs capitalized under cost of production shown under inventories increased by
€2.3 million, or 47.9%, from €4.8 million as of December 31, 2015 to €7.1 million as of December 31, 2016.
This mainly results from project financing based on individual contracts with external lenders.

6.8.2.1.3  December 31, 2015 Compared to December 31, 2014

Inventories increased by €182.5 million, or 78.3%, from €233.0 million as of December 31, 2014 to
€415.5 million as of December 31, 2015. This significant increase was primarily attributable to the acquisition
of Instone Leipzig, which contributed €184.4 million to such increase of inventories of which €108.3 million
related to a recorded value step.

In addition, borrowing costs capitalized under cost of production shown under inventories increased by
€4.6 million from €0.2 million as of December 31, 2014 to €4.8 million as of December 31, 2015. This was
mainly due to interest expenses that were capitalized in 2015, while Instone was still financed under the cash
pooling arrangement with HOCHTIEF Solutions AG in 2014.

6.8.2.2 Trade Receivables

The following table provides an overview of Instone’s trade receivables as of the dates indicated:
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As of As of
September 30, December 31,
2017 2016 2015 2014
(unaudited) (audited)
(in € million) (in € million)
Amount due from customers for contract
WOTK (POC)...cviiiiiieieiie ettt 0.0 13.6 242.5 216.0
Progress payments received™®..............cccco....... - (10.3) (151.1) (122.9)
0.0 3.40 91.40 93.0®
Other trade receivables .........ccccoveeeeeiiieecieens 11.4 15.7 18.2 20.8
Trade receivables from non-consolidated
SUDSIAIANIES ...ttt - 0.5 0.6 1.6
L1 7= OTN 114 19.6 110.2 115.4

(1) Relates to customer contracts accounted for under the percentage of completion method.

If projects are accounted for under the percentage of completion method, capitalized land plots and
work-in progress inventories accounted for under inventories (i.e. prior to the sale of units) are accounted for as
trade receivables if contract costs and Anticipated Gross Project Margin for units sold exceed progress payments
received. If progress payments exceed contract costs and Anticipated Gross Project Margin for units sold, the
projects are accounted for as trade payables. To the extent projects have not been sold, project development
progress is accounted for under work in progress inventories. Under the completed contract method, progress of
Instone’s project developments is not accounted for as trade receivables but as work-in-progress inventories
until delivery of the residential units. Progress payments received for projects accounted for under the
completed contract method are booked at their gross value (payments received) as trade payables and are not
netted against inventories (or receivables).

6.8.2.2.1  September 30, 2017 Compared to December 31, 2016

Trade receivables decreased by €8.2 million, or 41.8%, from €19.6 million as of December 31, 2016 to
€11.4 million as of September 30, 2017 primarily due to the change of the form of Instone Development’s
customer contracts and the resulting change in the accounting treatment for Instone Development’s projects in
accordance with the completed contract method. As a result thereof, progress of Instone Development’s project
developments is not accounted for as trade receivables but in inventories.

6.8.2.2.2  December 31, 2016 Compared to December 31, 2015

Trade receivables decreased by €90.6 million, or 82.2%, from €110.2 million as of December 31, 2015
to €19.6 million as of December 31, 2016, primarily due to the change of the form of Instone Development’s
customer contracts and the resulting change in the accounting treatment for Instone Development’s projects in
accordance with the completed contract method.

The amounts due from customers for contract work (including margin) amounted to €13.6 million as of
December 31, 2016, a significant decrease by €228.9 million compared to €242.5 million as of December 31,
2015. As of December 31, 2016, a total of €10.3 million of progress payments received (compared to €151.1
million as of December 31, 2015) were offset against amounts due from customers for contract work of €13.6
million. Thus, the balance as of December 31, 2016 was €3.4 million, a decrease by €88 million, or 96.3%, from
€91.4 million as of December 31, 2015. This was primarily due to the change of the form of Instone
Development’s customer contracts and the resulting change in the accounting treatment for Instone
Development’s projects in accordance with the completed contract method. As a result, progress of Instone
Development’s project developments is not accounted for as trade receivables but in inventories.

6.8.2.2.3  December 31, 2015 Compared to December 31, 2014

Trade receivables decreased by €5.2 million, or 4.5%, from €115.4 million as of December 31, 2014 to
€110.2 million as of December 31, 2015, primarily due to a less active acquisition phase in the financial years
2013 and 2014 as well as the change of the form of Instone Development’s customer contracts and the resulting
change in the accounting treatment for Instone Development’s projects in accordance with the completed
contract method in the financial year 2015.
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The amounts due from customers for contract work (including margin) amounted to €242.5 million as
of December 31, 2015, an increase by €26.5 million, or 12.3%, compared to €216.0 million as of December 31,
2014. They also include capitalized borrowing costs in the amount of €3.3 million (as compared to €1.2 million
as of December 31, 2014) resulting from project financing based on individual contracts with external lenders.
As of December 31, 2015, a total of €151.1 million of progress payments received (compared to €122.9 million
in financial year ended December 31, 2014) were offset against amounts due from customers for contract work.
Thus, the balance as of December 31, 2015 was €91.4 million, a slight decrease by €1.6 million, or 1.8%, from
€93.0 million as of December 31, 2014.

6.8.2.3 Other Receivables and Other Assets

The following table provides an overview of Instone’s other receivables and other assets as of the dates
indicated:

As of As of
September 30, December 31,
2017 2016 2015 2014
(unaudited) (audited)
(in € million) (in € million)
Tax receivables........ccovvvevieeieeiecce e, 3.0 2.8 2.2 0.3
Prepaid eXPeNnSES ......ccvveeiiriienireeeese s 0.6 0.9 0.6 0.5
Prepayments on 1and...........cccoevviriiinencinnenn, 3.8 0.8 8.8 3.1
Loans and receivables..........c.cccoeveeieiiiiiecieenn, - 0.5 4.1 1.2
Oher o 0.9 0.6 0.9 0.1
TOtal .o 8.3 0.6 16.6 o.2

6.8.2.3.1  September 30, 2017 Compared to December 31, 2016

Other receivables and other assets increased by €2.7 million, or 48.2%, from €5.6 million as of
December 31, 2016 to €8.3 million as of September 30, 2017 primarily due to significantly higher prepayments
on land amounting to €3.8 million as of September 30, 2017 compared to €0.8 million as of December 31, 2016.

6.8.2.3.2  December 31, 2016 Compared to December 31, 2015

Other receivables and other assets decreased by €11.0 million, or 66.3%, from €16.6 million as of
December 31, 2015 to €5.6 million as of December 31, 2016, primarily due to significantly lower prepayments
on land in the amount of €0.8 million as of December 31, 2016 compared to €8.8 million as of December 31,
2015. The result was further influenced by a decrease in loans and receivables in the amount of €0.5 million as
of December 31, 2016 compared to €4.1 million as of December 31, 2015.

6.8.2.3.3  December 31, 2015 Compared to December 31, 2014

Other receivables and other assets increased by €11.4 million, or 219.2%, from €5.2 million as of
December 31, 2014 to €16.6 million as of December 31, 2015, primarily due to higher payments on land
amounting to €8.8 million as of December 31, 2015 as compared to €3.1 million as of December 31, 2014. The
result was further influenced by an increase in loans and receivables in the amount of €4.1 million as of
December 31, 2015 compared to €1.2 million as of December 31, 2014,

6.8.2.4 Cash and Cash Equivalents

6.8.2.4.1  September 30, 2017 Compared to December 31, 2016

Cash and cash equivalents remained stable at €112.5 million as of December 31, 2016 compared to
€110.7 million as of September 30, 2017.

6.8.2.4.2  December 31, 2016 Compared to December 31, 2015

Cash and cash equivalents increased by €76.6 million, or 213.4%, from €35.9 million as of
December 31, 2015 to €112.5 million as of December 31, 2016, primarily due to development activities and
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corresponding progress payments from customers in the amount of €57.5 million at the level of Instone
Development out of which the vast majority of projects originated from HOCHTIEF Solutions AG. The result
was further influenced by an increase in development activities and corresponding progress payments from
customers at Instone Leipzig which resulted in an increase in cash and cash equivalents in the amount of €15.8
million.

6.8.2.4.3  December 31, 2015 Compared to December 31, 2014

Cash and cash equivalents increased by €10.8 million, or 43.0%, from €25.1 million as of
December 31, 2014 to €35.9 million as of December 31, 2015, primarily due to an increase in sales of
development projects and corresponding progress payments from customers in the amount of €6.5 million
mainly resulting from the consolidation of Instone Leipzig for the first time as at December 31, 2015 as well as
an increase in development activities and corresponding progress payments from customers which resulted in an
increase in cash and cash equivalents in the amount of €2.5 million at Instone Development.

6.9 Liabilities

The following table provides an overview of Instone’s liabilities as of the dates indicated:

As of As of
September 30, December 31,
2017 2016 2015 2014
(unaudited) (audited)
(in € million) (in € million)
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Provisions for pensions and similar obligations... 4.5 4.1 2.4 2.1
Other Provisions.........cccevvvvevveiesie e 12.8 124 4.5 3.0
Financial liabilities.............occovvi i, 338.8 300.9 299.0 214.2
Other labilities .....cccovvveiie i - - 0.3 -
Deferred tax Habilities .........ccccceovvvvervveveeeernenn. 16.5 23.4 36.3 11.2
Total non-current liabilities .........c..ccocovveeenens 372.6 340.9 342.5 230.6
Current liabilities
Other Provisions.........ccccveivevieiieie e 33.3 25.6 20.2 16.8
Financial liabilities.............coccoovi i, 58.0 81.6 65.6 32.2
Trade payables ... 248.5 215.2 99.0 79.2
(thereof percentage of completion payables)....... - - (0.5) (5.8)
Other labilities .....ccoevvveeeeiieece e 6.2 13.1 16.2 2.4
Income tax liabilities. ........ccooovveveeeeeeeee e, 1.4 6.2 2.0 -
Total current liabilities..........ccoccovevviveeeeereeeen. 347.3 341.7 203.0 130.6
Total liabilities.......c...covv.oovveerreereerreeceeeeenenne 719.9 682.6 545.5 361.2
6.9.1  Financial Liabilities
As of As of
September 30, December 31,
2017 2016 2015 2014
(unaudited) (audited)
(in € million) (in € million)
Liabilities to banks ......ccocovvvvevviiiiicee e 237.8 151.9 134.4 74.4
Liabilities to third parties........c.cccocvvviiiervinennns - 52.4 74.0 82.4
Liabilities to shareholders............cocveeveveivvienennnne, 101.0 96.6 90.6 57.4
Total non-current financial liabilities .............. 338.8 300.9 299.0 214.2
Liabilities to banks ......ccocovvvvevviiiiicee e 36.3 45.3 39.9 21.0
Liabilities to third parties........c.ccccvcrvinieieienennns 21.7 36.3 25.7 11.2
Liabilities to shareholders............cocveeveveivvienennnne, 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Total current financial liabilities ...................... 58.0 81.6 65.6 32.2
Total Financial Liabilities .............ccccccooveunn..... 396.8 382.5 364.6 246.4
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6.9.1.1 September 30, 2017 Compared to December 31, 2016

Financial liabilities increased by €14.3 million, or 3.7%, from €382.5 million as of December 31, 2016
to €396.8 million as of September 30, 2017 primarily due to an increase of non-current financial liabilities to
banks in the first nine-month period of 2017.

Non-current financial liabilities increased by €37.9 million, or 12.6%, from €300.9 million as of
December 31, 2016 to €338.8 million as of September 30, 2017. This was primarily due to an increase of
liabilities to banks by €85.9 million, or 56.6%, from €151.9 million as of December 31, 2016 to €237.8 million
as of September 30, 2017 resulting from the promissory note loan agreements (Schuldscheindarlehensvertréage)
entered into in July 2017 with an aggregate volume of €66.9 million (plus an increase of €3.1 million) (for
further information on the promissory note loan agreements, see “8.7.1 Promissory Note Loans
(Schuldscheindarlehen)”) as well as other project-related financing. Non-current financial liabilities were
furthermore influenced by an increase of liabilities to shareholders by €4.4 million, or 4.6%, from €96.6 million
as of December 31, 2016 to €101.0 million as of September 30, 2017. In contrast, liabilities to third parties
decreased from €52.4 million as of December 31, 2016 to €0.0 million as of September 30, 2017 due to the
repayment of the mezzanine financing received from Stornoway S.a r.l. amounting to €50.0 million and accrued
interests in the amount of €2.4 million.

Current financial liabilities decreased by €23.6 million, or 28.9%, from €81.6 million as of
December 31, 2016 to €58.0 million as of September 30, 2017. This was primarily due to a decrease of current
financial liabilities to banks from €45.3 million as of December 31, 2016 to €36.3 million as of September 30,
2017 as well as a decrease of liabilities to third parties from €36.3 million as of December 31, 2016 to €21.7
million as of September 30, 2017. This decrease was primarily due to the repayment of such current liabilities as
customer payments for the corresponding projects were made and a higher level of new non-current financial
liabilities for new projects.

6.9.1.2 December 31, 2016 Compared to December 31, 2015

Financial liabilities increased by €17.9 million, or 4.9%, from €364.6 million as of December 31, 2015
to €382.5 million as of December 31, 2016, primarily due to a significant increase of current liabilities,
including an increase of current liabilities to third parties in the amount of €10.6 million as well as an additional
increase of current liabilities to banks by €5.4 million. Non-current and current financial liabilities to banks
consisted of loans from various banks with fixed and variable interest rates.

Non-current financial liabilities increased by €1.9 million, or 0.6%, from €299.0 million as of
December 31, 2015 to €300.9 million as of December 31, 2016. While the aggregate amount of non-current
financial liabilities only reflects a slight increase, non-current financial liabilities were partially refinanced as of
December 31, 2016. Non-current liabilities to Instone Development’s former shareholder, HOCHTIEF
Solutions AG, relating to a put option were fully redeemed as of December 31, 2016, resulting in a decrease of
non-current liabilities to third parties by €21.6 million, or 29.2%, from €74.0 million as of December 31, 2015
to €52.4 million (including accrued interests) as of December 31, 2016. Non-current liabilities to third parties in
the amount of €52.4 million primarily result from a mezzanine financing received from Stornoway S.a r.L
amounting to €50.0 million and accrued interests of €2.4 million which remained unchanged compared to the
financial year 2015. In contrast, the liabilities to banks increased by €17.5 million to €151.9 million, as did
liabilities to shareholders by €6.0 million to €96.6 million. Non-current liabilities to shareholders primarily
result from shareholders loan of which €61.7 million Cooperatieve Activum Ill and an amount of €30.7 million
to Codperatieve Formart. Furthermore, non-current financial liabilities to shareholders included a loan free of
interest extended by Steffen Gopel of a par value of €5.1 million, discounted on the basis of a prevailing market
rate of interest for similar instruments with a similar credit rating, resulting in a fair value of €4.2 million.

Current financial liabilities increased by €16.0 million, or 24.4%, from €65.6 million as of
December 31, 2015 to €81.6 million as of December 31, 2016 which is primarily due to the re-classification of
the third tranche of the put option due in 2017 in the amount of €10.8 million as current liabilities to third
parties. Accordingly, current financial liabilities to third parties increased to €36.3 million as of December 31,
2016 as compared to €25.7 million as of December 31, 2015. In addition, current liabilities to banks rose from
€39.9 million as of December 31, 2015 to €45.3 million as of December 31, 2016 due to new borrowings from
project-related financing.
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6.9.1.3 December 31, 2015 Compared to December 31, 2014

Financial liabilities increased by €118.2 million, or 48.0%, from €246.4 million as of December 31,
2014 to €364.6 million as of December 31, 2015, primarily due to an increase of non-current and current
financial liabilities to banks resulting from an increased development activity at the level of both Instone
Development and Instone Leipzig and the first time consolidation of Instone Leipzig.

Non-current financial liabilities increased by €84.8 million, or 39.6%, from €214.2 million as of
December 31, 2014 to €299.0 million as of December 31, 2015. Non-current liabilities to Instone
Development’s former shareholder, HOCHTIEF Solutions AG, relating to a put option were partially redeemed
as of December 31, 2015, which primarily influenced the decrease of non-current liabilities to third parties by
€8.4 million from €82.4 million as of December 31, 2014 to €74.0 million as of December 31, 2015. Non-
current liabilities to third parties in the amount of €74.0 million primarily result from a mezzanine financing
received from Stornoway S.a r.l. amounting to €50.0 million and accrued interests of €2.4 million which
remained basically unchanged compared to the financial year 2014. In contrast, the non-current liabilities to
banks increased by €60.0 million to €134.4 million, as did non-current liabilities to shareholders by €33.2
million to €90.6 million. The increase in non-current liabilities to banks was primarily influenced by the
consolidation of Instone Leipzig for the first time in the financial year 2015. Furthermore, the increase in non-
current liabilities to shareholders primarily results from shareholders loan of which €57.9 million extended from
Codperatieve Activum IIT and an amount of €28.8 million extended from CoOperatieve Formart in the financial
year 2015 in connection with the acquisition of Instone Leipzig. Furthermore, non-current financial liabilities to
shareholders included a loan free of interest extended by Steffen Gopel of a par value of €5.1 million,
discounted on the basis of a prevailing market rate of interest for similar instruments with a similar credit rating,
resulting in a fair value of €3.9 million.

Current liabilities increased by €33.4 million, or 103.7%, from €32.2 million as of December 31, 2014
to €65.6 million as of December 31, 2015 which is primarily due to higher business activities and the
corresponding take up of project-related financing. Current financial liabilities to third parties increased to
€25.7 million as of December 31, 2015 as compared to €11.2 million as of December 31, 2014. In addition,
current liabilities to banks rose from €21.0 million as of December 31, 2014 to €39.9 million as of December 31,
2015 due to new borrowings from project-related financing.

6.9.14 Maturity Analysis of Financial Liabilities

The following table summarizes the contractual payments relating to financial liabilities of Instone as
of December 31, 2016:

Carrying
amount Cash outflows
As of
December 31,
2016 2017 2018-2020 >2020
(audited)
(in € million)
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Financial lHabilities...........ccoccveiiiiei e, 382.5 145.1 268.1 -
Trade payables ..., 215.2 215.2 - -
TOAD oo 597.7 360.3 268.1

The following table summarizes the contractual payments relating to financial liabilities of Instone as
of December 31, 2015:

Carrying
amount Cash outflows
As of
December 31,
2015 2016 2017-2019 >2019
(audited)
(in € million)
Non-derivative financial liabilities
Financial liabilities..........cccoceviiiiiie e, 364.6 83.2 292.4 38.9
Trade payables ..., 99.0 99.0 - -
L ]| Y 463.6 182.2 292.4 38.9
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The following table summarizes the contractual payments relating to financial liabilities of Instone as
of December 31, 2014:

Carrying amount Cash outflows
As of
December 31, 2014 2015 2016-2018 >2018
(audited)

(in € million)
Non-derivative financial liabilities

Financial liabilities. .........cc.ccoovviiineniee e, 246.4 34.5 173.1 76.1
Trade payables ... 79.2 79.2 - -
TOtAl oo 325.6 113.7 1731 76.1

6.9.2  Trade payables

The following table provides an overview of Instone’s trade payables as of the dates indicated:

As of As of
September 30, December 31,
2017 2016 2015 2014
(unaudited) (audited)
(in € million) (in € million)
Amount due from customers for contract work (PoC) ... - - (10.8) (58.7)
Progress payments received............cccocveeeveeirereenennn. - - 11.3 64.6
- - 059 5.80
Trade payables........cccocvvieiii i 41.4 53.6 55.5 62.6
Progress payments received...........c..ccovrvrerenrsrirnrennns 207.1 161.5 43.0 10.7
248.5 215.1 98.5 73.3
Payables from non-consolidated subsidiaries................. - 0.0 0.0 0.1
Payables from assoCIates ...........ccovrerieerieeie e — — — 0.0
248.5 215.2 99.0 79.2

(1) Relates to customer contracts accounted for under the percentage of completion method.
(2) Relates to customer contracts accounted for under the completed contract method.

For projects accounted for under the percentage of completion method, capitalized land plots and work-
in progress inventories accounted for under inventories (i.e., prior to the sale of units) are accounted for as trade
payables if progress payments exceed contract costs and Anticipated Gross Project Margin for units sold.

If contract costs and Anticipated Gross Project Margin for units sold exceed progress payments
received, the projects are accounted for as trade receivables. Amounts due from customers for contract work
(PoC) are netted in each case against the progress payments received for projects accounted for under the
percentage of completion method. To the extent projects have not been sold, project development progress is
accounted for under work in progress inventories. Under the completed contract method, progress payments
received are booked at their gross value (payments received) as trade payables. Development progress is not
accounted for as trade receivables but as work-in-progress inventories until delivery of the residential units.
Trade payables are not netted against inventories (or receivables) under the completed contract method.

6.9.2.1 September 30, 2017 Compared to December 31, 2016

Trade payables increased by €33.3 million, or 15.5%, from €215.2 million as of December 31, 2016 to
€248.5 million as of September 30, 2017 primarily due to higher progress payments received in the amount of
€207.1 million as of September 30, 2017 compared to €161.5 million as of December 31, 2016. Trade payables
as of September 30, 2017 were furthermore influenced by increased business activities.

6.9.2.2 December 31, 2016 Compared to December 31, 2015

Trade payables increased significantly by €116.2 million, or 117.4%, from €99.0 million as of
December 31, 2015 to €215.2 million as of December 31, 2016, primarily due to the change of the form of
Instone Development’s customer contracts resulting in a different accounting treatment of Instone
Development’s projects in accordance with the completed contract method.
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As of December 31, 2016, progress payments received amounted to €161.5 million, a significant
increase by €118.5 million, or 275.6%, from €43.0 million as of December 31, 2015. Under the percentage of
completion method, the balance of the amount due from customers for contract work less progress prepayments
received as of December 31, 2015 amounted to €0.5 million as a result of progress payments received exceeding
the cost of production including margin.

6.9.2.3 December 31, 2015 Compared to December 31, 2014

Trade payables increased by €19.8 million, or 25.0%, from €79.2 million as of December 31, 2014 to
€99.0 million as of December 31, 2015, primarily due to the change of the form of Instone Development’s
customer contracts resulting in a different accounting treatment of Instone Development’s projects in
accordance with the completed contract method.

As of December 31, 2015, the balance of the amount due from Instone Development’s customers for
contract work less progress prepayments received under the percentage of completion method decreased by €5.3
million, or 91.4%, from €5.8 million as of December 31, 2014 to €0.5 million as of December 31, 2015. This
balance included accounts payable to customers from construction contracts where the progress payments
received exceed the cost of production including margin. Due to the change of the form of Instone
Development’s customer contracts resulting in a different accounting treatment of Instone Development’s
projects, progress payments received under the completed contracts method increased significantly by €32.3
million from €10.7 million as of December 31, 2014 to €43.0 million as of December 31, 2015.

6.10 Equity

The following table provides an overview of Instone’s equity as of the dates indicated:

As of As of
September 30, December 31,
2017 2016 2015 2014
(unaudited) (audited)
(in € million) (in € million)
Equity
Share capital™..........c.oooeveeeeeeeeeeeeee e, 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0
Capital FESEIVE ..o 37.4 37.4 37.4 21.0
Retained earnings / loss carryforwards................ (48.7) (35.5) (13.2) 111
Accumulated other comprehensive income.......... (1.3) (1.3) (0.1) (0.2)
Equity attributable to shareholders ................. (12.5) 0.7 24.2 31.9
Non-controlling iNterests ............c.ovvvveeeeeererennns 15 2.0 115 0.0
Total QUILY.......vveeveeecveeeee e (11.0) 2.7 35.7 32.0

(1) As of September 30, 2017, December 31, 2016 and as of December 31, 2015, the share capital amounted to €8,386. As
of December 31, 2014, the share capital amounted to €7,500.

6.10.1 September 30, 2017 Compared to December 31, 2016

Equity decreased by €13.7 million from €2.7 million as of December 31, 2016 to negative €11.0
million as of September 30, 2017 primarily due to an increase of loss carryforwards by €13.2 million, or 37.2%,
from €35.5 million as of December 31, 2016 to €48.7 million as of September 30, 2017. Equity as of
September 30, 2017 was furthermore influenced by a slight decrease of non-controlling interests by €0.5
million, or 25.0%, from €2.0 million as of December 31, 2016 to €1.5 million as of September 30, 2017.

As of September 30, 2017, the share capital amounted to €8,386 and was held by Codperatieve
Activum I11 (59.6%), Codperatieve Formart (29.8%) and Steffen Gopel (10.6%). There was no increase in the
Company’s share capital in the nine-month period ending September 30, 2017. As of September 30, 2017, the
capital reserve remained unchanged at €37.4 million.

6.10.2 December 31, 2016 Compared to December 31, 2015
Equity decreased by €33.0 million, or 92.4%, from €35.7 million as of December 31, 2015 to €2.7

million as of December 31, 2016 primarily due to a significant increase in loss carryforwards as well as a slight
increase in Accumulated other comprehensive income.
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As of December 31, 2016, the share capital amounted to €8,386 and was held by Codperatieve
Activum 111 (59.6%), CooOperatieve Formart (29.8%) and Steffen Gopel (10.6%). There was no increase in the
Company’s share capital in the financial year 2016.

As of December 31, 2016, the capital reserve in the amount of €37.4 million was due to additional
shareholder contributions as share premium on the share capital. There was no increase in the Company’s
capital reserve in the financial year 2016.

As of December 31, 2016, the loss carryforwards increased from negative €13.1 million by €22.4
million, or 171.0%, to negative €35.5 million. This result was mainly due to a decision of the shareholders to
allocate the result of €22.4 million (earnings after tax) for the financial year 2016 to the loss carryforwards.

Furthermore, non-controlling interests decreased from €11.5 million by €9.5 million, or 82.6%, to €2.0
million as of December 31, 2016. These changes relate to several entities of Instone Leipzig (GRK Holding
GmbH, Leipzig and GRK REVION Hamburg GmbH, Leipzig) which were acquired in connection with the
acquisition of Instone Leipzig with effect from December 10, 2015 and consolidated as from that date for the
period ended December 31, 2015. Additionally, Instone Development acquired 47% of the shares in GRK
Beteiligung GmbH which resulted in a decrease of non-controlling interest by €9.6 million in the financial year
2016.

6.10.3 December 31, 2015 Compared to December 31, 2014

Equity increased by €3.7 million, or 11.6%, from €32.0 million as of December 31, 2014 to €35.7
million as of December 31, 2015, primarily due to an increase in capital reserves in the amount of €16.4 million
which was partially offset by a significant increase in loss carryforwards in the amount of negative €24.2
million.

As of December 31, 2015, the share capital was increased by a nominal amount of €886 from €7,500 to
€8,386 to issue these €886 to Steffen Gopel as part of the consideration for the partial sale of his shares in
Instone Leipzig.

As of December 31, 2015, the capital reserve amounted to €37.4 million due to additional shareholder
contributions made as share premium in connection with the share capital increase. This is an increase by €16.4
million, or 78.1%, from €21.0 million as of December 31, 2014.

As of December 31, 2015, the loss carryforwards amounted to negative €13.1 million, a decrease by
€24.2 million compared to €11.1 million of retained earnings as of December 31, 2014. This result was mainly
due to a decision of the shareholders to allocate the result of €22.4 million (earnings after tax) for the financial
year 2014 to the loss carryforwards.

Furthermore, non-controlling interests increased by €11.5 million from €0.0 as of December 31, 2014
to €11.5 million as of December 31, 2015. These changes relate to several entities of Instone Leipzig (GRK
Holding GmbH, GRK Beteiligung GmbH and GRK REVION Hamburg GmbH) which were acquired in
connection with the acquisition of Instone Leipzig with effect from December 10, 2015 and consolidated as
from that date for the period ended December 31, 2015.

6.11 Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash flows from operating activities are one of the main sources of liquidity for Instone, amounting to
€93.8 million in the financial year 2016 (negative €15.9 million in the financial year 2015 and negative €11.4
million in the financial year 2014). In addition, sales proceeds generally exceed the liabilities related to the
residential units sold and therefore provide a liquidity contribution. Instone has also received financing from
banks and the Existing Shareholders, which is included in cash flows from financing activities.
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6.11.1 Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

The following table shows Instone’s consolidated statements of cash flows for the nine-month period
ended September 30, 2017 and September 30, 2016 and the years ended December 31, 2016, December 31,
2015 and December 31, 2014 based on Instone’s unaudited condensed consolidated interim financial statements
as of and for the nine-month period ended September 30, 2017 and audited consolidated financial statements as
of and for the financial years ended December 31, 2016, December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014.

For the nine-month period For the financial year
ended September 30, ended December 31,
2017 2016 2016 2015 2014
(unaudited) (audited)
(in € million) (in € million)
Consolidated earnings ..........cccccevevvvennnns (13.0) (25.7) (22.2) (22.4) 10.8
Depreciation and amortization.................... (0.3) 0.3 0.4 0.5 0.1
Increase (decrease) of provisions................ 8.5 6.8 15.0 7.3 3.9
Increase (decrease) of deferred taxes.......... (6.9) (5.5) (12.9) (7.2) (1.5
Decrease (increase) of equity carrying
AMOUNTS.....eieeie s 11 (1.4) (1.3) 0.4 8.2
Other non-cash income and expenses......... 10.7 15.8 235 3.2 (12.6)
Profit (loss) on disposals of property, plant
and equIPMENt .......cccvvereireerese e - (0.0 0.0 0.2 -
Decrease (increase) of inventories, trade
receivables and other assets..............ccu..... (26.5) 36.3 (25.6) (2.6) 15
Increase (decrease) of trade payables and
other liabilities ..........o...errvverrrreerenrrir, 26.4 13.1 116.9 4.7 (21.8)
Cash flow from operating activities ........ (0.2 39.3 93.8 (15.9) (11.9)
INCOME taXES PAIT ....vvvoveeereeeeereeeeereerennes (4.9) - (6.2) (0.1) (0.0)
Net cash flow from operating activities... (5.1) 39.3 87.7 (15.9) (11.9)
Proceeds from disposals of property, plant
and equUIpPMENt ......cccvevvee e, 1.0 0.0 0.0 0.2 -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment. (0.4) (0.3) (0.4) (1.2 -
Purchase of intangible assets ...........c.cc.c.... - (0.0 - - -
Proceeds from disposals of non-current
financial assets.......ccocvevvvviviieieicce e, — 0.3 0.3 — -
Payments for acquisition of shares in
consolidated companies (22.5) (18.4) (22.0) (57.7) (120.7)
Receipts from the disposal of subsidiaries - 0.2 0.2 7.5 0.0
Payments for acquisition of shares in non-
consolidated subsidiaries............cccccvevvvrinnns - - (0.0) - -
INtErest reCEIVE. ....cvoveveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeaens — 0.1 0.1 — -
Cash flow from investing activities.......... (21.9) (18.2) (21.8) (51.2) (120.7)
Increase of issued capital .............c..cceevenee. - - - - 0.0
Contributions to the capital reserve............. - - - 12.0 21.0
Cash proceeds from shareholder loans ....... - - - 25.1 56.4
Cash proceeds from borrowings ................ 105.6 67.0 64.4 70.8 82.3
Cash repayments of borrowings ................. (69.3) (36.7) (38.3) (13.7) -
INtErest PAId ...........ovveveeereeeeeseeeeeenees (11.3) (13.8) (17.6) (15.8) (2.5)
Cash flow from financing activities......... 25.0 16.4 8.5 78.4 157.2
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash
eqUIVAlENTS. ... (1.9 37.6 74.3 11.2 25.1
Net foreign exchange differences and
changes in group Structure..........ccccceevveveenne - - 2.3 (0.4) -
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning
OF PEIIOT. ... 112.5 35.9 35.9 25.1 -
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of
1] ¢ [0 PSP RPPRN 1107 735 112.5 359 251
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6.11.1.1 Comparison of the Nine-Month Period Ended September 30, 2017 and September 30, 2016

6.11.1.1.1 Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Net cash flow from operating activities decreased by €44.1 million from €39.3 million in the nine-
month period ended September 30, 2016 to negative €5.1 million in the nine-month period ended September 30,
2017. This was primarily related to an increase in inventories, trade receivables and other assets amounting to
€26.5 million in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2017 as a result of significantly less deliveries of
completed units during this period, while in the financial year 2016, Instone had a significant cash inflow due to
the delivery of a much larger number of completed units in the first nine months of financial year 2016.

Trade payables increased by €33.3 million, or 15.5%, from €215.2 million as of December 31, 2016 to
€248.5 million as of September 30, 2017 corresponding to the increase of progress payments received from
customers. Trade receivables declined by €8.2 million, or 41.8%, from €19.6 million to €11.4 million due to a
lower number of residential units accounted for under the percentage of completion method in the nine-month
period ended September 30, 2017.

6.11.1.1.2 Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Cash flow from investing activities decreased by €3.7 million, or 20.3%, from negative €18.2 million
in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2016 to negative €21.9 million in the nine-month period ended
September 30, 2017 primarily due to higher payments for acquisition of shares in consolidated companies that
amounted to €22.5 million in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2017 when compared to €18.4 million
in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2016. Out of these higher payments for acquisition of shares in
consolidated companies, an amount of €22.5 million related to the exercise of the third put option relating to the
shares in Instone Development. In addition, cash flow from investing activities in the nine-month period ended
September 30, 2017 was influenced by proceeds from disposals of property, plant and equipment in the amount
of €1.0 million.

6.11.1.1.3 Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Cash flow from financing activities increased by €8.6 million, or 52.4%, from €16.4 million in the
nine-month period ended September 30, 2016 to €25.0 million in the nine-month period ended September 30,
2017 primarily due to a significant increase in cash proceeds from borrowings in the amount of €105.6 million
resulting from the promissory note loan agreements (Schuldscheindarlehen) entered into in July 2017 with an
aggregate amount of €66.9 million. This increase was partially offset by an increase in cash repayments of
borrowings to €69.3 million in the nine-month period ended September 30, 2017 due to the repayment of a
mezzanine loan in the aggregate amount of €52.4 million.

6.11.1.2 Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015

6.11.1.2.1 Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Net cash flow from operating activities increased by €103.6 million from negative €15.9 million in the
financial year ended December 31, 2015 to €87.7 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2016. The
most significant effect on net cash flow from operating periods is the increase in cash inflow from progress
payments received in connection with project development activities booked as increase of trade payables and
the decrease in inventories. Trade payables and other liabilities increased by €116.9 million in the financial year
ended December 31, 2016. This was partially offset by a cash outflow from an increase in inventories and a
decrease in trade receivables and other assets amounting to a total of €25.6 million due to land acquisition costs.

6.11.1.2.2 Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Cash flow from investing activities increased by €29.4 million, or 57.4%, from negative €51.2 million
in the financial year ended December 31, 2015 to negative €21.8 million in the financial year ended
December 31, 2016, primarily due to lower investments relating to the acquisition of subsidiaries that amounted
to €22.0 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2016 when compared to €57.7 million in the financial
year ended December 31, 2015.

Of the total investments relating to the acquisition of subsidiaries amounting to €57.7 million in the
financial year ended December 31, 2015, €42.8 million related to the acquisition of Instone Leipzig and €11.5
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million related to the exercise of the first put option relating to the acquisition of Instone Development. In
contrast, the total investments relating to the acquisition of subsidiaries of €22.0 million in the financial year
ended December 31, 2016 comprised €11.3 million related to the exercise of the second put option relating to
the acquisition of Instone Development and €9.6 million relating to the acquisition of 47% of the shares in GRK
Beteiligung GmbH. In addition, cash flow from investing activities in the financial year ended December 31,
2015 was influenced by payments received from the disposal of subsidiaries in the amount of €7.5 million as
compared to €0.2 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2016.

6.11.1.2.3 Cash Flow from Financing Activities

Cash flow from financing activities decreased by €69.9 million, or 89.2%, from €78.4 million in the
financial year ended December 31, 2015 to €8.5 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2016,
primarily due to repayments of borrowings in the amount of €38.3 million in the course of ordinary business
activities as well as interest paid in the amount of €17.6 million. The higher interest payments in the financial
year ended December 31, 2016 resulted from the additional interests due under the loans taken out for the
acquisition of Instone Leipzig. Furthermore, capital reserves decreased from €12.0 million and cash proceeds
from shareholder loans decreased from €25.1 million, in each case, to €0.0 million due to the financing of the
acquisitions of Instone Development and Instone Leipzig.

6.11.1.3 Comparison of the Years Ended December 31, 2015 and December 31, 2014

6.11.1.3.1 Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Net cash flow from operating activities increased by €4.5 million, or 39.5%, from negative €11.4
million in the financial year ended December 31, 2014 to negative €15.9 million in the financial year ended
December 31, 2015. This was primarily due to the repayment of certain funds previously borrowed from third
parties and the significant decrease of trade payables and other liabilities in the financial year ended
December 31, 2014.

Cash flow from operating activities was furthermore partially influenced by the effects from the change
of the form of Instone Development’s customer contracts resulting in a different accounting treatment of Instone
Development’s projects the marketing of which commenced on or after August 1, 2015. As a result of this
consequential transition from the percentage of completion method to the completed contract method for Instone
Development’s standard customer contracts, progress payments received in relation to such project
developments are accounted for at their gross value (payments received) and are not netted against trade
receivables. This resulted in a decrease of inventories, trade receivables and other assets to €2.6 million, which
was partially offset by an increase in trade payables and other liabilities to €4.7 million from customer progress
payments in the financial year ended December 31, 2015.

In addition, other non-cash expenses increased due to PPA Effects in connection with the acquisition of
Instone Development amounting to €3.2 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2015, while other
non-cash income increased to negative €12.6 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2014 due to the
value step-up compared to the purchase price for Instone Development which amounted to €20.1 million.

6.11.1.3.2 Cash Flow from Investing Activities

Cash flow from investing activities decreased by €69.5 million, or 57.6%, from negative €120.7 million
in the financial year ended December 31, 2014 to negative €51.2 million in the financial year ended
December 31, 2015, primarily due to the significantly higher acquisition cost of €120.7 million relating to the
acquisition of Instone Development in the financial year ended December 31, 2014 compared to the acquisition
cost relating to the acquisition of Instone Leipzig of €42.8 million and to the exercise of the first put option
relating to the acquisition of Instone Development in the amount of €11.5 million in the financial year ended
December 31, 2015. This was partially offset in the financial year ended December 31, 2015 by receipts from a
partial disposal of the land plots acquired for Instone’s development project in Munich, Theresienstralie that
amounted to €7.5 million.

6.11.1.3.3 Cash Flow from Financing Activities
Cash flow from financing activities decreased by €78.8 million, or 50.1%, from €157.2 million in the

financial year ended December 31, 2014 to €78.4 million in the financial year ended December 31, 2015,
primarily due to the significantly lower acquisition cost relating to the acquisition of Instone Leipzig in the
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financial year ended December 31, 2015 compared to the acquisition cost relating to the acquisition of Instone
Development in the financial year ended December 31, 2014. To finance the purchase prices for Instone
Development and for Instone Leipzig, Instone used a combination of shareholder loans and other borrowings.

Cash flow from financing activities in the financial year ended December 31, 2015 was furthermore
partially influenced by an increase of cash repayments of borrowings under the cash pooling arrangement with
HOCHTIEF Solutions AG in the amount of €13.7 million.

6.12 Investments

In the periods under review, Instone’s most significant investments were the acquisition of Instone
Development and Instone Leipzig including related entities (for a more detailed description of these acquisitions
see “11.3 History of Instone™).

In 2014, Instone invested €131.1 million to acquire 76.0% of the shares in Instone Development from
HOCHTIEF Solutions AG. To finance its investment, Instone used the ID Shareholder Loans (see
“8.7.2.1 Financing in Relation to the Acquisition of Instone Development”) amounting to an aggregate amount
of €75.7 million and the Mezz-Loan (see “8.7.3 Upstream Loan and Pledge of Shares”) amounting to €49.3
million and own funds in amount of €6.1 million.

In 2015, Instone’s investments of €42.7 million related to the acquisition of Instone Leipzig and related
entities and of €11.5 million related to HOCHTIEF Solutions AG’s exercise of its first put option relating to the
acquisition of Instone Development. To finance its investments, Instone used the IL Shareholder Loans (see
“8.7.2.2 Financing in Relation to the Acquisition of Instone Leipzig”) amounting to an aggregate amount of
€25.1 million, the SG Shareholder Loan (see “8.7.2.3 Financing Provided by Steffen Gdpel”) amounting to
€3.9 million and own funds in an amount of €25.3 million.

In 2016, Instone’s investments of €21.8 million comprised €11.9 million related to HOCHTIEF
Solutions AG’s exercise of its second put option relating to the acquisition of Instone Development, €9.6 million
related to the acquisition of 47% of the shares in GRK Beteiligung GmbH and €0.9 million related to other non-
current assets from own funds.

In the first nine months of 2017, Instone’s investments amounted to €22.5 million in relation to the
exercise of HOCHTIEF Solutions AG’s third and final put option relating to the shares in Instone Development.

Instone does not acquire land plots or properties as investment properties in its core business. It
develops and sells such land plots or properties following completion of its development activities. Accordingly,
its land acquisitions are recorded as inventories in Instone’s current assets (see “6.8.2.1 Inventories™).

Besides the investments described above, Instone has made no firm commitments on any significant
ongoing or future investments as of the date of this Prospectus.

6.13 Qualitative and Quantitative Disclosure about Financial Risks

Instone is exposed to a number of financial risks arising from the ordinary course of business, including
market risks, credit risks and liquidity risks.

6.13.1 Reporting on Financial Instruments
Financial instruments include financial assets and liabilities as well as contractual claims and

obligations relating to exchanges and transfers of financial assets. There are no derivative financial instruments.

Financial assets mostly comprise cash and cash equivalents, receivables and other financial
investments. Financial liabilities are mostly current liabilities measured at amortized cost.

The financial instruments held are shown in the balance sheet. The maximum risk of loss or default is
equal to total financial assets. Any such risk identified in respect of financial assets is accounted for with an
impairment loss.

6.13.2 Risk Management
All finance activities of Instone are conducted on the basis of a group-wide financial directive. This is

supplemented by function-specific operating work guidelines on subjects such as collateral management. These
policies include principles for dealing with the various classes of financial risk.
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Trading, control and settlement activities are divided between front and back offices. This ensures
effective risk management where monitoring and settlement of front office external trading activities are
performed by a separate and independent back office. Furthermore, the dual control principle must be observed
at minimum for all external trading transactions. Internal authorizations to give instructions are strictly limited
in number and monetary amount, and are reassessed at regular intervals (at least once a year) and adjusted if
necessary.

6.13.3 Management of Liquidity Risk

Instone uses largely centralized liquidity structures to pool liquidity at group level, amongst other
things to avoid cash flow bottlenecks at the level of individual entities. The central liquidity position is
determined on a monthly basis and calculated in a bottom-up process over a rolling 12-months period. Liquidity
budgets are supplemented with monthly stress testing.

The tables detail Instone’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities
with agreed repayment periods. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of
financial liabilities on the date on which Instone can be required to pay. The tables include both interest and
principal cash flow. Interest payments on variable rate items are translated uniformly using the last interest rate
fixed prior to the balance sheet date.

The maximum payments shown in the tables below are offset by contractually fixed receipts in the
same periods that are not shown here (for example, from trade receivables), which cover the shown cash
outflows to a considerable extent.

6.13.4 Maturity Analysis of Financial Liabilities

The following tables summarize the contractual payments relating to financial liabilities of Instone:

Carrying amount Cash outflows
As of
December 31,
2016 2017 2018-2020 >2020
(audited)

(in € million)
Non-derivative financial liabilities

Financial liabilities...........ccooviiiiiiiiiiee 382.5 145.1 268.1 -
Trade payables.........ccocoiiiiiiii e 215.2 215.2 — —
TOUAl oo 597.7 360.3 268.1
Carrying amount Cash outflows
As of
December 31,
2015 2016 2017-2019 >2019
(audited)

(in € million)
Non-derivative financial liabilities

Financial liabilities...........c.cccevviiiiieiic e 364.6 83.2 292.4 38.9
Trade payables. ... 99.0 99.0 - -
L] 7 OO 463.6 182.2 292.4 38.9
Carrying amount Cash outflows
As of
December 31,
2014 2015 2016-2018 >2018
(audited)

(in € million)
Non-derivative financial liabilities

Financial liabilities...........cocvveriieiiniieieece 246.4 34.5 173.1 76.1
Trade payables ... 79.2 79.2 - -
TOtAl o 325.6 1137 1731 76.1

Instone’s liquidity is sufficiently secured, also based on the available cash in hand and bank balances as
well as undrawn cash credit lines.
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The table below shows the main liquidity instruments:

December 31,

2016 2015 2014
(audited)
(in € million)
Cash and cash equivalents ...........c.cccoereienineincncinenns 1125 35.9 25.1
Credit ling - amount UNUSEd..........ccovevveieeiresiesee e 77.2 348.8 64.5
8 0] | OO 189.8 384.7 89.5

6.13.5 Management of Credit Risks

Instone is exposed to credit risk from operations and from certain financing activities.

Instone performs risk management for operations by continuously monitoring trade receivables at a
branch level. If a specific credit risk is detected, it is countered by recognizing an individual impairment to the
extent necessary.

The maximum credit risk exposure of financial assets is equivalent to their carrying amounts in the
statement of financial position. However, the actual credit risk exposure is lower due to collateral given in favor
of Instone. The maximum risk exposure on financial guarantees is the maximum amount that Instone would
have to pay. The maximum credit risk for loan commitments is the amount of the commitment. Recourse to
these financial guarantees and loan commitments is very unlikely at the time of reporting.

Instone accepts collateral to secure contract performance by subcontractors, subcontractors’ warranty
obligations, and claims to remuneration. Such collateral includes, without limitation, guarantees relating to
warranty obligations, contract performance, advance payments, and payment bonds. Acceptance of collateral is
governed by an Instone policy. It includes, without limitation, the contractual drafting, implementation, and
management of all agreements. The detailed instructions vary, depending on the country jurisdiction and current
case law, for example. For credit risks, Instone examines the credit rating of the party providing the collateral
for all guarantees accepted. Instone engages external specialists (such as rating agencies) for assessing credit
standings as far as possible. The fair values of accepted collateral are not disclosed as they cannot be measured
reliably as a rule.

The age structure of financial assets that are past due is specific to the industry. Receipt of payment
depends on order acceptance and invoice checking, which often takes a relatively long time.

Most of these past due unimpaired financial assets are due from contracting authorities with top credit
ratings.

The following table shows the past due, unimpaired financial assets:

December 31, 2016

Up to 30 days 31 to 60 days 61 to 90 days Over 90 days
(audited)
(in € million)

Trade receivables .................... 9.0 0.1 2.3 4.8

December 31, 2015

Up to 30 days 31 to 60 days 61 to 90 days Over 90 days
(audited)
(in € million)

Trade receivables .................... 13.2 0.5 0.2 4.9

December 31, 2014

Up to 30 days 31 to 60 days 61 to 90 days Over 90 days
(audited)
(in € million)

Trade receivables .................... 3.6 0.6 0.9 17.2
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Individually impaired financial assets are shown below:

December 31, 2016 December 31, 2015 December 31, 2014

(audited)
(in € million)

Trade receivables

GIrOSS AMOUNE ... 13.4 20.3 16.9
IMPAITMENE ... (6.3) (8.4) (14.9)
NEt AMOUNT ..., 7.1 11.9 2.0
January 1, 2015 Changes® December 31, 2015 Changes®  December 31, 2016
(audited)
(in € million)
Trade receivables ............. 14.9 (6.5) 8.4 (2.0 6.3

(1) Changes result from allocations, reversals, utilizations and changes in group structure

With regard to financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired, there are currently no indications
of any need to recognise impairments for reasons relating to credit ratings.

6.13.6 Management of Interest Risks

The interest rate risk of Instone at a group level mainly consists of short- and long-term interest-bearing
financial assets and liabilities due to fluctuations in market interest rates. Depending on the market situation, this
risk is countered by a mix of fixed and variable interest financial instruments. The risk is not controlled
separately, as the external borrowings are usually redeemed within a short time by payments of the acquirers.

Changes in the market interest rates of non-derivative financial instruments with a fixed interest rate
have an impact on the result only if they are recognized at fair value. For this reason, all fixed-interest financial
instruments carried at amortized cost are not subject to interest rate risks as defined by IFRS 7.

As part of a sensitivity analysis, Instone examined the impact of the change in market interest rates in a
range of 100 basis points on the earnings after tax. In the financial year 2016, a hypothetical increase/decrease in
the market interest rate of 100 basis points, with other variables remaining constant, would result in
lower/higher earnings after tax of minus €1.3 million / €1.3 million (prior year: minus €1.1 million / €1.1
million).

6.13.7 Capital Risk Management

Instone manages its capital with the aim of ensuring that all group companies can continue to operate
as a going concern. Instone keeps the cost of capital as low as possible by optimizing the balance between
equity and debt as the need arises. These measures primarily serve to secure the best possible credit standing as
well as to maximize shareholder returns.

Instone’s capital structure consists of the current and non-current liabilities less cash and cash
equivalents recognised in the balance sheet and the shareholders’ equity. Instone’s capital structure is assessed
at regular intervals, taking into account the risk-adjusted cost of capital.

The overall capital risk management strategy did not change in the years under review compared to
previous the comparative periods.

6.14 Significant Accounting Policies

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. By definition, the resulting
accounting estimates will seldom equal the relevant actual results. Estimates and judgments are continually
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that
are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Estimates and assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing
basis. Revisions to estimates are recognized prospectively. The estimates and assumptions for which there is a
significant risk that they may cause a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for the
upcoming fiscal year are addressed below:

87



6.14.1 Basis of consolidation

Control occurs if the Company as investor has the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
subsidiary. Relevant activities are activities that significantly affect the returns. Furthermore, the Company must
participate in these returns in the form of variable returns and must be able to influence them in its favor with
the existing possibilities and rights. As a rule, control occurs if a direct or indirect majority of the voting rights
are held. In structured enterprises, control may result from contractual arrangements. Material investments in
associates are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. Companies will be deemed associates if the
Company has a significant influence based on a proportion of voting rights between 20% and 50% or based on
contractual arrangements.

6.14.2 Consolidation policies

The financial statements of the domestic and foreign entities included in the consolidation are prepared
using uniform accounting policies.

Expenses and income as well as liabilities between consolidated companies are eliminated. Intra-group
intermediary results are eliminated to the extent that they are not of minor significance. Any impairment losses
recognized for consolidated companies in their separate financial statements are reversed.

The same consolidation policies also apply to interests in equity-accounted investees. They comprise
both associates and joint ventures of Instone.

6.14.3 Business combinations

Instone accounts for business combinations using the acquisition method when control is transferred to
it. The consideration transferred in the acquisition is generally measured at fair value, as are the identifiable net
assets acquired. Any goodwill that arises is tested annually for impairment. Any gain on a bargain purchase is
recognized in profit or loss immediately. Transaction costs are expensed as incurred, except if related to the
issue of debt or equity securities.

The consideration transferred does not include amounts related to the settlement of pre-existing
relationships. Such amounts are generally recognized in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration is measured at fair value at the date of acquisition. If an obligation to pay
contingent consideration that meets the definition of a financial instrument is classified as equity, then it is not
remeasured and settlement is accounted for within equity. In all other respects, other contingent consideration is
measured at fair value at each balance-sheet date, and subsequent changes of the fair value of contingent
considerations are recognized in profit or loss.

6.14.4 Receivables

The receivables include financial receivables, trade receivables and other receivables. Receivables and
other assets are measured at amortized cost, using the effective interest rate method (accounting for factors such
as premiums and discounts). An impairment loss is recognized if there is any objective material evidence that a
financial asset may be impaired. Impairment losses are recognized according to actual default risk.

Long-term loans included in financial receivables are stated at amortized cost. Loans yielding interest
at normal market rates are reported at nominal amounts.

Receivables or payables from specifically negotiated construction contracts are reported in trade
receivables and trade payables applying the percentage of completion method in accordance with IAS 11. Under
the percentage of completion method, the proportionate result of the percentage of completion method is
determined depending on the construction progress and the marketing progress. If cumulative work done
(contract costs and contract net profit) of contracts in progress exceeds progress payments received, the
construction contract is recognized as an asset in percentage of completion receivables. If a negative balance
results after deducting progress payments, it is recognized as an obligation under a construction contract on the
liabilities side as liabilities from percentage of completion. Expected contract losses are accounted for on the
basis of identifiable risks and immediately fully included in the contract net profit. For completed construction
contracts, the contractual proceeds and adjustments and addenda are recognized as contract proceeds in
conformity with 1AS 11. Receivables and liabilities from construction contracts are realized within one business
cycle of Instone. Consequently, they are recognized as current assets or liabilities, even if the realization of the
whole construction contract takes a period of more than one year.
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6.14.4.1 Inventories

Inventories are assets under construction (work in progress). Inventories are recognized at cost. Cost
comprises the production-related full cost. Borrowing costs for inventories that are qualifying assets are
capitalized as part of cost. Should the recoverable amount be lower than the capitalized cost at a given balance
sheet date, such lower recoverable amount will be recognized. Should the recoverable amount of such
inventories subsequently increase, the resulting gain must be recognized. This is done by reducing materials
expense.

The inventories of individual major project development measures are broken down into several partial
project development measures for reasons of commercial presentation. The breakdown does not affect
measurement. With respect to Instone, the respective total project is treated as a special form of measurement
unit in current assets. The risks of individual partial project measures may be compensated by the opportunities
within other partial projects. An exceeding requirement for impairment is reflected by measuring a provision for
contingent losses.

6.14.4.2 Provisions

Provisions are measured for any legal or factual liabilities in relation to third parties existing on the
financial statement date which are resulting from past transactions that are likely to lead to an outflow of
resources the amount of which may be reliably estimated. The provisions are recognized with their expected
settlement amount and not netted with refund claims.

All non-current provisions are accounted for with their expected settlement amount discounted to the
financial statement date. Furthermore, any cost increases expected to be incurred by the settlement date are to be
taken into account in the calculation of this amount.

As a principle, provisions are reversed against the expense item for which they are made.

Provisions for pensions and similar obligations are recognized for defined benefit plans. They include
obligations of the entity for current and future benefits to entitled active and former employees and their
surviving dependents. The obligations primarily relate to pension benefits. The individual commitments are
measured based on the length of service and salaries of the employees.

For the measurement of provisions for defined benefit plans, the actuarial present value of the
respective obligation is taken as basis. It is determined using the projected unit credit method. The projected unit
credit method not only includes the pensions and accrued benefits known on the reference date but also salary
and pension increased to be expected in the future. This calculation is based on actuarial reports in consideration
of biometric calculation methods (mainly the “2005 G Reference Tables” by Klaus Heubeck). The provision
results from the balance of the actuarial present value of the obligation and the fair value of the plan assets
required to cover the pension obligation. The service cost is included in the personnel expenses. The net interest
income is a component of the financial income.

Profits and losses from remeasured net liabilities or net assets are recognized fully in the period during
which they arise. They are recognized in equity without affecting profit or loss and not included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss. Also in the subsequent years they will not be recognized in profit and
loss.

For defined contribution plans, Instone does not incur any further obligations exceeding the payment of
contribution to special-purpose funds. The contribution payments are stated in personnel expenses.

6.14.5 Estimate and assumptions

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements requires estimates and assumptions that may
affect the application of accounting principles of Instone, the recognition and measurement. The estimates are
based on experience from the past and other knowledge gained of transactions to be accounted for. The actual
amounts may vary from these estimates.

Estimates are necessary in particular in the measurement of inventories and amounts due from
customers for contract work (PoC), purchase price allocations, the recognition and measurement of deferred tax
assets, the recognition of provisions for pensions and other provisions.
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7. MARKETS AND COMPETITION
7.1 Markets

Instone is a leading nationwide residential real estate developer in Germany as measured in terms of
sgm of secured development projects not yet under construction (Source: bulwiengesa). Instone develops
modern, urban, multifamily residential properties and redevelops listed buildings for residential use. As of
September 30, 2017, Instone’s project portfolio comprised 48 projects with an aggregate expected sales volume
for fully developed projects of approximately €3.4 billion. As of that date, approximately 93% of Instone’s
portfolio (by expected sales volume for fully developed projects) was located in Germany’s key metropolitan
regions (Berlin, Bonn, Cologne, Dusseldorf, Frankfurt am Main, Hamburg, Leipzig, Munich and Stuttgart
(including Herrenberg)) and 7% in other prospering medium-sized cities.

Instone’s business is highly dependent on the German residential real estate market which is influenced
by general macroeconomic and demographic trends that have contributed to its long-term position of structural
undersupply. Furthermore, Instone strongly benefits from highly favorable real estate market conditions in the
key growth regions in which Instone primarily operates.

7.1.1  General Macroeconomic Developments in Germany

7.11.1 Gross Domestic Product

Germany has an advanced, diversified and competitive economy. Germany is Europe’s largest
economy with a Gross Domestic Product (“GDP”) in 2016 of €3.1 trillion, or 21.1%, of the EU’s total GDP in
2016 (Source: Eurostat, Share of EU GDP). Germany also has one of the highest GDP per capita (€38.1
thousand) in Europe (Source: Destatis, Gross Domestic Product). Notably, in 2016 Germany achieved the
highest budget surplus since reunification amounting to €23.7 billion, which equates to a 0.8% ratio of general
government debt to GDP under the Maastricht criteria (Source: Destatis, Press Release No. 063).

Despite current economic and political challenges in Europe, such as the outcome of the United
Kingdom’s referendum to leave the EU in 2016 and the subsequent initiation of the exit proceedings expected to
result in the United Kingdom leaving the EU at the end of March 2019 (commonly referred to as “Brexit”),
Germany’s economy has proven to be relatively resilient. In 2016, the German economy reported growth of
1.9% (price-adjusted) compared to 2015 (Source: Destatis, Press Release No. 10). Germany’s economic growth
in 2016 corresponded to the European Union average (1.9%), but was still higher compared to the United
Kingdom (1.8%), France (1.2%) and Italy (0.9%) (Source: Eurostat, Annual National Accounts). Looking
forward, the German economy is expected to show a growth rate of 1.9% in 2017 and 1.7% in 2018
(Source: Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD)). Similarly, the European
Commission expects the German economy to grow 1.6% in 2017 and 1.9% in 2018 (Source: European
Commission, Winter 2017 Economic Forecast Germany). In this context, uncertainty associated with the
direction of the economic policy in the United States and Europe as well as with the ongoing Brexit-negotiations
might affect economic growth in the years to come (Source: KPMG, Property Lending Barometer 2017).

The following chart shows the development of GDP in Germany compared to other major countries in
Europe from 2007 to 2016 as well as a projected development of GDP starting from 2017 onwards:
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7.1.1.2 Inflation, Interest Rates and Household Debt

Notwithstanding the overall positive developments in the German macroeconomic environment,
inflation in Germany has been relatively muted in recent years. After a drop to 0.3% in 2009, inflation picked up
slightly through 2011 only to decrease continuously to another record low mark of 0.3% in 2015. Since then, the
direction has been upward, and forecasts project that the inflation rate will continue with this trend
(Source: Destatis, Press Release No. 319). According to the German Federal Bank (Deutsche Bundesbank), the
year-on-year inflation in Germany, as measured by the consumer price index, is projected to be 1.5% in 2017
and to slightly increase further to 1.6% in 2018 (Source: Deutsche Bundesbank Outlook for the German
Economy). The prospects of higher inflation generally favor investments in residential property, as this asset
class is likely to be perceived as an attractive hedge against inflation.

Business to consumer (B2C) investment in real property is also encouraged by historically low interest
rates in Germany. Decreasing interest rates, which have been observed in past years, have also benefited
consumers through low mortgage rates. In 2017, households have benefited from readily-available affordable
financing with mortgage rates of c. 1% to 2% at loan to cost (LTC) ratios of a high 70-80%. On the other hand,
this sustained low interest environment makes alternative investments hardly profitable. Medium-term fixed
interest rates enable lenders to secure the rates at a low point and thus be unaffected by rates that might follow
the picking up inflation (Source: Deloitte; Property Index; Deutsche Bundesbank, System of indicators for
residential property markets).

The following chart shows the development and forecast of interest rates in Germany over the course of
20 years.
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7.1.1.3 Wages, employment and workforce

Germany’s solid economic growth is also reflected on a household level in rising wages, low
household debt, a historically low unemployment rate and a growing workforce.

The growth of gross wages has been steadily outpacing inflation, leading to a rising level of purchasing
power in Germany. The following chart shows the development of inflation in Germany from 2011 to 2016 in
relation to the development of gross wages.

Growth of inflation and gross wage in Germany 2011 — 2016
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